
ANNUAL  
REPORT 

2020



$0/5&/54

FINANCIAL REVIEW
���
���
���
���
���
��6
���

BUSINESS REVIEW
$orporate Banking � Restructuring
$apital .arkets
Innovation � (rowth Banking
7enture Finance
1roKect Finance
5rading
International Business
1ension � 5rust
Research � $redit Review

���
���
��6
���
���
��6
���
���
���

SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW
��6
���
���
��6
���
�6�

-iability .anagement
Risk .anagement
I5 � Digital 5ransformation
&thical .anagement
)uman Resources .anagement
$orporate 4ocial Responsibility

INTRODUCTION
���
��6
���
���
���
��6

.essage from the $hairman � $&0

.anagement 1rofiles
KDB at a (lance 
Financial )ighlights
Business )ighlights
.ission � 7ision

0rganization
(lobal /etwork

��6
���

.anagement’s Discussion � Analysis
Independent Auditors’ Report
$onsolidated 4tatements of Financial 1osition
$onsolidated 4tatements of $omprehensive Income
$onsolidated 4tatements of $hanges in &Ruity
$onsolidated 4tatements of $ash Flows
/otes to the $onsolidated Financial 4tatements



To adapt to the changes in the digital finance 
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Korea Development Bank (KDB) has been the foundation of the nation’s 
economy and financial industry for the past 66 years.

KDB has evolved successfully in line with the changing demands of its 
stakeholders and Korean markets. KDB now inspires to transform into the 
nation’s leading financial platform which materializes a better society.

As we usher in the new era of Fourth Industrial Revolution, KDB will 
provide a strong impetus for a greater sense of responsible management, 
promotion of sustainable finance, and creating the future for a shared 
growth with innovation and creativity.

KDB will turn transactions into connections, connections into 
opportunities, and opportunities into powerful waves of new growth, 
fulfilling its ultimate mandate of an advanced policy bank at the forefront 
of Korea’s sustainable growth.

5IisreQortisalsoQublisIedinaninteractive1D'GormatallowinHreaderstomove
RuicLlyandeasilytoQaHesintIereQortandincludinHsIortcutstorelatedwebQaHes
5Ie2020"nnualReQortoG,DBBanLinaninteractive1D'Gormatisavailableto
downloadatourwebsite

www.kdb.co.kr
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KDB will continue 
to support Korea’s 
sustainable growth 
and serve as a 
pillar that enables 
the country’s 
transformation into a 
key player in the post 
Covid-19 world. 

Lee, Dong Gull
$Iairman � $&0 
,orea DeveloQment BanL

.FTTBHF�GroN�UIF��
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Dear Clients and Readers,
I would liLe to eYQress my sincere aQQreciation to all our clients and 
Qartner orHani[ations Gor tIeir unwaverinH suQQort and trust in ,orea 
DeveloQment BanL	,DB
�

In 2020, tIe world Ias conGronted an unQrecedented crisis� 5Ie 
Qandemic created by $ovid�19 Ias Qosed new cIallenHes, witI tIeir 
eGGects imQactinH tIe entire Hlobe� &conomic activities were severely 
restricted, businesses saw tIeir revenues Qlummet, and QeoQle lost 
Kobs� "s conventional industries declined and new industries emerHed, 
we also witnessed a QroGound sIiGt in tIe economic QaradiHm� 

Still, it was a time Gor ,DB to remain at tIe GoreGront oG suQQortinH 
tIe ,orean economy, taLinH actions to combat tIe crisis and QavinH 
tIe way Gor a new economic QaradiHm to taLe Iold in tIe country as 
one oG its Ley Qolicy nancial institutions� 8e RuicLly came uQ witI a 
,R8 �0 trillion suQQort QacLaHe Gunded botI by tIe Hovernment and 
tIe Qroceeds Grom ,DB bonds to inKect liRuidity into businesses� 8e 
ensured tIat Gunds reacIed even tIe non�investment Hrade issuers 
by creatinH Gacilities to underwrite bonds and QurcIase commercial 
QaQers� In addition to GulllinH tIe role as a marLet saGeHuard, we IelQed 
restore tIe comQetitiveness oG ,oreaˏs mainstay industries tIrouHI a 
,R8 �0 trillion stabili[ation Gund and by QlayinH an instrumental role 
in closinH a meHa�merHer deal in tIe countryˏs airline industry� "t tIe 
same time, we continued QlantinH tIe seeds oG new HrowtI in tIe midst 
oG a Qandemic by HoinH aIead witI tIe ,DB /eYtRound and tIe ,DB 
/eYtRise sessions, wIicI are ,DBˏs own QlatGorms oG innovation and 
HrowtI Gor suQQortinH ,orea sˏ QromisinH start�uQs�

In 2021, ,DB will taLe a steQ GurtIer to build a better Guture Gor ,orea� 
In order to IelQ tIe country lead in a Qost $ovid�19 era and GulGill 
our mission oG ˑ"dvanced 1olicy BanL at tIe 'oreGront oG ,oreaˏs 
Sustainable (rowtI ,˒ ,DB will Gocus on tIe GollowinH�

First, we will strive for the successful eYecution of the ˑKorean 
/ew Deal.˒
5Ie ˑ,orean /ew Deal˒ is a national develoQment strateHy aimed 
at naviHatinH tIe country out oG tIe Qandemic towards a QatIway oG 
leadinH a Qost $ovid�19 Hlobal economy� " total oG ,R8 1�0 trillion is 
Qlanned to be invested by 202�, Grom wIicI ,DB, as a Qrimary Qolicy 
eYecutinH arm oG tIe Hovernment, will IelQ create a ,R8 20 trillion 
Qublic sector�led /ew Deal 'und� 5Iis will be couQled witI a seQarate 
,R8 2� trillion investment and lendinH QroHram to ensure tIat tIe /ew 
Deal will most eectively reacI tIe tarHet businesses and industries�

In Qarallel witI tIis eort, ,DB aims to Gacilitate tIe transition in tIe 
business models oG tIe countryˏs traditional bacLbone industries 
by QrovidinH not only Ginancial but R�D assistance, drivinH tIe 
momentum Gor innovation and to reinGorce tIe core Gundamentals 
oG tIese industries� By doinH so, ,DB will continue to suQQort ,oreaˏs 
sustainable HrowtI and serve as a Qillar tIat enables tIe countryˏs 
transGormation into a Ley Qlayer in tIe Qost $ovid�19 world�

4econd, we will lead the way in green finance. 
&S( is emerHinH as a core value tIat serves as a maKor standard Gor 
establisIinH corQorate strateHies and decision maLinHs in tIe Hlobal 
economy� -ow emission develoQment strateHies are becominH tIe basis 
Gor national HrowtI strateHies in many Qarts oG tIe world� 

In line witI tIese movements, ,DB Ias establisIed and is eGGectively 
runninH its own &S(�inteHrated system tIat is on Qar witI tIose oG tIe 
Hlobal Qeers� Since 201� till now, ,DB Ias been ,orea sˏ only accredited 
entity oG tIe (reen $limate 'und� It was also tIe rst institution in tIe 
country to adoQt tIe &Ruator 1rinciQles� In 2021, ,DB will maLe a Gull 
commitment to establisIinH Hreen Ginance strateHies and Qroduct 
develoQment tIrouHI a new deQartment dedicated to &S( and /ew 
Deal�related QlanninH, wIicI will act as tIe BanL sˏ control tower Gor all 
oG its Hreen nance initiatives�

"iminH Gor reacIinH net�[ero emissions by 20�0, ,DB will drive ,orea sˏ 
transition into a low�carbon economy by leadinH tIe way in Hreen 
nance� 8e will IelQ Gacilitate environmentally sustainable desiHns and 
Qroduction Qrocesses in tIe country sˏ mainstay industries and uncover 
QromisinH businesses tIat Gall under tIe (reen /ew Deal umbrella� 
8e will also strenHtIen our Hreen inGrastructure by cominH uQ witI a 
Hreen taYonomy and Hreen investment Huidelines, and, in tIe Qrocess, 
contribute to tIe eYQansion and deeQeninH oG tIe &S( bond marLets in 
,orea includinH tIose Gor Hreen bonds�

5hird, we will encourage the growth of new industries, propelling 
the shift in industrial paradigm for the future of Korea.
In every crisis lies an oQQortunity� )owever, sei[inH tIe oQQortunity 
deQends on wIat we do durinH tIe crisis� 5IereGore, ,DB will lay tIe 
Goundation to ensure tIat ,orea sei[es tIe oQQortunity tIat leads to a 
Ruantum leaQ�

8e will allocate ,R8 20 trillion to innovative and HrowtI sectors in 
2021, wIicI will include bold actions to enable early, strateHic caQital 
investments by tIe countryˏs ˑBI(3˒ industries oG tomorrow ˊ Guture 
veIicle, bioIealtI, and system on a cIiQ� "t tIe same time, as one oG 
tIe marLet maLers in ,oreaˏs venture ecosystem, ,DB will continue 
its eGGort to identiGy and suQQort tIe new leaders oG innovation and 
HrowtI� )enceGortI, we will reinGorce and strenHtIen tIe linLs between 
our start�uQ incubatinH and venture investment QlatGorms, tIe ,DB 
/eYt0ne, tIe ,DB /eYtRound, and tIe ,DB /eYtRise� 5Iis will translate 
into stimulatinH tIe HrowtI oG todayˏs start�uQs into tomorrowˏs 
unicorns�

5IrouHI tIese eGGorts and more, ,DB will be a stalwart Qartner in 
steQQinH uQ tIe economic dynamics oG ,orea�

Dear clients,
8e will not waste tIe eYQeriences we accumulated durinH tIe $ovid�19 
crisis but Gully caQitali[e tIem to continue sIorinH uQ tIe ,orean 
economy and its strides towards a new leaQ� 6ntil we reacI tIe end 
oG tIe crisis, and lead in tIe new era awaitinH us, ,DB will continue 
to move Gorward, one steQ at a time, determined to steer clear oG 
comQlacency tIe wIole way� "s ,DB Qresses on towards its Hoals in tIe 
cominH years, I asL Gor tIe same Henerous suQQort and encouraHement 
you Iave sIown tIus Gar�

5IanL you�
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Independent Directors

Chairman & CEO

Vice Chairman & COO

Sung, Joo Yung

7ice $Iairman � $00

Auditor

Joo, Tae Hyun

"uditor

Senior Executive Director

Choi, Dae Hyon

Senior &Yecutive Director

Yang, Chae Yeol

IndeQendent Director

Kim, Nam Jun

IndeQendent Director

Lee, Yune

IndeQendent Director

Yook, Dong Han

IndeQendent Director

Son, Kyo Deog

IndeQendent Director

Lee, Dong Gull

$Iairman � $&0
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Senior Management : Division Heads

Chang, Byoung Don

Innovation � (rowtI  
BanLinH Division

Oh, Jin Kyo

S.& BanLinH Division

Kim, Sang Soo

RisL .anaHement Division

Kim, Bock Kyu

StrateHy  (reen 'inance 
1lanninH Division

Compliance Officer

Lee, Byung Ho

International Business Division

Yang, Ki Ho

$aQital .arLet Division

Bae, Young Un

$redit Review Division

Lee, Young Jae

$IieG $omQliance 0cer

KDB strives to create values for the 
benefit of its stakeholders through 
a responsible and transparent 
management system which is made 
possible by its advanced governance.

Park, Sun Kyoung

Business "dministration 
Division

Ahn, Young Kyu

$orQorate BanLinH Division
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Equator Principles
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Green Climate Fund

"s oG December 31, 2020

International Development 
Finance Club

UN Global Compact

Credit Ratings

Foundation

1954
.oodyˏs

"B�
S�1

""
'itcI

""

Number of Employees

3,446

&Ruivalent to tIe sovereiHn ratinHs oG tIe ReQublic oG ,orea
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Summary Statement of Financial Position 	6nit� ,R8 billion� $onsolidated basis


���� ����
$hange

Amount �
ASSETS ���
������ 2��,�39�� 3�,1���� 13���

$asI � due Grom banLs ��
������ �,��1�2 �,033�0 �2�0�
Securities ��
������ ��,1�9�� 	1,�����
 	2�1�

-oans ���
������ 1�9,92��9 1�,����9 9���
0tIer assets ��
������ 32,9�1�� 19,112�� ���0�

LIABILITIES ���
������ 233,��2�� 30,2���� 12�9�
DeQosits ��
������ 3�,31��3 10,����1 29�3�
BorrowinHs ��
������ 2�,9���� 	�2���
 	1���

Bonds ���
������ 12�,20��� 1�,122�� 1����
0tIer liabilities ��
������ ��,2�2�1 1,901�� ��0�

EQUITY ��
������ 3�,0���1 �,912�� 1��9�
Issued caQital ��
������ 1�,��3�1 2,102�� 11�3�
$aQital surQlus �
������ 1,000�� ���3 ����
Retained earninHs ��
������ 10,����� 1,����3 1����
$aQital adKustments ������ 2���0 0�1 0�0�
"ccumulated otIer comQreIensive income �
������ �0�9 2,012�� �,920���
/on�controllinH interests �
������ �,�3��� �3�� 1�2�

Summary Statement of Income 	6nit� ,R8 billion� $onsolidated basis


���� ����
$hange

Amount �
/et oQeratinH revenue ����.� 2,����1 1,32��0 �2�0�

/et interest income ����.� 1,3���� 1���� 13���
/on�interest income ����.� 1,1���3 1,13��2 9��3�

1rovision Gor credit losses ����.� 	1�2��
 1,����1 �
(�" eYQenses ����.� 1,�2���  	�2��
 	����

0QeratinH income ����.� 1,1�2�1 	�9��
 	����

/on�oQeratinH income ����.� 	��2�3
 2,�0��1 �
Income taY eYQenses ���.� 213�� �03�� 23����
1roGit Gor tIe Qeriod Grom continuinH oQerations ����.� 10��2 2,02��9 1,90����
1roGit Grom discontinued oQerations ���.� 1�3�0 	3�2�� 
 �
/et QroGit ����.� 2�9�1 1,��2�2 �02���

'JOBOcJBM�)JHIMJHIUT



In 2020, KDB financed in total amount of KRW 91.1 trillion, 63% (or KRW 57.1 trillion) of 
which was extended to small and medium sized enterprises (SMEs) and medium sized 
enterprises (MEs). In particular, the Bank provided KRW 3.57 trillion in 2020 under the 
“Special Fund for Cheering Up Korea” program to SMEs and MEs hit hard by the Covid-19 
pandemic in order to prevent temporary degradation of their businesses from triggering 
a collapse of the industrial ecosystem and leaving a lasting damage in the national 
competitiveness.

CORPORATE BANKING & RESTRUCTURING

BUSINESS
HIGHLIGHTS

Debt Capital MarketCorporate Banking



PROMPT 
3&COVERY  

FROM COVID-19

Emergency 
Bond Purchase 
Program

KRW2.2 trillion

Bond Refinancing 
Program

KRW1.9 trillion

LCC support 
program

KRW 0.3 trillion

Special Fund 
for Cheering 

Up Korea

KRW 5.0 trillion

CP Refinancing 
Program

KRW1.5 trillion

A2 CP Refinancing

KRW1.0 trillion

Debt Capital 
Market 
Stabilization Fund

KRW4.0 trillion

Securities Market 
Stabilization Fund

KRW2.0 trillion

Corporate 
Liquidity 
Assistance 
Facility(SPV)

KRW 2.0  trillion

Loan  
Program

Liquidity 
Assistance

Capital 
Market  

Stabilization 
Program

$oWJd����
.BrkFU�

4UBbJMJ[BUJoO�
1roHrBNT



The KDB NextRound is a market-driven platform for venture investment that provides 
start-ups with the opportunity to attract investments, and investors with the opportunity 
to discover new investment targets. Since its inauguration in 2016, 430 IR rounds have 
been held for a total of 1,514 companies. The rounds introduced start-ups identified 
by accelerators, venture capital firms, and government-funded research institutes and 
attracted venture capital from both domestic and overseas investors. Among the start-
ups which participated in the rounds, 358 successfully attracted investments totaling 
KRW 2.2 trillion.

VENTURE FINACE

KDB NextRoundVenture & Technology Banking Scale-up Banking

REVITALIZING  
INNOVATIVE 
GROWTH



157

509

741 749

2017 2018 2019 20202016

Investment attraction 
through KDB NextRound 
(KRW billion)

25

100

215

430

325

/FYU3oVOd

/FYU3JTF�����
�4FoVM

/VNbFr�oG�$oOGFrFOcFT�IFMd�BU�UIF�/FYU3JTF�����
�4FoVM

0O�MJOF�49�

0O�MJOF�207
/VNbFr�oG�.FFUJOHT�IFMd�JO�rFMBUJoO�Uo�bVTJOFTT�cooQFrBUJoO�BOd�JOWFTUNFOU�oQQorUVOJUJFT��
BU�UIF�/FYU3JTF�����
�4FoVM

/VNbFr�oG�TUBrU�VQ�QBrUJcJQBOUT�Gor�UIF�/FYU3JTF�����
�4FoVM

186�QBrUJcJQBOUT�

0�MJOF�26

0�MJOF�1,507

Accumulated Number of 
IR rounds provided by 
KDB NextRound

44



KDB pioneered the ESG bonds market by issuing its first foreign currency denominated 
Green Bond in amount of USD 300 million in 2017 and the country’s first ever domestic 
green and social bonds issuances amounting to KRW 600 billion in 2018, and has shown 
its commitment to the global trend of promoting sustainability in finance.

Moreover, KDB strengthened the transparency of disclosure of the social and environmental  
impacts of its ESG bonds. For its foreign currency denominated ESG Bonds, KDB obtained 
a second party opinion for its 2019 KDB Sustainability Bond Framework, and for its 
domestic ESG bonds has obtained an independent third party opinion on the bond 
prospectus. Such efforts will help enhance investor confidence in KDB’s ESG bonds and 
contribute to a qualitative growth of the ESG bond market. 

LIABILTY MANAGEMENT

SOCIALLY  
3&SPONSIBLE 
BANK

,DBBonds DeQosits

KRW-denominated ESG bonds
	6nit� ,R8 billion


2020

1200

2019

800

2018

600



2017 (Green)

2019 (Green)

2020 (Social)

USD

300
million

EUR

500
million

Foreign Currency-denominated 
ESG bonds

USD

500
million



-oOH�UFrN�(rowUI�%JrFcUJoO�	(oBMT�Gor�����

KDB has set the direction for its long�term growth, targeting the year ����,  
to enable longer�term perspectives on how it responds to changes in 
economic and social trends, and redefine the role of an advanced policy bank. 
 In order to realize its vision by ����, KDB has selected eight strategic tasks, 
which reect its mission, vision, and the KDB 8ay. 

,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5��6
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.JTTJoO���7JTJoO

"dWBOcFd�1oMJcZ�#BOk��
at the Forefront of Korea’s Sustainable Growth

�  "n advanced Qolicy banL reGers to a Hovernment�owned Ginancial institution, wIicI Ias aims to 
 suQQort botI industrial and social sectors, by QromotinH tIe national economy and imQrovinH 
 QeoQle sˏ Ruality oG liGe�

7JTJoO ,orFBˏT�'JOBOcJBM�1MBUGorN�
Leading to a Bright Future

�  " Ginancial QlatGorm reGers to an innovative Ginancial institution tIat QerGorms more tIan an 
 intermediary Gor borrowers and lenders ˊ it connects all staLeIolders, allows inGormation 
 eYcIanHe and Qrovides comQreIensive Ginancial services�

,DB will reali[e its vision oG becominH a ˑ,orea sˏ 'inancial 1latGorm -eadinH to a BriHIt 'uture˒ 
tIrouHI its mission as an ˑ"dvanced 1olicy BanL at tIe 'oreGront oG ,orea sˏ Sustainable (rowtI�˒  
5Ie mission envisions ,DBˏs identity and role as a Qolicy Ginancial institution tIat seeLs to 
Qromote tIe HrowtI oG tIe ,orean economy Grom an industrial develoQment asQect and imQrove 
tIe lives oG tIe QeoQle Grom a social develoQment asQect� 5Ie vision embodies our determination 
to advance into an innovative Ginancial institution, sQearIeadinH tIe cIanHes brouHIt on by tIe 
'ourtI Industrial Revolution and encomQassinH tIe needs oG all marLet QarticiQants�
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5o be imQlemented in con�
nection witI tIe QroHress in 
denucleari[ation neHotia�
tions and imQrovements in 
inter�,orean relations

KDB has selected eight strategic tasks with a dual focus on  
business success and internal innovation, which are necessary 

preconditions to achieving its vision as a policy bank. 

˖'ocusoncorQorateandindustrial
innovation

˖SecureHlobalcomQetitiveness
˖SuQQorttIeneweconomicera 

oGtIe,orean1eninsula�
˖BuildasolidbusinessGoundation 

GorQolicyGinance

Tasks for Business Success

˖&stablisIourselvesastIeR�DIub 
GorQolicyGinance

˖1ursuebanLwidediHitali[ation
˖$reateaIealtIyorHani[ationalculture

GorGriendlyworLenvironment
˖BuildaGoundationGorautonomous

manaHement

Tasks for Internal Innovation

KDB 8ay is a set of guiding principles shared  
by all the members of KDB to achieve the 7ision.

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

��

�� 8e heed 
voice of 
clients.

8e embrace 
change.

8e take full 
responsibility  
to become a 

socially reliable 
bank.

8e communicate 
and initiate.

8e think 
digital.

8e step out of 
comfort zone  

into calculated  
challenges.

8e provide 
eYpert’s  
solution.

8e find  
solution on 

the spot.

8e cooperate 
with outside 
to find better 

ways.

8e think 
forward to act 

forward.

�
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Based on its long�term growth direction, KDB has established  
a mid�term management strategy spanning over a period of five 

years from ���� to ���� as below.

.Jd�UFrN�.BOBHFNFOU�4UrBUFHZ

Pioneer new areas of policy 
finance

˖ "ctively seeL out new demands Gor 
Qolicy Ginance

˖ 1reQare Gor a new economic era on 
tIe ,orean 1eninsula

Build stable and sustainable 
operational foundation

˖ 1ursue banL�wide diHital  
transGormation

˖ Build on tIe caQacity Gor stable  
revenue Heneration

˖ Introduce innovation to tIe  
orHani[ation and internal Qrocesses

Enhance the competitiveness of global 
& investment banking business

˖ &YQand tIe oQerational base  
Gor Hlobal oQerations

˖ Increase QroGitability oG Hlobal  
oQerations

˖  (lobali[e IB oQerations and Qrovide 
more suQQort tIrouHI Qolicy GinancinH

˖ )elQ tIe mainstay industries enIance 
tIeir comQetitiveness

˖ 'acilitate Henerational transition  
in corQorate leadersIiQ 

Support the reshaping of the 
industrial ecosystem

˖ 'oster new industries and  
new tecInoloHies

˖ Become a leadinH venture caQital 
QlatGorm

˖ StrenHtIen tIe role as a venture 
caQital suQQlier

Lead innovation and growth,%#�.Jd�UFrN��
.BOBHFNFOU�4UrBUFHZ�

	����_����


.Jd�UFrN��
.BOBHFNFOU�
4UrBUFHZ



(MobBM�,%#
��
MFBdJOH�JOOoWBUJoO��
BOd�UIF�GVUVrF��
oG�,orFB

.BOBHFNFOU�(oBM
��
*NQMFNFOUBUJoO�4UrBUFHJFT
��
BOd�,FZ�5BTkT�Gor�����

.BOBHFNFOU�(oBM ��,FZ�4UrBUFHJFT

Help restore Korea’s  
economic vitality through 

decisive response  
to crisis

Internalize the KDB Way 
through reforms from 

within 

Support Korea’s  
economic transition and 

prepare for the future

,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5��6



�  In order to elaborate on eacI oG tIe Ley tasLs 
 and ensure tIeir eGGective imQlementation, 
 ,DB Ias establisIed a total oG 1� sub�tasLs�

5BTk�%FUBJMT 4Vb�UBTkT

˖ 1rovide suQQort Gor tIe ,orean /ew Deal 
and acIieve intended outcomes

˖  StrenHtIen Hreen and social Ginance 
 based on &S( QrinciQles

˖  Increase suQQort Gor innovation and 
HrowtI to maYimi[e tIe nation sˏ HrowtI 
Qotential

˖   &YQand GundinH Gor tIe scalinH uQ 
 oG innovative start�uQs 

˖  )elQ reinGorce comQetitiveness in Ley 
industries and Gacilitate tIe resIaQinH oG 
tIe industrial structure

˖  $ontinue tIe suQQort Gor S.&s and 
 .&s to IelQ imQrove ,orea sˏ economic 
 Gundamentals

˖  Broaden Hlobal oQerations GocusinH on 
strateHic areas

˖  "ctively eYQlore overseas marLets via, 
amonH otIers, Hlobal wIolesale banLinH

˖  Build uQ IB oQerations and strenHtIen 
 tIe caQacity in tIe caQital marLets

˖  $ontinue witI tIe relieG QroHrams to IelQ 
 overcome tIe crisis

˖  1ursue eGGicient corQorate restructurinH

˖  &YQand corQorate social resQonsibility
˖  ImQrove QroGit�HeneratinH caQacity and 
 asset�Ginancial soundness

˖  Internali[e tIe core values oG tIe Guture 
	e�H�, diHital transGormation


��,FZ�5BTkT

01 -eadtIetransitiontoalowcarbon
economytIrouHItIe,orean/ew
Deal

02 )elQimQrove,oreaseconomic
dynamicsbysuQQortinH
innovationandnewHrowtI

03 DrivetIesIiGtinindustrial
structurebystimulatinHcorQorate
andindustrialinnovation

04 -eadintIewayoGadvancinH
,oreasGinancialcaQacity
bystrenHtIeninHHlobal
andinvestmentbanLinH
comQetitiveness

05 SuQQort,oreaseconomicleaQby
eGGectivelyresQondinHtoovercome
tIe$ovid19crisis

06 DeeQentIeGoundationGor
sustainableQolicyGinance
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<Economic and Financial Environment>

� 1ositive siHns oG imQrovement in tIe 
Hlobal economy and Ginance suQQorted 
by increase in trade volumes and 
investments

� Downside risLs remain, most notably Grom 
uncertainties surroundinH tIe $ovid�19 
Qandemic

� Industrial transGormation driven by social 
distancinH and diHitali[ation

� ,orea in tIe middle oG maLinH a bold 
attemQt at transitioninH its economic  
and social structures tIrouHI tIe ,orean 
/ew Deal

� ,orea sˏ Ginancial industry still laHHinH 
beIind tIeir Hlobal Qeers

� (rowinH need Gor actively manaHinH &S(�
related risLs 
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KDB has strengthened policy financing support by providing 
funds in a timely and stable manner to aid the recovery of 
the economy which was hit by Covid-19.

In addition, KDB has taken the lead in adopting global norms 
and standards and spread them across the nation not only to 
promote both quantitative expansion but also the qualitative 
growth of green financing based on the Korean New Deal 
and ESG principles.
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Corporate Banking
R&7I&8 0F ����
In 2020, tIe ,orean economy Gaced a droQ in botI domestic 
demand and eYQorts GollowinH tIe contraction in tIe Hlobal 
economy due to tIe outbreaL oG $ovid�19� 5Ie nation recorded 
a neHative HrowtI Gor tIe Girst time since tIe 199� "sian 
'inancial $risis�

8itI increased uncertainties in Hlobal economy due to tIe 
Qandemic, ,orean comQanies tooL various measures to adaQt 
to tIe raQidly cIanHinH environment sucI as maLinH inroads 
into new business ventures Gor securinH GurtIer develoQment, 
investinH to uQHrade tIeir Gacilities in resQonse to tIe era oG 
tIe 'ourtI Industrial Revolution, and eYecutinH necessary 
corQorate restructurinH� "ccordinHly, ,DB reinGorced tIe 
strenHtI oG tIe overall industries tIrouHI QrovidinH GinancinH 
in a timely and suGGicient manner, wIicI were aimed at 
enIancinH tIe core comQetitiveness oG its corQorate Qartners 
and GacilitatinH tIe transition oG tIeir business models to IelQ 
secure tIe Guture HrowtI enHines�

"s ,oreaˏs most Qrominent corQorate banLinH sQecialist, ,DB 
Qrovided Ginancial services customi[ed to tIe needs oG its 
clients witI a wide ranHe oG Qroducts�

$orQorBUF�#BOkJOH���3FTUrVcUVrJOH

5Ie BanL also Qlayed a stronH suQQortinH role in 1
 increasinH 
Ginancial suQQort Gor conventional industries sucI as materials, 
cIemicals, metals, and eRuiQment, 2
 QrovidinH a timely 
liRuidity suQQort to tIe comQanies adversely aGGected by 
$ovid�19 and 3
 leadinH maKor Hreen QroKects�

8itI its industry and Ginance alliance QroHram, ,DB actively 
conducted tIe Hovernmentˏs Qlan oG resIaQinH ,oreaˏs 
industry tIat centers around Guture tecInoloHies� 5IrouHI 
its +oint SuQQort $ouncil Gor 0verseas .�" and Investments, 
,DB successGully identiGied acRuisition tarHets and Qrovided 
acRuisition Ginance and advisory services in cooQeration witI 
otIer Ginancial institutions�

'urtIermore, as ,oreaˏs leadinH Qolicy Ginance institution, 
,DB establisIed and manaHed tIe ,ey Industry Stabili[ation 
'und and advised its corQorate clients on QreemQtive Ginancial 
structure imQrovement� In addition, tIe BanL carried out local 
Kob creation QroKects desiHned to beneGit botI emQloyees 
and manaHement, and worLed on GacilitatinH tIe transition 
in business models oG corQorate clients in order to GurtIer 
soQIisticate tIe nationˏs industrial structure� 5IrouHI tIese 
eGGorts, ,DB as a reliable and solid Ginancial Qartner Gor its 
clients Ias ensured tIat its activities were aliHned to Qromote 
tIe sustainable develoQment oG tIe national economy�

KDB provided customized corporate 
banking services to companies  
and helped them respond to changes 
in the era of the Fourth Industrial 
Revolution.
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In 2020, ,DB Ginanced in total amount oG ,R8 91�1 trillion, 
�3� 	or ,R8 ���1 trillion
 oG wIicI was eYtended to small 
and medium si[ed enterQrises 	S.&s
 and medium si[ed 
enterQrises 	.&s
� In Qarticular, tIe BanL Qrovided ,R8 3��� 
trillion in 2020 under tIe ˑSQecial 'und Gor $IeerinH 6Q ,orea˒ 
QroHram to S.&s and .&s Iit Iard by tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic 
in order to Qrevent temQorary deHradation oG tIeir businesses 
Grom triHHerinH a collaQse oG tIe industrial ecosystem and 
leavinH a lastinH damaHe in tIe national comQetitiveness�

Financing for SMEs & MEs*  	6nit� ,R8 trillion


91.1
5otal funds provided in ���� 

2019

47.8

2018

45.7 

2020

57.1

�  .&s� $omQanies tIat Gall neitIer under tIe leHally deGined scoQe oG S.&s nor are 
 aGGiliated to conHlomerates restricted Grom cross�sIareIoldinH

-0A/ )I()-I()54

Beneficiary Details of support provided

$ompany 4 "rranHed a ,R8 ��0 billion acRuisition Ginance Gor 
acRuirinH ,orea sˏ larHest waste treatment comQany

$ompany ) 'inanced ,R8 �00 billion and suQQorted tIe 
comQany sˏ R�D Gor develoQinH Guture veIicles

$ompany 4 "rranHed a ,R8 1�� trillion GinancinH Gor acRuirinH 
anotIer comQany tIat Qroduces material Gor 
recIarHeable batteries and Gor caQital investment

07&R7I&8
,DB Ias been a maKor QroQonent oG industrial transition in ,orea 
centerinH on tIe environmental sustainability oG businesses, and in doinH 
so, Ias IelQed comQanies to comQete better in tIe Hlobal marLets� 

Green loans for environmentally sustainable projects

$orporateBanking�Restructuring

-A/D.ARK D&A-4 0F ����

Reshaping company’s business structure through  
the industry and finance alliance program

07&R7I&8
In SeQtember 2019, ,DB establisIed tIe +oint $ouncil Gor 0verseas 
.�" and Investments Kointly witI otIer Ginancial institutions, 
wIicI is a system to suQQort cross�border .�"s and investment 
activities oG ,orean enterQrises in order to acIieve tIe ultimate 
Hoal oG imQrovinH tIeir comQetitiveness� 
�  Role oG 1olicy nance institutions and commercial banLs� 1rovidinH 
 Koint suQQort Gor cross�border acRuisitions and investments

�  Role oG ,orean enterQrises� IdentiGyinH acRuisition tarHets and 
 searcIinH Gor Qotential buyers, QroQosinH ideas Gor institutional 
 imQrovements sucI as taY benets

5Ie $ouncil Ias Qrovided QreemQtive strateHic suQQort Gor 
caQital investment and business restructurinH Gor tIe QurQose oG 
strenHtIeninH tIe comQetitiveness oG maKor industries sucI as 
semiconductors, disQlays, and recIarHeable batteries�

4I(/IFI$A/$&
,DB Qroactively suQQorted caQital investments in core industry 
areas related to tIe 'ourtI Industrial Revolution 	i�e�, recIarHeable 
batteries, semiconductors, etc�
 tIrouHI tIe aGorementioned 
deals, contributinH to tIe comQetitiveness oG ,oreaˏs Qarts and 
material sectors�

1R0(RA. )I()-I()54 

Beneficiary Program Details of support provided

$ompany - +oint $ouncil Gor 
0verseas .�" 
and Investments 
	industry and 
Ginance alliance 
QroHram


�  &YQansion oG Hlobal 
 Qroduction caQacity oG 
 recIarHeable batteries

�  "QQroY� 6SD � billion Koint 
 Ginancial suQQort Gor Give 
 years 	2020_202�
 involvinH 
 Hlobal caQeY eYQansion Gor 
 manuGacturinH recIarHeable 
 batteries 

$ompany 4 +oint $ouncil Gor 
0verseas .�" 
and Investments

�  "cRuisition oG QroQrietary 
 tecInoloHy and eYQansion 
 into Hlobal marLets

�  6SD 1�� billion suQQort Gor 
 acRuisition GinancinH Gor 
 $omQany S sˏ acRuisition 
 oG a business unit oG 6S 
comQany D
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1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, ,DB, as tIe nationˏs reQresentative Qolicy Ginancial 
institution, will continue to Qrovide liRuidity not only to maKor 
conHlomerates but also to viable S.&s and .&s oQeratinH in Ley 
industries oG ,orea� 5Ie BanL will LeeQ identiGyinH QromisinH 
comQanies in new industries and eYQand its business scoQe by 
suQQortinH small and medium si[ed social inGrastructure, sucI 
as sIared IousinH QroKects� ,DB will also concentrate its suQQort 
on tIe comQanies involved in tIe ,orean /ew Deal� tIrouHI 
cooQeration witI local Hovernments across tIe country�

'urtIermore, tIe BanL will Qrovide customi[ed Ginancial 
solutions to strenHtIen comQetitiveness oG ,oreaˏs Ley 
industries sucI as semiconductors, disQlays, and recIarHeable 
batteries, and successGully GulGill tIe mandate Grom tIe 
Hovernment to lead tIe QaradiHm sIiGt in tIe ,orean economy� 
5Ie BanL is Gully committed to suQQortinH tIe Hovernmentˏs 
,orean /ew Deal and IelQinH comQanies resIaQe tIeir 
businesses and reinGorce tIeir comQetitiveness tIrouHI 
QromotinH industry�Ginance cooQeration� In doinH so, ,DB 
Qlans to Qrovide seamless suQQort to GurtIer develoQments 
and enIance its caQacity to imQlement Qolicy Ginance, bracinH 
Gor tIe era oG tIe 'ourtI Industrial Revolution�

Corporate Restructuring
R&7I&8 0F ����
8itI its stronH eYQertise in corQorate banLinH, ,DB Ias led many 
siHniGicant corQorate restructurinH initiatives in ,orea since tIe 
"sian 'inancial $risis oG 199�� DurinH tIe Ginancial meltdown 
oG 200�, tIe Hlobal economy Gell into a state oG staHnant HrowtI 
Qeriod and numerous ,orean comQanies became subKect to 
restructurinH� "Hainst tIis bacLdroQ, ,DB Ias become an eGGective 
saGety net Gor tIe ,orean economy and its industries by QromotinH 
QrinciQle�based and sound corQorate restructurinH Qractices�

,DB Ias actively endeavored to normali[e oQerations oG tIe 
countryˏs maKor sIiQbuildinH and sIiQQinH comQanies GacinH 
cIallenHes Grom tIe QrolonHed Hlobal economic recession� 5Ie 
BanL Qrovided ).. witI suQQort Gor investment in essential 
caQital eYQenditures and Qromoted intensive manaHement 
reGorms to strenHtIen its oQerational comQetency, wIicI led to 
a Ginancial turnaround in 2020� 

"lso, witI tIe obKective oG a swiGt and Gundamental business 
normali[ation by 2021 oG )anKin )eavy Industries and S59 
0GGsIore � SIiQbuildinH $o�, -td, ,DB Ias initiated .�" 
Qrocedures and selected QreGerred bidders Gor tIese comQanies�

,DB Qrovided emerHency GundinH to Doosan )eavy Industries 
� $onstruction, alonH witI assistance Gor Ginancial structure 
imQrovement and business realiHnment� ,DB also utili[ed tIe 
,ey Industry Stabili[ation 'und to suQQort "siana "irlines and 
Qromoted its meHa�merHer witI ,orean "ir, enIancinH aviation 
industry sˏ comQetitiveness tIrouHI restructurinH �

'urtIermore, ,DB Ias invested in tIe $orQorate RestructurinH 
Innovation 'und toHetIer witI otIer Ginancial institutions, witI 
tIe Hoal oG suQQlyinH liRuidity to tIe marLet and encouraHinH 
voluntary and QreemQtive restructurinH�

1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, ,DB will adIere to corQorate restructurinH Qractices 
based on tIe consistent QrinciQles and Qut its eYQerience 
and eYQertise to Gull use� By suQQortinH corQorate clients 
wIo undertaLe resIaQinH oG structural realiHnments on tIeir 
own and maLe Ginancial imQrovements, tIe BanL Qursues to 
minimi[e Qotential insolvencies� 

5Ie BanL will also taLe QromQt and eGGicient measures to 
ensure tIe eGGective restructurinH oG Ginancially distressed 
comQanies� By QlayinH a Ley role in suQQortinH sucI comQanies 
revive tIeir oQerations, ,DB will contribute to restorinH tIe 
vitality in tIe ,orean economy and industrial ecosystem�

�  5Ie Qlan announced by tIe Hovernment in +uly 2020 wIicI entails 1�0 trillion 
 ,orean won investment to create 1�9 million Kobs by 202�� 5Ie strateHy aims to 
 create not only Hovernment�suQQorted Kobs but also Kobs tIat suQQort tIe structural 
 transition towards a diHital and Hreen economy�
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$BQJUBM�.BrkFUT

Debt Capital Market
R&7I&8 0F ����
5Ie outbreaL oG $ovid�19 QusIed tIe debt caQital marLets into a 
tailsQin� 7olatility and uncertainty increased as liRuidity cruncI in 
tIe money marLet triHHered Gear oG anotIer Qotential Ginancial crisis�

"midst sucI unstable marLet conditions, ,DB continued to 
successGully QerGorm its Qivotal role as industry leader and marLet 
stabili[er Gor ,orea sˏ caQital marLets by leveraHinH its status as tIe 
only banL in ,orea witI tIe license to arranHe�underwrite and 
advise on corQorate debt securities includinH structured Qroducts�

,DB tooL tIe initiative in incorQoratinH tIe $orQorate Bond 
ReGinancinH 1roHram and tIe &merHency Bond 1urcIase 
1roHram into tIe Hovernmentˏs Ginancial relieG QacLaHe, wIicI 
siHniGicantly contributed to tIe restoration oG investor conGidence 
and stabili[ation oG tIe corQorate bond marLet in ,orea�

In 2020, ,DB also continued to reinGorce its Qosition as ,orea sˏ leadinH 
investment banL by successGully arranHinH Qublic oGGerinHs in tIe 
international marLet Gor issuers liLe Doosan InGracore and ,orea /ational 
0il $orQoration 	,/0$
 amid IeiHItened volatility� 5Ie BanL also eYQanded 
its scoQe oG business to non�(3�currency marLets by obtaininH its 'oreiHn 
"ustralian 'inancial Services -icense	'"'S-
 and QarticiQatinH in tIe 
arranHement oG ,anHaroo bonds tIrouHI a subsidiary located in )onH ,onH�

In structured Ginance, ,DB Qrovided customi[ed GinancinH suQQort 
to S.&s and .&s tIrouHI securiti[ation oG accounts receivables, 
real estates, and otIer assets� 5Ie BanL also arranHed tIe 
issuance oG asset�bacLed securities	"BS
 Gor comQanies oQeratinH 
in ,oreaˏs Ley industries, suQQortinH tIeir Ginancial needs and 
minimi[inH any neHative imQact on tIe national economy�

KDB provides various financing 
options for its clients such as 
arrangement of corporate bond 
issuance, structured finance, 
M&A and PEF. 

$apital.arkets

Covid-19 Market Stabilization Programs

07&R7I&8
,DB Ias continuously QerGormed its Ley mandate as a marLet 
stabili[er in times wIere ,orea Gaced economic cIallenHes and 
crises� In early 2020, wIen liRuidity strains in tIe money and 
bond marLets were HrowinH due to tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic, 
,DB QreemQtively initiated various marLet suQQort QroHrams as 
Qart oG tIe Hovernmentˏs Ginancial relieG QacLaHe� 5Ie QroHrams 
siHnicantly contributed to brinHinH bacL investor condence and 
tIe stabili[ation oG tIe corQorate debt caQital marLet in ,orea�

1articularly wortIy oG note is tIe $orQorate -iRuidity "ssistance 
'acility	S17
, tIe Girst Qolicy measure to be establisIed tIrouHI 
a coordinated eGGort amonH a Qolicy GinancinH institution 	,DB
, 
tIe central banL 	BanL oG ,orea
 and tIe Hovernment� 5Ie 'acility 
aimed at suQQortinH "" to BB rated corQorate bonds and "1 to "3 
rated commercial QaQers issued by non�nancial rms� It IelQed 
stabili[e tIe bond marLet and suQQorted businesses tIat suered 
Grom sIarQ downHrades in tIeir credit ratinH, tumblinH down to 
non�investment Hrades due to $ovid�19�related Gactors�

-A/D.ARK D&A-4 0F ����
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SucI eGGorts IelQed tIem to restructure and realiHn businesses in 
tIe domestic marLet, GurtIer allowinH tIem to identiGy tIeir new 
HrowtI enHines and Hain access to international marLets� ,DB 
also leveraHed its overseas networLs to eYQand its businesses, 
arranHinH acRuisition GinancinH Gor non�resident clients�

1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, tIe ,orean economy is eYQected to maLe a turnaround 
witI tIe boost Grom tIe Hovernmentˏs economic stimulus 
QacLaHe and eYQeriences accumulated over tIe course 
oG overcominH tIe $ovid�19 crisis� Demands Gor .�"s are 
eYQected to Hradually increase, as comQanies try to utili[e 
business restructurinH�reorHani[ation to secure tIeir HrowtI in 
tIe Qost $ovid�19 era�

,DB will continue to identiGy Qotential .�" demands Gor corQorate 
in need oG tIeir Ginancial structures and business models� In 
addition, ,DB will oriHinate cross�border .�" transactions to 
suQQort ,orean comQaniesˏ Hlobal eYQansion by establisIinH 
more mutually beneGicial QartnersIiQs witI overseas investment 
banLs and strenHtIeninH its Hlobal tarHet sourcinH caQabilities�

1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, ,DB will utili[e its overseas networLs to eYQand its client 
base to non�residents and also eYtend its D$. business by closely 
worLinH witI Qublic corQorations and blue�cIiQ comQanies�

'or structured Ginance, tIe BanL will oGGer diGGerentiated Qroducts by 
structurinH a wide ranHe oG underlyinH assets includinH tIe traditional 
Qrivate bonds, receivables, redeemable convertible QreGerence 
sIares, QroKect Ginance loans and intellectual QroQerty riHIts�

-ast, ,DB will Qromote tIe HrowtI oG tIe &S( bond marLet in ,orea�

M&A
R&7I&8 0F ����
,DB Qrovides Ginancial advisory services sQeciali[inH in .�" 
at Iome and abroad, and arranHes acRuisition GinancinH Gor 
corQorate clients, enablinH tIem to secure necessary GundinH 
and manaHe aQQroQriate caQital structures�

In 2020, desQite tIe sIarQ contraction in tIe Ginancial marLet 
caused by $ovid�19, tIe BanL actively advised corQorate clients 
on Qotential .�" deals and aQQealed its strenHtIs in arranHinH 
acRuisition GinancinH� 

K&: 065$0.&4
$redit sQreads tiHItened and stabili[ed since tIe imQlementation oG 
tIe QroHrams� -iRuidity was Qrovided into tIe bond marLets and as 
a result, reduced uncertainty and strenHtIened investor sentiment�

5Ie eGGects were more visible in tIe lower�rated corQorate bond 
marLet, witI averaHe order�booL si[e substantially increasinH 
and unsold bond issues drastically decreasinH, and resultinH in an 
increase in net issuance oG BBB rated bonds�

Market Stabilization 
Programs

1rogram 4ize
(KR8 tril.)

-iRuidity 1rovided
(KR8 bil.)

5otal KDB 5otal KDB

DCM Stabilization Fund 20�0 ��0 2,9�1 �00

Emergency Bond Purchase 
Program

��� 2�2 3�9 1��

Bond Refinancing Program 1�9 1�9 1,��� 1,���

CP Refinancing Program 2�0 1�� 1,11� 1,11�

A2 CP Refinancing 1�0 1�0 300 300

Corporate Liquidity 
Assistance Facility(SPV)

10�0 2�0 3,000 1,220

5oUBM ���� ���� �
��� �
���
07&R7I&8
In 'ebruary 2020, ,DB, as a nancial advisor, successGully closed 
a deal reHardinH -( )ouseIold � )ealtIcareˏs acRuisition oG 
1IysioHel, a dermatoloHy cosmetic brand oG (S,� -( )ouseIold 
� )ealtIcare, a leader in ,orea sˏ cosmetics and IouseIold Hoods 
sector, was able to establisI a beacIIead Gor entry into tIe Hlobal 
marLets tIrouHI tIe acRuisition�

AD7I40R: )I()-I()54
,DB Qlayed a Ley role tIrouHIout tIe acRuisition Qrocess as a buy�
side advisor by initiatinH tIe acRuisition QroQosal to -(, securinH 
tIe QreGerred bidder status, and neHotiatinH tIe transaction 
includinH tIe Qrice�

D&A- 4I(/IFI$A/$&
5Ie deal marLed a successGul case oG an out�bound .�" Gor a 
,orean comQany looLinH to eYQand its overseas oQeration� It was 
also ,DB sˏ rst sole advisory transaction oG a cross�border deal Gor a 
larHe corQorate in ,orea� It was a result oG utili[inH its international 
networLs tIat ,DB built over many years oG worL�

Successfully advised LG Household & Health Care on 
its acquisition of a global cosmetic brand Physiogel of 
GlaxoSmithKline(GSK).

-A/D.ARK D&A-4 0F ����
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Consulting
R&7I&8 0F ����
Since 2003, ,DB Ias enHaHed in over �00 consultinH QroKects 
coverinH a wide ranHe oG toQics, includinH business manaHement, 
Ginance, Qublic services and develoQments, and corQorate 
turnarounds� 5Ie BanL leveraHes its eYQertise accumulated over 
tIe course oG its oQeration as a Qrimary Qolicy Ginancial institution 
in ,orea� By Gully utili[inH its eYtensive industrial and corQorate 
client database and in QartnersIiQs witI otIer institutions, ,DB 
Qrovides tIe most oQtimal solutions to its clients�

$apital.arkets

2020 was a cIallenHinH time Gor comQaniesˏ business activities 
due to tIe sQread oG $ovid�19� In resQonse to tIis unQrecedented 
Qandemic outbreaL, ,DB Qrovided Gree consultinH services to 
S.&s and .&s to IelQ tIem establisI continHency business 
strateHies aHainst tIe raQid cIanHes in tIe marLet, wIicI 
contributed to ensurinH tIe eGGective imQlementation oG tIe 
BanL sˏ various Qolicy GinancinH QroHrams�

Based on its accumulated Lnow�Iows Grom tIe consultinH QroKects, 
,DB Qrovided eGGective solutions to start�uQs looLinH Gor HrowtI 
and conducted Geasibility studies Gor larHe�scaled 1' transactions�

1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, ,DB Qlans to develoQ a new consultinH QroHram 
tarHetinH scale�uQ comQanies to IelQ tIem establisI tIeir 
initial businesses and investment strateHies� 5Ie QroHram 
will Gacilitate tIem to eGGiciently raise and recover tIeir Gunds 
tIrouHI I10s and .�"s� In addition, tIe BanL will continue 
to suQQort tIe Hovernmentˏs Qolicy initiatives and Qrovide 
consultinH services to tIe comQanies tIat reRuire QreemQtive 
business restructurinH and collaboration witI ,DB Gor variety oG 
investment banLinH services�

Private Equity
R&7I&8 0F ����
Since tIe start oG its Qrivate eRuity business in +anuary 200�, 
,DB Ias set uQ 29 Qrivate eRuity Gunds 	1&'s
, and Ias built uQ 
an eYtensive tracL record in Gund manaHement, includinH buy�
outs, HrowtI GinancinH, and me[[anine GinancinH� "s oG tIe 
end oG 2020, total caQital commitments oG tIe 1� Gunds under 
manaHement by ,DB recorded ,R8 2�� trillion� 5Ie BanL ranLed 
seventI in ,orea measured in terms oG total commitment si[e, 
witI a marLet sIare oG aQQroYimately 2����

In a low interest rate environment, Gunds continued to Glow 
into 1&'s in cIase Gor IiHIer rates oG return� $onseRuently, 
by tIe end oG 2020, tIe number oG 1&' manaHers in ,orea 
increased to 33�, and total caQital commitments amounted to 
aQQroYimately ,R8 9� trillion�

DesQite recent unGavorable marLet conditions, ,DB souHIt 
to increase its rate oG return by adoQtinH eYit strateHies Gor 
investment assets witIin a blind Qool oG Gunds sucI as ,DB 
7alue 1&' 7II and ,DB SiHma 1&' II� "lso, tIe BanL Ias 
continued to discover and invest in innovative and QromisinH 
comQanies in tIe environment and enerHy sectors tIrouHI 
tIe ,DB Small .edium .e[[anine 1&' and InGrastructure 
Initiative 1st 1&'� ,DB also QarticiQated as a maKor investor in a 
Gund manaHed by tIe International 'inance $orQoration	I'$
 
tIrouHI its ,DB "sia 'und� By doinH so, ,DB contributed to tIe 
GinancinH oG maKor inGrastructure and industrial QroKects in "sian 
develoQinH economies sucI as BanHladesI and .yanmar� 

1-A/4 F0R ����
,DB establisIed a new Gund 	ˑ,$ S.&s and .&s 7alue 6Q 1st 

1&'˒
 witI Gund si[e oG ,R8 200 billion in +anuary 2021� 5Ie 
Qrimary QurQose oG tIis initiative is to meet tIe HrowinH needs 
oG S.&s and .&s to issue�reGinance in tIe me[[anine marLet 
as economic slowdown Gueled by tIe QrolonHed $ovid�19 crisis 
Iave siHniGicantly weaLened tIeir GundinH Qositions in tIe caQital 
marLets� 5Ie Gund is eYQected to oQen a cIannel Gor S.&s and 
.&s, wIo are struHHlinH desQite tIeir solid Gundamentals, to 
secure reRuired GundinH Gor tIe eYQansion oG tIeir business�

In resQonse to tIe Hovernment sˏ (reen /ew Deal, ,DB will build 
tIe Goundation Gor investinH in comQanies in tIe environment 
and enerHy sectors, Gor wIicI tIe BanL Qlans to establisI 
blind Gunds totalinH ,R8 �00 billion dedicated to GinancinH 
Hreen inGrastructures, QursuinH botI tIe Qublic interest and 
commercial viability�

/umber of consulting services provided (����_����)  
	6nit� /o� oG services Qrovided


519   Business .anaHement � 'inance

119   1ublic Service � DeveloQment

51   0verseas 

100   In�Iouse 

66   $orQorate 5urnarounds 855
5otal
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Key to Korea’s Innovative Growth
,DBˏs Innovation � (rowtI BanLinH Division envisions tIe 
develoQment oG new industries Gor tIe Guture oG ,orea and 
worLs to identiGy tIe neYt Heneration oG comQanies tIat will 
lead tIe innovative HrowtI oG tIe ,orean economy in tIe 
'ourtI Industrial Revolution era�

Engineering a System to Support Innovative Growth
,DB oversees and manaHes tIe ˑ$ommon $riteria Gor Innovative 
(rowtI ,˒ wIicI deGines innovative HrowtI cateHories accordinH to  
tIe Innovative (rowtI 1olicy $ouncil� 5Ie $ouncil is made uQ by 
Gour Hovernment ministries1
 and 11 Qolicy Ginancial institutions2
 
dedicated to creatinH a universal suQQort system Gor tIe country sˏ 
innovation and HrowtI� ,DB also endeavors to identiGy business 
areas on wIicI tIe member institutions cooQerate, eGGectively 
uQHrade tIe universal suQQort system, and QroQerly imQlement 
relevant Hovernment Qolicies�

KDB plays its role as a leading policy 
finance institution for innovative growth, 
nurturing future industries and new 
growth industries.

R&7I&8 0F ����
:ear 2020 was a miY oG a crisis Ieralded by an unQrecedented 
Qandemic in a Hlobal scale and a dramatic sIiGt in tIe economic 
QaradiHm� 8itI tIe slowinH down oG tIe Hlobal economy and 
weaLeninH investor sentiments, tIe Gocus on GindinH economic 
breaLtIrouHIs tIrouHI innovation was more critical tIan ever�

DurinH tIe year, ,DB, as tIe Secretariat oG tIe Innovative (rowtI 
1olicy $ouncil, scIemed Qolicy QroQosals and cooQerative 
initiatives, sQeciGically desiHned to enable tIe Hovernment, 
Qolicy Ginancial institutions, and Qrivate institutions to eGGectively 
suQQort tIe ,oreaˏs innovative HrowtI and 'ourtI Industrial 
Revolution businesses�

In Qarticular, ,DB launcIed a new QroHram and establisIed 
detailed imQlementation Huidelines to suQQort ˑ,oreaˏs 1,000 
Innovative $omQanies 1roHram� ,˒ wIicI is one oG tIe maKor 
QroKects initiated by tIe 'inancial Services $ommission�

1
  .inistry oG &conomy and 'inance, 'inancial Services $ommission, .inistry oG 5rade, 
 Industry and &nerHy, and .inistry oG S.&s and StartuQs

2
  ,orea DeveloQment BanL, Industrial BanL oG ,orea, tIe &YQort�ImQort BanL oG 
 ,orea, ,orea $redit (uarantee 'und, ,orea 5ecInoloHy 'inance $orQoration, 
 ,orea $redit InGormation Services, ,orea S.&s and StartuQs "Hency, ,orea 5rade 
 Insurance $orQoration, "Hriculture, 'orestry and 'isIeries $redit (uarantee 'und, 
 ,orea (rowtI Investment $orQoration, and ,orea 7enture Investment $orQoration

�  " collaborative QroHram led by tIe 'inancial Services $ommission under wIicI 
 innovative comQanies 	1,000�ē
 are selected and Qrovided witI comQreIensive 
 Ginancial suQQort 	investments, loans, Huarantees
 Gor 3 years� 5Ie QroHram is 
 initiated by Hovernment ministries, Qolicy Ginancial institutions and Qrivate Ginancial 
 institutions�
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,DB also manaHed tIe ˑ$ommon $riteria Gor Innovative 
(rowtI˒ witI a Hoal oG QrovidinH timely Ginancial suQQort Gor 
innovative HrowtI� 5Ie $riteria is a common standard adoQted 
by Qolicy Ginancial institutions Gor suQQortinH innovative HrowtI 
and businesses related to tIe 'ourtI Industrial Revolution, 
desiHned to remove any Qotential ineGGiciencies sucI as 
omission oG eliHible tarHets, uneRual distribution oG GinancinH, 
and redundancy in suQQort�

5Ie $riteria, sQeciGied as tIe ˑ(uidelines Gor SuQQortinH 
Innovative (rowtI "reas by 1olicy 'inancial Institutions˒ Grom 
tIe Hovernment sˏ ջ2020 &conomic 1olicy Directionռ, is beinH 
widely used by Qolicy Ginancial institutions as a standard Gor 
various Hovernment QroKects and Qroduct develoQments� 

.oreover, based on tIe ˑ$ommon $riteria Gor Innovative 
(rowtI ,˒ ,DB also establisIed tIe ˑ$ommon $riteria Gor /ew 
Deal Investment˒ in order to suQQort QroKects aGGiliated witI 
tIe ,orean /ew Deal� 5Ie newly establisIed criteria was 
created based on oQinions oG tIe relevant ministries, Qolicy 
Ginancial institutions and industrial eYQerts, and is eYQected to 
be used as a standard Huideline Gor evaluatinH and selectinH 
investment tarHets oG 1olicy /ew Deal 'unds and Qolicy Ginancial 
institutionsˏ Ginancial suQQort to /ew Deal QroKects�

1-A/4 F0R ����
,DB, as a Qrominent Qolicy Ginancial institution leadinH ,orea sˏ 
innovative HrowtI, will continue its close and active cooQeration 
witI tIe Hovernment ministries, includinH tIe .inistry oG 
&conomy and 'inance and tIe 'inancial Services $ommission, 
to suQQort tIe acceleration oG tIe innovative HrowtI�

2021 marLs tIe second year since tIe launcIinH oG ˑ,oreaˏs 
1,000 Innovative $omQanies 1roHram˒ and ,DB continues 
stable oQeration oG tIe QroHram by evaluatinH and selectinH 
more Qotential comQanies, and identiGyinH areas reRuired Gor 
imQrovement tIrouHI systematically collectinH GeedbacL oG 
Qreviously selected innovative comQanies�

5Ie BanL will comQlete tIe �tI revision oG tIe ˑ$ommon $riteria 
Gor Innovative (rowtI ,˒ reGlectinH Hlobal demands and tIe 
latest tecInoloHical trends as well as new Hovernment Qolicies� 
In addition, ,DB will maLe a Gull devotion to tIe successGul 
imQlementation oG tIe ,orean /ew Deal tIrouHI eGGectively 
manaHinH tIe ˑ$ommon $riteria Gor /ew Deal Investment˒ and 
monitorinH tIe status oG suQQort Gor a /ew Deal ecosystem�

-astly, ,DB will strive to increase Ginancial suQQort to tIe 
areas oG innovative HrowtI, and tIus serve as a catalyst Gor tIe 
transGormation oG tIe industrial structure oG ,orea into one tIat 
is centered on tIe QromisinH comQanies armed witI creativity 
and tecInoloHical Qrowess�

Indirect Investment
R&7I&8 0F ����
,DB Qrovides comQanies witI customi[ed Gunds based on tIeir 
staHes oG HrowtI� 5Ie Gunds are suQQlied tIrouHI Qrivate eRuity 
	1&
 and venture caQital 	7$
 Gunds manaHed by Qrivate Gund 
manaHers� In resQonse to tIe Hovernmentˏs Qolicy direction, 
tIe BanL establisIed Gunds sucI as tIe Qolicy�tyQe /ew Deal 
'und, tIe (rowtI SuQQort 'unds, and tIe .aterials, 1arts 
and &RuiQment 'und� ,DB also Qioneered various investment 
QroKects to secure Guture HrowtI enHines and diversiGy its QroGit 
base, and currently leads tIe domestic 7$ marLet�

(rowth 4upport Funds
,DB Qlayed a Ley role in tIe establisIment oG tIe (rowtI 
SuQQort 'unds, wIicI invest in comQanies in tIeir HrowtI to 
eYit QIases� Since 201�, tIe BanL Ias actively suQQlied HrowtI 
caQital to start�uQs, S.&s and .&s� In 2020, ,DB set uQ Gunds 
wortI ,R8 3�� trillion, wIicI toHetIer witI tIe Qrevious yearsˏ 
Gunds, added uQ to a total oG ,R8 9�� trillion, and successGully 
GinisIed tIe 3�year Qolicy suQQort QroHram� ,DB Ias been 
an active suQQorter oG start�uQs, S.&s, and .&s in tIeir early 
QIases, QrovidinH venture caQitals amountinH to ,R8 3�� 
trillion tIrouHI various Gunds�

Details of the Growth Support Funds 	6nit� ,R8 trillion


2018 2019 2020

2.9

2.1

3.2

0.9

3.7

0.4

  Fund Size       Investment Amount
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'or tIe neYt Give years, ,DB will lead tIe establisIment oG 
Qolicy�tyQe /ew Deal 'unds wortI ,R8 20 trillion to acIieve 
tIe Hovernmentˏs Qolicy obKectives includinH tIose Gor tIe 
,orean /ew Deal� It will also Gacilitate tIe investment by tIe 
.aterials, 1arts and &RuiQment 'und establisIed in 2020 and 
Gollow uQ witI an additional investment QroKects totalinH ,R8 
�00 billion, GosterinH IealtIy investment initiatives in tIese 
Ley areas and tIereby strenHtIeninH ,oreaˏs overall industrial 
comQetitiveness�

5Ie BanL will Qroactively suQQort tIe Hovernmentˏs /ew Deal 
Qolicies by creatinH tIe Smart -oHistics 'und and tIe (reen 
ImQact 'und, eacI wortI ,R8 3�0 billion and ,R8 �0 billion� 
,DB will Qromote various investment QroKects to create new 
business oQQortunities Gor tIe Guture in collaboration witI 
leadinH Hlobal comQanies and overseas asset manaHers�

"s one oG ,oreaˏs maKor institutional investors, ,DB will GulGill 
its role by GosterinH an innovative start�uQ ecosystem tIrouHI 
amQle suQQly oG venture caQital�

.aterials, 1arts, and &Ruipment Fund
,DB establisIed a ,R8 �20 billion Gund to Qrovide Gocused 
assistance to tIe countryˏs materials, Qarts, and eRuiQment 
sectors in resQonse to cIanHinH internal and eYternal economic 
conditions� 5Ie Gund eYceeded its tarHet commitment oG ,R8 
�00 billion and is eYQected to Qlay a crucial role in enIancinH tIe 
national comQetitiveness in tIe materials, Qarts and eRuiQment 
industries, wIicI are imQortant sources oG new Kobs in tIe 
country� 5Ie Gund is also eYQected to meet tIe mid� to lonH�
term caQital needs oG innovative comQanies in a timely manner 
and Huide tIem to maLe Iead starts in resQective comQetinH 
marLets� 

4ecurities .arket 4tabilization Fund (in response to $ovid���)
,DB Ias invested ,R8 2 trillion in a ,R8 10 trillion Securities 
.arLet Stabili[ation 'und, wIicI was urHently establisIed to 
restore investor conGidence aGter tIe $ovid�19 $risis� "s tIe 
sinHle larHest investor oG tIe Gund, ,DB successGully conveyed 
and acIieved tIe Hovernment sˏ Qolicy obKectives Gor securities 
marLet stabili[ation as tIe Gund swiGtly reduced tIe volatility 
and brouHIt bacL stability to tIe stocL marLets�

Regional Investment Funds (in response to $ovid���)
5Ie BanL launcIed a ,R8 2� billion ReHional Industry 7itality 
'und to Qromote innovative industries located in tIe Qrovincial 
areas, wIicI Gollowed tIe successGul establisIment oG a similar 
Gund in 2019� 8Iile tIe 2019 ReHional Investment 'und limited 
its tarHets to certain cities liLe (wanHKu and DaeHu 	botI tIe 
main investors oG tIe 'und
, tIe new Gund eYQanded its tarHets 
to all reHions outside tIe Seoul metroQolitan area� 5Ie ,orea 
Institute Gor "dvancement oG 5ecInoloHy 	a Qublic entity under 
tIe .inistry oG 5rade, Industry and &nerHy
 Koined as tIe main 
investor Gor tIe Gund in order to vitali[e reHional investment 
initiatives and develoQ local economies� 1articularly, tIe 
Gund accelerated reHional investments by QrovidinH sQecial 
incentives to tIe reHions severely Iit by tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic�

.aKor Achievements in ����
In 2020, ,DB reinGorced its role as one oG tIe maKor investors in tIe 
domestic Gund marLet witI a tracL record oG establisIinH 192 Gunds 
witI an accumulated asset under manaHement oG aQQroYimately 
,R8 ��� trillion� 5Ie BanL Ias suQQorted a balanced and 
comQetitive HrowtI oG ,oreaˏs Gund marLet by introducinH a 
Gund manaHer leaHue system Gor tIe Girst time in 201�� ,DB Ias 
also Qromoted an innovative investment culture by boostinH 
eYQansion oG a Qrivate sector�led 7$ marLet, allowinH Hreater 
autonomy to asset manaHers Gor tIeir resQonsible manaHement 
and emQIasi[inH QerGormance�based Gund manaHement�

�  5Ie (rowtI -adder 'und, Qolicy Ginancial Gund oG Gunds 	e�H�, tIe Innovative 
 (rowtI 'und, tIe .aterials, 1arts, and &RuiQment 'und
, and tIe Securities .arLet 
 Stabili[ation 'und

Indirect Investment Volume 	6nit� ,R8 trillion


  Fund Size       KDB Participation

PE funds VC funds Others*

14.1

4.1

6.9

1.7

4.3

1.8
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In 2020, ,DB suQQlied on�lendinH loans totalinH ,R8 ��� trillion 
to �,�19 RualiGied S.&s and .&s, wIicI Qlayed a siHniGicant role 
in tIe HrowtI oG tIese corQorates�

�9��� oG tIe loans Qrovided were directed to S.&s, and most oG tIe 
loans were small�si[ed, averaHinH ,R8 900 million Qer transaction, 
wIicI was an essential move to reinGorce S.&sˏ comQetitiveness�

5Iere were two QroHrams sQeciGically desiHned to Qrovide 
tailored suQQort� ˑ5Ie SQecial 0n�lendinH Gor StrenHtIeninH tIe 
$omQetitiveness oG tIe .aterials, 1arts and &RuiQment Sectors˒ 
	+anuary 2020
 and tIe ˑSQecial 0n�lendinH Gor $omQanies )it 
)ardest by $ovid�19˒ 	"Qril 2020
 were launcIed in a timely 
manner to suQQort Hovernment Qolicies and resQond to tIe 
unQrecedented crisis�

1-A/4 F0R ����
In +anuary 2021, ,DB will launcI tIe SQecial 0n�lendinH 
1roHram Gor /ew Deal $omQanies, a customi[ed QroHram to 
assist tIe Hovernment sˏ Qolicies Gor ,orean /ew Deal� 5oHetIer 
witI otIer initiatives, tIe QroHram will contribute to ,oreaˏs 
economic recovery by buildinH tIe necessary inGrastructure Gor 
a diHital and Hreen economy tIat will restore investments and 
suQQort Kob creation in tIe Qost $ovid�19 era�

5Ie BanL will continue its on�lendinH suQQort Gor tIe country sˏ 
innovative HrowtI and industrial comQetitiveness and Qlay an 
instrumental role in overcominH tIe $ovid�19 crisis tIrouHI 
additional relieG measures Gor comQanies struHHlinH witI tIe 
aGtereGGects oG tIe Qandemic�

On-lending
R&7I&8 0F ����
0n�lendinH is a marLet�Griendly, indirect Qolicy Ginance tool 
sQeciGically develoQed Gor S.&s and .&s� 'inancial intermediaries 
reRuest ,DB Gor Gunds on beIalG oG tIeir S.& and .& clients� In 
turn, ,DB reviews RualiGications oG eacI reRuested client and 
suQQly tIe intermediaries witI lonH�term and low�rated Gunds�

KDB

Intermediaries
	BanLs, sQeciali[ed credit 

nancial institutions


SMEs• MEs

On-lending loans supplied by year 	6nit� ,R8 trillion


8,519
/umber of 4.&s and .&s

2019

7.6

2018

8.3

2020

8.4
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Venture & Technology Banking
R&7I&8 0F ����
Since 199� wIen ,oreaˏs venture caQital marLet was Kust 
beHinninH to taLe a sIaQe, ,DB Ias develoQed tIe marLet wIile 
maLinH direct investments in tIe country sˏ QromisinH start�uQs 
and S.&s� 5Ie BanL Ias recently increased its investments in 
tIe comQanies leadinH tIe 'ourtI Industrial Revolution and 
tIose witI tecInoloHical Qrowess, in line witI tIe Hovernment sˏ 
Qolicy obKectives oG discoverinH and develoQinH new enHines 
Gor innovative HrowtI�

&stablishing the infrastructure to cultivate a start�up ecosystem
,DB sQonsored tIe Qroduction oG tIe ,�5ecI Innovators, an 
"RIR"/( 57 sIow aired overseas to introduce and Qromote 
,orean start�uQs into Hlobal marLets� 5Ie 57 sIow was made 
uQ oG 10 eQisodes GeaturinH 30 start�uQs invested by ,DB, and 
was broadcasted in 10� countries around tIe world� 

In addition, ,DB launcIed tIe 5ecI Start�uQ 7alue 6Q "lliance 
in collaboration witI tIe country sˏ Gour science and tecInoloHy 
institutes� and .irae )oldinHs, QrovidinH a QlatGorm Gor 
QromotinH Ginancial and non�Ginancial suQQort Gor tecI start�
uQs incubatinH tIe innovative tecInoloHies oG tIe institutes�

KDB has been a loyal partner for 
start-ups from the beginning of the 
venture capital market in Korea, 
and is helping small giants grow 
into global unicorns in the Fourth 
Industrial Revolution.

�  ,orea "dvanced Institute oG Science and 5ecInoloHy 	,"IS5
, (wanHKu Institute oG 
 Science and 5ecInoloHy 	(IS5
, DaeHu (yeonHbuL Institute oG Science � 5ecInoloHy 
 	D(IS5
, and 6lsan /ational Institute oG Science and 5ecInoloHy 	6/IS5


"RIR"/( 57

-auncI oG 5ecI Start�uQ 7alue 6Q "lliance
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Responding to (overnment 1olicies and -eading the .arket 
through Differentiated Investments
,DB led tIe domestic venture caQital marLet by introducinH Qroducts 
liLe tIe (rowtI SIarinH $B 	" debt�tyQe raQid investment veIicle
 
and tIe S"'& 	SimQle "Hreement Gor 'uture &Ruity� "n eRuity�tyQe 
raQid investment veIicle
 wIicI were launcIed in "Qril and 0ctober, 
resQectively� 5Ie BanL also launcIed tIe Start�uQs $risis�overcominH 
SuQQort 1roHram to suQQly mucI needed liRuidity to tIe venture caQital 
marLet suGGerinH Grom tIe Qandemic and made early investments in 
sectors tIat were eYQected to outQerGorm in tIe Qost $ovid�19 era�

.oreover, tIe BanL Gocused its investment on tIe Hovernmentˏs 
Qolicy sucI as tIe ,orean /ew Deal initiatives Gor investinH in Qriority 
on 1
 data, artiGicial intelliHence, and �( under tIe DiHital /ew Deal 
cateHory, and 2
 materials, Qarts, and eRuiQment related to ,orea sˏ 
core industries 	Guture cars, bio � IealtI, and system semiconductors


8orLinH Kointly witI tIe ,orea $redit (uarantee 'und	,0DI5
, ,DB 
Ias develoQed intellectual QroQerty	I1
�bacLed GinancinH Qroduct 
to imQrove synerHy eGGect between two Qolicy Ginancial institutions� 
5Ie BanL Qlayed a leadinH role in I1 GinancinH by launcIinH an 
I1�Huaranteed loan QroHram in connection witI ,0DI5ˏs I1 value 
assessment and Huarantee QroHram in 2019 and an I1�1lus�
Huaranteed loan QroHram in 2020� .oreover, ,DB Ias made a 
siHniGicant QroHress in GosterinH tIe Hovernmentˏs I1 GinancinH 
initiatives by contributinH Gunds to create a recovery institution 
tIat is to liRuidate tIe reQossessed intellectual assets, and taLinH 
Qart in develoQment oG I1 'inance .anaHement System, an online 
QlatGorm tIat Qrovides services Gor I1 based GinancinH� 

1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, ,DB Qlans to strenHtIen commerciali[ation oG R�D and 
tecInoloHy to identiGy and Goster QromisinH start�uQs� 5Iis will 
be accomQanied by new Qroduct develoQments and QinQoint 
investments in start�uQs RualiGied Gor tIe DiHital /ew Deal and 
tIose in tIe innovative HrowtI sectors, tIereby QromotinH tIe 
HrowtI oG tIe country sˏ QromisinH tecI start�uQs�

Scale-up Banking
R&7I&8 0F ����
In 2020, ,DB establisIed tIe Scale�uQ BanLinH DeQartment 
dedicated to IandlinH larHe�scaled investments and loans Gor 
innovative comQanies in tIe maturity staHe oG business develoQment� 
5Ie ultimate Hoal oG tIe deQartment is actively nurturinH Gast HrowinH 
start�uQs wIicI are tIe Ley drivinH Gorce beIind Kob creation and 
securinH tIe nation sˏ economic HrowtI Qotential�

4upport for innovative scale�up companies with large financial 
support covering both investments and loans
In 2020, ,DB Qrovided caQital totalinH ,R8 ��0�� billion 	,R8 
3���� billion in investments and ,R8 122 billion in loans
 to 3� 
innovative scale�uQ comQanies witI IiHI Qotential, allocatinH 
,R8 13�� billion Qer comQany on averaHe�

DurinH tIe year, 1� larHe�scale investments were made, eacI 
wortI ,R8 10 billion or more, includinH a Ley ,R8 100 billion 
eRuity investment in ,aLao &nterQrise, a Qrominent "I�based 
B2B I5 QlatGorm comQany�

,DB also launcIed .eHa 7enture SQecial -oan Qroduct, 
QrovidinH loans witI QreGerential interest rates based on 
corQorate value recoHni[ed in tIe marLet Gor start�uQs tIat 
would normally be eYcluded Grom debt GinancinH under tIe 
traditional, Ginancial statement�based credit ratinH and review 
system� 5Iis Qroduct allowed ,DB to eYecute nine transactions 
involvinH a miY oG investments and loans, leadinH to a drastic 
imQrovement in tIe Ruality oG tIe BanL sˏ scale�uQ GinancinH�

-aunching the 4tart�6ps $risis�overcoming 4upport 1rogram
,DB launcIed a ,R8 300 billion QroHram Gor QromisinH start�
uQs GacinH temQorary liRuidity cIallenHes and tIose maLinH 
contribution to overcominH tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic� Since tIe 
launcI oG tIe QroHram in "Qril 2020, tIe BanL Qrovided a total oG 
,R8 290 billion in �� transactions, servinH as a saGety net in tIe 
marLet to IelQ start�uQs weatIer tIe crisis in a timely manner�

5he 1ost�$ovid Initiative� $reating an Innovative &cosystem to 
Respond to Infectious Diseases
,DB beHun GorminH an innovative ecosystem to QromQtly 
resQond to new Qotential outbreaLs oG inGectious diseases tIat 
may occur in any Guture�

5o tIis end, ,DB orHani[ed an advisory committee in SeQtember 
2020 comQosed oG eYQerts Grom various Gields includinH 
academia, medicine and industry� 5Ie advisory committee 
Qrovided its eYQertise on tIe liLeliIood oG emerHence oG otIer 
diseases and validity oG tIe resQonse measures 	e�H�, vaccines, 
treatments, diaHnosis tecInoloHies, etc�
, based on wIicI 
,DB Ias made investments in comQanies witI tIe relevant 
tecInoloHies� ,DB Qlans to elevate tIe advisory committee to a 
resQonse committee in tIe event oG a Qotential outbreaL, in order 
to Qrovide eGGicient Ginancial suQQort Gor tIe commerciali[ation 
oG necessary resQonse tecInoloHies, includinH GinancinH tIe 
construction oG Qroduction Gacilities and larHe�scale clinical trials� 
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Form an innovative 
ecosystem

Establish an early 
response system

Role of each party in the Post-Covid Initiative

Classification Roles

Advisory 
$ommittee

$omQosed oG eYQerts Grom academia, medicine and 
industry to maLe QroQosals on tIe directions Gor investment 
and recommendations on relevant tecInoloHies and 
comQanies 	,icL�oGG meetinH Ield on SeQtember 2�, 2020
�

KDB ,R8 200 billion investment over a sQan oG Give years in 
tIe comQanies witI tecInoloHies tIat could resQond to 
Qotential Qandemic crisis�
˟  1romotinH Koint investment tIrouHI sQecial GundinH 

 rounds at /eYtRound sessions�

0pen 
Innovation

1romotinH tecInoloHical advancement and 
commerciali[ation tIrouHI multidisciQlinary cooQeration 
oG subcommittees comQosed oG eYQerts Grom industry, 
academia and medicine tIat Gocus on diaHnosis, 
treatment, and vaccine develoQments and distributions�

Advisory Committee Response Committee

'0R&$"S5 R&"$5�R&S10/DClassification

1rovide early analysis on 
inGectious diseases and 

tecInoloHy reviews

Set tIe directions oG 
investment

Purpose

SuQQort tIe 
commerciali[ation oG tIe 
tecInoloHies 	larHe�scale 

clinical trials, etc�


Invest in comQanies witI 
relevant tecInoloHies in 

resQonse measures

KDB’s Mission

Overview of the Post-Covid Initiative In addition, ,DB aims to continue buildinH stable asset 
QortGolios by QrovidinH systematic suQQorts tIrouHI a miY oG 
botI investments and loans to innovative comQanies witI IiHI 
Qotential and Qolicy relevance sucI as tIose enHaHed in bio � 
IealtI and remote business industries�

KDB NextRound
R&7I&8 0F ����
5Ie ,DB /eYtRound is a marLet�driven QlatGorm Gor venture 
investment tIat Qrovides start�uQs witI tIe oQQortunity to 
attract investments, and investors witI tIe oQQortunity to 
discover new investment tarHets� Since its inauHuration in 201�, 
�30 IR rounds Iave been Ield Gor a total oG 1,�1� comQanies� 5Ie 
rounds introduced start�uQs identiGied by accelerators, venture 
caQital Girms, and Hovernment�Gunded researcI institutes and 
attracted venture caQital Grom botI domestic and overseas 
investors� "monH tIe start�uQs wIicI QarticiQated in tIe rounds, 
3�� successGully attracted investments totalinH ,R8 2�2 trillion�

In 2020, in addition to its Heneral IR rounds, ,DB Ield sQecial 
rounds GocusinH on Qarticular industrial seHments sucI as bio 
and Gin�tecI to meet HrowinH marLet demands� 5Ie BanL also 
Ield a Hlobal round in collaboration witI international venture 
caQital comQanies to suQQort ,orean start�uQs seeLinH to 
eYQand tIeir business into overseas� "notIer tyQe oG rounds 
were also Ield Gor reHional venture Iubs to vitali[e tIe venture 
ecosystem outside tIe Seoul metroQolitan area�

In addition, ,DB orHani[ed a Gair oG tIe ˑ/eYtRise 2020, Seoul˒ Grom 
+une 23rd to 2�tI to Qrovide a boost to tIe venture ecosystem and 
tIe economy struHHlinH to overcome tIe $ovid�19 $risis as well 
as oQQortunities oG HrowtI sIarinH Gor venture caQital comQanies, 
start�uQs, and larHe enterQrises� 5Ie two�day Gair was co�Iosted 
by ,DB, tIe ,orea International 5rade "ssociation, ,orea 7enture 
Business "ssociation, ,orean 7enture $aQital "ssociation, and 
/ational ResearcI $ouncil oG Science � 5ecInoloHy and many 
diGGerent QarticiQants Grom domestic and overseas venture caQital 
Girms, larHe enterQrises and .&s, and tIe 5ecI Incubator 1roHram 
Gor StartuQ orHani[ations attended tIe Gair�

1�� domestic start�uQs, biH�names in tIe industry sucI as 
SamsunH/&95 and "8S oQened eYIibition bootIs at tIe Gair, and 
2� conGerence sessions were Ield witI )yundai .otors announcinH 
tIeir oQen innovation strateHies and Qanel discussions by ,orean 
unicorns sucI as $ouQanH and .arLet ,urly� �9 online conGerence 
sessions were also Ield via a on�line cIannel, witI toQics ranHinH 

1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, ,DB will strenHtIen its role as a maKor institutional 
suQQlier oG scale�uQ caQital in ,orea and actively eYQand its 
investment and loan GinancinH to HrowinH ventures� In Qarticular, 
tIe BanL will contribute to tIe successGul imQlementation oG tIe 
Hovernmentˏs /ew Deal Qolicies by settinH uQ a ,R8 1 trillion 
QroHram over tIe neYt Give years 	ˑ,�/ew Deal Start�uQs SuQQort 
1roHram˒
 to increase GundinH suQQort Gor tIe comQanies 
eliHible under tIe ˑDiHital and (reen /ew Deal $riteria �˒ 

,icL�oGG .eetinH oG tIe 1ost�$ovid Initiative SteerinH $ommittee 	SeQtember 2�, 2020
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,DB establisIed and Ias been manaHinH sQecial�QurQose Gunds to 
suQQort tIe develoQment oG tIe ,orean venture caQital marLet and 
comQanies� Since 201�, tIe BanL Ias set uQ (lobal 1artnersIiQ 'und 
Series 	I to I7
 witI total si[e oG ,R8 ����� billion to IelQ innovative 
,orean start�uQs advance to Hlobal marLets and attract overseas 
investments� "t tIe same time, tIe Gunds Gostered tIe Rualitative 
HrowtI oG ,oreaˏs venture ecosystem by QromotinH international 
venture caQital comQaniesˏ entry into tIe domestic marLet�

5Ie 0Qen Innovation 'und I was set uQ in 201� to suQQort ,orea sˏ  
soutIeastern reHion, and tIe 0Qen Innovation 'und II was 
launcIed in 2019 Gor ,oreaˏs soutIwestern reHion� BotI Gunds 
encouraHed .&s in tIese reHions enHaHinH in traditional 
manuGacturinH business to Koin tIe venture ecosystem Gor oQen 
innovation, and continued to suQQort .&s and start�uQs Gor 
business cooQeration and .�"s�

5Ie )anwIa /ew Business (lobal 1lus 6Q 'und set uQ in 201� 
Kointly witI ,orea 5rade�Investment 1romotion "Hency and tIe 
)anwIa (rouQ, is currently oQerated by tIe BanL in a bid to 
attract more GoreiHn investment� 

5Ie -055&�,DB 0Qen Innovation 'und made in collaboration 
witI tIe -055& (rouQ was set uQ in 2019 to encouraHe active 
QarticiQation oG tIe country sˏ larHe conHlomerates in tIe venture 
ecosystem and Gacilitate tIeir oQen innovation� 5Ie Gund Ias 
since been suQQortinH tIe HrowtI oG ,orean unicorn comQanies 
by establisIinH a cooQerative system between larHe enterQrises 
and startuQs and QrovidinH suQQort Gor investment, tecInoloHy 
QartnersIiQ, networL builduQ, .�" oQQortunities, and international 
marLet entry via tIe establisIed networLs oG tIe larHe enterQrises�

Grom overseas investment trends to strateHies Gor unicorn 
comQaniesˏ success� 5Ie Gair also Qrovided a venue Gor on��oGG�line 
business meetinHs Gor start�uQs, venture caQital Girms, and domestic 
and international comQanies� 5otal oG 1,�0� oGGline and 20� online 
meetinHs Gor investment and business cooQeration were arranHed 
Gor ��� and 1�9 comQanies, resQectively, maLinH ˑ/eYtRise 2020, 
Seoul˒ tIe larHest start�uQ event ever to be Ield in ,orea�

In +uly 2020, ,DB launcIed a start�uQ acceleratinH QroHram, 
tIe ,DB /eYt0/&, and Ias been suQQortinH tIe selected start�
uQs in tIeir early staHes� 5Ie ,DB /eYt0/& enables start�uQs in 
tIeir early staHe to Hrow Ruantitatively and Rualitatively tIrouHI 
its business assessment consultinH and customi[ed mentorinH 
service and connectinH tIem to Qotential investors and Qartners� 
In tIe Girst round oG tIe /eYt0/& QroHram, numerous start�
uQs successGully raised investments, imQroved tIeir business 
QerGormances, and IelQed create new Kobs, QuttinH tIe 
comQanies on tIe riHIt tracL Gor GurtIer HrowtI�

1-A/4 F0R ����
,DB will Gocus its eGGorts on buildinH uQ a tIrivinH venture ecosystem 
in ,orea to assist tIe Hovernmentˏs /ew Deal initiatives and 
Qolicy Hoals oG stimulatinH countryˏs ventures� 5Iis will include 
sQonsorinH oG ,DB /eYtRound Gor start�uQs and launcIinH an on�
line QlatGorm wIicI will suQQort tIe entire liGecycle oG a start�uQ Grom 
its incorQoration�incubation to HrowtI, comQlementinH tIe current 
oGG�line suQQort system and oQen uQ a new and more inteHrated 
system Gree oG time and sQace restrictions� 'urtIermore, ,DB Qlans 
to orHani[e /eYtRise 2021 Grom +une 2�tI to 29tI at $0&9 in Seoul in 
collaboration witI Qartners around tIe world, witI a lonH�term Hoal 
oG turninH it into a Hlobal start�uQ Gair Gor tIe beneGit oG all QarticiQants� 

Special-purpose funds 	6nit� ,R8 billion


/eYtRise 2020, Seoul

  $apital $ommitments       5otal capital contribution

Hanwha New 
Business

50

21

Lotte-KDB

63

25

Open  
Innovation II

21

GPF  
I to IV

485

284

Open  
Innovation I

41

41

17
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Domestic Project Finance
R&7I&8 0F ����
,DB Qrovides comQreIensive Ginancial solutions to QroKects 
Gor inGrastructure, Qower, Qlants, and natural resources as 
well as real estate Gor tIe QurQose oG acceleratinH reHional 
develoQments� 5Ie BanL also oGGers Ginancial advisory and 
arranHement services Gor sIiQQinH and aviation GinancinH 
to meet tIe needs oG tIe QroKect sQonsors� Since 199� aGter 
successGully arranHinH QroKect GinancinH Gor tIe construction oG 
tIe IncIeon International "irQort &YQressway, ,DB Ias led tIe 
advancement oG tIe ,orean 1' marLet over tIe Qast 2� years� 
By leveraHinH on tIe creative caQacity oG tIe Qrivate sector and 
stimulatinH lonH�term institutional investments, ,DB Ias not 
only GulGilled its mandate as a Qolicy Ginancial institutions to 
reinGorce national inGrastructures, imQrove enerHy suQQly, and 
Qromote reHional economies but also strenHtIened Ginancial 
comQetitiveness and caQability in tIe 1' marLet�

In 2020, ,DB arranHed GinancinH Gor �0 maKor QroKects � 1� 
inGrastructure and 3� real estates � totalinH ,R8 10�2 trillion� By 
arranHinH ,R8 ��� trillion Gor inGrastructures and enerHy QroKects 
alone, wIicI included tIe (anHnam Beltway 111 reGinancinH 
and tIe 1ocIeon 9��.8 I11 -/( Qower QroKects, ,DB 
contributed to revitali[inH ,orea sˏ maKor inGrastructure marLet� 

In tIe real estate sector, ,DB IelQed inviHorate tIe reHional 
economies by arranHinH GinancinH totalinH ,R8 ��� trillion Gor 31 
QroKects, notably tIe IncIeon /ortI 1ort -oHistics $enter QroKect 
and tIe (0�S 1'7 $old StoraHe -oHistics $enter QroKect in 
:onHin, as an ancIor Qlayer in tIe domestic real estate 1' marLet�

1-A/4 F0R ����
In tIe Social 0verIead $aQital 	inGrastructure
 sector, ,DB Qlans to 
suQQort tIe stable oQeration oG tIe nation sˏ inGrastructure networL 
tIrouHI QroKects restructurinH and reGinancinH wIile leadinH tIe 
cIanHes triHHered by tIe 'ourtI Industrial Revolution� ,DB will 
actively strenHtIen tIe Ginancial suQQort Gor inGormation and 
communication tecInoloHy 	I$5
 inGrastructure sucI as IiHI�sQeed 
oQtical communication networLs, data centers and satellites�

'or tIe enerHy sector, ,DB will lead tIe ,orean /ew Deal initiatives 
by QroQosinH solutions liLe a Qublic Gund model wIicI invests in 
small and medium si[ed solar Qower QroKects wIile QromotinH tIe 
Hovernmentˏs renewable enerHy Qolicy by Qroactively GinancinH 
clean enerHy QroKects in order to reQlace tIe old coal Qlants�

.oreover, ,DB will strenHtIen its role as a Qrominent Qolicy 
Ginancial institution by increasinH its eRuity QarticiQation in 
industrial inGrastructure and urban develoQment QroKects 
Grom tIe real estate marLet� 5Ie BanL will also suQQort tIe 
Hovernmentˏs Qolicies aimed at strenHtIeninH tIe national 

KDB contributes to the solid 
growth of the Korean economy by 
providing comprehensive financial 
solutions for project finance (PF) 
including social overhead capital 
(SOC) and real estate.
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economy by Qroactively enHaHinH in QroKects on diHital 
transGormation 	e�H�, smart loHistics centers, advanced 
industrial comQleYes, etc�
 and data center advancements�

Overseas Project Finance
R&7I&8 0F ����
,DB entered tIe overseas 1' marLet in 2003 and Ias built uQ its 
deal sourcinH networLs and GurtIer set uQ 1' DesLs Ieaded by 
IiHIly�sLilled local eYQerts in SinHaQore 	2011
, /ew :orL 	201�
, 
and -ondon 	201�
� "Gter successGully arranHinH GinancinH 
Gor Gour cross�border QroKects in 200�, includinH tIe 0man 
"romatics ReGinery, ,DB Gully started its overseas 1' businesses 
in 2011 and Ias closed 1�� overseas transactions totalinH 6SD 
13�� billion by tIe end oG 2020�

In 2020, ,DB arranHed GinancinH Gor 12 QroKects in tIe 
international 1' marLets totalinH 6SD 1�3 billion, and 1� 
QroKects in tIe sIiQQinH and aviation sectors totalinH 6SD 2�� 
billion� By carryinH out QroKects in botI tIe develoQed and 
develoQinH economies includinH tIe "��� )eads oG tIe 7alleys 
DuallinH 1roKect in tIe 6,, tIe +aQan Solar 1ower 1roKect, 
tIe DoHHerBanL 1�2(8 0GGsIore 8ind 'arm 1roKect, and tIe 
+awa 9�10 1ower 1roKect in Indonesia, tIe BanL continued its 
eYQansion in tIe Hlobal 1' marLet�

0G tIe Hlobal 1' deals tIat ,DB QarticiQated as an arranHer in 
2020, Give deals were selected as tIe Deal oG tIe :ear by 1roKect 
'inance International 	1'I
�

1roKectFinance

˟  1'I Deals oG tIe :ear GeaturinH ,DB QarticiQation� DoHHerBanL 1�2(8 0GGsIore 
 8ind 'arm 1roKect, tIe "��� )eads oG tIe 7alleys DuallinH 1roKect, $'9D 0GGsIore 
 8ind 1ower 1roKect in 5aiwan, 6mm "l )ayman 8astewater 1roKect in ,uwait, and 
 8est$onneY .� Road ReGinancinH 1roKect in "ustralia�

,DB closed a GinancinH transaction on +an 2�, 2020 Gor tIe $'9D 
0GGsIore 8ind 1ower 1roKect in 5aiwan, under wIicI a �00.8 
osIore wind Qower Gacility will be constructed o tIe central coast 
oG tIe island witI tIe entire Qower Henerated to be sold to a state�
owned electricity comQany based on a 20�year Qower QurcIase 
aHreement� 5Ie QroKect marLs tIe rst larHe�scaled osIore wind 
Qower QroKect undertaLen in "sia, witI ,orea sˏ -S $able � System 
QarticiQatinH as a marine cable suQQlier� ,DB as a mandated lead 
arranHer successGully closed a 6SD 2�9 billion nancinH witI eYQort 
credit aHencies 	,orea 5rade Insurance $orQoration, and tIe &$"s 
oG DenmarL, /etIerlands, 6,, /orway, +aQan and (ermany
 and 
1� otIer Hlobal banLs� 5Ie deal is eYQected to Qromote ,orean 
comQanies eYQansion into tIe new and renewable Qower marLets 
in "sia and strenHtIen tIe BanL sˏ Qosition in tIe Hlobal 1' marLets�

CFXD Offshore Wind Power Project in Taiwan  
(PFI Deal of the Year)

,DB reacIed Ginancial close Gor tIe 8est$onneY .� ReGinancinH 
1roKect in "ustralia on December 11, 2020� 5Ie transaction 
reGinanced 8$9ˏs debt in resQect oG its .� "sset, Qart oG a tIree�
staHe QroKect to construct and oQerate a toll motorway in tIe 
western Qart oG Sydney� It is tIe larHest road inGrastructure QroKect 
in "ustralia to date witI total investment oG "6D 1��� billion, and 
SamsunH $�5 QarticiQated as one oG tIe desiHn and construction 
contractors� ,DB as a mandated lead arranHer successGully 
closed tIe "6D ��2 billion renancinH arranHement alonH witI 1� 
otIer Hlobal lenders� 5Ie deal GurtIer Qaved tIe way Gor ,orean 
comQaniesˏ entry into tIe "ustralian inGrastructure marLet wIile 
solidiGyinH tIe BanL sˏ status in tIe Hlobal 1' marLets�

WestConnex M4 Refinancing Project in Australia  
(PFI Deal of the Year)

-A/D.ARK D&A-4 0F ����

1
  $orQorate 1ower 1urcIase "Hreement 	11"
� " leHal contract wIereby a comQany 
 QurcIases electricity Grom an indeQendent Qower Qroducer oG a utility comQany�

2
  R&100� " Hlobal corQorate leadersIiQ initiative to Henerate 100� oG electricity Grom 
 renewable sources�

1-A/4 F0R ����
,DB will strive to eYQand its 1' oQerations and become one oG 
tIe leadinH Hlobal 1' Iouses� 5o tIis end, tIe BanL will establisI 
marLetinH strateHies tailored to tIe HeoHraQIical reHions wIere 
1' DesLs are located and seeL out more oQQortunities Gor 
advisory and arranHer roles tIrouHI Hreater eRuity QarticiQation 
in reQutable inGrastructure Gunds�

5Ie BanL will also leveraHe its eYQertise in international 
renewable enerHy QroKects and corQorate 11"�based GinancinH1
 

to worL witI ,orean comQanies on overseas renewable enerHy 
QroKects and Qromote tIe R&1002
 initiative�

'urtIermore, ,DB intends to undertaLe more sIiQ GinancinH 
tarHetinH Hlobal toQ�tier sIiQ owners to increase its Qrime assets 
and enIance tIe BanL sˏ brand Qower� "s Gor aviation GinancinH, 
,DB will aim Gor a sustainable HrowtI oG tIe business by taLinH 
on selective GinancinH oQQortunities, GocusinH on clients witI 
Qroven business caQacity�
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F/X & Derivatives Trading
R&7I&8 0F ����
,DB Ias Qioneered tIe ,orean tradinH marLet since tIe 
19�0s wIen '�9 and derivatives Qroducts were new in ,orea� 
In 199�, ,DB led tIe develoQment oG tIe ,R8 interest rate 
swaQ and ,R8�6SD currency oQtions marLets, and Ias been 
leadinH tIe ,R8 derivatives marLet ever since� 0ver some 30 
years, ,DB Ias built uQ broad eYQertise reRuired to deal witI 
a wide variety oG Qroducts, ranHinH Grom '�9, swaQs, oQtions, 
and otIer basic derivatives to comQleY structured derivatives, 
wIicI enable tIe BanL to Qrovide IedHinH solutions tailored 
to tIe need oG eacI corQorate client�

DesQite cIallenHes raised by tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic in 2020, 
,DB leveraHed its eYQerience and eYQertise to oGGer IedHinH 
Qroducts customi[ed to tIe sQeciGic needs oG its domestic 
clients and acIieved tIe GollowinH outcomes�

'irst, ,DB oGGered IedHinH instruments tailored to tIe 
GinancinH needs oG airlines, sIiQQinH comQanies and reGineries 
wIile QrovidinH currency swaQs at comQetitive Qrices to Qublic 
corQorations in need oG lonH�term GinancinH, contributinH to 
tIe countryˏs eGGorts to overcome tIe $ovid�19 $risis�

Second, tIe BanL worLed on develoQinH new Qroducts tIat 
can satisGy clientsˏ needs in a low�interest environment by 
launcIinH derivative�linLed structured deQosit Qroducts�

5Iird, ,DB led tIe stabili[ation oG tIe HreenIouse Has 
emissions tradinH in ,orea� "s a marLet maLer, tIe BanL 
contributed to tIe stabili[ation oG emissions tradinH Qrices and 
acted as an advisor to tIe Hovernment, QrovidinH advices on 
ways to advance tIe marLet tIrouHI tIe adoQtion oG a tIird�
Qarty marLet QarticiQation system�

8Iile QlayinH a role as marLet�maLer in tIe domestic swaQ 
marLet, ,DB suQQlied GoreiHn currency to tIe marLet wIere 
tIe liRuidity oG GoreiHn currency was limited and also worLed 
to inKect liRuidity to tIe currency sQot marLet by buildinH uQ 
trade volumes tIat Iave underHone contraction since tIe 
$ovid�19 outbreaL�

1-A/4 F0R ����
8itI unQredictable marLet conditions eYQected in 2021, 
,DB will Qrovide a wider ranHe oG Qroducts and services 
customi[ed to tIe needs oG its clients in order to IelQ tIem 
run tIeir businesses in a stable manner� ,DBˏs Qlans Gor 
derivatives are as Gollows� 

5rBdJOH

KDB offers a diverse lineup of 
derivative products that satisfy 
customer needs in a timely manner, 
allowing clients and financial 
institutions to seamlessly conduct 
their daily business activities.
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5rading

'irst, ,DB will strenHtIen its comQetitiveness in derivative 
sales by eYQlorinH new marLets and areas tIat will IelQ boost 
tIe BanLˏs earninHs� 5Ie BanL will Qromote tIe eYQansion oG 
its Qresence by establisIinH an overseas derivatives desL to 
identiGy Qotential oQQortunities witI overseas non�resident 
clients� 5Ie BanL will also seeL to satisGy various demands oG 
its clients tIrouHI IedHinH instruments develoQed based on 
,DBˏs QroQrietary modules�

Second, ,DB will Qroactively resQond to Hlobal cIanHes in 
reHulations and marLet rules� 5Ie BanL will Qromote tIe 
initial marHin aHreement witI eacI transaction Qarty to 
QreQare Gor tIe new initial marHin rules tIat are eYQected 
to taLe eGGect Grom SeQtember 2021� "lso, ,DB will QreQare 
in advance Gor tIe imQlementation oG transactions witI 
alternative interest rates in resQonse to tIe discontinuation 
oG -IB0R� 5Ie BanLˏs unwaverinH commitment Gor tIe 
Qrotection oG derivatives investors will continue in line witI 
new domestic reHulations on consumer Qrotection�

Capital Market Trading
R&7I&8 0F ����
,DB leveraHed its overseas Ginancial networL to establisI 
QreemQtive securities manaHement strateHies and cooQerates 
witI its /ew :orL and -ondon BrancIes to emQloy a round�
tIe�clocL tradinH system, enablinH it to stay viHilant on 
marLet volatility at Iome and abroad� 'ollowinH tIe oQeninH 
oG tIe $Iinese stocL marLet to GoreiHn investors, ,DB became 
tIe Girst ,orean banL to be awarded 2ualiGied 'oreiHn 
Institutional Investor 	2'II
 and R.B 2ualiGied 'oreiHn 
Institutional Investor 	R2'II
 licenses in 2009 and 201�, 
resQectively� In addition, tIe BanL obtained $Iina InterbanL 
Bond .arLet 	$IB.
 Direct "ccess RualiGications in /ovember 
2020� SucI accomQlisIments Qaved tIe way Gor tIe BanL 
to maLe active inroads into securities marLets in $Iina and 
otIer emerHinH economies�

5Ie BanL was also desiHnated as a Qrimary dealer Gor ,orea 
5reasury Bonds, contributinH to tIe Hovernmentˏs Qolicy 
to advance Hovernment bond tradinH in botI Qrimary and 
secondary marLets�

1-A/4 F0R ����
,DB is committed to acIievinH stability in its tarHet return 
rates and GoreiHn currency liRuidity as sIown by tIe adoQtion 
oG tIe strateHic asset allocation system in December 2020 
aimed at imQrovinH tIe BanLˏs lonH�term QroGitability� 

'urtIermore, tIe BanL will Gocus on diversiGyinH its assets under 
manaHement by eYQandinH investments to include eYcIanHe 
traded Gunds 	&5'
, and acIieve botI QortGolio stability and 
IiHIer QroGitability� ,DB will also suQQort bond oGGerinHs by 
,orean corQorate issuers tIrouHI its active Qresence in tIe bond 
marLets as one oG tIe maKor bond Iouses in ,orea� 5IrouHI its 
role as a Qrimary dealer, tIe BanL IoQes to contribute to tIe 
soQIistication oG ,orea sˏ secondary bond marLet�
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Active Overseas Expansion
,DB Qlays a siHniGicant role in tIe Hlobali[ation oG ,orean 
Ginancial institutions and tIeir eYQansion to overseas marLets� 
5Ie BanL leveraHes its overseas networLs to suQQort tIe 
Hovernmentˏs /ew SoutIern 1olicy and Qromotes tIe Qaired 
advance oG tIe ,orean Ginancial institutions and ,orean 
enterQrises to tIe Hlobal marLets� 

"s oG tIe end oG 2020, ,DB Ias 2� overseas oGGices across 1� 
countries � one reHional oGGice, nine brancIes, siY subsidiaries, 
nine reQresentative oGGices, and two eYQatriate emQloyees on 
secondments � and continues to Qursue tIe eYQansion oG its 
Hlobal Qresence to better serve tIe needs oG its clients looLinH 
to enter overseas marLets�

In 2020, ,DB made meaninHGul additions to its overseas 
networLs by establisIinH tIe /ew SoutIern Business Belt and 
enterinH into strateHic marLets� ,DB establisIed 15 ,DB 5I'" 
'I/"/$& 5B, in 0ctober 2020 by acRuirinH a local corQoration 
in Indonesia wIere tIe demand Gor Ginancial services remains 
IiHI and oQened a brancI in :anHon aGter obtaininH tIe 
autIori[ation Grom tIe .yanmar autIorities� In addition, ,DB sˏ 
)ead 0GGice was converted to a Ginancial IoldinH comQany in 
terms oG its leHal status witIin tIe 6S, a maKor acIievement in 

its eGGort to establisI a venture caQital Girm in tIe country Gor tIe 
QurQose oG nurturinH ventures and creatinH an ecosystem Gor 
,orean ventures in overseas marLets�

In sQite oG tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic, ,DB continued its eYcIanHes 
witI overseas institutions tIrouHI various virtual meetinHs, 
arranHinH senior�level meetinHs witI Qartner institutions sucI 
as tIe I'$ and .i[uIo 'inancial (rouQ� ,DB also strenHtIened 
its networL and business cooQeration tIrouHI initiatives 
includinH 1
 a webinar witI a strateHic client in tIe Hlobal 
loHistics sector in 0ctober, 2
 a Leynote sQeecI by tIe BanL 
cIairman at tIe annual conGerence oG tIe "S&"/ 1lus 5Iree 
Inter�BanL $ooQeration .ecIanism Ield online in /ovember, 
and 3
 a two�day online worLsIoQ witI a lonH�time business 
Qartner in +aQan in December�

In 2021, ,DB will continue its eGGorts to eYQand its Hlobal 
Qresence in strateHic reHions� It will strenHtIen its business 
caQacity by comQletinH tIe "sia�Gocused networL eYQansion 
strateHy and movinH on to establisIinH new brancIes and 
subsidiaries in Ley marLets includinH Silicon 7alley in tIe 6S 
and )onH ,onH� In addition, it will actively seeL tIe HrowtI oG 
its assets and business eYQertise by QromotinH scalinH�uQ and 
locali[ation oG its overseas networLs�

*OUFrOBUJoOBM�#VTJOFTT

KDB will support the overseas 
expansion of Korean businesses 
and lead the globalization of Korea’s 
financial industry by utilizing its 
robust global network and global 
business experience
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InternationalBusiness

Cross-Border Syndicated Loans
In 2020, ,DB reQorted a solid Hain Grom cross�border syndicated 
loans aHainst increased uncertainty in tIe Hlobal economy 
caused by tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic tIrouHI eYQandinH IiHI�
Ruality assets and secondary loans, notably tIe GinancinHs 
arranHed Gor 0/($ 7idesI in India, 8inson 0il )oldinHs in 
SinHaQore, and .IS$ in .alaysia� 

5Ie 6SD 1 billion syndicated loan transaction Gor 0/($ 7idesI, 
a state�owned oil and natural Has corQoration in India, was a 
meaninHGul deal botI in terms oG tIe Gee income it Henerated 
and securinH a stronH GootIold in one oG tIe worldˏs Ley 
emerHinH marLets� ,DB Kointly arranHed tIe transaction witI 
its Hlobal Qartners, sellinH down a Qortion oG its underwritinH 
commitment tIrouHI Heneral syndication� 

Similar to tIe aGorementioned deals, ,DB will continue to 
enIance its Qresence in tIe Hlobal syndicated loan marLets 
witI a Gocus on emerHinH economies in "sia, resQondinH to tIe 
Hovernment sˏ /ew SoutIern 1olicy in 2021 and raisinH its status 
to a Hlobal Qlayer in tIe Hlobal Ginancial marLet� 5o tIis end, ,DB 
will utili[e local eYQerts in eacI strateHically imQortant reHion 
and endeavor to collaborate witI Hlobal Ginancial institutions 

and identiGy QromisinH industry oG eacI tarHet country and 
conduct and Qromote an eGGective and diGGerentiated aQQroacI 
to eacI Ginancial marLet oG tIe tarHet country�

Trade Finance
,DB oGGers comQreIensive trade Ginance services to domestic 
comQanies tIrouHI a wide ranHe oG Qroducts includinH letters 
oG credit	-$
, documents aHainst acceQtance	D"
, documents 
aHainst Qayment	D1
, and oQen account	0"
� In addition to 
traditional eYQort and imQort Ginances, ,DB also enHaHes in risL 
QarticiQation transactions witI Hlobal banLs and suQranational 
institutionsˏ Huaranteed credit line Gor trade Ginance�

DesQite adverse trade conditions due to tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic 
in 2020, ,DB acIieved a total eYQort and imQort GinancinH 
volume oG 6SD 30 billion Gor tIree consecutive years and ,DB sˏ 
marLet sIare in tIe domestic trade Ginance marLet ranLed 
GourtI, one notcI IiHIer tIan tIe Qrevious year sˏ�

,DB will eYQand its trade Ginance business in 2021 by leveraHinH 
tIe in�Iouse networLs witI domestic imQorter and eYQorter 
clients and QromotinH collaboration witI corQorate Qartners, 
suQQortinH ,orea sˏ HrowinH trade volumes�

Export and import financing supplied to Korean companies by year
	6nit� 6SD billion


  Import       Export

2018 2019 2020

35.6

33.1

30.2

16.6

19.0

14.9

18.2

12.0

18.2

&stablisIment oG 15 ,DB 5I'" 'I/"/$& 5B, 

0QeninH oG tIe :anHon BrancI
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Pension
,DB as ,oreaˏs leadinH corQorate banLinH sQecialist runs 
oQerations oG retirement Qension Gunds as Qart oG its eGGorts to 
Qrovide customi[ed Ginancial services to its corQorate clients 
and also oGGer asset manaHement services, utili[inH its lonH�
term tracL records�

In 2020, ,DB ranLed 11tI in terms oG tIe si[e oG tIe Qension 
assets under manaHement 	"6.
 amonH �� domestic Qension 
manaHers in ,orea, amid increased uncertainty in emQloyment 
due to tIe imQact oG tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic and worLGorce 
restructurinH undertaLen by larHe enterQrises� ,DBˏs Qension 
"6. increased by 10�3� Grom 2019, reacIinH ,R8 � trillion at 
tIe end oG 2020�

1FOTJoO���5rVTU

KDB offers customized financial 
services for its pension & trust 
operations based on its accumulated 
experience as a leading expert in 
corporate banking.

In 2021, ,DB will eGGectively resQond to tIe Hovernment sˏ demand  
Gor tIe imQrovement in tIe retirement Qension scIemes� 5Ie 
BanL Qlans to strenHtIen its business comQetitiveness by 
QromotinH cooQerative marLetinH witI relationsIiQ manaHers 
worLinH in tIe BanLˏs brancIes� 5Ie BanL also seeL to 
imQrove tIe rate oG return Gor its customers tIrouHI QortGolio 
oQtimi[ation� 'urtIermore, ,DB will eYQand its ranHe oG 
Ruality Qroducts and imQrove tIe BanL sˏ I5 systems Gor client sˏ 
convenience� 

Pension Assets under Management 	6nit� ,R8 billion


10.3%

2019

6,381

2020

7,038
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1ension�5rust

Trust
Since establisIinH its money trust business in 19�9, ,DB Ias 
eYQanded its business into QroQerty trusts and custody services 
over tIe years� 5IrouHI its sQeciali[ed money trust and 
QroQerty Qroducts 	e�H�, real estate security trusts and monetary 
receivables trusts
, tIe BanL oGGered a stable oQtion to its 
corQorate clients Gor manaHinH tIeir sQare Gunds and Gacilitated 
GundinH� 8Iile undertaLinH tIe custody oQerations Gor various 
Qolicy Ginance Gunds and QlayinH its role as an aHent banL, ,DB 
Ias also worLed on diHitali[inH its trust business by aQQlyinH 
tIe robotic Qrocess automation 	R1"
�

In 2020, tIe averaHe balance oG ,DBˏs money marLet trust 
assets increased by ,R8 0�� trillion Grom tIe Qrevious year, 
suQQorted by its eGGorts to oGGer corQorate clients witI stable 
and diverse asset manaHinH oQtions includinH IiHI�return 
GoreiHn currency Qroducts 	e�H�, 6SD R1, 6SD�denominated 
notes
 and Ruality investment Qroducts�

In tIe QroQerty trust business, tIe BanLˏs asset balance 
increased by ,R8 2�9 trillion Grom tIe Qrevious year, tIanLs to 
a new monetary receivables trust transactions totalinH ,R8 
9 trillion wIicI suQQorted S.&s and .&s witI low collateral 
caQacity amid deterioratinH business conditions caused by tIe 
$ovid�19 Qandemic�

In tIe custody business, ,DB actively marLeted its service to 
various Qolicy Ginance Gunds, resultinH in a year�on�year increase 
oG ,R8 3�� trillion in its averaHe custody balance� "lso, as Qart 
oG tIe banL�wide diHitali[ation eGGort, tIe BanL comQleted 
adoQtinH tIe R1" Gor a selected Qart oG its oQerations, namely 
tIe custody and aHent banLinH Qrocesses�

Trust Assets Balance 	6nit� ,R8 trillion


2019

31.0

2018

27.7

2020

34.3

Custody Balance 	6nit� ,R8 trillion


2019

26.6

2018

24.0

2020

30.1

10.7%

13.2%

�  Sum oG money marLet trust 
 and QroQerty trust
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Industry & Technology Research
,DB Qrovides a comQreIensive array oG industry and tecInoloHy 
researcI services includinH industry sector ratinHs and outlooLs, 
tecInoloHy reviews, and tecInoloHy credit bureau evaluations� 5Ie 
BanL Ias two QurQoses in tIe researcI services� internally suQQortinH 
tIe toQ manaHementˏs decision maLinHs and tIe BanLˏs credit 
oQerations and eYternally servinH as a tIinL�tanL Gor Qolicy Ginance in 
,orea Gor securinH Guture HrowtI enHines Gor tIe country� 

In 2020, since tIe onset oG tIe $ovid�19 outbreaL, ,DB analy[ed 
tIe imQact oG tIe crisis on tIe suQQly and demand oG maKor 
industries and its sIort� and lonH�term eGGects, wIile LeeQinH 
an eye on Hlobal trends, esQecially tIe status oG vaccine 
develoQment� In addition, tIe BanL conducted researcI to 
Gacilitate new industries sucI as tIose related to remote services 
and diHital transGormation, deliberatinH on ways to strenHtIen 
comQetitiveness oG eacI industry in tIe Qost�$ovid�19 era�

In Qarticular, ,DB QublisIed a reQort oG tIe 2020 SuQQly $Iain 
Industrial Structure and $omQany .aQ tarHetinH 13 industries 
includinH semiconductors and Guture automobiles, wIicI were 
selected based on tIe multiQle dynamics aGGectinH tIe ,orean 
economy sucI as tIe ,orean /ew Deal Qolicy, and suHHested 
ways to strenHtIen tIe comQetitiveness oG eacI oG tIe selected 
industries� 

5Ie reQort condensedly contained ,DBˏs accumulated Lnow�
Iow sˏ in trends oG marLets and tecInoloHy, suQQly cIains, and 
corQorate analysis� 5Ie reQort served as tIe Ley resource witIin 
tIe BanL in its suQQort oG ,oreaˏs industrial comQetitiveness 
and a reGerence Gor Hovernment aHencies sucI as tIe 'inancial 
Services $ommission and tIe .inistry oG &conomy and 'inance� 

'or successGul imQlementation oG tIe Hovernmentˏs /ew Deal 
Qolicies and tIe BanL sˏ credit decision, tIe BanL also QublisIed 
a reQort oG In�DeQtI Study into tIe ,orean /ew Deal Industries, 
coverinH Give industries 	�(, "I, Guture veIicles, renewable 
enerHy, and smart city develoQment
, tIeir current status, 
and tIe ways to move tIem Gorward� It was used by various 
Ginancial tasL Gorce teams linLed witI Hovernment Qolicies and 
by tIe BanL sˏ toQ manaHement Gor decision maLinH�

In 2021, ,DB will steQ uQ its researcI eGGort in innovative 
HrowtI so tIat ,orea LeeQs its GootIold in tIe 'ourtI Industrial 
Revolution era wIile continuinH its study on QromotinH tIe 
comQetitiveness oG new industries and cIanHe in industrial 
trends caused by $ovid�19�

KDB is a think tank in policy finance, 
ensuring innovative economic growth 
and sustainable development, 
making in-depth research on inter 
Korean relationship in preparation 
for an economic cooperation in the 
Korean Peninsula. 

3FTFBrcI���$rFdJU�3FWJFw
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In 2021, ,DB will establisI tIe /ew Industrial $redit Review 
DeQartment dedicated to new industries witI stronH Qotential 
Gor innovation and HrowtI wIile QromotinH an innovative 
mindset across tIe BanL, and encouraHinH imQlementinH more 
measures tIat are Heared to GacilitatinH tIe eYQansion oG new 
industries�

,DB will continue its eGGorts to strenHtIen its credit review 
eYQertise by introducinH diHital transGormation to review 
Qrocesses� 'or tIis end, tIe BanL Qlans to re�establisI its review 
system by comQletinH tIe develoQment oG an I5�based review 
system and imQlementinH a comQreIensive traininH QroHram 
to nurture tIe neYt Heneration oG credit sQecialists�

Research on Reunification Finance
"s tIe countryˏs reQresentative Qolicy Ginance institution, ,DB 
conducts in�deQtI researcI on /ortI ,oreaˏs economy and 
industries in QreQaration Gor Qotential advancement in inter�
,orean relations and resumQtion oG inter�,orean economic 
cooQeration� Based on its accumulated LnowledHe, tIe 
BanL worLs QainstaLinHly on resQondinH to Guture cIanHes 
by buildinH uQ a Goundation Gor cooQeration witI relevant 
orHani[ations includinH Qublic institutions, tIinL�tanLs, and 
corQorate Qartners�

In 2020, ,DB conducted an in�deQtI study on /ortI ,oreaˏs 
current issues, its economy and industries to suQQort tIe 
Hovernmentˏs Qolicy initiatives and QreQare aIead Gor a 
Qotential resumQtion oG inter�,orean economic cooQeration� 
,DB QublisIed 2020 Industries oG /ortI ,orea, tIe countryˏs 
only Qeriodical GeaturinH /ortI ,orean industries released every 
Give years since 199�, and ,DB /ortI ,orean DeveloQment, 
wIicI is a reHular Qublication on tIe economy and industries oG 
/ortI ,orea�

In 2021, ,DB will strenHtIen its in�deQtI researcI in QreQaration 
Gor an era oG inter�,orean cooQeration by incorQoratinH analysis 
on /ortI ,oreaˏs new economic Qolicies� In addition, ,DB 
will enIance cooQeration botI inside and outside ,orea by 
IostinH tIe /ortI ,orea 1olicy 'orum and eYQlorinH ways to 
re�establisI a researcI networL witI domestic and overseas 
researcI institutes and international Ginancial institutions�

Credit Review
Since 201�, ,DB adoQted tIe $redit Review System Gor /ew 
Industries and Innovative $omQanies to better resQond to tIe 
diverse GundinH needs oG tIe country sˏ innovative comQanies in 
tIeir various HrowtI staHes�

5Ie system was GurtIer strenHtIened in 2020 tIrouHI increase 
in tIe number oG dedicated teams Grom two to Gour and 
relocation oG eYQerienced credit oGGicers in venture caQital 
investment to tIe dedicated teams� 5Ie number oG credit 
transactions reviewed increased siHniGicantly Grom 1� in 2019 to 
�� in 2020 tIrouHI tIe use oG tIe aHile credit review tecIniRues, 
wIicI enabled a more raQid and eGGicient review Qrocess, 
QromQtly resQondinH to tIe GundinH needs oG various new 
HrowtI comQanies� "s a result, ,DB eGGectively and eGGiciently 
suQQorted tIe GundinH needs oG innovative comQanies wIo Iad 
received recoHnition Gor tIeir Qotential Gor HrowtI but Iad been 
missinH out on HettinH timely access to caQital�

In line witI tIe Hovernmentˏs /ew SoutIern 1olicy, ,DB 
bolstered credit review caQacity oG its overseas brancIes 
located in "sia by disQatcIinH credit sQecialists to SinHaQore 
and )onH ,onH in 2020�

Research�$reditReview
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In 2020, KDB continued its seamless effort to run its business 
in a way that is ethical, responsible, and sustainable. The 
Bank also accelerated its digital transformation by adopting 
innovative technologies such as big data, AI and robotic 
process automation(RPA). KDB is committed to the global 
trend of promoting sustainability and will become the 
leading advanced policy bank at the forefront of Korea’s 
sustainable growth.
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KDB Bonds
,DB issues Industrial 'inance Bonds 	ˑ,DB bonds˒
 to Qrocure 
necessary Gunds tIat will be used Gor tIe develoQment and 
Qromotion oG industries, eYQansion oG social inGrastructure, 
reHional economic develoQment, stabili[ation oG Ginancial 
marLets, and Gacilitation oG sustainable HrowtI� ,DBˏs GundinH 
activities are in accordance witI tIe ,orea DeveloQment BanL 
"ct� "s stiQulated in tIe "ct, ,DB as a state�owned Qolicy banL 
is Qrotected aHainst tIe risL oG insolvency by tIe Hovernment, 
and its credit risL is considered eRual to tIat oG tIe Hovernment 
under Basel III criteria� "s a result, ,DB bonds are issued at tIe 
lowest interest rate, neYt to tIe ,orean treasury bonds�

KR8�denominated bonds
In 2020, tIe domestic bond marLet rallied tIrouHIout tIe Girst 
IalG oG tIe year driven by tIe BanL oG ,orea sˏ monetary easinH 
in resQonse to tIe recession in tIe real economy caused by 
tIe $ovid�19 outbreaL� In tIe second IalG, Iowever, increase in 
Hovernment�issued 5reasuries to Ginance tIe stimulus QacLaHe 
and eYQectation Gor an economic turnaround Grom vaccine roll�
out Qlaced a Gloor to yields, reversinH tIe trend oG tIe Girst IalG�

,DB bonds issued in 2020 to institutional investors totaled 
,R8 �0�� trillion, witI tIe outstandinH balance as oG year�end 
standinH at ,R8 10��� trillion, a year�on�year increase oG ,R8 
1��0 trillion and ,R8 1��0 trillion, resQectively� It is notewortIy 
tIat ,DB eYceeded its yearly debt tarHet desQite unGavorable 
suQQly and demand conditions in tIe marLet, securinH tIe 
suGGicient resources necessary to meet tIe uneYQectedly IiHI 
demands Grom Qolicy GinancinH QroQosals�

,DB bonds are classiGied as sQecial banL debentures and ,DB 
is tIe larHest issuer in tIe domestic bond marLet, beIind tIe 
Hovernment and tIe central banL� In terms oG outstandinH 
balance, ,DB bonds account Gor tIe GourtI larHest sIare 
GollowinH Hovernment bonds, monetary stabili[ation bonds, and 
mortHaHe bacLed securities�

Market rates on Benchmark Bonds by Maturity
"s oG December 31, 2020 	6nit� �


1Y 3Y 5Y 10Y

Korea 5reasury Bonds 0���� 0�9�0 1�33� 1��22

,%#�boOdT ����� ����� ����� �����

Bank debentures (AAA) 0�9�� 1�1�2 1���� 2�03�

-JBbJMJUZ��
.BOBHFNFOU
KDB strives to secure sufficient and 
timely funding to carry out its policy 
financing, taking into account the 
prevailing market conditions.

Share of KDB Bonds in the Domestic Bond Market
"s oG December 31, 2020 	6nit� ,R8 trillion


,%##oOdT�����.��

497
5otal FI Bonds

Outstanding Balance

,%##oOdT����.��

Newly Issued

235
5otal FI Bonds

,%#�4IBrF

,%#�4IBrF
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.oreover, tIe yields on ,DB bonds are widely used by marLet 
QarticiQants sucI as tIe ,orea 'inancial Investment "ssociation 
as one oG tIe Ley bencImarLs alonHside tIose on ,orean 
treasury bonds and monetary stabili[ation bonds�

,DB Qioneered tIe marLet Gor &S( bonds in tIe domestic 
marLet witI tIe countryˏs Girst ever Hreen and social bonds 
issuances amountinH to ,R8 �00 billion in 201�� Since tIen, 
,DB Ias led tIe marLet Gor &S( bonds in tIe country� 'ollowinH 
uQ witI a ,R8 �00 billion issuance in 2019, ,DB raised a total oG 
,R8 1�2 trillion Grom &S( bonds in 2020 wIicI included a ,R8 
200 billion Hreen bond and a ,R8 1 trillion social bond� 5Ie 
Qroceeds Grom tIe ,R8 1 trillion social bond were sQeciGically 
used Gor suQQortinH enterQrises Iit by tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic 
and tIose contributinH to Kob creation� 

In addition, ,DB strenHtIened tIe transQarency oG disclosure 
oG tIe social and environmental imQacts oG its &S( bonds by 
obtaininH an indeQendent tIird Qarty oQinion on tIe bond 
QrosQectus, wIicI will IelQ enIance investor conGidence 
in ,DBˏs ,R8�denominated &S( bonds and contribute to a 
Rualitative HrowtI oG tIe ,orean &S( bond marLet� 

In 2021, ,DB will seeL to GurtIer reduce its GundinH costs and 
strenHtIen tIe investor base oG ,DB bonds tIrouHI a GleYible 
GundinH strateHy tIat taLes cIanHes in ,DB sˏ assets and liabilities 
into consideration wIile diversiGyinH its Qroducts and investors� 
In addition, tIe BanL will contribute to tIe advancement oG tIe 
domestic &S( bond marLet by actively issuinH and QromotinH 
voluntary disclosure Qractices amonH tIe otIer ,orean issuers� 

,DB will comQly witI eYistinH and new eYternal reHulations 
sucI as Basel III and ensure a stable suQQly oG caQital tIrouHI 
GleYible and timely GinancinH activities Gor tIe develoQment and 
Qromotion oG ,orean industry�

Foreign currency�denominated bonds
2020 was an unGavorable time Gor all Hlobal marLet issuers witI 
a siHniGicant decline in tIe international bond marLet Grom 
'ebruary to "Qril triHHered by tIe $ovid�19� ,DB nevertIeless 
manaHed to raise 6SD ��� billion oG GoreiHn currency Gunds 
tIrouHI QreemQtive and oQQortunistic GundinH activities 
bacLed by close monitorinH oG tIe marLet volatilities� .ost 
imQortantly, ,DB raised 6SD �00 million Grom tIe international 
bond marLet in "Qril, marLinH tIe Girst re�oQeninH GundinH 
out oG "sia Grom tIe Qrimary bond marLet wIicI Iad been 
comQletely sIut down since tIe 8)0 sˏ declaration oG $ovid�19 
as Qandemic in 'ebruary� 5Ie milestone transaction solidiGied 

,DB as ,oreaˏs reQresentative borrower in times oG crises and 
was well recoHni[ed by tIe marLet, winninH tIe ˑBest 2uasi�
SovereiHn Bond˒ award by 5Ie "sset� 

5Ie BanL diversiGied its GundinH sources by taQQinH tIe Swiss 
'ranc 	$)'
 and ,anHaroo 	"6D
 bond marLets, reducinH its 
deQendence on tIe 6SD wIile attractinH investors Grom &uroQe 
and tIe 6S in addition to its stronH eYistinH "sian investor 
base� In tandem witI tIe Hlobal movement toward socially 
resQonsible investment, ,DB issued its inauHural GoreiHn 
currency denominated Social Bond 	ˑ$ovid�19 ResQonse Social 
Bonds˒
� ,DB also became tIe Girst "sian issuer to Qrint a 
S0'R�linLed 'R/ bond in a 1��" marLet, GaitIGully committinH 
to QreQare in advance Gor a Qost�-IB0R era�

In 2021, ,DBˏs GundinH strateHy will Gocus on GleYibility, bracinH 
Gor Qotential volatility in tIe marLet stemminH Grom cIanHinH 
monetary Qolicies and HeoQolitical risLs attributable to tIe 
QrolonHed sQread oG $ovid�19� 8Iile continuinH to serve as ,orea sˏ 
bencImarL issuer in wide�ranHinH marLets includinH tIe 6S, tIe 
BanL will also maLe concerted eGGorts to eYQand its investor base 
in view oG enIancinH tIe GundinH conditions Gor all ,orean issuers�

Deposits
,DB ensures eGGicient suQQly oG Qolicy Gunds by utili[inH a wide 
ranHe oG deQosit instruments to suQQlement GundinH Grom 
,DB bonds, wIicI can be Qrice�sensitive to marLet conditions� 
By securinH suGGicient amount oG Gunds tIrouHI cost�eGGicient 
deQosit and money marLet Qroducts, ,DB strives to diversiGy 
its GundinH risLs wIile reducinH GundinH costs to enIance its 
oQerational comQetitiveness witI tIe ultimate Hoal oG more 
eGGectively suQQortinH tIe HrowtI oG tIe ,orean economy� 

-iability.anagement
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In 2021, ,DB will continue to attract deQosits Grom its clients as 
a means to ensure tIe stable suQQly oG Qolicy Gunds�

'irst, ,DB will Gacilitate more deQosits Grom S.&s and .&s 
and imQrove tIe current GinancinH structure wIicI is Ieavily 
concentrated on larHe comQanies

Second, tIe BanL will eYQand its wealtI manaHement services 
to IiHI�end customers, and train more Qrivate banLinH 
sQecialists to GurtIer secure eYQertise in deQosits�

5Iird, under intensiGyinH comQetition triHHered by tIe QoQularity 
oG Gin�tecI QlatGorms Gor attractinH new deQosit accounts, ,DB 
will strenHtIen its QartnersIiQ witI Gin�tecI comQanies to 
eYQand its lineuQ oG remote and comQetitive banLinH services, 
actively accommodatinH to a new diHital era aIead�

Liquidity Management
,DB closely monitors marLet conditions and events to swiGtly 
adaQt to cIanHes in Hlobal Ginancial events and taLe QreemQtive 
risL manaHement measures to obtain oQtimal level oG liRuidity� 
,DB utili[es various sIort�term instruments not limited to call 
loans, reQo, ..', $1 QroHrams, etc� to minimi[e and eGGiciently 
manaHe surQlus liRuidity� ,DB also maintains eYtensive 6SD 
money marLet lines witI various central banLs and numerous 
reciQrocal money marLet line aHreements witI Hlobal Ginancial 
institutions� 5o comQlement tIe low interest rate money marLet 
lines witI tIe central banLs and SS"s, ,DB is also an active issuer 
oG 6S $1s and &uro $1s in international caQital marLets�

5Iere was mucI uncertainty surroundinH tIe Ginancial 
marLet due to tIe $ovid�19 in 2020 and, desQite intensiGied 
comQetition amonH banLs, ,DBˏs total deQosits rose by ,R8 
��3 trillion, tIanLs to a new line oG successGul deQosit Qroducts 
oGGered on line, couQled witI GleYible interest rate scIemes 
available Gor corQorate clients� In Qarticular, tIe BanL attracted 
aQQroYimately ��,000 new accounts witIin siY montIs oG 
launcIinH tIe 5 BeneGit SavinHs "ccount, tIe Girst Qrivate label 
deQosit Qroduct launcIed by a ,orean banL in collaboration 
witI a Gin�tecI comQany� 5Ie QoQularity oG tIe Qroduct 
substantially contributed to eYQandinH ,DBˏs Guture customer 
base wIile securinH a stable cIannel oG deQosits�

Number of Retail Customers 	6nit� 1,000 Qersons


KRW- denominated Deposits 	6nit� ,R8 trillion


  Corporate deposits       Retail deposits

1��2

13�2

19��

13�� 12.7

2018

31.4

2019

33.1

28.7

2020

41.4

2019

537

2018

494

2020

603
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Effective Risk Management by Specialized 
Councils
,DB oQerates indeQendent risL manaHement committee and 
council to ensure QromQt and eGGective risL manaHement 
decision�maLinH� 5Ie RisL .anaHement $ommittee 	R.$
 is 
,DBˏs IiHIest decision�maLinH body tIat eYamines imQortant 
matters sucI as yearly risL manaHement Qlans and total risL 
limits Gor tIe BanL� 5Ie R.$ members are mainly comQrised 
oG indeQendent directors witI eYtensive eYQerience and 
LnowledHe in Ginance and economic matters� $Iaired by one 
oG tIe indeQendent directors, tIe $ommittee is armed witI a 
decision�maLinH mecIanism tIat ensures balanced views on 
critical risL manaHement aHenda� "ll aHenda items resolved by 
tIe R.$ are reQorted to tIe Board oG Directors�

In 2020, Gour R.$ meetinHs were Ield witI a total oG 1� aHenda 
items beinH Qresented Gor discussion to tIe committee� .aKor 
items discussed included tIe risL manaHement Qlans Gor 
2020 and tIe country eYQosure manaHement Qlans� 0tIer 
imQortant risL manaHement issues were also discussed, sucI 
as tIe results oG inteHrated analysis on risL Gor tIe second IalG 
oG 2019 and Girst IalG oG 2020, and veriGication results Gor BIS risL 
weiHIted assets were also reQorted to tIe $ommittee�

5Ie RisL .anaHement $ouncil 	$ouncil
 is comQosed oG Division 
)eads, and its roles and resQonsibilities include tIe monitorinH 
oG tIe BanLˏs constant risL variables and tIe orcIestration oG 
oQerations, so tIat risLs can be eGGectively manaHed witIin 
eacI oQeration unit� 'ollowinH tIe limits set by tIe R.$, tIe 
$ouncil discusses and distributes risLs amonH divisions, settinH 
limits Gor tradinH losses and '�9 Qositions� In 2020, tIe $ouncil 
convened � times, discussinH tIe establisIment oG maKor 2020 
credit QortGolios and tIe distribution oG internal caQital limits� 

,DB sˏ RisL SteerinH $ommittee Ias members drawn Grom Ieads 
oG QlanninH deQartments and suQervises tIe Qrior screeninH oG 
maKor aHenda items subKect to resolution by tIe $ouncil� 5Ie 
SteerinH $ommittee convened Gour times in 2020�

3JTk�.BOBHFNFOU

KDB maintains financial soundness 
and stability in its business activities 
through the effective management of a 
diverse range of risks based on KDB’s Risk 
Management Principles

KDB’s Risk Management Principles

Ӫ Risk must be manaHed across tIe BanL in a manner 
tIat is indeQendent and comQreIensive�

Ӫ Risk must be accurately identiGied, measured, and 
evaluated, and tIen QroQerly manaHed�

Ӫ Risk must be maintained at a level in balance to QroGit�

Ӫ Risk must be diversiGied to Qrevent a builduQ oG assets 
concentrated in a sQeciGic cateHory� 

Ӫ Risk must be manaHed witIin certain limits or Huidelines 
in order to Qrevent undue eYQosure�

Risk.anagement
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KDB’s Risk Management Methodologies
$redit risk
$redit risL reGers to Qossible losses in tIe event tIat debts 
cannot be collected as a result oG a Gailure oG counterQarties to 
maLe reQayments or to GulGill tIeir Qayment obliHations in otIer 
ways� 8Iile monitorinH all assets tIat are eYQosed to credit 
risL, ,DB also measures and manaHes credit concentration risL, 
wIicI can occur as a result oG eYcessive eYQosure to individual 
comQanies or corQorate HrouQs�

.arket risk

.arLet risL reGers to Qossible losses to tIe BanLˏs assets 
resultinH Grom Gluctuations oG interest rates, stocL Qrices, '�9 
rates, and otIer variables� ,DB measures and manaHes Qossible 
losses in tradinH Qositions, includinH Qositions in securities 
and derivatives Ield Gor tradinH, due to neHative movements 
in marLet indices� .oreover, tIe BanL classiGies tIe severity oG 
marLet swinHs into tIree staHes � Qrecautionary, semi�crisis, 
and crisis staHes � and oQerates .arLet RisL $ontinHency 1lans 
aQQroQriate to eacI oG tIe tIree staHes� ,DB also conducts 
stress tests to measure tIe Qotential scale oG losses based on 
scenarios reQlicatinH siHniGicant Gluctuations in maKor marLet 
indices over tIe last tIree years and tIe Ginancial crisis oG 200��

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risL reGers to Qossible losses due to interest rate 
Gluctuations tIat cause a decrease in net Qresent value 	/17
 or 
net interest income 	/II
 oG rate�sensitive assets and an increase 
in interest eYQenses on rate�sensitive liabilities contained witIin 
tIe BanLˏs accounts� ,DB manaHes interest rate risLs mainly 
tIrouHI 7alue at RisL 	7aR
, and also emQloys &arninHs at RisL 
	&aR
, duration HaQ, and reQricinH HaQ as auYiliary manaHement 
indices� In late 2019, a standard Gor calculation oG interest rate 
risL was reQlaced by tIe standard oG tIe interest rate risL in tIe 
banLinH booL 	IRRBB
 and accordinHly, ,DB Ias calculated and 
disclosed interest rate risLs based on IRRBB on a Ruarterly basis�

-iRuidity risk
-iRuidity risL is deGined as tIe Qossibility oG Qotential loss 
due to a temQorary sIortaHe in Gunds caused by a maturity 
mismatcI or an uneYQected caQital outlay� -iRuidity risL soars 
wIen GundinH rates rise, assets are sold below a normal Qrice, 
or a Hood investment oQQortunity is missed� ,DB uses Basel 
III sˏ sIort�term liRuidity reHulation indeY, tIe liRuidity coveraHe 
ratio 	-$R
, and a mid to lonH�term liRuidity reHulation indeY, 
tIe net stable GundinH ratio 	/S'R
 to manaHe its liRuidity risLs 
and to meet reHulatory reRuirements�

0perational risk
0Qerational risL reGers to Qossible losses tIat may occur due to 
inadeRuate internal Qrocesses, system Gailures, emQloyee errors, 
as well as eYternal events tIat disruQt business oQerations� 
5IrouHI a $ontrol SelG�"ssessment 	$S"
 QroHram, ,DB 
Qeriodically assesses tIat tIe relevant staGG in eacI deQartment 
are Gully aware oG tIe Qotential oQerational risLs associated witI 
tIeir Kob Gunctions, and can QroQerly manaHe tIose risLs� 5Ie 
BanL establisIed business continuity Qlans 	B$1s
 Gor eacI Kob 
Gunction to QreQare Gor Qotential disruQtions due to disasters, 
striLes, and otIer emerHencies� "nnual mocL drills are Ield to 
ensure tIat maKor oQerations can be resumed witIin a tarHet 
timeGrame in tIe event oG an emerHency�

Key committees and councils for risk management

Board of Directors

Risk .anagement $ommittee

˖ " committee witIin tIe Board oG Directors  
	$Iair� IndeQendent director, .embers� IndeQendent and 
inside directors, eYcludinH tIe $Iairman


˖ .aLes decisions on annual limit on internal caQital and 
basic measures Gor risL manaHement, etc�

Risk .anagement $ouncil

˖ " risL manaHement council comQosed oG Division )eads 
	$Iair� 7ice $Iairman, .embers� "ll Division )eads


˖ .aLes decisions on tIe distribution oG internal caQital limits 
by Divisions, sets industry and country eYQosure limits, etc�

$hief Risk 0cer

˖ )ead oG tIe RisL .anaHement Division
˖ 1lans, suQervises, and monitors risL manaHement, 

reQorts Ley issues to tIe manaHement, etc�
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Risk.anagement

Management for Soundness of KDB’s Assets
,DB cateHori[es tIe soundness oG its assets ˑnormal ,˒ 
ˑQrecautionary ,˒ ˑsubstandard ,˒ ˑdoubtGul ,˒ or ˑestimated loss˒ 
based on an evaluation oG tIe Qossibility oG insolvency and sets 
aside loan loss Qrovisions accordinH to tIe cateHori[ation oG its 
assets� In addition, tIe BanL maLes reasonable estimates oG 
tIe Qrobability oG deGaults as well as losses based on deGaults, 
and sets aside adeRuate levels oG loan loss Qrovisions usinH tIe 
eYQected credit loss 	&$-
 imQairment model in line witI tIe 
International 'inancial ReQortinH Standards 9�

5Ie BanL constantly strives to minimi[e insolvencies by 
strenHtIeninH credit aQQroval criteria based on asset 
soundness cateHory and manaHinH QortGolio concentration� 
IG assets are classiGied as non�QerGorminH, ,DB Qursue 
measures to normali[e business oQerations tIrouHI business 
restructurinH, or manaHe tIe assets tIrouHI sales or write�oGGs�

R&7I&8 0F ����
,DB imQroved its risL manaHement systems in order to 
seamlessly Qrovide Qolicy Gunds witIout serious interruQtion 
and suQQort business activities based on solid asset soundness� 

,DB suQQorted tIe smootI oQeration oG Hovernment�led 
Ginancial suQQort QroHrams by analy[inH risL imQact on Qolicy 
QroHrams and establisIinH countermeasures, as Qart oG its 
eGGorts to resQond to tIe $ovid�19 risL in a timely manner� 5Ie 
BanL realiHned its business continuity Qlans to resQond to tIe 
crisis and made QreQarations to ensure tIat core businesses 
remain intact even iG tIe BanLˏs Iead oGGice were closed� ,DB 
conducted stress tests on inteHrated crises related to $ovid�19 
and analy[ed various scenarios to estimate its imQact on BIS 
ratio and Qotential insolvency�

5Ie BanL eYQanded its caQital allocation to secure its Qolicy Ginance 
Hoals tIrouHI means sucI as caQital inKection by tIe Hovernment 
to maLe uQ Gor decreased caQital ratios aGter tIe eYecution oG 
Qolicy QroHrams related to $ovid�19� 5Ie BanL also strived to 
manaHe asset soundness by eYQandinH allowances Gor bad debts 
QreemQtively in QreQaration Gor a Qotential increase in insolvent 
borrowers�

,DB also comQleted system develoQment reRuired Gor tIe 
early imQlementation oG tIe new Basel III�based credit risL 
calculation standard and aQQlied tIe new standard Gor tIe BIS 
ratio calculations in late 2020� 5Ie BanL also made reasonable 
imQrovements to risL manaHement systems to reGlect cIanHes 
in internal reHulation, eYternal reHulations and risL environment� 

1-A/4 F0R ����
,DB will continue to imQrove its risL manaHement system tIrouHI 
1
 reorHani[inH current systems and introducinH new ones, 2
 
swiGtly resQondinH to cIanHes in tIe eYternal environment, sucI 
as reHulatory cIanHes, and 3
 imQrovinH its caQability to resQond 
to scenarios oG increased corQorate insolvency� 

"s a means to QreQare Gor tIe Qost $ovid�19 era, ,DB will 
strenHtIen risL manaHement to accommodate ,orean /ew 
Deal initiatives, new industries, and innovative comQanies� 5Ie 
BanL will Qrioriti[e on tIe relevant risL manaHement Gor ,orean 
/ew Deal wIicI is stronHly Qromoted by tIe Hovernment as tIe 
new national economic advancement strateHy�

StartinH Grom tIe GourtI Ruarter oG 2020, tIe BanL Ias 
calculated its BIS ratio by reGlectinH tIe uQdated Basel III 
credit risL Huidelines and Ias been worLinH on establisIinH 
a system to incorQorate tIe cIanHes in Basel III marLet and 
oQerational risLs wIicI are set to taLe eGGect Grom 2023� 5Ie 
BanL will also imQrove its internal control system to QreQare Gor 
tIe adoQtion oG larHe eYQosure reHulations stiQulated by Basel 
III� ReHardinH tIe initial marHin eYcIanHe system Gor over�tIe�
counter derivatives, eYQected to be introduced in 2021, ,DB will 
strenHtIen marLet risL manaHement by veriGyinH evaluation 
model inteHrity and revisinH manaHement standards�

'urtIermore, tIe BanL will continue to strenHtIen asset 
soundness to brace Gor tIe Qotential insolvent comQanies 
attributable to tIe QrolonHed $ovid�19 $risis� 8itI tIe 1aris 
"Hreement eYQected to taLe eGGect, ,DB also Qlans to review 
tIe imQact oG climate cIanHe risL and establisI relevant 
countermeasures�

,DB will Gocus on its eGGorts to disseminate a culture oG 
risL manaHement internally witI tIe Hoal oG imQrovinH tIe 
eGGectiveness oG risL manaHement Qolicies as risL manaHement 
is taLinH on a new imQortance witIin tIe Ginancial industry 
amid tIe Qandemic� 5Ie BanLˏs risL Gunction will suQQort toQ 
manaHement to maLe Qractical and reasonable risL�based 
decision�maLinH tIrouHI eGGective oQeration oG risL manaHement 
bodies and timely delivery oG risL analysis inGormation�
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IDT Center
Beginning of the Digital 5ransformation
In 2020, tIe Hovernment imQlemented various Qolicies sucI as 
tIe DiHital /ew Deal and revisions oG tIe 3�& laws 	reHardinH 
tIe distribution and utili[ation oG Qersonal inGormation and 
creation oG new services based on sucI Qersonal inGormation
 
to accelerate tIe nationˏs diHital transGormation� "lso, due to 
tIe $ovid�19 crisis, tIe need to conduct business remotely 
increased siHniGicantly� 6nder tIese circumstances, Ginancial 
institutions Iave beHun Gierce comQetition to strenHtIen tIeir 
contactless marLetinH QlatGorms, incorQoratinH biH data and "I 
to Ginancial transactions�

5o QromQtly adaQt to tIe dramatic cIanHes in tIe diHital Ginance 
environment, ,DB establisIed tIe deQartment dedicated to 
diHital transGormation, ˑtIe DiHital 5ransGormation DeQartment˒ 
and Ias carried out a transition Qrocess to Gacilitate� 1
 tIe 
sQread oG a diHital mindset, 2
 data�based decision maLinH, 3
 
Qrocess automation and �
 remote worL oQeration� 

�) 5he spread of a digital mindset
,DB acLnowledHes tIat establisIinH a diHital culture and 
instillinH a diHital mindset are oG Qaramount imQortance� 5o 
reacI its obKectives, tIe BanL set uQ a DiHital 5ransGormation 
$ouncil comQosed oG deQartment Ieads centerinH on sQurrinH 
,DB sˏ diHital transGormation witIin tIe BanL and runninH various 
QroHrams sucI as IoldinH internal contests to identiGy ideas�

�) Data�based decision�making
In order to systematically manaHe and utili[e biH data witIin 
tIe BanL, ,DB establisIed internal data Qolicies, alonH witI 
a GrameworL Gor data manaHement and analysis� It also 
develoQed a Ginancial model adoQtinH artiGicial intelliHence 	"I
 
tecInoloHy Gor determininH corQorate credit ratinH, and aQQlied 
tIe model in Qractice�

�) 1rocess automation
,DB Ias continuously aQQlied Robotic 1rocess "utomation 
	R1"
 to allow its emQloyees to cut down on simQle and 
reQeated tasLs and instead Gocus more on core oQerations 
sucI as QromotinH Qolicy GinancinH business and QlanninH� 5Ie 
BanL also built "I�based LnowledHe manaHement systems, 
imQrovinH tIe eGGiciency oG internal LnowledHe manaHement 
and data searcIinH�

*5���%JHJUBM�
5rBOTGorNBUJoO
KDB is proactively utilizing new digital 
technologies such as big data and AI 
into its financial business to strengthen 
competitiveness of its financial services, 
and at the same time is bracing for the 
digital transformation in the financial 
industry.

#*(%"5" "/"-:5*$4 %&$*4*0/4
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Strengthening digital strategies - KDB Digital Way
In 2021, KDB expects an acceleration in the digital innovation 
trends, such as introduction of a data-based economy and 
growth of remote service industries. AI technology, which is 
staged beyond its experimental phase, is expected to be applied 
to numerous industries, making it account for a larger part of 
people’s daily lives. Against this backdrop, financial institutions 
are rapidly adapting to such changes, and competition among 
them is expected to intensify in the digital finance sector.

4) Remote business operation
By improving its remote business channels such as Mobile 
Banking UI/UX and Open Banking, KDB substantially enhanced 
the banking experience for its retail customers. For its corporate 
clients, the Bank plans to establish a remote transaction service 
that enables them to complete their loan execution processes 
without physically visiting the Bank. The Bank already 
completed process analysis and legal reviews required for the 
practice and expects the process to be implemented by 2021. 

Spurring innovation in the work culture for the New Normal 
2.0 era - KDB’s digital work environment
For the first time in the domestic financial sector, KDB has 
laid out the foundation for enhancing workplace productivity 
and promoted a culture of paperless reporting by providing 
the latest laptop computers to all employees and installing 
a 6th generation wireless LAN (WIFI6) within the headquarter 
and all of its branches. The Bank fostered the environment 
that enables the staff to work from anywhere and facilitated a 
culture of creative working. 

Furthermore, KDB secured work continuity by implementing 
a work from home system (WFH) amidst the Covid-19 crisis by 
adopting virtual desktop infrastructure (VDI). In so doing, the 
Bank nourished a safe working environment with employees 
utilizing WFH even during non-emergency periods when 
the Covid-19 was less severe. KDB also established a video 
conference system, further promoting an environment of utilizing 
remote communication. By introducing cloud repository, the 
Bank also strengthened knowledge sharing and collaboration.

Completion of an advanced staging area for the digital era- 
Dual Digital Square
KDB has established an advanced IT infrastructure in KDB Digital 
Square, a KDB’s new main data center located in Hanam city. 
Furthermore, the Bank’s existing main data center located in 
Yeouido (the headoffice) has been redesigned to accommodate 
high-performance and large-capacity IT systems so that it can serve 
as a disaster recovery center. A new network cabling structure and 
containment system has been set in place to make cooperation 
between the digital square and the main data center more efficient. 
By designing an uninterrupted power supply system and a seismic 
structure for the existing data center, the Bank expects to maintain 
business continuity even in the event of a disaster. 

Moreover, KDB began relocating its computation equipment 
in October 2018, which were previously scattered all over 
the places. The relocation work took place four times for 
approximately 20 months, and at long last, KDB’s solid Dual IT 
Centers were completed in May 2020.

IT & Digital Transformation
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�) &asing 4ecurity 1olicies
,DB QreemQtively eased its inGormation security Qolicies to 
suQQort tIe diHital transGormation oG tIe BanL sˏ oQerations� 5o 
adoQt virtual desLtoQ inGrastructure 	7DI
 utili[inH an eYternal 
8i�'i networL, ,DB Qroactively Qresented new and less strict 
Qolicies to tIe suQervisory autIorities, and tIrouHI continuous 
consultations witI tIe autIorities, tIe BanL successGully 
acRuired tIe necessary aQQroval to imQlement 7DI Gor tIe Girst 
time in ,orea sˏ Ginance industry� 

5o brace Gor tIe uQcominH cIallenHes, ,DB will concentrate its 
eGGort to strenHtIen tIe comQetitiveness oG its Ginancial services 
by aQQlyinH new diHital tecInoloHies sucI as biH data and "I� 

5Ie BanL Qlans to establisI a data�based decision�maLinH 
Qrocess by aQQlyinH "I models across its corQorate banLinH 
oQerations ranHinH Grom marLetinH to credit ratinH and credit 
review� 5Ie BanL will also introduce diHitali[ed remote services 
Gor its corQorate clients� SQeciGically, tIe BanL is QlanninH 
to introduce a remote Qrocess Gor its corQorate Ginance and 
Qrovide an online QlatGorm Gor venture investment, and also 
Qlans on QrovidinH a tablet�based diHital marLetinH tool to 
suQQort marLetinH activities oG its relationsIiQ manaHers� 

,DB Qlans on continuinH its eGGorts to uQHrade its internal 
Qrocesses by introducinH R1" and "I cIat�bots� 5o tIis end, 
,DB will identiGy and develoQ business models utili[inH new 
tecInoloHies in QartnersIiQ witI Gin�tecI comQanies� By doinH 
so, tIe BanL will strenHtIen its diHital Qrowess wIile renewinH 
itselG as a Qolicy Ginance institution caQable oG RuicLly resQondinH 
to cIanHes in tIe diHital Ginancial environment oG tIe Guture�

Digital Information Security
A leading partner for digital transformation
Due to tIe advancement oG new tecInoloHies 	sucI as biH data and 
"I
 and tIe HrowinH need Gor a new business Qractice attributable 
to tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic, tIere Ias been an acceleration oG diHital 
transGormation in tIe Ginance sector� 6nder tIese circumstances, 
,DB Ias beHun to establisI a remote, minimal contact diHitali[ed 
inGormation security system by actively embracinH cIanHes�

"VUoOoNoVT
TFcVrJUZTZTUFN

�) 4trengthening 
digital information 

security  
capabilities

�) &stablishing  
a mid to long�
term master 

plan

�) &asing  
4ecurity  
1olicies
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5Ie BanL was also swiGt in establisIinH a security system Gor 
remote worLinH environments to brace Gor tIe cominH Qost 
$ovid�19 era, witI business activities still eYQected to taLe Qlace 
in a remote basis�

�) 4trengthening digital information security capabilities
,DB Ias actively resQonded to new security tIreats, wIicI are 
evolvinH day by day, by imQlementinH a 2��� surveillance to 
ensure a real�time resQonse� 5IanLs to tIe successGul security 
system, tIe BanL was Gree oG security accidents Gor tIe Qast tIree 
years� 'urtIermore, tIe BanL Qrovided inGormation security 
traininH to all emQloyees in order to deeQen understandinH 
oG tIe imQortance oG inGormation security, contributinH 
siHniGicantly to tIe enIancement oG inGormation security 
caQabilities oG all emQloyees� ,DB also conducted traininH on 
inGormation security in &nHlisI Gor local emQloyees in /ew :orL 
and SinHaQore to meet local comQliance reRuirements� 

�) &stablishing a mid to long�term master plan
5o resQond to cIanHes in tIe Hlobal Ginancial environment and 
acIieve its diHital business strateHy, ,DB carried out consultinH 
on inGormation security strateHy Gor aQQroYimately Gour montIs� 
5IrouHI tIe consultinH Qrocess tIe BanL establisIed a mid 
to lonH�term ��year master Qlan reQresented as tIe ˑ$�0�R�& 
inGormation security Gor diHital transGormation �˒ 5Ie Qlan 
Gocuses on cooQeration, synerHy, strenHtIeninH inGormation 
security orHani[ations and Hovernance, strenHtIeninH 
inGormation security risL manaHement and maLinH inGormation 
security Qrocesses more eGGicient� 

'or tIe neYt Give years, ,DB will imQlement and comQlete tasLs 
under tIe master Qlan to brinH ,DB sˏ inGormation security to a 
IiHIer level, QlayinH a leadinH role and GulGillinH tIe vision oG a 
ˑ,orea sˏ 'inancial 1latGorm -eadinH to a BriHIt 'uture �˒ 

I5�Digital5ransformation

ˑ$�0�3�&�JOGorNBUJoO�TFcVrJUZ��
Gor�dJHJUBM�UrBOTGorNBUJoO˒

$05oHFUIFr�
Digital transformation partner

3&%oBHBJO�
Recreation of core capabilities

Co-work & synergy Risk managementOrganization & governance Efficiency of process

˖  &stablisI a cloud security 
arcIitecture and service security 
system

˖  &stablisI an R1" security 
arcIitecture and service security 
system

˖  6QHrade systems to resQond to 
inltrations usinH new diHital 
tecInoloHies

˖  6QHrade QIysical security usinH 
new diHital tecInoloHies

˖  ReinGorce tIe BanL sˏ inGormation 
security orHani[ation and secure 
diHital eYQertise

˖ ReinGorce inGormation security 
Hovernance

˖  "utomate security Qrocesses usinH 
R1"

˖  StrenHtIen communication 
Gor inGormation security usinH 
cIatbots

C RO E
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Compliance Department
R&7I&8 0F ����
"Hainst tIe bacLdroQ oG an unQrecedented crisis in 2020, tIe 
Hovernment Ias Qlaced a sQecial emQIasis on inteHrity, etIical 
manaHement, and Qroactive administration in tIe Qublic sector�

In resQonse, ,DB made strenuous eGGorts to Qractice active 
administration, maintain transQarency, manaHe risLs, and Qrevent 
corruQtion� 5Ie BanL establisIed detailed rules and Huidelines on 
IoldinH concurrent Qositions and overIauled internal reHulations 
includinH tIe $ode oG $onduct and tIe InteHrity 1olicy� 5Iis initiative 
also cultivated a culture oG inteHrity by QrovidinH a diverse ranHe oG 
comQliance education, inteHrity camQaiHns, idea contests and Rui[[es to 
tIe emQloyees� "s a result oG sucI endeavors, tIe BanL won tIe second 
IiHIest ratinH in tIe inteHrity evaluation by tIe Hovernment in 2020�

&UIJcBM��
.BOBHFNFOU
KDB strives to enhance consumer 
rights and spread a culture of 
integrity both within and outside 
of KDB by strengthening its ethical 
management principles. 

Major compliance management programs

Programs Details

Compliance 
monitoring

$onducts monitorinH on comQliance reQorts,  
selG�insQection reQorts Grom brancIes, and montIly 
comQliance traininH outcomes

Preliminary 
compliance  
review

$onducts comQliance reviews on internal 
reHulations, terms and conditions, Qroduct 
disclosures, BoD aHenda items, etc�

Anti-money 
laundering  
(ALM)

$onducts SusQicious 5ransaction ReQortinH 	S5R
, 
monitors larHe casI transactions, and oQerates 
tIe Lnow�your�customer 	,:$
 and Lnow�your�
emQloyee 	,:&
 systems

Financial 
investment and 
securities account 
report system

ReRuires emQloyees to reQort on tIeir Ginancial 
investment activities to Qrevent tIem Grom usinH 
undisclosed inGormation

Cryptocurrency 
possession report 
system

ReRuires emQloyees enHaHinH in cryQtocurrency 
transactions to reQort tIeir Qossession oG 
cryQtocurrency biannually

Integrity idea 
contest and 
ethics awards 
for branches and 
employees

&ncouraHes and incentivi[es emQloyees to identiGy 
areas vulnerable to corruQtion and QarticiQate in tIe 
Qrocess oG establisIinH inteHrity Qolicies

Clean Report 
Center/ No Gift 
Campaign

1roIibits solicitation and acceQtance oG HiGts 
eYceedinH sQeciGied amounts and establisIes an 
orHani[ational culture oG inteHrity

Solicitation report 
system

ReRuires emQloyees to reQort on unlawGul 
solicitation Grom Gellow emQloyees and QeoQle 
outside tIe BanL 

Executive Pledge 
of Ethics

.andates reHistered directors maintain inteHrity in 
Kob QerGormance

Code of Conduct 
Pledge

.andates new Iires comQly witI tIe $ode oG 
$onduct 

Report Center for 
Power Tripping  
at work

Builds a reQortinH system Gor unGair demands or 
treatment oG Gellow emQloyees or QeoQle outside tIe 
BanL

Whistleblowing 
system

&nsures wIistleblowersˏ anonymity

Report system for 
outside lecture 
requests

ReRuires emQloyees to reQort outside lecture 
reRuests tied to tIeir Kob Gunction or inGluence

Compliance  
self-check system

$IecLs tIe comQliance status oG all emQloyees 
biannually

Ethical training
1rovides traininH to new emQloyees, Qromoted 
emQloyees, IiHI�level manaHement, and emQloyees 
enHaHed in Kob Gunctions vulnerable to corruQtion
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In addition, tIe BanL establisIed a Iuman riHIts manaHement 
system to meet tIe new obliHations imQosed on Qublic 
institutions startinH Grom 2019, and by conductinH a Iuman riHIts 
imQact analysis in 2020, tIe BanL identiGied and evaluated actual 
and Qotential risL tIat may arise Grom its businesses� In resQonse 
to tIe Hovernmentˏs eGGort to uQroot HaQKil 	abuse oG Qower by 
someone aHainst a Qerson in a weaLer Qosition
, ,DB made 
sQecial eGGort to Qrevent Qotential Iarm by QrovidinH 1
 relieG 
Qrocedures witI widened measures Gor counselinH, 2
 Qreventive 
measures sucI as oQeration oG internal and eYternal reQortinH 
centers Gor Qower triQQinH and 3
 eYQandinH tIe eYistinH social 
media cIannel Gor anonymous reQortinH 	ˑ,DB )elQ -ine˒
�

,DB tiHItened RualiGications Gor comQliance oGGicers in cIarHe oG 
overseas brancIes to ensure tIe brancIes to comQly witI local 
laws and reHulations and Qromote tIorouHI conduct oG business 
related to comQliance� 5Ie BanL reorHani[ed various Linds oG 
comQliance reQorts in line witI local laws and reHulations and 
strenHtIened business communication between comQliance 
oGGicers worLinH at overseas brancIes and tIe comQliance 
deQartment at tIe IeadRuarter�

-ast, ,DB also imQroved tIe caQacity Gor anti�money 
launderinH	".-
, oG wIicI tIe tIorouHI comQliance Ias been 
IiHIliHIted by tiHItened reHulations oG domestic and GoreiHn 
Ginancial autIorities, by addinH more measures to veriGy 
customers reHularly and Iarvest a culture oG reQortinH susQicious 
transactions� In order to imQrove tIe system Gor ".- at overseas 
brancIes, ,DB Ias enHaHed in a consultinH service and is testinH 
tIe system sˏ current caQacity�

1-A/4 F0R ����
Social demands Gor etIical manaHement in tIe Qublic sector 
are GurtIer eYQected to increase in 2021, includinH eradication 
oG Qower triQQinH, emQIasis on inteHrity, and Qrevention oG 
corruQtion� Internal control systems also Iave to be GurtIer 
uQHraded in order to ensure tIat all internal and eYternal 
reHulations are Gully met� 

In 2021, ,DB will continue to strenHtIen its eGGorts to Qrevent 
violations oG internal and eYternal reHulations sucI as tIe 
$ode oG $onduct and tIe ImQroQer Solicitation and (raGt "ct, 
and Qrevent corruQtion and Qower triQQinH QreemQtively 
by QromotinH various reQortinH systems� 5Ie BanL will also 
strenHtIen anti�corruQtion and etIical manaHement by 
diversiGyinH educational metIods and conductinH camQaiHns to 
sQread a culture oG inteHrity� "s Gor Iuman riHIts manaHement, 

tIe BanL will suQQort tIe Hovernment Qolicies by imQlementinH 
comQlementary measures and comQletinH relieG Qrocedures, 
tIus GulGillinH its social resQonsibilities commensurate to its 
Qolicy banL status�

In accordance witI tIe reGorm in reHulations on $Iinese 
8all and revision in $aQital .arLet "ct, ,DB Qlans to reGlect 
tIe cIanHes into systems related to conGlict oG interests and 
imQrove its internal control� 5Ie BanL will also educate and 
notiGy to maLe sure tIat relevant deQartments do not violate 
any laws and reHulations�

'urtIermore, startinH witI tIe imQlementation oG ".- 
consultinH Gor its overseas brancIes, ,DB will enIance 
resQonse systems Gor ".-� 5Ie BanL will imQlement measures 
Gor systematic manaHement by establisIinH common 
business standards Gor its overseas ".- Gunction� ,DB will also 
Qroactively resQond to tIe Ginancial sanction risL by settinH uQ 
a GrameworL related to sucI risL�

Financial Consumer Protection
R&7I&8 0F ����
In resQonse to tIe ever�strenHtIeninH standards Gor Ginancial 
consumer Qrotection, ,DB continuously imQroved its consumer 
Qrotection systems by establisIinH a Qrocess Gor eacI QIase 
oG tIe Qroduct liGe cycle � Grom develoQment to sales and Qost�
sales staHes� 5Ie BanL reHularly eYamines all QIases to discover 
any Gactors tIat may imQinHe on consumer riHIts in order 
to Qrevent mis�sellinH� 5Ie 'inancial $onsumer 1rotection 
$ouncil oG tIe BanL Gacilitates tIe seamless communication 
between Qroduct develoQment Gunctions and sales Gorces by 
QrovidinH uQ�to�date inGormation on consumer Qrotection 
issues� 'urtIermore, ,DB enacted rules and set uQ tIe 1roduct 
$ommittee Gor tIorouHI internal control oG non�deQosit 
Qroducts� 5IrouHI sucI eGGorts, ,DB Ias earned a ˑ1roQer˒ 
ratinHs in tIe ˑ&valuation oG $onsumer 1rotection Status˒ 
conducted by tIe 'inancial SuQervisory Service�

,DB Ias set uQ a Hrievance alert system to nurture customer 
service mindset across tIe BanL and imQrove clientsˏ 
satisGaction� 5Ie BanL is also worLinH to reduce tIe number oG 
comQlaints by 1
 conductinH root cause analysis to GiHure out 
tIe cause oG tIe most GreRuent comQlaints, 2
 IoldinH in�deQtI 
sessions reHardinH comQlaint IandlinH, and 3
 distributinH a 
cIecLlist to minimi[e comQlaint� ,DB also conducts in�Iouse 
customer satisGaction surveys to enIance emQloyeesˏ awareness� 

&thical.anagement
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,DB Ias made utmost eGGorts to Qrotect Qersonal inGormation 
oG its customers� 5Ie BanL establisIed detailed standards Gor 
IandlinH Qersonal inGormation and cIecLed reHularly on tIe 
imQlementation status oG sucI standards� ,DB also manaHed 
tIe monitorinH systems to Qrotect its clients aHainst various 
Ginancial cyber�crimes sucI as voice QIisIinH� 

1-A/4 F0R ����
In 2021, ,DB will continue to establisI more solid Qolicies Gor 
consumer Qrotection and systems Gor botI tIe BanL and its 
clients� 5o tIis end, ,DB will continue to� 1
 strenHtIen tIe 
Ginancial consumer Qrotection measures in all tIe QIases oG 
Qroduct sales, 2
 observe ˑ$onsumer 1rotection Days ,˒ and 3
 
eYQand emQloyee traininH sessions to advance tIeir consumer 
Qrotection caQabilities� 

,DB will continue its systematic education to Qromote and sQread 
a customer satisGaction manaHement mindset across tIe BanL� 

5Ie BanL will also QreQare QroGessional traininH sessions Gor 
its emQloyees to obtain an ˑ&Ycellent˒ ratinH in tIe customer 
satisGaction survey Gor Qublic institutions, and strenHtIen 
activities to Qrotect emQloyees dealinH witI Hrievance� 
'urtIermore, ,DB will imQrove current systems and Qrovide 
education to Qrevent Ginancial cyber�crimes�

'inally, ,DB will strenHtIen its caQabilities to manaHe Qersonal 
inGormation by imQrovinH institutions Gor Qersonal inGormation 
Qrotection, imQlementinH reQortinH obliHations under Hlobal 
Ginancial reHulations and imQrovinH tIe way to Iandle Ginancial 
transaction inGormation and Qrocess Gor sei[ures�

2020 milestones and consumer protection outcomes

Established 
a consumer 
protection 
system for each 
phase of the 
product life cycle

˖ 	1lanninH � 
develoQment staHe
� 
&stablisIed a committee 
on non�deQosit 
Qroducts, conducted 
Qreliminary reviews 
on Qossible consumer 
riHIt inGrinHements 
uQon develoQment or 
modication oG new 
Qroducts and services

˖ 	Sales staHe
� 1revented 
incomQlete sales by 
QrovidinH aQQroQriate 
inGormation on Ley 
Qroduct Geatures and 
risLs

˖ 	"Gter�sales staHe
� 
1rioriti[ed IandlinH 
oG customer 
comQlaints witIin 
1� days over otIer 
business Gunctions, 
Ield $omQensation 
Deliberation $ommittee 
meetinHs iG needed

Conducted 
personal 
information 
protection 
promotion 
activities for 
customers

˖ $onducted 
reHular reviews 
on Qersonal 
inGormation 
looLuQs and 
Qrovision 
oG Qersonal 
inGormation to a 
tIird Qarty

˖ Ran a camQaiHn 
to delete critical 
Qersonal 
inGormation les 
stored on worL 1$s

˖ 0btained an 
ˑ&Ycellent˒ ratinH 
in tIe ˑ&valuation 
oG 1ersonal 
InGormation 
1rotection Status˒ 
conducted by tIe 
.inistry oG tIe 
Interior and SaGety

Increased 
customer 
satisfaction 
by collecting 
customer 
opinions

˖ $ollected diverse 
customer oQinions 
tIrouHI tIe 7oice 
oG tIe $ustomer 
	70$
 system

˖ 'acilitated 
customer 
satisGaction 
	$S
 traininH by 
analy[inH tIe 
results oG tIe 
ˎ1ublic Service 
$ustomer IndeY 
	1S$I
ˏ survey

˖ Received � Iandled 
comQlaints, and 
tIen conducted 
Gollow�uQ cIecLs

Established a 
compliance 
system to 
respond to 
global financial 
regulations

˖ $onducted 
customer due 
diliHence 	$DD
 
on automatic 
eYcIanHes 
oG nancial 
inGormation 
amonH countries 
imQlementinH 
'"5$" and .$"" 
and reQorted 
results

Disclosed 
information 
to ensure the 
public’s right to 
know

˖ 1rovided uQ�to�
date inGormation 
and actively 
resQonded to 
inGormation 
disclosure reRuests

Conducted 
monitoring to 
prevent losses from 
electronic financial 
fraud

˖ ImQroved tIe 
electronic nancial 
Graud Qrevention 
and monitorinH 
system

˖ 1rovided traininH 
on QreventinH voice 
QIisIinH attacLs
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)VNBO�3FToVrcFT�
.BOBHFNFOU
KDB seeks to recruit global talents driven by 
passion and determination, possessing the 
necessary qualifications and a strong sense 
of ethics, and who will play a key role for the 
sustainable growth of Korea.

)umanResources.anagement

Competency-driven Recruitment System 
through Job Competency Evaluations and 
“Blind Recruitment”
,DB Iires new emQloyees every year in order to eGGectively 
resQond to tIe ever�cIanHinH economic and business 
environment, and to strenHtIen its orHani[ational comQetencies� 
5Ie BanL ensures eRual oQQortunity and Gairness in its recruitment 
Qrocess by adoQtinH ˑblind recruitment �˒ Recruitment is driven 
above all by Kob comQetencies, emQIasi[inH on candidatesˏ basic 
caQabilities and orHani[ational Git witIin tIe Ginancial industry�

In 2020, ,DB Iired 11� new emQloyees, all oG wIom Iad Hone 
tIrouHI a multi�dimensional evaluation Qrocess comQosed 
oG tIree staHes tIat incorQorate tIe /ational $omQetency 

Standards 	/S$
� 5Ie BanL increased tIe QroQortion oG new 
emQloyees witI diHital bacLHrounds, includinH comQuter 
science and biH data to Goster a Qool oG interdisciQlinary talent 
essential Gor QursuinH a banL�wide diHital transGormation�

Programs to Foster Digital Talent
,DB is maLinH eYtensive eGGorts to recruit and nurture 
interdisciQlinary talent wIo will lead tIe diHitali[ation oG 
Ginance, and is sQurrinH a banL�wide diHitali[ation eGGort 
by QrovidinH codinH classes and sQecial lectures on diHital 
science to its emQloyees� 5Ie BanL is also manaHinH intensive 
courses in collaboration witI sQeciali[ed education institutions 
includinH colleHes to nurture diHital talent�

In addition, ,DB oGGers a wide ranHe oG oQQortunities Gor 
emQloyees to eYQand tIeir LnowledHe botI inside and outside 
oG tIeir current Kob Gunctions� 5Ie BanL oGGers Qersonali[ed 
career develoQment QroHrams and in�Iouse traininH courses 
on Ley areas 	sucI as loans, deQosits and GoreiHn eYcIanHe
 
tIat corresQond to eacI emQloyee sˏ Kob descriQtions and level 
oG QroGiciency� In Qarticular, by oGGerinH online courses tIrouHI 
tIe ,DB e�$amQus or via otIer online traininH Qroviders, tIe 
BanL enables its emQloyees to learn anytime and anywIere, 
unrestricted by time and sQace�

'urtIermore, tIe BanL runs a wide ranHe oG QroHrams outside 
,orea to develoQ Hlobal talent� It oGGers QroHrams aimed at 
traininH reHional sQecialists tarHetinH countries witI stronH 
Qotential Gor HrowtI, sucI as Indonesia and 7ietnam, wIere tIe 
BanL is QlanninH to eYQand its overseas business oQerations�

,%#�F�$BNQVT
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Strengthening Job Competencies
5Ie BanL seHments Kobs into 1�2 cateHories, witI tIe aim 
oG maYimi[inH orHani[ational caQacity tIrouHI enIancinH 
i n d i v i d u a l  co m Q ete n c y�  , D B  s u Q Q o r ts  e m Q l oye e sˏ 
advancement by QrovidinH a wide ranHe oG Qersonali[ed 
career develoQment QroHrams 	$D1s
 wIicI breaLs down into 
eYQloration, develoQment, and master QIases� &mQloyees in 
tIe eYQloration QIase can imQrove tIeir sLills in tIeir current 
Kob Qosition wIile also HaininH eYQerience Grom otIer related 
areas� SubseRuently, more suQQort is Hiven to emQloyees to 
IelQ tIem GurtIer develoQ tIeir eYQertise as tIey move towards 
tIe master QIase�

'or sQeciali[ed Kob Qositions reRuirinH IiHIer levels oG 
eYQertise, Qositions are Gilled tIrouHI a comQetitive in�Iouse 
recruitment Qrocess� In 2020, ,DB recruited staGG Gor Qositions 
in QroKect Ginance, reHional develoQment, sIiQQinH and aviation 
Ginance, .�", Qrivate eRuity, 7$, D$., credit review, consultinH, 
and QortGolio manaHement�

,DB also oQerates an oQen Qosition system wIicI emQIasi[es 
tIe imQortance oG eYQertise and imbues ,DBˏs orHani[ational 
culture witI added vitality� In 2020, ,DB Ield botI in�Iouse 
and eYternal recruitments to Iire RualiGied eYQerts in Gund 
manaHement and bioQIarmaceutical industry, and is continuinH 
its eGGorts to secure distinHuisIed sQecialists in more Gields�

HR Management to Respond to Covid-19
,DB Ias Qrovided suQQort to its emQloyees in various ways in 
resQonse to tIe $ovid�19 crisis� It enIanced tIe inGrastructure 
Gor worLinH Grom Iome and establisIed relevant Huidelines 
so tIat business can be conducted in a remote manner� 5Ie 
BanL also establisIed a continuous learninH system via mobile 
cIannels as Qart oG its eGGorts to diHitali[e tIe traininH QroHrams�

"lso, ,DB actively suQQorted its emQloyees inGected witI 
$ovid�19 by HivinH tIem oGGicial leaves wIile QromotinH a saGe 
worLinH environment tIrouHI Qolicies sucI as cIildcare leave 
and GleY�time worL Iours� 'urtIermore, tIe BanL comQlied 
witI tIe Hovernmentˏs Ruarantine Huidelines tIorouHIly 
tIrouHIout tIe entire IirinH Qrocess, LeeQinH aQQlicants and 
new emQloyees saGe Grom tIe Qandemic�



Socially ResQonsible 'inancinH
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m
unity )ealinH

,now
ledHe SIarinH

KDB is well aware of its 
responsibility in contributing 
to the sustainable growth of 
local communities. It strives to 
make a positive influence on 
society through various social 
contribution activities.

$orQorBUF�4ocJBM�
3FTQoOTJbJMJUZ 4ocJBMMZ�3FTQoOTJbMF�'JOBOcJOH

SuQQort imQortant Qublic values, 
sucI as Kob creation, industrial and 
economic develoQment tIrouHI 
,DB sˏ Ginancial activities

$oNNVOJUZ�)FBMJOH
1romote and maintain a IealtIy 
society by eYtendinH a IelQinH Iand 
to various HrouQs tIrouHI a ranHe oG 
non�Ginancial activities

,OowMFdHF�4IBrJOH
SIare LnowledHe and eYQerience 
accumulated in tIe Qrocess oG 
,orea sˏ economic develoQment witI 
develoQinH countries, establisIinH 
cooQerative relationsIiQs and 
QromotinH mutual HrowtI�

KDB’s corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) activities can be categorized 
into three types as follows:

KDB’s Founding mission

5o contribute to tIe sound develoQment oG tIe 
Ginancial industry and tIe national economy by 
establisIinH tIe ,orea DeveloQment BanL wIicI 
suQQlies and manaHes Gunds necessary Gor reHional 
develoQment, Ginancial marLet stabili[ation and 
Qromotion oG sustainable develoQment� 

�6�'inancial ReviewIntroduction Business Review Sustainability Review

$orporate4ocialResponsibility
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4ocJBMMZ�3FTQoOTJbMF�
'JOBOcJOH

2020 Summary for socially responsible financing
 	6nit� ,R8 billion


Objectives of funds Amount supplied in 2020 The number of projects 
supported in 2020

Fostering the growth of 4.&s and .&s �,0�� 1,92�

Revitalizing the local economies and pursuing 
balanced development

3�1 9�

Reparing and eYpanding 40$ 2,�00 ��

/urturing eco�friendly industries 1,9�2 311

$ontributing to improving industrial safety 1,0�3 1��

Socially Responsible Financing

KDB maintains a keen interest in fostering future growth 
engines, pursuing balanced growth across regions, 
expanding public infrastructure, and improving the 
environment, thereby providing socially responsible 
financial products and services.
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Environmental and Social Risk Management
&merHence and sQread oG $ovid�19 demonstrated Iow vulnerable businesses are to risL events and wIat 
it means to be resilient and sustainable in an ever�cIanHinH world� 1ost $ovid�19 scenarios are redeGininH 
aQQroacIes to tacLlinH non�Ginancial risLs, sQeciGically in understandinH community eYQosure to IealtI 
events, needs Gor decreasinH interruQtion by Iumans on natural Iabitats, and imQrovinH science�based 
risL manaHement measures� RecoHni[inH Iow environmental and social 	&�S
 risL manaHement and 
sustainable Ginance Iave a role to Qlay as Qart oG tIe lonH�term recovery eGGorts, ,DB is committed to 
continue enIancinH its sustainability Qractices� 

,DBˏs aQQroacI to tacLlinH &�S risLs in QroKect�related transactions Gollow tIe &Ruator 1rinciQles 
	&1s
, tIe Ginance industry sˏ Hold standard Gor &�S risL manaHement� 5Ie Qrocess starts by cateHori[inH 
QroKects based on tIe siHniGicance oG tIeir Qotential &�S risLs and imQacts� In tIe course oG &�S due 
diliHence, ,DB reviews client sˏ comQliance witI tIe &1s reRuirements, sucI as identiGyinH Qotential &�S 
imQacts and incorQoratinH measures to avoid, minimi[e, mitiHate, and�or comQensate Gor tIe adverse 
imQacts into QroKect desiHn� ,DB ensures tIat GinancinH documentation includes covenants linLed to &1s 
comQliance and reviews tIe client sˏ &�S monitorinH reQorts over tIe liGe oG tIe loan�

Case 1.

,now
ledHe SIarinH

Socially Responsible Financing
$om

m
unity )ealinH

KDB’s E&S risk management process

New Project-Related Transactions
Determine iG tIe nancial Qroduct suQQortinH tIe QroKect is subKect to &�S due diliHence  
	1roKect 'inance, 1roKect�Related $orQorate -oans, etc�


01

E&S Risk Categorization
$ateHori[e tIe QroKect into $ateHory " 	IiHI risL
, $ateHory B 	medium risL
,  
$ateHory $ 	low risL


02

E&S Due Diligence (in conjunction with credit review)

$onduct comQliance review aHainst tIe &1s reRuirements, wIicI are commensurate witI 
QroKect sˏ risL cateHory, as a Qart oG tIe loan aQQroval Qrocess

03

Monitoring and Reporting
$onduct monitorinH and review oG client sˏ documents to ensure continued  
comQliance witI tIe &1s reRuirements

05

Financing Documentation
IncorQorate covenants on client sˏ &�S undertaLinHs into nancial documents 
04

$orporate4ocialResponsibility

8itI HrowinH institutional caQacity in &�S risL manaHement, ,DB is eYQandinH its outreacI activities to 
raise awareness oG tIe Ginancial industry sˏ role in sustainable develoQment� In 2020, ,DB steQQed uQ to 
taLe on several leadersIiQ roles at tIe &Ruator 1rinciQles "ssociation, a HrouQ oG more tIan 110 &Ruator 
1rinciQles 'inancial Institutions 	&1'Is
 Grom 3� countries� SQeciGically, durinH tIe Qeriod between tIe 
oGGicial release 	/ovember 2019
 and launcI 	0ctober 2020
 oG &Ruator 1rinciQles �, ,DB contributed in 
maLinH a smootI transition Qrocess� Relevant worL includes overseeinH tIe develoQment and uQdate 
oG tIe &1s Huidance documents, and resQondinH to reRuests oG &1'Is to IelQ maintain consistency and 
robustness oG &1s aQQlication�
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Issuance of USD-denominated Social Bonds  
(Covid-19 Response Bonds)
6Qon HrowinH demand Gor Ginancial suQQort to economic sectors adversely aGGected by tIe $ovid�19 crisis, 
in 0ctober 2020 ,DB issued its inauHural Social Bond Gor 6SD �00 million witI a tenor oG 3 years 	0��0� 
Q�a�
� 1roceeds were used Gor QrovidinH Ginancial suQQort to eliHible social QroKects GallinH under� 	1
 -oans 
to S.&s and�or Small 0GGices � )ome 0GGices 	S0)0s
 in ˑreHions severely damaHed by tIe Qandemic˒ 
witIin tIe sQecial disaster [ones as desiHnated by tIe Hovernment or areas witIin a Qrovince or a city 
wIere tIe number oG accumulated $ovid�19 cases eRual or eYceed 1,000 and 	2
 -oans to S.&s and�or 
S0)0s in ˑtIe most adversely aGGected industries˒ sucI as wIolesale and retail, transQortation, tourism, 
and accommodation, amonH otIers�

Case 2.

Issuance of foreign currency-denominated Green Bonds
Since tIe issuance oG tIe inauHural Hreen bond in 201�, ,DB Ias continued its commitment to IelQ 
Ginance environmentally sustainable and socially resQonsible businesses tIrouHI conseRuent oGGerinHs 
oG Hreen bonds� So Gar, ,DB Ias issued Gour Hreen bonds in tIe international marLet, raisinH a total oG 
6SD 1�9 billion, tIe Qroceeds oG wIicI were allocated 	to be allocated
 to QroKects related to renewable 
enerHy and�or clean transQortation� 

Case 3.

Socially Responsible Financing

Allocation of the Proceeds from KDB Green Bond 	6nit� 6SD million


Issue Size Use of Proceeds Allocated Amount to 
Eligible Assets

���� 6SD 300mn Renewable &nerHy � $lean 
5ransQortation

5o be allocated

���� 6SD �00mn Renewable &nerHy � $lean 
5ransQortation

6SD ���mm

���� &6R �00mn Renewable &nerHy 6SD ��1mm

���� 6SD 300mn Renewable &nerHy 6SD ��2mm

Allocation of the proceeds from Social Bonds  	6nit� 6SD million


Project Category Loan Amount No. of Borrower Loan Amount per 
Borrower 

(USD thousand)

&ligible 4ocial 1roKect � ��� ��1 ��0

&ligible 4ocial 1roKect � 93 1�3 �3�

5otal ��9 1,03� ���

:ear 2021 will be a critical Kuncture in ,DB sˏ sustainability Qractices, as it Qlans to strenHtIen Hovernance 
around emerHinH &�S risLs and oQQortunities� SQeciGically, tIe BanL will establisI a new deQartment 
dedicated to tacLlinH sustainability cIallenHes, taLinH on tIe Qrimary role oG mainstreaminH 
sustainability into tIe institutional aHenda and eYQandinH tIe QortGolio oG Hreen Ginancial Qroducts and 
services� 5Iese actions aim to brinH tIe conceQt oG ˑbeinH a resQonsible banL˒ closer to tIe Ieart oG 
,DB sˏ institutional culture and act as tIe drivinH Gorce beIind continued HrowtI�
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Case 5. 

,now
ledHe SIarinH

Socially Responsible Financing
$om

m
unity )ealinH

Issuance of KRW-denominated Social Bonds
In .ay 2020, ,DB issued a ,R8 1 trillion social bond in two trancIes, one Gor ,R8 �00 billion witI a tenor 
oG two years 	1�09� Q�a�
 and tIe otIer Gor ,R8 200 billion witI a tenor oG Give years 	1�39� Q�a�
� 5Ie 
BanL GulGilled its social resQonsibility by QrovidinH Ginancial suQQort to comQanies witI low credit ratinHs 
adversely aGGected by tIe $ovid�19 crisis and comQanies wIicI contributed to Kob creation�

"s tIe leadinH Qolicy banL in ,orea, ,DB will continue to eYQlore and imQlement various ways to GulGill 
its social resQonsibility by QrovidinH Ginance solutions to resQond to national crises and suQQort tIe 
Hovernment sˏ Qolicy to Qromote social values�

Case 4. 

$orporate4ocialResponsibility

Social Impacts 	6nit� ,R8 billion


Standard 
business code

Total amount 
issued

Allocated amount  
(as of December, 2020)

Areas supported

Job creation 
(companies that 

created jobs)

Basic service 
(companies with low 

credit rating

KR������(A�� �00 �00 19� 20�

KR������(A�� 200 200 92 10�

KR������(A�� �00 �00 �00 �

Case 6. Strengthening the social responsibility of policy finance
,DB also manaHed a wide ranHe oG Ginancial QroHrams in 2020 to Qromote socially resQonsible GinancinH 
and a balanced HrowtI across tIe society�

Issuance of KRW-denominated Green Bonds
In SeQtember 2020, ,DB issued a Hreen bond witI a maturity oG 3 years, wortI ,R8 200 billion 	1�0� 
Q�a�
 to suQQort low�carbon Hreen QroKects involvinH renewable enerHy 	e�H�, solar Qower Heneration
 
and eco�Griendly transQortation 	e�H�, eco�Griendly sIiQs and railways
� &ver since issuinH its inauHural 
,R8�denominated Hreen bond 	,R8 300 billion
 and social bond 	,R8 300 billion
 in 201�, tIe BanL Ias 
GreRuently issued &S( bonds and Qlayed a Ley role as an &S( marLet maLer in tIe ,orean marLet� "lso, 
,DB comQleted an eYternal veriGication on its Qost�issuance reQorts to imQrove tIe bond sˏ transQarency 
and investor conGidence wIile QreventinH &S( wasIinH�� By doinH so, tIe BanL establisIed its Qosition as 
a marLet leader in ,R8�denominated &S( bonds, contributinH to tIe Rualitative HrowtI oG tIe &S( bond 
marLet in ,orea� 

Case 5.

Allocation of the proceeds from Green Bonds 	6nit� ,R8 100 million


Standard 
business code

Total amount 
issued

Allocation  
(as of December, 2020)

Areas supported

Renewable energy  
(solar power energy)

Eco-friendly transportation

Railway Eco-friendly 
ship

KR������(A�� 2,000 2,000 ��� ��� ���

�  " QIenomenon wIere Gunds are classiGied as &S( bonds even tIouHI tIe Gunds raised Grom &S( bonds are not used Gor tIeir 
intended QurQose�
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Socially Responsible Financing

&Ypansion of the .utual (rowth Fund
5Ie .utual (rowtI 'und was launcIed in .ay 2011 to Qrovide loans to S.&s and .&s at a QreGerential 
rate by miYinH ,DB sˏ Ginancial resources and deQosits Grom larHe comQanies witI wIom ,DB siHned an 
aHreement to Qromote mutual HrowtI witI S.& Qartners� "s oG end oG 2020, 19 Gunds were in oQeration, 
witI total amount under manaHement standinH at ,R8 11 trillion, wIicI included a ,R8 1�0 billion -( 
$Iemical�,DB mutual HrowtI Gund and a ,R8 1�� billion )yundai .otors�,DB mutual HrowtI Gund, 
botI newly added in 2020� 

KDB
Large  

companies

Mutual Growth Fund Overview & summary

SecurinH Ginancial resources
	DeQosits Grom larHe comQanies 

�,DB sˏ Ginancial resources


��

RecommendinH  
comQanies

��

SiHninH a  
win�win HrowtI 

aHreement

��
Companies in  
cooperative  
relationship

1ayment oG QrinciQal  
and interest

��

-oan initiation  
	interest rate reduction


��

4pecial -oan 1rograms for social enterprises and Kob creation
5IrouHI manaHinH sQecial loans Gor social enterQrises and Kob creation, ,DB strenHtIened suQQort Gor 
GacilitatinH emQloyment by S.&s and .&s and Qrovided additional resources to social enterQrises�

Special loan programs

Socially responsible businesses SuQQorts social enterQrises and eco�Griendly comQanies

Job-creating companies SuQQorts Kob creation and stronHer Kob security

Regional economies SuQQorts comQanies tIat are located in or Iave relocated to reHional areas

	6nit� ,R8 billion


2017 2018 2019 ����

5he number of funds 12 13 1� ��

Fund size �01 �33 ��2 �
���

Disbursement �2� �09 ��� ���

/o. of beneficiaries 21� 2�� 23� ���
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KDB has carried out community services based on four key 
themes – (1) neighborhood, (2) education, (3) culture, and 
(4) nation. In 2020, as a means of preventing the spread 
of Covid-19, the Bank provided its community services 
in a remote basis, making donations and delivering daily 
necessities and disinfectant products, among others, while 
avoiding on-site volunteer activities.
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ledHe SIarinH
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$orporate4ocialResponsibility
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4upport for people living in welfare blind spots
,DB runs a QroHram Gor tIe underQrivileHed by identiGyinH vulnerable HrouQs in welGare blind sQots tIat 
desQerately need Ginancial suQQort, but are not entitled to receive sucI beneGits� In 2020, tIrouHI tIe 
QroHram, tIe BanL made tarHeted suQQort to victims oG crime desiHnated by tIe Qolicy autIority and to 
artists adversely aGGected by $ovid�19�

Kimchi sharing
&very year since 200�, ,DB and tIe Seoul $ity 8omenˏs Society Iave worLed toHetIer to deliver 
LimcIi to neiHIbors in need, esQecially QeoQle wIo live alone� In 2020, ,DB Qrovided LimcIi to 1,200 
marHinali[ed IouseIolds in Seoul and welGare Gacilities� 5o Qrevent tIe sQread oG $ovid�19, instead oG 
deliverinH selG�made LimcIi, LimcIi was QurcIased Grom social enterQrises�

Regular sharing events
In QartnersIiQ witI tIe :eonHdeunHQo Senior 8elGare $enter, ,DB visits elderly QeoQle livinH alone 
to deliver rice and otIer daily necessities, as well as Hoods needed to stay warm durinH tIe winter� 
5Ie BanL also taLe Qart in a wide ranHe oG volunteer activities includinH tIe Qrovision oG Gree meals, 
Ginancial donations, IoldinH sQecial activities on maKor national Iolidays sucI as lunar new year sˏ day 
or ,orean tIanLsHivinH, as well as GundraisinH and volunteerinH activities involvinH all emQloyees at 
tIe end oG eacI year� 

Blood donation campaign
,DB runs a blood donation camQaiHn encouraHinH all emQloyees to QarticiQate, witI tIe aim oG IelQinH 
Qediatric Qatients witI leuLemia� In 2020, instead oG IoldinH conventional blood donation camQaiHns, 
tIe BanL carried out a certiGicate delivery camQaiHn to Qrevent tIe sQread oG $ovid�19� 

ˑFlower bucket challenge˒ campaign
,DB delivered Glower basLets and HiGts to welGare Gacilities and volunteers at tIe Grontlines oG ,oreaˏs 
Ruarantine eGGorts wIile also eYtendinH a IelQinH Iand to tIe Gloral industry Iit by tIe $ovid�19 crisis�

&mployee donations
,DB collects tIe last Gour diHits Grom emQloyeesˏ montIly QaycIecL, less tIan ,R810,000 Qer emQloyee, 
and donates tIe sum in tIe Gorm oG scIolarsIiQs and Ginancial suQQort to low�income and sinHle�Qarent 
IouseIolds�

Neighborhood
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Education
,DB Qrovided a career develoQment QroHram Gor teenaHers Grom low�income Gamilies GacinH diGGiculties 
cIoosinH tIeir career QatI� 5Ie BanL also suQQorted various symQosiums and conGerences tIat study toQics 
related to overcominH tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic and QromotinH tIe develoQment oG Ginance in ,orea�

Culture
,DBˏs diverse .ecenat activities brinH culture, arts, and sQorts closer to tIe Qublic� 5Ie BanL also 
sQonsors a wide ranHe oG arts and cultural events wIile maLinH oQQortunities Gor less QoQular Gorms oG art� 
In 2020, tIe BanL sQonsored tIe +oint $oncert, wIere artists witI disabilities Ield a concert toHetIer witI 
an orcIestra, creatinH oQQortunities Gor sucI artist to QerGorm on staHe�

Nation
2020 marLed tIe 1�tI anniversary oG ,DBˏs ˑ0ne�$omQany�Gor�0ne�7illaHe˒ camQaiHn� 5IrouHI tIe 
camQaiHn, tIe BanL Iosted events to Qromote tIe QurcIase oG local Qroduce� ,DB also runs tIe ˑ0ne�
$omQany�Gor�0ne�1latoon˒ camQaiHn, QrovidinH Ginancial suQQort to tIe ,orean armed Gorces�

$orporate4ocialResponsibility
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Since its establisIment in 200�, tIe ,DB 'oundation runs QroKects in tIree areas � socially resQonsible Ginance, 
community service, and talent develoQment� 5Ie Goundation aims to identiGy blind sQots in tIe country sˏ 
welGare system and establisI a Qolicy Goundation tIrouHI QreemQtive and strateHic intervention� " total oG 10 
QroKects are currently in QroHress reGlectinH ,DB sˏ commitment to sustainable Ginance�

5Ie :outI Start�uQ SuQQort 1roKect and tIe Social &nterQrise SuQQort 1roKect are maLinH botI direct and 
indirect contributions to ,orea sˏ Kob marLet� 5Ie :outI Start�uQ SuQQort 1roKect, wIicI consists oG ,DB Start�
uQ 1roHram and ,DB Start�uQ &ducation 1roHram, aims to build a start�uQ ecosystem Gor new HrowtI industry 
by discoverinH and GosterinH younH entreQreneurs� 

In 2020, a total oG �01 teams aQQlied Gor tIe ,DB StartuQ 1roHram, a substantial rise Grom ��� in 2019, witI 
2� teams maLinH it to tIe semi�Ginal round� 5Ie selected teams received QroGessional suQQort and traininH, 
includinH mentorinH and oQQortunities to Het access to venture caQital� Seven teams Qassed tIe Ginal round 
and received a total oG ,R8 1�0 million in seed caQital, toHetIer witI otIer Gollow�uQ suQQort� 

5Ie ,DB Start�uQ &ducation 1roHram is beinH oGGered as Qart oG a reHular university course, witI a total oG 1,0�� 
colleHe students Grom 1� universities QarticiQatinH in tIe QroHram to date� 5Ie QroHram aims to sQread a start�
uQ culture amonH ,orea sˏ colleHe students wIile GunctioninH as a steQQinH stone Gor identiGyinH start�uQs in 
tIeir early staHes� 

5IrouHI tIe :outI Start�uQ SuQQort 1roKect, 1�� start�uQ teams were selected Grom 2013 to 2020� 0ut oG 
tIe 131 teams tIat aQQlied Gor tIe QroKect as oG 2019, 103 teams manaHed to successGully start tIeir own 
ventures, creatinH 1,��0 Kobs and ,R8 �9 billion in revenues� ,DB also Qrovided a mid� to lonH�term Gollow�uQ 
suQQort, allowinH tIe ventures to QarticiQate in IR activities and incubation QroHrams in connection witI ,DB sˏ 
/eYtRound and /eYt0ne QlatGorms�

5Ie ,DB Social &nterQrise SuQQort 1roKect was establisIed witI tIe Hoal oG discoverinH comQetent social 
enterQrises, QrovidinH emQloyment oQQortunities to tIe socially vulnerable, and buildinH uQ relevant 
inGrastructure� In 2020 alone, tIe QroKect Ias Qrovided suQQort to 10 social enterQrises� 5Ie QroKect not 
only Qrovided Ginancial suQQort but also Ias IelQed tIe enterQrises build a sustainable business model by 
QrovidinH consultinH comQosed oG QroGessional mentor HrouQs� 6nliLe otIer Qublic Qrivate suQQort initiatives, 
tIe QroKect beneGiciaries are allowed to QurcIase Qroduction Gacilities witI tIe Gunds tIey receive, enablinH 
tIem to directly receive inGrastructure suQQort� 8itI tIe IelQ oG tIe mentorinH QroHram, comQanies can secure 
steady revenue streams tIrouHI new Qroduct develoQment, )"$$1 certiGication, reHistration oG Qatents, and 
eYQansion oG online and oGGline sales cIannels� 5otal oG �� social enterQrises Iave received GundinH Grom 201� 
to 2020, and QarticiQants to tIe QroHram contributed to tIe creation oG 12� Kobs Gor tIe vulnerable, includinH 
tIose witI disabilities, wIile also reali[inH increase in sales�

KDB Foundation
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KDB willingly shares its development finance 
experience, accumulated over many years as 
the leading policy bank of Korea, with other 
developing countries.

$orporate4ocialResponsibility
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KDB Experience Sharing Program
,DB was initially establisIed witI tIe obKective oG reconstructinH tIe ,orean economy Grom tIe ravaHes 
oG war, and Ias since driven ,oreaˏs sustainable HrowtI by develoQinH and nurturinH Ley industries 
and QrovidinH Gunds to stabili[e tIe Ginancial marLets as a develoQment banL� 5Ie BanL establisIed 
cooQerative relationsIiQs witI develoQinH countries and Qromoted mutual HrowtI by sIarinH its 
business eYQerience and Lnow�Iow on develoQment Ginance, wIicI it Ias accumulated in tIe Qrocess oG 
,orea sˏ economic develoQment�

In 2020, ,DB establisIed tIe ˑ,DB &YQerience SIarinH 1roHram˒ wIicI Qrovides an overview on 
develoQment Ginance and cIanHes in ,DB sˏ roles in resQonse to Hovernment Qolicies over tIe ,orean 
Iistory� 5Ie QroHram Ias been utili[ed as a tool Gor QrovidinH customi[ed develoQment Ginance 
consultation to Hovernment aHencies and Ginancial institutions in develoQinH countries� 5Ie QroHram 
enabled various cooQerative QroKects by sIarinH ,DB sˏ develoQment Ginance Lnow�Iow tIrouHI online 
lectures�

'or 2021, ,DB will continue to strenHtIen cooQeration witI international Ginancial orHani[ations and 
eYQand cooQerative QroKects on develoQment Ginance, incorQoratinH tIe needs oG Hovernments and 
Ginancial institutions in tIe develoQinH countries� In addition, it will deeQen and GurtIer develoQ its 
develoQment Ginance model by strenHtIeninH tIe researcI on areas oG interest Gor develoQinH countries 
sucI as tIe role oG develoQment Ginance amid cIanHinH environments and ways oG suQQortinH S.&s�

KDB Development Finance Model

$orporation

4.&s

4tart�ups

Insolvent Firm

Government

Financial 
Market

4ustained &conomic (rowth
Financial .arket 4tability

Industrial Development � (rowth

Regional Development40$

National Economy

National Economy

.anagement � )R

Risk .anagement � I5 etc.

KR8 
Funding  

v  
Foreign 

$urrency 
Funding

$orporate Banking

Innovation � (rowth Finance

$apital .arket Finance

$orporate Restructuring

'u
nd

in
H

'u
nd

 Su
QQ

ly 
� 

.
nH

m
t

$ontinuous 0versiHIt � SuQervisory



FINANCIAL 
REVIEW

074 Management’s Discussion & Analysis

081 Independent Auditors’ Report

082  Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

083 Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

085 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

086 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

088  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements



��� ,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5

5Ie 2020 Ginancial statements QreQared by ,DB conGorm to ,orean International 'inancial ReQortinH Standards 
	,�I'RS
� ,�I'RS reGers to ,orea sˏ adoQtion oG tIe standards and interQretations released by tIe International 
"ccountinH Standards Board 	I"SB
� 5Ie 2020 Ginancial statements oG ,DB cover Ginancial QerGormance Grom 
+anuary 1 to December 31 oG tIe year, and tIe Ginancial GiHures in tIis .anaHementˏs Discussion � "nalysis 
	.D�"
, unless sQeciGied, otIerwise, are based on consolidated Ginancial statements�

In 2020, tIe Hlobal economy witnessed unQrecedented contraction due to tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic� 8orld 
outQut Gell 3�3� year�on�year accordinH to tIe International .onetary 'und 	I.'
, worse tIan tIe �0��� HrowtI 
durinH tIe 2009 (lobal 'inancial $risis, reGlectinH tIe serious nature oG tIe Qandemic� Due to tIe worldwide 
Ruarantine measures includinH locLdowns and social distancinH, trade and commerce was restricted, drivinH 
down tIe total Hlobal trade volume� 5Ie service sector, in Qarticular, was Iit Iardest by $ovid�19�

"midst tIe Hlobal Qandemic, tIe ,orean economy also sIowed a neHative HrowtI oG �1�0�� 0verall consumQtion 
Gell 2�3� year�on�year Qrimarily due to a sIarQ decrease in consumer demand and overall contraction oG tIe 
trade volume� InGlation rate Gor tIe year recorded 0��� comQared to 0��� in tIe Qrevious year� $urrent account 
surQlus rose to 6SD ���3 billion in 2020 Grom 6SD �9�� billion in 2019, mostly due to decrease in imQorts witI 
botI eYQorts and imQorts sIowinH a decline Grom tIe Qrevious year� 

5Ie combined net income oG tIe ,orean banLinH industry in 2020 was ,R8 12�3 trillion comQared to ,R8 
13�9 trillion in 2019, based on Qreliminary GiHures QublisIed by tIe 'inancial SuQervisory Service� 5Iis was 
mainly attributable to increases in imQairment losses and sellinH, Heneral and administrative eYQenses� 8itI 
HrowinH eYQectations tIat tIe $ovid�19 crisis will not end in tIe near Guture, banLs in Heneral adoQted a more 
conservative aQQroacI in calculatinH tIeir loan loss Qrovisions�

In 2020, ,DB Qlayed a maKor role in stabili[inH tIe marLet as one oG tIe Ley Qolicy banLs oG ,orea� 5Ie BanL 
Qroactively QarticiQated in tIe Hovernmentˏs stimulus QacLaHe wortI over ,R8 1�� trillion by manaHinH tIe 
$aQital .arLet Stabili[ation 1roHram, amonH otIers, witI ,DBˏs sIare amountinH to ,R8 �9�9 trillion or one�
tIird oG tIe total stimulus QacLaHe� 5Ie BanL also launcIed sQecial loan Qroducts esQecially desiHned to suQQort 
comQanies aGGected by tIe $ovid�19 crisis and Qrovided Ginancial suQQort wortI ,R8 ���2 trillion to S.&s and .&s�

.oreover, ,DB Hreatly contributed to tIe Gormation oG a Qositive ecosystem Gor innovative start�uQs in ,orea� 
Since its inauHuration in 201�, tIe ˑ,DB /eYtRound˒ continues to be a success as an investment QlatGorm 
linLinH QromisinH start�uQs witI Qotential investors and venture caQital comQanies at Iome and abroad� 5Ie 
BanL GurtIer eYQanded on tIe investment QlatGorm by launcIinH ˑ/eYtRise˒ in 2019, wIicI is a start�uQ Gair and 
ˑ,DB /eYt0/&˒ in 2020, a QlatGorm Gor nurturinH start�uQs�

5Ie BanL also continued its eGGorts to Qromote its overseas oQerations and strenHtIen IB business in tIe 
international marLets� ,DB eYQanded its overseas networL by establisIinH a new subsidiary, 15 ,DB 5iGa 'inance 
5bL, in Indonesia and Gocused on Ley strateHic areas oG SoutIeast "sia� 5Ie BanL also strenHtIened its role in tIe 
international marLets by actively identiGyinH and QarticiQatinH in maKor 1' transactions and QrovidinH .�" Ginance�

,DB, as ,orea sˏ reQresentative Ginancial institution witI its stronH caQital adeRuacy, Ias been evaluated and 
recoHni[ed by tIe maKor international credit ratinH aHencies� In 2020, ,DB maintained credit ratinHs oG "a2 Grom 
.oody sˏ, "" Grom S�1 and ""� Grom 'itcI, and its BIS caQital ratio stood at 1��9���

�����3FWJFw
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The Covid-19 crisis is expected to continue in 2021, but the global economy is expected to show signs of 
recovery with the help of stimulus packages rolled out by major economies like the US and Europe. However, 
a global turnaround may be hampered by several risk factors including delay in production and distribution of 
the Covid-19 vaccines, limited policy options due to steep rise in government debt and delayed improvement in 
employment conditions.

According to the IMF’s World Economic Outlook (2021), world output is expected to increase by 6.0% year-on-
year in 2021. The growth rate of advanced economies is projected to grow 5.1% from the previous year, with the 
US expecting to show a higher growth rate of 6.4% while Eurozone (4.4%) and Japan (3.3%) are projected to 
show a slower rate. Major emerging markets, such as China (+8.4%) and India (+12.5%), are expected to show 
fast pace recoveries.

The Bank of Korea’s forecast for Korea’s growth outlook is 3.0% while the IMF’s projection is 3.6%. The Korean 
economy is expected to show a modest recovery thanks mostly to increase in investments and exports, but 
consumer spending is expected to be slower in recovery. Such forecasts are subject to scrutiny since the effect 
and longevity of the Covid-19 crisis is hard to predict, and as is the case with most other countries, Korea’s 
recovery will heavily depend on the success of the Covid-19 vaccine and the overall recovery of the global 
economy.

To overcome the challenges of 2021, KDB has set its business objective at “Global KDB, leading innovation and 
the future of Korea” with the goal of encouraging the growth of new industries, driving the shift in industrial 
paradigm for the future of Korea, as well as invigorating the economy through Covid-19 crisis management. In 
preparing for future economic transitions, the Bank will usher in a low carbon economy by actively supporting 
the K-New Deal through launching public sector-led New Deal Funds and expanding green financing. The Bank 
will also support innovative future industries by identifying and nurturing companies with creative potential 
and promoting a dynamic venture ecosystem within the country. 

Looking ahead to the post Covid-19 era, KDB will continue operating its Capital Market Stabilization Program 
and lead the stabilization of Korea’s financial markets. The Bank will launch financial support programs to 
minimize default risk of corporate clients from rapid surge in their debt due to the pandemic and provide 
tailored solutions to distressed companies and facilitate their recovery. 

Similar to last year, KDB expects a volatile and unpredictable financial environment in 2021. As Korea’s leading 
policy bank, KDB will continue to carry out its market stabilization role based on its strong credit ratings, 
globally competitive financial expertise, and thorough risk management.

2021 Outlook
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,DB recorded a net QroGit oG ,R8 1�9 trillion in 2020, ,R8 1�� trillion more tIan tIe Qrevious year� /et oQeratinH 
revenue increased by 1�3 trillion year�on�year� /et interest income increased by 13��� Grom last year due to an 
increase in interest bearinH assets� /on�interest income also increased by 9�� mainly due to a decrease in cost 
oG construction business �0QeratinH income Gor year 2020 sliHItly decreased by about ,R8 �0 billion mainly 
due to a sIarQ increase in Qrovision Gor credit loss by ,R8 1�� trillion year�on�year in accordance witI tIe BanL 
adoQtinH a conservative aQQroacI in estimatinH tIe Qrobability oG deGault amid tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic� /on�
oQeratinH income recorded ,R8 1,��� billion comQared to tIe loss oG ,R8 ��2 billion in tIe Qrevious year� 5Iis 
was due to Hains in sIare oG QroGit oG investments in associates�

*OcoNF�"OBMZTJT

Summary Statement of Income
	6nit� ,R8 billion


���� ����
$hange

Amount �
/et oQeratinH revenue �
����� 2,����1 1,32��0 �2�0�

/et interest income �
����� 1,3���� 1���� 13���
/on�interest income �
����� 1,1���3 1,13��2 9��3�

1rovision Gor credit losses �
����� 	1�2��
 1,����1 �
(�" eYQenses �
����� 1,�2���  	�2��
 	����

0QeratinH income �
����� 1,1�2�1 	�9��
 	����

/on�oQeratinH income �
������ 	��2�3
 2,�0��1 �
Income taY eYQenses ����� 213�� �03�� 23����
1roGit Gor tIe Qeriod Grom continuinH oQerations �
������ 10��2 2,02��9 1,90����
1roGit Grom discontinued oQerations 	�����
 1�3�0 	3�2�� 
 �
/et QroGit �
����� 2�9�1 1,��2�2 �02���

�  In 2020, ,DB classiGied ,DB -iGe Insurance $o�, -td� as assets and liabilities Ield Gor sale, and QroGit or loss on ,DB -iGe Insurance $o�, -td� as QroGit or 
 loss Grom discontinued oQerations� 5Ie diGGerence in Statement oG Income Gor 2019 Grom tIe Qrevious 'inancial Statements is due to tIe classiGication�

Interest�earninH assets and interest�bearinH liabilities in 2020 increased by 1��9� and 1��3� Grom tIe Qrevious 
year resQectively, to ,R8 1�� trillion and ,R8 20� trillion, wIile tIe yield rate and cost rate decreased by 0��9�Q 
and 0��1�Q to stand at 2�2�� and 1��9� eacI� "s a result, tIe net interest marHin Gor tIe year increased by 
0�03�Q to 0�����

Interest Income and NIM
	6nit� ,R8 billion


���� ����
$hange

Amount �
Interest�earninH assets 	"nnual averaHe balance
 ���
��� 1�0,3�0 2�,0�� 1����

:ield rate 	�
 ���� 3�0� 	0��9�Q

Interest�bearinH liabilities 	"nnual averaHe balance
 ���
��� 1��,��� 2�,11� 1��2�

$ost rate 	�
 ���� 2�30 	0��1�Q

/I. 	�
 ���� 0��2 0�03�Q

� /on�consolidated basis
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"s oG end oG 2020, ,DB sˏ assets amounted to ,R8 30� trillion, uQ 13��� comQared to tIe Qrevious year� 5Iis 
was mainly attributable to an increase in loan outstandinH, wIicI rose by 9��� to ,R8 1�� trillion� 5Ie result 
reGlected tIe BanL sˏ eGGort to overcome tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic by QrovidinH more liRuidity to tIe economy�

,DBˏs liabilities rose by 12�9� year�on�year to record ,R8 2�� trillion, mainly attributable to increases in 
issuance oG bonds to raise Gunds� 5Ie bond outstandinH amount stood at ,R8 1�3 trillion at year�end, uQ 1���� 
year�on�year� ,DB issued more bonds durinH tIe year to Qrovide more loans amid tIe $ovid�19 crisis�

,DBˏs total eRuity stood at ,R8 �1 trillion, uQ 1��9� comQared to tIe Qrevious year� DurinH tIe year, ,DB 
received caQital inKection oG ,R8 2�1 trillion Grom tIe Hovernment to GulGill tIe Hovernment sˏ $ovid�19 Ginancial 
suQQort QroHram wortI ,R8 19�9 trillion� 5Ie drastic increase in accumulated otIer comQreIensive income is 
due to valuation Hain on ).. sˏ QerQetual bond classiGied as securities measured at '70$I�

'JOBOcJBM�4UBUFNFOU

Summarized Statement of Financial Position
	6nit� ,R8 billion


���� ����
$hange

Amount �

ASSETS ���
������ 2��,�39�� 3�,1���� 13���
$asI � due Grom banLs ��
������ �,��1�2 �,033�0 �2�0�
Securities ��
������ ��,1�9�� 	1,�����
 	2�1�

-oans ���
������ 1�9,92��9 1�,����9 9���
0tIer assets ��
������ 32,9�1�� 19,112�� ���0�

LIABILITIES ���
������ 233,��2�� 30,2���� 12�9�
DeQosits ��
������ 3�,31��3 10,����1 29�3�
BorrowinHs ��
������ 2�,9���� 	�2���
 	1���

Bonds ���
������ 12�,20��� 1�,122�� 1����
0tIer liabilities ��
������ ��,2�2�1 1,901�� ��0�

EQUITY ��
������ 3�,0���1 �,912�� 1��9�
Issued caQital ��
������ 1�,��3�1  2,102�� 11�3�
$aQital surQlus �
������ 1,000�� ���3 ����
Retained earninHs ��
������ 10,�����  1,����3 1����
$aQital adKustments ������ 2���0  0�1 0�0�
"ccumulated otIer comQreIensive income �
������ �0�9 2,012�� �,920���
/on�controllinH interests �
������ �,�3��� �3�� 1�2�
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5otal loan outstandinH balance as oG tIe end oG 2020 recorded ,R8 1�� trillion, uQ 11�9� Grom tIe Qrevious 
year� $orQorate loans, wIicI accounted Gor 99� oG tIe total loans, rose by 12�2� year�on�year to ,R8 1�2 
trillion, attributable to a 12��� increase in loans to larHe enterQrises�

Loans
	6nit� ,R8 billion


���� ����
$hange

Amount �

$orQorate loans ���
���� 12�,9�1 1�,��0 12�2 

-arHe enterQrises ���
���� 102,1�� 13,000 12�� 

S.&s ��
���� 2�,�1� 2,��0 9�9 

)ouseIold loans ���� 3�� 	��
 	23�2


1ublic and otIers ���� 1,00� 	��
 	���


5otal loans ���
���� 12�,3�� 1�,29� 11�9 

� /on�consolidated basis

$omQared to last year, ,DB sˏ deQosits increased by 29�3� year�on�year, wIile borrowinHs decreased by 1���� 
Bond outstandinH amounted to ,R8 1�3 trillion, a 1��� � increase Grom tIe Qrevious year� 

Funding
	6nit� ,R8 billion


���� ����
$hange

Amount �

DeQosits ��
��� 3�,31� 10,��� 29�3�

BorrowinHs ��
��� 2�,9�� 	�2�
 	1���


Bonds ���
��� 12�,20� 1�,122 1����



���Financial ReviewIntroduction Sustainability ReviewBusiness Review

"TTFU�2VBMJUZ

5otal credit 	loan outstandinH
 as oG tIe end oG 2020 amounted to ,R8 1�� trillion, uQ ,R8 1� trillion or 
11�9� year�on�year� /1-s moderately increased by 2�3� Grom tIe Qrevious year, wIile /1- Ratio Gell Grom 
2��1� in 2019 to 2���� in 2020�

Due to tIe $ovid�19 Qandemic, ,DB adoQted a conservative aQQroacI in calculatinH its Qrovision Gor credit 
loss� 5Ius, in 2020, loan loss reserve stood at ,R8 ��3 trillion, increasinH by ,R8 0�� trillion or 1����� 5Ie 
sIarQ increase in loan loss reserve resulted in rise oG tIe /1- coveraHe ratio by 1����Q to 121�01��

	6nit� ,R8 billion


���� ����
$hange

Amount �

5otal credit ���
���� 12�,3�� 1�,29� 11�9 

/ormal ���
���� 11�,1�� 1�,�91 1��0 

1recautionary �
���� �,��� 	1,2�3
 	19�0


Sub�standard �
���� 1,9�� 312 1��� 

DoubtGul ���� 221 112 �0�� 

&stimated loss ���� 1,2�� 	3��
 	2��0


Sub�standard and below loans 	/1-
 �
���� 3,��2 �9 2�3 

/1- Ratio ����� 2��1� 	0�23
�Q

-oan loss reserve �
���� 3,��� ��1 1��� 

/1- coveraHe ratio ������� 10��3� 1����Q 

� /on�consolidated basis
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,DB sˏ BIS caQital adeRuacy ratio and 5ier 1 ratio are calculated in accordance witI B"S&- III standards� "s 
oG end oG 2020, tIe resQective ratios stood at 1��9�� and 1��2��, uQ 1�91�Q and 2�13�Q eacI Grom tIe 
Qrevious year� 5Ie BanL sˏ BIS caQital recorded ,R8 �1 trillion sIowinH an increase oG ,R8 � trillion Grom tIe 
Qrevious year, Qartly due to tIe caQital inKection by tIe Hovernment� RisL�weiHIted assets sliHItly increased 
to ,R8 2�2�� trillion Grom ,R8 2�9�1 trillion in 2019�

$BQJUBM�.BOBHFNFOU

Capital Adequacy Ratio and Tier 1 Ratio
	6nit� �


���� ���� $hange (�p)

$aQital adeRuacy ratio ����� 1��0� 1�91

5ier 1 ratio ����� 12�13 2�13

� 5Ie BIS caQital adeRuacy ratio oG ,DB is well maintained above tIe minimum reRuirement oG ���
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5Iis reQort is eGGective as oG .arcI 29, 2021, tIe audit reQort date� $ertain subseRuent events or circumstances, wIicI may occur between tIe audit reQort date and tIe time oG 
readinH tIis reQort, could Iave a material imQact on tIe accomQanyinH consolidated Ginancial statements and notes tIereto� "ccordinHly, tIe readers oG tIe audit reQort sIould 
understand tIat tIere is a Qossibility tIat tIe above audit reQort may Iave to be revised to reGlect tIe imQact oG sucI subseRuent events or circumstances, iG any�

*OdFQFOdFOU�"VdJUorTˏ�3FQorU

5Ie Board oG Directors and SIareIolders
,orea DeveloQment BanL

Opinion
8e Iave audited tIe accomQanyinH consolidated Ginancial statements oG ,orea 
DeveloQment BanL and its subsidiaries 	collectively, tIe ˑ(rouQ˒
, wIicI comQrise 
tIe consolidated statements oG Ginancial Qosition as oG December 31, 2020 and 
2019, and tIe consolidated statements oG comQreIensive income, consolidated 
statements oG cIanHes in eRuity and consolidated statements oG casI Glows Gor tIe 
years tIen ended, and notes to tIe consolidated Ginancial statements, includinH a 
summary oG siHniGicant accountinH Qolicies�

In our oQinion, tIe accomQanyinH consolidated Ginancial statements Qresent Gairly, 
in all material resQects, tIe consolidated Ginancial Qosition oG tIe (rouQ as oG 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its consolidated Ginancial QerGormance and its 
consolidated casI Glows Gor tIe years tIen ended in accordance witI International 
'inancial ReQortinH Standards as adoQted by tIe ReQublic oG ,orea 	ˑ,orean I'RS˒
�

Basis for Opinion
8e conducted our audit in accordance witI ,orean Standards on "uditinH� 0ur 
resQonsibilities under tIose standards are GurtIer described in tIe "uditorˏs 
ResQonsibilities Gor tIe "udit oG tIe $onsolidated 'inancial Statements section 
oG our reQort� 8e are indeQendent oG tIe (rouQ in accordance witI tIe etIical 
reRuirements tIat are relevant to our audit oG tIe consolidated Ginancial statements 
in tIe ReQublic oG ,orea, and we Iave GulGilled our otIer etIical resQonsibilities in 
accordance witI tIese reRuirements� 8e believe tIat tIe audit evidence we Iave 
obtained is suGGicient and aQQroQriate to Qrovide a basis Gor our oQinion

Emphasis of Matter
8e draw attention to /ote 2� 	�
 oG tIe consolidated Ginancial statements� "s described 
in /ote 2� 	�
, tIe Qandemic oG $ovid�19 in 2020 Ias a neHative imQact on tIe Hlobal 
economy and may Iave neHative imQacts on tIe Ginancial Qosition and Ginancial 
QerGormance oG tIe (rouQ� 0ur oQinion is not modiGied in resQect oG tIis matter�

Other Matter 
"uditinH standards and tIeir aQQlication in Qractice vary amonH countries� 5Ie 
Qrocedures and Qractices used in tIe ReQublic oG ,orea to audit sucI Ginancial 
statements may diGGer Grom tIose Henerally acceQted and aQQlied in otIer countries�

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements
.anaHement is resQonsible Gor tIe QreQaration and Gair Qresentation oG tIe 
consolidated Ginancial statements in accordance witI ,orean I'RS, and Gor sucI 
internal control as manaHement determines is necessary to enable tIe QreQaration 
oG consolidated Ginancial statements tIat are Gree Grom material misstatement, 
wIetIer due to Graud or error�

In QreQarinH tIe consolidated Ginancial statements, manaHement is resQonsible Gor 
assessinH tIe (rouQ sˏ ability to continue as a HoinH concern, disclosinH, as aQQlicable, 
matters related to HoinH concern and usinH tIe HoinH concern basis oG accountinH 
unless manaHement eitIer intends to liRuidate tIe (rouQ or to cease oQerations�

5Iose cIarHed witI Hovernance are resQonsible Gor overseeinH tIe (rouQˏs Ginancial 
reQortinH Qrocess�

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
0ur obKectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about wIetIer tIe consolidated 
Ginancial statements as a wIole are Gree Grom material misstatement, wIetIer due 
to Graud or error, and to issue an auditorˏs reQort tIat includes our oQinion� 

Reasonable assurance is a IiHI level oG assurance, but is not a Huarantee tIat an 
audit conducted in accordance witI ,orean Standards on "uditinH will always 
detect a material misstatement wIen it eYists� .isstatements can arise Grom Graud 
or error and are considered material iG, individually or in tIe aHHreHate, tIey could 
reasonably be eYQected to inGluence tIe economic decisions oG users taLen on tIe 
basis oG tIese consolidated Ginancial statements�

"s Qart oG an audit in accordance witI ,orean Standards on "uditinH, we eYercise 
QroGessional KudHment and maintain QroGessional sLeQticism tIrouHIout tIe audit� 
8e also�

˖ IdentiGy and assess tIe risLs oG material misstatement oG tIe consolidated Ginancial 
statements, wIetIer due to Graud or error, desiHn and QerGorm audit Qrocedures 
resQonsive to tIose risLs, and obtain audit evidence tIat is suGGicient and 
aQQroQriate to Qrovide a basis Gor our oQinion� 5Ie risL oG not detectinH a material 
misstatement resultinH Grom Graud is IiHIer tIan Gor one resultinH Grom error, as 
Graud may involve collusion, GorHery, intentional omissions, misreQresentations, or 
tIe override oG internal control�

˖  0btain an understandinH oG internal control relevant to tIe audit in order to 
desiHn audit Qrocedures tIat are aQQroQriate in tIe circumstances, but not Gor 
tIe QurQose oG eYQressinH an oQinion on tIe eGGectiveness oG tIe (rouQˏs internal 
control�

 ˖  &valuate tIe aQQroQriateness oG accountinH Qolicies used and tIe reasonableness 
oG accountinH estimates and related disclosures made by manaHement�

˖ $onclude on tIe aQQroQriateness oG manaHementˏs use oG tIe HoinH concern basis 
oG accountinH and, based on tIe audit evidence obtained, wIetIer a material 
uncertainty eYists related to events or conditions tIat may cast siHniGicant doubt 
on tIe (rouQˏs ability to continue as a HoinH concern� IG we conclude tIat a 
material uncertainty eYists, we are reRuired to draw attention in our auditorˏs 
reQort to tIe related disclosures in tIe consolidated Ginancial statements or, iG sucI 
disclosures are inadeRuate, to modiGy our oQinion� 0ur conclusions are based on 
tIe audit evidence obtained uQ to tIe date oG our auditorˏs reQort� )owever, Guture 
events or conditions may cause tIe (rouQ to cease to continue as a HoinH concern�

 ˖  &valuate tIe overall Qresentation, structure and content oG tIe consolidated 
Ginancial statements, includinH tIe disclosures, and wIetIer tIe consolidated 
Ginancial statements reQresent tIe underlyinH transactions and events in a manner 
tIat acIieves Gair Qresentation�

 ˖  0btain suGGicient aQQroQriate audit evidence reHardinH tIe Ginancial inGormation 
oG tIe entities or business activities witIin tIe (rouQ to eYQress an oQinion on tIe 
consolidated Ginancial statements� 8e are resQonsible Gor tIe direction, suQervision 
and QerGormance oG tIe (rouQ audit� 8e remain solely resQonsible Gor our audit 
oQinion�

8e communicate witI tIose cIarHed witI Hovernance reHardinH, amonH otIer matters, 
tIe Qlanned scoQe and timinH oG tIe audit and siHniGicant audit GindinHs, includinH any 
siHniGicant deGiciencies in internal control tIat we identiGy durinH our audit�

Seoul, ,orea
.arcI 29, 2021

Based on a reQort oriHinally issued in ,orean
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Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

3 
 

(In millions of won) Notes 
December 
 31, 2020  

December 
 31, 2019 

$ssets   

Cash and due from banks 4,41,49,50,53  W 11,794,237   7,761,244
Securities measured at F97P/ 5,49,50,53 10,262,829   13,291,845
Securities measured at F92CI 6,41,49,50,53 34,920,659   31,992,665
Securities measured at amorti]ed cost 7,41,49,50,53 2,120,469   5,551,600
/oans measured at F97P/ 8,49,50,53 1,434,514   605,077
/oans measured at amorti]ed cost 9,43,49,50,53 163,151,289   149,321,851
Derivative financial assets 10,49,50,51,53 8,322,250   5,406,004
Investments in associates 11,52 29,228,487   27,343,738
Property and equipment, net 12,52 1,967,320   2,535,271
Investment property, net 13,52 460,737   525,009
Intangible assets, net 14,52 707,940   883,450
Deferred ta[ assets 39 780,569   955,669
Current ta[ assets 38,066   86,722
2ther assets 15,49,50,53 10,939,005   12,062,635
Assets held for sale 16 28,868,107  10,516,884

Total assets  W 304,996,478  268,839,664

 
   

/iabilities   

Financial liabilities measured at F97P/ 17,49,50,53  W 1,694,957 2,465,541
Deposits 18,49,50,53 46,961,355 36,315,343
BorroZings 19,49,50,53 24,542,788 24,968,407
Debentures 20,49,50,53 143,329,298 125,206,809
Derivative financial liabilities 10,49,50,51,53 6,166,011 4,184,604
Policy reserves 21  � 16,763,825
Defined benefit liabilities 22 251,494 303,414
Provisions 23 966,706 997,644
Deferred ta[ liabilities 39 4,395,128 3,177,800
Current ta[ liabilities 70,898 189,664
2ther liabilities 24,49,50,53 11,477,150 13,206,875
/iabilities held for sale 16 24,151,170 5,982,675

Total liabilities 264,006,955  233,762,601

(Continued)

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, Continued 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 
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(In millions of won) Notes 
December 
 31, 2020   

December  
 31, 2019 

Equity   

Issued capital 25 W 20,765,729  18,663,099
Capital surplus 25 1,055,888  1,000,599
Capital adjustment 25 278,051  278,039
Accumulated other comprehensive income 25 2,053,511  40,936
Retained earnings 25 12,347,088 10,658,792

(Regulatory reserve for credit losses of W1,175,456 million and W1,257,673 
million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively)

(Required reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses of  
W672,712 million and W82,217 million as of December 31, 2020 and  
2019,respectively)  

(Planned reversal of regulatory reserve for credit losses of  
W672,712 million and W82,217 million as of December 31, 2020 and  
2019,respectively) 

 

 
Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 36,500,267 30,641,465
Non-controlling interests 46 4,489,256 4,435,598
Total equity 40,989,523  35,077,063
Total liabilities and equity  W 304,996,478 268,839,664
 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.   

December 31, 2020 and 2019

$oOToMJdBUFd�4UBUFNFOUT�oG�'JOBOcJBM�1oTJUJoO
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries



���Introduction Sustainability ReviewBusiness Review Financial Review

:ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

$oOToMJdBUFd�4UBUFNFOUT�oG�$oNQrFIFOTJWF�*OcoNF
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income  
<ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

5 

(In millions of won, except earnings per share information) Notes 2020  2019 
&ontinuing operations�   

Interest income 26 W 4,876,178  5,567,136
Interest e[pense 26 (3,309,613)  (4,188,355)
Net interest income 1,566,565  1,378,781

   
1et fees and commission income 27 360,514  419,151 
Dividend income 28 285,583  287,211 
1et gain on securities measured at F97P/ 29 93,387  375,555 
1et gain (loss) on financial instruments designated at F97P/ 30 33,026  (6,760)
1et gain on securities measured at F92CI 31 86,681  99,051 
1et gain (loss) on securities measured at amorti]ed cost 32 (4,381)  319 
1et gain (loss) on derivatives 33 479,889  (301,125)
1et foreign currency transaction loss 34 (196,177)  (45,336)
2ther operating income (e[pense), net 35 1,165,008  339,239 
Non-interest income, net 2,303,530  1,167,305

   
3roYision for�reYersal of� credit losses 36 1,313,463  (162,563)
   
*eneral and administratiYe e[penses 37 1,454,088  1,526,552
   
2perating income 1,102,544  1,182,097
   
1et gain (loss) related to investments in associates 11 1,899,247  (816,764)
2ther non�operating income 38 97,602  309,869
2ther non�operating e[pense 38 (251,044)  (355,373)
Non-operating income �e[pense�, net 1,745,805  (862,268)
   
3rofit before income ta[es 2,848,349  319,829
   
,ncome ta[ e[penses 39 717,220  213,664
   
3rofit for the year from continuing operations 2,131,129  106,165
   

Discontinued operations�   
3rofit �loss� from discontinued operations 16 (169,782)  172,982
   

3rofit for the year 25 W 1,961,347  279,147
(Profit for the year adjusted for regulatory reserve for credit losses� 

W2,634,059 million and W361,364 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively)   

(Continued)
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:ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, Continued 
<ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

6 

(In millions of won, except earnings per share information) Notes 2020  2019
2ther comprehensiYe income for the year, net of ta[ 25   

,tems that are or may be reclassified subsequently to profit 
or loss�   

1et gain on securities measured at F92CI W 1,737  14,590
Share of other comprehensive income (loss) of associates (21,200)  17,912
([change differences on translation of foreign operations (207,798)  (13,703)
9aluation gain (loss) on cash floZ hedge (1,495)  538
1et gain on hedges of net investments in foreign operations 31,492  4,015
2thers (66,608)  25,687

 (263,872)  49,039
,tems will not be reclassified to profit or loss�   
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities 39,124  (39,745)
Fair value changes on financial liabilities designated at fair 
value due to credit risk (1,188)  (7,759)

1et gain on securities measured at F92CI 2,127,151  15,017
Share of other comprehensive loss of associates (2,902)  (3,193)

 2,162,185  (35,680)
 1,898,313  13,359
Total comprehensiYe income for the year W 3,859,660  292,506
   
3rofit attributable to�   

2Zners of the parent 25 W 1,845,056  275,466
1on�controlling interests 116,291  3,681
Profit for the year W 1,961,347  279,147

   
Total comprehensiYe income attributable to�   

2Zners of the parent W 3,812,849  312,009
1on�controlling interests 46,811  (19,503)
7otal comprehensive income for the year W 3,859,660  292,506

   
Earnings per share�   

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Zon) 40 W 468  74
   
Earnings per share from continuing operations�   

Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Zon) 40 W 510  9
   

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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$oOToMJdBUFd�4UBUFNFOUT�oG�$IBOHFT�JO�&RVJUZ
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in (quity 
<ears ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

7 
See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

(In millions of won) 

$ttributable to owners of the parent    

,ssued 
capital  

&apital 
surplus 

&apital 
adMustment

$ccumulated 
other 

comprehensiYe 
income 

5etained 
earnings Total  

Non-
controlling 

interests Total equity
  

%alance at -anuary 1, 2019 W 18,108,099   813,820 316,429 24,710 10,518,889 29,781,947   4,471,499 34,253,446 
      
&hanges in accounting policy �  � � � (65) (65) (42) (107)
     
5estated balance at -anuary 1, 

2019 18,108,099  813,820 316,429 24,710 10,518,824 29,781,882  4,471,457 34,253,339
Profit for the year  �  � � � 275,466 275,466  3,681 279,147
1et gain (loss) on securities 

measured at F92CI  �  � � (2,762) 20,317 17,555  12,052 29,607
Share of other comprehensive 

income (loss) of associates  �  � � 16,527 � 16,527 (1,808) 14,719
([change differences on 

translation of foreign operations �  � � 8,506 � 8,506  (22,209) (13,703)
9aluation gain (loss) on cash floZ 

hedge �  � � 680 � 680  (142) 538
1et gain on hedges of net 

investments in foreign operations �  � � 4,015 � 4,015  � 4,015
Remeasurements of defined 

benefit liabilities �  � � (14,659) � (14,659)  (25,086) (39,745)
Fair value changes on financial 

liabilities designated at fair value 
due to credit risk �  � � (7,759) � (7,759) � (7,759)

2thers  �  � � 11,678 � 11,678   14,009 25,687
Total comprehensiYe income 

for the year �  � � 16,226 295,783 312,009  (19,503) 292,506
     
Dividends    �  � � � (144,865) (144,865)  � (144,865)
Paid�in capital increase  555,000  (2,673) � � � 552,327  � 552,327
Acquisition on � disposal of 

interest in subsidiaries Zhile 
maintain control   �  189,452 (38,390) � (10,950) 140,112  (16,356) 123,756

Transaction with owners 555,000  186,779 (38,390) � (155,815) 547,574  (16,356) 531,218
     
%alance at December 31, 2019 W 18,663,099  1,000,599 278,039 40,936 10,658,792 30,641,465  4,435,598 35,077,063

  
%alance at -anuary 1, 2020 W 18,663,099  1,000,599 278,039 40,936 10,658,792 30,641,465  4,435,598 35,077,063
      
&hanges in accounting policy �  � � 9,847 (9,847) �  6,333 6,333
     
5estated balance at -anuary 1, 

2020 18,663,099  1,000,599 278,039 50,783 10,648,945 30,641,465  4,441,931 35,083,396
Profit for the year �  � � � 1,845,056 1,845,056  116,291 1,961,347
1et gain (loss) on securities 

measured at F92CI  �  � � 2,163,279 (34,935) 2,128,344  544 2,128,888
Share of other comprehensive loss 

of associates  �  � � (14,405) � (14,405) (9,697) (24,102)
([change differences on 

translation of foreign operations  �  � � (167,856) � (167,856) (39,942) (207,798)
9aluation loss on cash floZ hedge  �  � � (1,247) � (1,247) (248) (1,495)
1et gain on hedges of net 

investments in foreign operations  �  � � 31,492 � 31,492  � 31,492
Remeasurements of defined 

benefit liabilities �  � � 14,251 � 14,251  24,873 39,124
Fair value changes on financial 

liabilities designated at fair value 
due to credit risk �  � � (1,188) � (1,188) � (1,188)

2thers �  � � (21,598) � (21,598) (45,010) (66,608)
Total comprehensiYe income for 

the year  �  � � 2,002,728 1,810,121 3,812,849  46,811 3,859,660
    

Dividends  �  � � � (111,978) (111,978) � (111,978)
Paid�in capital increase  2,102,630  (10,105) � � � 2,092,525   � 2,092,525
Acquisition on � disposal of 

interest in subsidiaries Zhile 
maintain control  �  65,394 12 � � 65,406   514 65,920

Transaction with owners  2,102,630  55,289 12 � (111,978) 2,045,953  514 2,046,467
    

%alance at December 31, 2020 W 20,765,729  1,055,888 278,051 2,053,511 12,347,088 36,500,267  4,489,256 40,989,523
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(In millions of won) Notes 2020  2019
   

&ash flows from operating actiYities   
Profit for the year W 1,961,347  279,147
Adjustments for�   

Income ta[ e[pense 39 678,000  95,815
Interest income 26 (4,876,178)  (6,081,209)
Interest e[pense 26 3,309,613  4,210,671
Dividend income 28 (285,583)  (300,162)
/oss on valuation of securities measured at F97P/ (67,521)  (352,951)
/oss (gain) on valuation of financial instruments designated at fair 

value through profit or loss (29,187)  6,781
1et gain on securities measured at F92CI (126,304)  (118,184)
1et loss (gain) on securities measured at amorti]ed cost 10,760   (584)
*ain on valuation of loans measured at F97P/ 8 (649,267)  (42,982)
*ain on valuation of derivatives (984,667)  (425,857)
1et loss on fair value hedged items 33 25,346   645,768
/oss (gain) on foreign e[change translation 34 164,040   (18,529)
/oss (gain) on disposal of investments in associates 25,359   (7,218)
Impairment loss on investments in associates 11 34,282   105,007
Share of loss (gain) of associates (1,931,968)  711,294
Provision for loan losses alloZance 9,36 1,231,062   193,286
Provision for due from banks 36 166   42
Reversal of provision for payment guarantees 23,36 (25,365)  (255,114)
Increase of provision for unused commitments 23,36 66,850   39,095
Increase (reversal) of provision for financial guarantee provision 23,36 26,327   (76,426)
Increase (reversal) of laZsuit provision 23 384   (14)
Increase (reversal) of provision for restoration 23 (839)  258
Increase of other provisions 23 73,729   127,207
Increase of provision for other assets 36 14,423   307,680
Defined benefit costs 22 95,303   103,993
Depreciation of property and equipment 12 197,426   194,570
1et loss on property and equipment 105,834   86,251
Depreciation of investment property 13 10,495   10,222
1et loss (gain) on investment property 8,758   (15,846)
Amorti]ation of intangible assets 14 159,396   196,698
1et loss (gain) on intangible assets 59,114   (96,955)
1et loss on assets held for sale 38 5,308   7,210
1et loss (gain) on share capital repayable on demand 35 (13,539)  89,950
/oss (gain) on redemption of debentures 35 136   (12)

 (2,688,307)  (660,245)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities�   

Due from banks (1,770,753)  (1,044,534)
Securities measured at F97P/ 69,437   496,726
/oans measured at F97P/ (180,170)  376,437
/oans measured at amorti]ed cost (16,072,882)  (9,939,553)
Derivative financial instruments 43,433   (56,662)
2ther assets (1,423,151)  1,769,475
Financial liabilities designated at F97P/ 76,378   �
Deposits 10,670,790   2,339,724
Policy reserves 484,782   438,491
Defined benefit liabilities (92,827)  (294,027)
Provisions (140,355)  397,022
2ther liabilities (211,981)  2,280,684
 (8,547,299)  (3,236,217)

Income ta[es paid (351,216)  (287,598)
Interest received 5,078,304   6,110,641
Interest paid (3,653,450)  (4,165,663)
Dividends received 580,611   578,418
Net cash used in operating actiYities W (7,620,010)  (1,381,517)

(Continued) 
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(In millions of won) Notes 2020  2019 
   

&ash flows from inYesting actiYities   
1et, increase in securities measured at F97P/ W (1,389,326)  (197,029)
Disposal of securities measured at F92CI 51,033,727   24,806,162
Acquisition of securities measured at F92CI 6 (58,105,098)  (26,126,057)
Redemption of securities measured at amorti]ed cost 1,367,263   937,578
Acquisition of securities measured at amorti]ed cost 7 (1,957,404)  (747,812)
Disposal of property and equipment 281,085   69,361
Acquisition of property and equipment 12 (72,734)  (208,850)
Disposal of investment property 166   �
Acquisition of investment property 13 (2,327)  (87,533)
Disposal of intangible assets 5,304   19,471
Acquisition of intangible assets 14 (37,722)  (100,774)
Disposal of assets and liabilities held for sale 67,699   63,546
Disposal of investment in associates 723,414   928,043
Acquisition of investments in associates (1,232,808)  (1,292,332)
1et cash floZs by the change of subsidiaries (542,458)  102,636

Net cash used in inYesting actiYities (9,861,219)  (1,833,590)
   
&ash flows from financing actiYities   
Increase in financial liabilities designated at F97P/ 170,000   282,834
Decrease in financial liabilities designated at F97P/ (989,417)  �
Proceeds from borroZings 45,827,695   35,610,506
Repayment of borroZings (45,922,964)  (35,974,505)
Proceeds from issuance of debentures 118,233,416   101,858,078
Repayment of debentures (99,644,885)  (100,142,991)
Repayment of lease liabilities (167,232)  (156,569)
Paid�in capital increase 2,092,525   552,327
Dividends paid (111,978)  (144,865)
Decrease of non�controlling interests  (69,110)  (49,108)

Net cash proYided by financing actiYities 19,418,050  1,835,107
   
Effects from changes in foreign currency e[change rate for cash and cash 

equiYalents held (200,324)  204,372
   
Net increase �decrease� in cash and cash equiYalents 1,736,497  (1,175,628)
   
&ash and cash equiYalents included in assets held for sale (350,709)  (1,082,314)
   
&ash and cash equiYalents at beginning of the year 6,783,466  9,041,408
   
&ash and cash equiYalents at end of the year 47 W 8,169,254  6,783,466
   

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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1�     5eporting Entity 
 
7he accompanying consolidated financial statements comprise Korea Development Bank (³KDB´ or the ³Bank´) 
and its subsidiaries (collectively the ³*roup´)� *eneral information of the Bank and its subsidiaries is stated beloZ�  
 
�1� &ontrolling company 
KDB Zas established on April 1, 1954, in accordance Zith the Korea Development Bank Act to finance and manage 
major industrial projects, in order to e[pedite industrial development and enhance the national economy�  
 
7he Bank is engaged in the banking industry under the Korea Development Bank Act and other applicable statutes, 
and in the fiduciary in accordance Zith the Financial Investment Services and Capital Markets Act�  
 
Korea Finance Corporation (KoFC), the former ultimate parent company, and KDB Financial *roup Inc� 
(KDBF*), the former immediate parent company, Zere established by spin�offs of divisions of the Bank as of 
2ctober 28, 2009� KoFC and KDBF* Zere merged into the Bank, effective as of December 31, 2014� Issued capital 
is W20,765,729 million Zith 4,153,145,768 shares of issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2020 and the 
government of the Republic of Korea oZns 100� of the Bank¶s shares�  
 
7he Bank¶s head office is located in 14, (unhaeng�ro, <eouido�dong, <eongdeungpo�gu, Seoul and its service 
netZork as of December 31, 2020, is as folloZs� 
 
  Domestic 2verseas  
  

+ead 2ffice  Branches Branches Subsidiaries
Representative 

offices  7otal
KDB  1  69 9 6 9  94

 
�2� &onsolidated subsidiaries 
7he *roup¶s equity oZnership in its consolidated direct and indirect subsidiaries as of December 31, 2020 and 
2019 are summari]ed as folloZs� 

    Fiscal   2Znership (�)
Investor  Investee Country Industry  year end  2020 2019

  6ubsidiaries�     
KDB  KDB Asia (+K) /td�  +ong Kong Finance

 
December 100�00 100�00

  KDB Ireland /td�  Ireland Finance  December 100�00 100�00
  KDB Bank 8]bekistan /td� 8]bekistan Finance  December 86�32 86�32
  KDB Bank (urope /td� +ungary Finance  December 100�00 100�00
  Banco KDB Do Bra]il S� A� Bra]il Finance December 100�00 100�00
  KDB Indonesia /td� Indonesia Finance  December 84�65 �

  
KDB Capital Corporation Korea Speciali]ed 

Credit Finance
December 

99�92 99�92
  KDB Bi] Co�, /td� Korea Service  December 100�00 100�00

  
KDB Investment Co�, /td� Korea Financial 

investment
 
December 100�00 100�00

  
KDB Infrastructure Investment 
Asset 0anagement Co�, /td� Korea

Asset 
management  December 84�16 84�16

  
DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine 
(ngineering Co�, /td� (
1) Korea 0anufacturing  December 55�68 55�72

  
Shinhan +eavy Industries Co�, /td� 
(
10) Korea 0anufacturing  December � 89�22

  
SamZoo +eavy Industry Co�, /td�  
(
2) (
5) Korea 0anufacturing  December 100�00 100�00

  
Daehan Shipbuilding Co�, /td�  

(
2) (
5)  Korea 0anufacturing  December 70�04 70�04

  
Korea Infrastructure Fund 

Korea
Financial 

investment  December  85�00 85�00

  
Korea (ducation Fund (
3) 

Korea
Financial 

investment  
+alf�
yearly 50�00 50�00

  
Korea B7/ Fund I (
3) 

Korea
Financial 

investment  
+alf�
yearly 41�67 41�67
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1�     5eporting Entity, &ontinued 
 

    Fiscal   2Znership (�)
Investor  Investee Country Industry  year end  2020 2019

KDB 
 

Korea Railroad Fund I (
3) 
Korea

Financial 
investment  

+alf�
yearly  50�00 50�00

 
 

Principals and interests guaranteed 
trusts (
4) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  � �

  
Principals guaranteed trusts (
4) 

Korea
Financial 

investment  December  � �

  
KDB 9enture 0	A Private (quity 
Fund (
10) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  � 57�56 

  
KDB Consus 9alue Private (quity 
Fund Korea

Financial 
investment  December  68�20 68�20 

  
Components 	 0aterials 0	A 
Private (quity Fund Korea

Financial 
investment  December  83�33 83�33 

  
KDB Investment P(F 12�1 (
9) 

Korea
Financial 

investment  December  99�46 99�46

  
KDB 9alue Private (quity Fund 
9II (
5) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  55�00 55�00 

  
KDB Sigma Private (quity Fund II 
(
5) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  73�33 73�33 

  
KDB Asia Private (quity Fund 
(
5) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  65�00 65�00 

  
KDB�IAP 2B2R Private (quity 
Fund (
5) (
7) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  44�69 44�69 

  
KDB Small 0edium 0e]]anine 
P(F (
5) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  73�34 73�33 

  
Corporate /iquidity Assistance 
Agency Co�,/td� Korea

Financial 
investment  December  100�00 �

  
K�Five 7th Securiti]ation Specialty 
Co�, /td� and 5 others (
6) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  � �

  

KIA0C2 Road Investment Private 
Fund Special Asset 7rust 2 and 25 
beneficiary certificates Korea

Financial 
investment  December  � �

      
  6ub-subsidiaries�    
KDB Capital  9ietnam Int
l /easing Co�, /td� 9ietnam Finance  December  81�65 81�65

Corporation 
 

Special money trust of Apache 
*olf Bond Zith Warrant Korea

Financial 
investment  December  100�00 100�00

 
 

DB curious Private (quity Fund  
/� P� (
10) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  � 98�74

 
 

S7 Capital the 7hird 1eZ 
7echnology Combination (
10) Korea

Financial 
investment  December  � 81�97

  
Fine Infrastructure 1o�4 

Korea
Financial 

investment  December  99�34 �

  
7iger Alternative Speciali]ed 
Investment 7rust 1o�21 Korea

Financial 
investment  December  98�67 �

  
<K Bluesky 1o�1 (
6) 

Korea
Financial 

investment  December  � �

  
Curious DB +armony Corporate 
Recovery Private (quity Fund Korea

Financial 
investment  December  98�82 �

  
KDBC Synergy 0e]]anine 1eZ 
7ech Fund 1o�1 Korea

Financial 
investment  December  90�50 �

  

Curious rainboZ Private (quity 
Fund for corporate financial 
stability Korea

Financial 
investment  December  98�08 98�08
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1�     5eporting Entity, &ontinued 
 

    Fiscal  2Znership (�)
Investor  Investee Country Industry  year end  2020 2019

DaeZoo 
Shipbuilding 
	 0arine  

DS0( Shangdong Co�, /td�  

China

Parts of 
Zatercraft 

manufacturing  December 100�00 100�00
(ngineering 
Co�, /td�  

DK 0aritime S� A�  
Panama

Shipping 
industry  December 100�00 100�00

  
DS0( Information Consulting 
Co�, /td� Korea I7 Service  December 100�00 100�00

  DS0( Ka]akhstan //P Ka]akhstan Ship repairing  December 100�00 100�00
KDB Consus 

9alue Private 
(quity Fund 

 KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td� (
1), 
(
8) 

Korea Finance  December 92�73 92�73
KDB 9alue 

Private (quity 
Fund 9I 

 DaeZoo (ngineering 	 
Construction Co�, /td� (
8) 

Korea Construction  December 51�34 51�34
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1�     5eporting Entity, &ontinued 
 

(
1) 7he *roup reclassified the disposal group of DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering Co�, /td� and KDB 
/ife Insurance Co�, /td� to assets held for sale as described in 1ote 16� 

(
2) 7he *roup consolidates directly the investee Zhich Zas a subsidiary of DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine 
(ngineering Co�, /td�, because it has poZer over the investee to control the financial and operating policies of 
the entity as a principal creditor bank for the subsidiary� 

(
3) 7he investees are financed by the Bank and managed by KDB Infrastructure Investment Asset 0anagement 
Co�, /td� 7hey are included in the scope of consolidation even though the Bank holds less than half of the voting 
rights because the Bank is e[posed to variable returns, and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
poZer over the investee� 

(
4) 7he trusts are included in the scope of consolidation because the Bank has poZer over the trusts to control the 
financial and operating policies of the entity, and is e[posed to variable returns through the contract for 
preservation of principal and interest or principal only�  

(
5) Indirect oZnership through subsidiaries is included�  
(
6) 7he investees are established for the investor¶s business, or are structured entities that the investor has rights to 

obtain the majority of the benefits of the investee or retains the majority of the risks related to the investee� 7he 
investees are included in the scope of consolidation because the investor has poZer over the investees to control 
the financial and operating policies of the entity, e[posure or rights to variable returns from its involvement 
Zith the investees and the ability to use its poZer over the investees to affect those returns�  

(
7) 7hose entities have been consolidated even though the investor¶s oZnership is not over 50�, because the 
investor, as an e[ecutive partner, has poZer over the investees to control the financial and operating policies of 
the entity, e[posure or rights to variable returns from its involvement Zith the investees and the ability to use 
its poZer over the investees to affect those returns�  

(
8) 7he parent company of the sub�subsidiary is a SP(, Zhich is not separately disclosed in the consolidated 
financial statements�  

(
9) For the year ended December 31, 2019, KDB 9alue P(F 9I Zas liquidated and KDB Investment P(F 1o�1 is 
acquired� 7hrough this transaction, the shares of DaeZoo (ngineering 	 Construction Co�, /td� held by KDB 
9alue P(F 9I as sub�subsidiary Zere transferred to KDB Investment P(F 1o�1 Zhereby the *roup maintained 
its control over DaeZoo (ngineering 	 Construction Co�, /td� 7he *roup considered the transfer as a 
transaction betZeen subsidiaries under common control and does not recogni]ed gain or loss on the transfer in 
the separate financial statements� 

(
10) 7he investees are e[cluded from the scope of consolidation as of December 31, 2020� 
 
 

�3� &hanges in subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries that are neZly included in the consolidated financial statements and those that are e[cluded from the 
consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2020 are as folloZs�  

 
(i)  Subsidiaries neZly included in scope of consolidation as of December 31, 2020 

 
Reason  Subsidiaries

1eZ investment  KDB Indonesia /td�, Corporate /iquidity Assistance Agency Co�, /td�
 

(ii) Subsidiaries e[cluded from scope of consolidation as of December 31, 2020 
 

Reason  Subsidiaries
/iquidation 

 

K�Five 6th Securiti]ation Specialty Co�, /td�, 0ultiasset 2cean 9alue�up 
P(F 1o� 2, 8�B(S7 4th Securiti]ation Specialty Co�, /td�, 0ulti�Asset 
KDB Shipping Private Fund SP2�1, Idea Bridge 2pportunity Private 1, 
KDB 9enture 0	A Private (quity Fund

/oss of control  Shinhan +eavy Industries Co�, /td�
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1�     5eporting Entity, &ontinued 
 
��� )inancial information of subsidiaries 
Financial information of subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 

  Assets /iabilities (quity
2perating 
revenue  

1et profit 
(loss) 

7otal 
comprehensive 
income (loss)

KDB Asia (+K) /td�  W 2,693,398 2,222,031 471,367 132,319  12,603  (18,151)
KDB Ireland /td�   468,754 369,654 99,100 23,062  4,572  (1,828)
KDB Bank 8]bekistan /td�   628,874 562,988 65,886 24,028  8,401  (4,776)
KDB Bank (urope /td�  1,191,023 1,079,628 111,395 55,804  (15,780) (26,355)
Banco KDB Do Bra]il S� A�   315,666 257,100 58,566 96,007  1,917  (19,812)
KDB Indonesia /td�  87,891 57,455 30,436 12,345  1,831  1,831
KDB Capital Corporation  6,607,724 5,518,888 1,088,836 431,722  173,681  171,657
KDB Infrastructure Investment 
Asset 0anagement Co�, /td�  

 
59,818 10,715 49,103 35,072  17,972  17,951

KDB Bi] Co�, /td�  8,207 5,907 2,300 25,468  1,149  603
KDB Investment Co�, /td�  77,601 2,997 74,604 9,420  3,042  3,054
DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine 
(ngineering Co�, /td�  

 
10,320,775 6,451,804 3,868,971 7,030,175 86,573 114,107

SamZoo +eavy Industry Co�, /td�    253,735 231,394 22,341 135,932 1,037 1,104
Daehan Shipbuilding Co�, /td�    636,255 790,594 (154,339) 765,204 (5,518) (5,704)
Korea Infrastructure Fund  2,777 12 2,765 191  (22) (22)
Korea (ducation Fund  108,656 7 108,649 7,275  6,994  6,994
Korea B7/ Fund I  395,038 259 394,779 14,120  6,822  6,822
Korea Railroad Fund I  190,706 9 190,697 9,681  9,201  9,201
Principals and interests guaranteed 
trusts 

 
311,865 237,136 74,729 44,381  38,924  38,924

Principals guaranteed trusts  257,367 251,050 6,317 6,245  122  122
KDB Consus 9alue Private (quity 
Fund 

 
19,548,528 19,015,550 532,978 8  (140,754) (172,013)

Components 	 0aterials 0	A 
Private (quity Fund 

 
1,076 1,827 (751) 2  (13) (13)

KDB Investment P(F 1o�1  9,701,074 7,233,393 2,467,681 8,361,795  58,745  23,799
KDB 9alue Private (quity Fund 
9II 

 
27,294 82 27,212 763  (154) (154)

KDB Sigma Private (quity Fund II  39,432 1 39,431 51,694  51,465 52,715
KDB Asia Private (quity Fund  46,847 175 46,672 �  4,910 (5,606)
KDB�IAP 2B2R Private (quity 
Fund  119,687 49,307 70,380 �  (23,969) (28,026)

KDB Small 0edium 0e]]anine 
P(F  120,692 377 120,315 9,416  (4,740) (5,655)

Corporate /iquidity Assistance 
Agency Co�,/td�  2,992,986 1,990,277 1,002,709 20,419 

 
2,709 2,709

K�Five 7th Securiti]ation Specialty 
Co�, /td� and 5 others  474,796 588,095 (113,299) 23,498  (7,715) (7,715)

KIA0C2 Road Investment Private 
Fund Special Asset 7rust 2 and 25 
beneficiary certificates  2,273,553 2,619 2,270,934 188,707  113,572 112,122
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1�     5eporting Entity, &ontinued 
 

  2019 

  Assets /iabilities (quity
2perating 
revenue  

1et profit 
(loss) 

7otal 
comprehensive 
income (loss)

KDB Asia (+K) /td�  W 2,777,476 2,287,958 489,518 123,138  18,871  30,694
KDB Ireland /td�   436,368 335,440 100,928 31,404  6,818  14,164
KDB Bank 8]bekistan /td�   466,389 395,726 70,663 29,555  11,291  5,403
KDB Bank (urope /td�  1,274,243 1,188,166 86,077 68,749  7,584  4,532
Banco KDB Do Bra]il S� A�   304,220 225,841 78,379 76,423  6,099  5,933
KDB Capital Corporation  5,884,821 4,924,781 960,040 454,281  104,141  104,287
KDB Infrastructure Investment 
Asset 0anagement Co�, /td�  

 
57,428 11,676 45,752 35,291  19,478  19,422

KDB Bi] Co�, /td�  5,135 3,438 1,697 12,966  197  197
KDB Investment Co�, /td�  74,223 2,673 71,550 4,556  1,737  1,675
DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine 
(ngineering Co�, /td�  

 
11,276,079 7,521,182 3,754,897 8,358,745 (46,485) (85,325)

Shinhan +eavy Industries Co�, /td�    310,463 328,024 (17,561) 235,832 (59,495) (58,749)
SamZoo +eavy Industry Co�, /td�    270,365 249,128 21,237 155,997 (11,542) (12,036)
Daehan Shipbuilding Co�, /td�    637,978 786,612 (148,634) 642,586 (31,747) (32,901)
Korea Infrastructure Fund  5,526 5 5,521 663  595  595
Korea (ducation Fund  114,228 6 114,222 7,173  6,871  6,871
Korea B7/ Fund I  433,060 284 432,776 40,240  38,966  38,966
Korea Railroad Fund I  197,732 9 197,723 10,965  10,459  10,459
Principals and interests guaranteed 
trusts 

 
272,718 236,913 35,805 32,359  25,501  25,501

Principals guaranteed trusts  263,508 257,314 6,194 7,060  4  4
KDB 9enture 0	A Private (quity 
Fund 

 
120 7,910 (7,790) �  �  �

KDB Consus 9alue Private (quity 
Fund 

 
19,192,695 18,449,320 743,375 3,653,764  (157,839) (33,496)

Components 	 0aterials 0	A 
Private (quity Fund 

 
1,081 1,819 (738) 5  (62) (62)

KDB Investment P(F 1o�1  10,246,043 7,849,961 2,396,082 8,847,952  47,432  31,369
KDB 9alue Private (quity Fund 
9II 

 
41,729 163 41,566 32,913  21,502  21,502

KDB Sigma Private (quity Fund II  197,849 497 197,352 3,228  8,008 7,980
KDB Asia Private (quity Fund  30,112 191 29,921 �  (3,986) 2,401
KDB�IAP 2B2R Private (quity 
Fund  151,973 51,756 100,217 �  7,371 10,749

KDB Small 0edium 0e]]anine 
P(F  75,726 756 74,970 5,018  4,754 4,880

K�Five 6th Securiti]ation Specialty 
Co�, /td� and 7 others  659,218 764,797 (105,579) 33,010  (4,652) (4,652)

KIA0C2 Road Investment Private 
Fund Special Asset 7rust 2 and 28 
beneficiary certificates  2,331,721 2,766 2,328,955 191,783  193,558 210,278
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2�     %asis of 3reparation 
 

�1� $pplication of accounting standards 
7hese consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance Zith the Korean International Financial 
Reporting Standards (K�IFRS) enacted by the Act on External Audit of Stock Companies� 
 
�2� &hanges and disclosures of accounting policies 
(i) New and amended standards and interpretations adopted 
7he *roup neZly applied the folloZing amended and enacted standards for the annual period beginning on -anuary 
1, 2020� 7he nature and the impact of each neZ standard or amendment are described beloZ� 
 
Amendments to K- IFRS 1001 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ and K-IFRS 1008 ‘Accounting Policies, 
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ – Definition of Materiality 
7he amendments clarify the e[planation of the definition of material and amended K�IFRS 1001 and K�IFRS 1008 
in accordance Zith the clarified definitions� 0ateriality is assessed by reference to omission or misstatement of 
material information as Zell as effects of immaterial information, and to the nature of the users Zhen determining 
the information to be disclosed by the *roup� 7he amendment does not have a significant impact on the consolidated 
financial statements� 
 
Amendments to K- IFRS 1103 ‘Business Combination’ – Definition of a Business 
7o consider the integration of the required activities and assets as a business, the amended definition of a business 
requires an acquisition to include an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the 
ability to create outputs and e[cludes economic benefits from the loZer costs� An entity can apply a concentration 
test, an optional test, Zhere substantially all of the fair value of gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single 
asset or a group of similar assets, the assets required Zould not represent a business� 7he amendment does not have 
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements� 
 
Amendments to K- IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’, K-IFRS 1039 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement’ and K-IFRS 1107 ‘Financial instruments: Disclosure’ – Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 
7he amendments alloZ to apply the e[ceptions Zhen forZard�looking analysis is performed in relation the 
application of hedge accounting Zhile uncertainties arising from interest rate benchmark reform e[ist� 7he 
e[ceptions require the *roup assumes that the interest rate benchmark on Zhich the hedged items and the hedging 
instruments are based on is not altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform, Zhen determining Zhether the 
e[pected cash floZs are highly probable, Zhether an economic relationship betZeen the hedged item and the 
hedging instrument e[ists, and Zhen assessing the hedging relationship is highly effective� 7he amendments do not 
have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements� 
 
Amendments to K- IFRS 1116 ‘Lease – Practical expedient for COVID-19-Related Rent Exemption, Concessions, 
Suspension’ 
As a practical e[pedient, a lessee may elect not to assess Zhether a rent concession occurring as a direct consequence 
of the C29ID�19 pandemic is a lease modification� A lessee that makes this election shall account for any change 
in lease payments resulting from the ren concession the same Zay it Zould account for the change applying this 
standard of the change Zere not a lease modification� 7hese amendments should be applied for annual periods 
beginning on or after -une 1, 2020, and earlier application of permitted� 7he *roup does not e[pect that these 
amendments have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements� 
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2�      %asis of 3reparation, &ontinued 

(ii) New standards and interpretations issued but not effective 
7he folloZing neZ standards, interpretations and amendments to e[isting standards have been issued but not 
effective for annual periods beginning after -anuary 1, 2020, and the *roup has not early adopted them� 7he *roup 
is currently in progress of analy]ing the potential impact on the financial statements resulting from the application 
of these standards, interpretations and amendments� 
 
Amendments to K-IFRS 1103 ‘Business Combinations’– Reference to the Conceptual Framework  
7he amendments update a reference of definition of assets and liabilities to qualify for recognition in revised 
Conceptual FrameZork for Financial Reporting� +oZever, the amendments add an e[ception for the recognition of 
liabilities and contingent liabilities Zithin the scope of K�IFRS 1037 µProvisions, Contingent /iabilities and 
Contingent Assets¶, and K�IFRS 2121 µ/evies¶� 7he amendments also confirm that contingent assets should not be 
recogni]ed at the acquisition date� 7he amendments should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 
-anuary 1, 2022, and earlier application is permitted� 7he *roup does not e[pect that these amendments have a 
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements� 
 
Amendments to K-IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’, K-IFRS 1039 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement’, K-IFRS 1107 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’, K-IFRS 1104 ‘Insurance Contracts’ and K-IFRS 
1116 ‘Lease’ – Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 
In relation to interest rate benchmark reform, the amendments provide a practical e[pedient alloZing entities to 
change the effective interest rate instead of changing the carrying amount and apply hedge accounting Zithout 
discontinuance although the interest rate benchmark is replaced in hedging relationship� 7he amendments should 
be applied for annual periods beginning on or after -anuary 1, 2021, and earlier application is permitted� 7he *roup 
is currently in progress of analy]ing the potential impact on the financial statements resulting from the application 
of these amendments� 
 
Amendments to K-IFRS 1016 ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ - Proceeds before intended use 
7he amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any 
proceeds from selling items produced Zhile the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use� Instead, the entity 
Zill recogni]e and disclose the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those items, as profit 
or loss� 7he amendments should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after -anuary 1, 2022, and earlier 
application is permitted� 7he *roup does not e[pect that these amendments have a significant impact on the 
consolidated financial statements� 
 
Amendments to K-IFRS ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ – Onerous Contracts: Cost of 
Fulfilling a Contract 
7he amendments clarify that the direct costs of fulfilling a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling 
the contract and an allocation of other costs directly related to fulfilling contracts Zhen assessing Zhether the 
contract is onerous� 7he amendments should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after -anuary 1, 2022, 
and earlier application is permitted� 7he *roup does not e[pect that these amendments have a significant impact on 
the consolidated financial statements� 
 
Amendments to K-IFRS 1001 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ - Classification of Liabilities as Current or 
Non-current 
7he amendments clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non�current, depending on the substantive 
rights that e[ist at the end of the reporting period� Classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity Zill 
e[ercise right to defer settlement of the liability or the management¶s e[pectations thereof� Also, the settlement of 
liability includes the transfer of the entity¶s oZn equity instruments� hoZever, it Zould be e[cluded if an option to 
settle the liability by the transfer of the entity¶s oZn equity instruments is recogni]ed separately from the liability 
as an equity component of a compound financial instrument� 7he amendments should be applied for annual periods 
beginning on or after -anuary 1, 2023, and earlier application is permitted� 7he *roup does not e[pect that these 
amendments have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements� 
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2�      %asis of 3reparation, &ontinued 
 
Annual improvements to K�IFRS 2018�2020 
Annual improvements of K�IFRS 2018�2020 Cycle should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 
-anuary 1, 2022, and earlier application is permitted� 7he *roup does not e[pect that these amendments have a 
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements� 
 
� K�IFRS 1109 µFinancial Instruments¶ ± Fees related to the 10� test for derecognition of financial liabilities 
7he amendment clarifies that in applying the µ10 per cent¶ test to assess Zhether to derecognise a financial liability, 
an entity includes only fees paid or received betZeen the entity (the borroZer) and the lender, including fees paid 
or received by either the entity or the lender on the other¶s behalf� 
� K�IFRS 1101 µFirst time Adoption of Korean International Financial Reporting Standards¶ ± Subsidiaries that are 
first�time adopters 
� Korean IFRS 1o�1116 /eases ± /ease incentives 
� Korean IFRS 1o�1041 Agriculture ± 0easuring fair value 
 
�3� %asis of measurement 
7he consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis e[cept for the folloZing 
material items in the consolidated statement of financial position� 
- Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value 
- Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss  
- Available�for�sale financial instruments measured at fair value 
- Fair value hedged financial instruments Zith changes in fair value, due to hedged risks, recogni]ed in profit or 

loss  
- /iabilities for defined benefit plans, Zhich are recogni]ed as net of the total present value of defined benefit 

obligations less the fair value of plan assets 
 

��� )unctional and presentation currency 
In preparing the *roup¶s consolidated financial statements, transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded 
by the *roup entities at their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction� 7he 
*roup¶s consolidated financial statements are presented in Korean Zon, Zhich is also the *roup¶s functional 
currency� 7he folloZing entities of the *roup have different functional currency from the presentation currency� 

 
Functional currency  Subsidiaries

8SD  KDB Asia /td� 
  KDB Ireland /td� 
  KDB Asia Private (quity Fund
  KDB�IAP 2B2R Private (quity Fund
  0ulti�Asset KDB Shipping Private Fund S17�1 
  0ulti�Asset KDB Shipping Private Fund DA�3 
  0ulti�Asset KDB Shipping Private Fund K/C�1 
  0ulti�Asset KDB 2cean 9alue�up Private Fund 6th 

8=S  KDB Bank 8]bekistan /td�
+8F  KDB Bank (urope /td� 
BR/  Banco KDB Do Bra]il S� A�
IDR  KDB Indonesia /td�
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2�     %asis of 3reparation, &ontinued 
 

��� 8se of estimates and Mudgments 
7he preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity Zith K�IFRS requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and e[penses� 0anagement¶s estimates may differ from actual outcomes if 
management¶s estimates and assumptions based on management¶s best judgment at the reporting date are different 
from the actual environment�  
 
(stimates and underlying assumptions are evaluated on an ongoing basis� Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recogni]ed in the period in Zhich the estimates are revised and in any future years affected�  
  
7he folloZing are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities Zithin the ne[t financial year�  
 
(i) Fair value of financial instruments 
Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss and other comprehensive income, and derivative 
instruments are recogni]ed and measured at fair value� If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair 
value is determined either by using a valuation technique or independent third�party valuation service� 9aluation 
techniques include using recent arm
s length market transactions betZeen knoZledgeable, Zilling parties, if 
available, referencing to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash 
floZ analysis and option pricing models�  

 
Financial instruments, Zhich are not actively traded in the market and those Zith less transparent market prices, 
Zill have less objective fair values and require broad judgment on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty in market 
factors and assumptions in price determination and other risks�  
 
Diverse valuation techniques are used to determine the fair value of financial instruments, from generally accepted 
market valuation models to internally developed valuation models that incorporate various types of assumptions 
and variables�  

(ii) Credit losses allowance 
7he *roup tests impairment and recogni]es loss alloZances on financial assets classified at amorti]ed cost, debt 
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and recogni]es provisions for payment 
guarantee, financial guarantee and unused commitments� Accuracy of alloZances and provisions for credit losses 
is dependent upon estimation of e[pected cash floZs of the borroZer for individually assessed alloZances of loans, 
and upon assumptions and methodology used for collectively assessed alloZances for groups of loans, guarantees 
and unused loan commitments� 
 
7he pandemic of C29ID�19 in 2020 has a negative impact on the global economy despite of the Korean 
government¶s financial and economic stabili]ation packages� It may have a negative impact on the financial position 
and financial performance of the *roup due to the increase of the e[pected credit losses on specific portfolios and 
the potential losses on financial assets� 7he detail of credit risk e[posures by industry affected by the pandemic of 
C29ID�19 as of December 31, 2020 is disclosed in 1ote 53� (2) and the e[posures by industries could be changed 
according to economic fluctuations� 
 
7aking these circumstances into account comprehensively, the *roup recalculated the forZard�looking information 
used to estimate the e[pected credit loss in accordance Zith K�IFRS 1109 
Financial Instruments
 as at December 
31, 2020� During the tZelve�month period since the end of the previous year, there have been changes in the 
forZard�looking information that affects e[pected credit losses, and it is predicted that major economic factors such 
as the 2020 unemployment rate and economic groZth rate Zill deteriorate due to the impact of C29ID�19� 7o 
reflect these changes, the *roup recalculated the forZard�looking information by means of increasing the 
probability of recession used in generating future economic scenarios and Zill continue to monitor the forZard�
looking information on a quarterly basis� 
 
(iii) Deferred taxes 
Deferred ta[ assets and liabilities are measured at the ta[ rates that are e[pected to apply in the year Zhen the asset 
is reali]ed or the liability is settled, based on ta[ rates (and ta[ laZs) that have been enacted or substantively enacted 
at the reporting date� Deferred income ta[ assets are recogni]ed to the e[tent that sufficient ta[able profit Zill be 
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available to alloZ all or part of the deferred ta[ asset to be utili]ed� Actual income ta[es in the future may not be 
identical to the recogni]ed deferred ta[ assets and liabilities� 
 
(iv) Defined benefit liabilities 
7he *roup operates a defined benefit plan� Defined benefit liability is calculated by annual actuarial valuations as 
of the reporting date� In order to perform the actuarial valuations, assumptions for discount rates, future salary 
increases and others are required to be estimated� Defined benefit plans contain significant uncertainties in 
estimations due to its long�term nature�  
 
��� $pproYal date for the consolidated financial statements 
7he consolidated financial statements Zere authori]ed for issue by the Board of Directors on 0arch 25, 2021, Zhich 
Zill be submitted for approval to the shareholders¶ meeting to be held on 0arch 30, 2021� 
 

  



���Introduction Sustainability ReviewBusiness Review Financial Review

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 

21 

3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies 
 

7he significant accounting policies applied by the *roup in preparation of its consolidated financial statements are 
included beloZ� 7he accounting policies set out beloZ have been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these consolidated financial statements�  

 
�1� %asis of consolidation 
(i) Subsidiaries and business combinations 
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the *roup� 7he *roup controls an entity Zhen it is e[posed to, or has right 
to, variable returns from its involvement Zith the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its poZer 
of the entity� 7he financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the 
date on Zhich control commences until the date on Zhich controls ceases�  

If a subsidiary of the *roup uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial 
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to its 
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements� 

For acquisitions meeting the definition of a business combination, the acquisition method of accounting is used�  
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured 
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date� Any goodZill arising from initial consolidation is tested for 
impairment at least once a year and Zhenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the need for impairment� 
7he cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition 
date in fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed and the 
amount of any non�controlling interests in the acquire� Costs related to acquisition are recogni]ed as e[penses Zhen 
occurred� 

7he e[cess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the *roup¶s share of the identifiable net assets acquired 
is recorded as goodZill� If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the *roup¶s share of the net assets 
acquired, the difference is recogni]ed directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income� 

Intra�group balances, income and e[penses, unreali]ed gain and loss and dividends resulting from intra�group 
transactions are fully eliminated

A change in the oZnership interest of a subsidiary, Zithout a change of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction� If the *roup loses control over a subsidiary, it recogni]es any investment retained at fair value and any 
surplus or deficit in profit or loss� 
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
(ii) Investments in associates 
Associates are all entities over Zhich the *roup has significant influence but not control� Significant influence is 
presumed to e[ist Zhen the *roup holds betZeen 20� and 50� of the voting poZer� Investments in associates are 
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are initially recogni]ed at cost� 7he *roup¶s investment in 
associates includes goodZill (net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition� When the 
investors¶ share on the fair value of the associates¶ identifiable assets and liabilities e[ceeds acquisition cost of the 
associates¶ interest, the e[cess portion is recogni]ed as the current profit for the year of acquisition� 

7he *roup¶s share of its associates¶ post�acquisition profits or loss is recogni]ed in the statement of comprehensive 
income, and its share of post�acquisition movements in reserves is recogni]ed in reserves� When the *roup¶s share 
of loss in an associate equals or e[ceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the 
*roup does not recogni]e further loss, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the 
associates� 7he carrying amount of equity method investments and the long�term interest that partially consists of 
investors¶ net investment are included in interest in the associate� 

8nreali]ed gain and loss on transactions betZeen the *roup and its associates are eliminated to the e[tent of the 
*roup¶s interest in the associate� Accounting policies of associates have been changed Zhere necessary to ensure 
consistency Zith the policies adopted by the *roup� 

(iii) Acquisitions from entities under common control 
7he assets and liabilities acquired are recogni]ed at the carrying amounts recogni]ed previously in the *roup 
controlling shareholder¶s consolidated financial statements� 7he difference betZeen cash paid and acquired net 
assets are recorded in equity� 

(iv) Non-controlling interests 
1on�controlling interests in a subsidiary are accounted for separately from the parent¶s oZnership interests in a 
subsidiary� (ach component of net profit or loss and other comprehensive income is attributed to the oZners of the 
parent and non�controlling interest holders, even Zhen the allocation reduces the non�controlling interests balance 
beloZ ]ero�  
 
(v) Changes in the parent company’s ownership interest  
Changes in the parent company¶s oZnership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are 
accounted for as equity transactions Zith oZners in their capacity as oZners� Adjustments to non�controlling 
interests are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary� 7he difference betZeen the 
consideration and the adjustments made to non�controlling interests is recogni]ed directly in equity attributable to 
the oZners of the parent company�  
 
�2� 2perating segments 
An operating segment is a component of the *roup that engages in business activities from Zhich it may earn 
revenues and incur e[penses, including revenues and e[penses that relate to transactions Zith any of the *roup¶s 
other components� Segment results that are reported to the chief operating decision maker include items directly 
attributable to a segment as Zell as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis� 8nallocated items mainly 
comprise corporate assets (primarily the *roup¶s headquarters), head office e[penses, and income ta[ assets and 
liabilities� 7he *roup recogni]es the C(2 as the chief operating decision maker�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 

�3� )oreign e[change 
(i) Foreign currency transactions 
7ransactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of company entities at e[change rates at 
the dates of the transactions� 0onetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date 
are translated to the functional currency at the e[change rate at that date� 1on�monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to the functional currency at the 
e[change rate at the date that the fair value Zas determined� 1on�monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the e[change rate at the date of the transaction� 

Foreign currency differences arising on translation are recogni]ed in profit or loss, e[cept for differences arising on 
the translation of available for sale equity instruments, a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net 
investment in a foreign operation, or in a qualifying cash floZ hedge, Zhich are recogni]ed in other comprehensive 
income� ([change rate effect of the gain (or loss) from non�monetary item is categori]ed according to Zhether the 
gain (or loss) is recogni]ed as other comprehensive income or as profit or loss�  
 
(ii) Foreign operations 
If the presentation currency of the *roup is different from a foreign operation¶s functional currency, the financial 
statements of the foreign operation are translated into the presentation currency using the folloZing methods� 
 
8nless the functional currency of foreign operations is in a state of hyperinflation, assets and liabilities of foreign 
operations are translated at the closing e[change rate at the end of the reporting period� Revenues and e[penses on 
the statement of comprehensive income are translated at the e[change rates of the date of transaction� Foreign 
currency differences that arise from translation are recogni]ed as other comprehensive income�  

Any goodZill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation, and any adjustments in fair value to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities due to such acquisition, are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation� 
7herefore, such are e[pressed in the functional currency of the foreign operations and, alongside other assets and 
liabilities of the foreign operation, translated at the closing e[change rate�  
 
In the case of the disposal of a foreign operation, cumulative amounts of e[change difference regarding the foreign 
operation, recogni]ed separately from other comprehensive income, are re�categori]ed from assets to profit or loss 
as of the moment the disposal profit or loss is recogni]ed�  
 
(iii) Foreign exchange of net investment in foreign operations 
0onetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation, Zith none or little possibility of being settled in 
the foreseeable future, are considered a part of the net investment in the foreign operation� 7herefore, the e[change 
difference is recogni]ed as comprehensive income or loss in the consolidated financial statement, and re�categori]ed 
to profit or loss as of the disposal of the related net investment�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 

��� 5ecognition and measurement of financial instruments 
(i) Initial recognition 
7he *roup recogni]es a financial asset or a financial liability in its consolidated statement of financial position 
Zhen the *roup becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument� A regular Zay purchase or sale of 
financial assets is recogni]ed and derecogni]ed using trade date accounting� 
 
7he *roup classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair 
value through other comprehensive income, or financial assets at amorti]ed cost on the basis of the *roup¶s business 
model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash floZ characteristics of the financial assets� 7he 
*roup classifies financial liabilities as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or financial liabilities 
at amorti]ed cost� 
 
At initial recognition, a financial asset or financial liability is measured at its fair value plus or minus, in the case 
of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability� 
 
(ii) Subsequent measurement 
After initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at amorti]ed cost or fair value based on classification 
at initial recognition� 
 
Amortized cost 
7he amorti]ed cost is the amount at Zhich the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition 
minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amorti]ation using the effective interest method of 
any difference betZeen that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss 
alloZance� 
 
Fair value 
Fair values, Zhich the *roup primarily uses for the measurement of financial instruments, are the published price 
quotations based on market prices or dealer price quotations of financial instruments traded in an active market 
Zhere available� 7hese are the best evidence of fair value� A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active 
market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an e[change, dealer, broker, an entity in the same 
industry, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market 
transactions on an arm
s length basis� 
 
If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is determined either by using a valuation technique 
or independent third�party valuation service� 9aluation techniques include using recent arm
s length market 
transactions betZeen knoZledgeable, Zilling parties, if available, referencing to the current fair value of another 
instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash floZ analysis and option pricing models� 
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3�      6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
7he *roup uses valuation models that are commonly used by market participants and customi]ed for the *roup to 
determine fair values of common over�the�counter (27C) derivatives such as options, interest rate sZaps and 
currency sZaps Zhich are based on the inputs observable in markets� For more comple[ instruments, the *roup 
uses internally developed models, Zhich are usually based on valuation methods and techniques generally used 
Zithin the industry, or a value measured by an independent e[ternal valuation institution as the fair values if all or 
some of the inputs to the valuation models are not market observable and therefore it is necessary to estimate fair 
value based on certain assumptions� 
 
If the valuation technique does not reflect all factors Zhich market participants Zould consider in setting a price, 
the fair value is adjusted to reflect those factors� 7hose factors include counterparty credit risk, bid�ask spread, 
liquidity risk and others� 
 
7he chosen valuation technique makes ma[imum use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity�
specific inputs� It incorporates all factors that market participants Zould consider in setting a price and is consistent 
Zith economic methodologies applied for pricing financial instruments� Periodically, the *roup calibrates the 
valuation technique and tests its validity using prices of observable current market transactions of the same 
instrument or based on other relevant observable market data� 
 
(iii) Derecognition 
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recogni]ed financial asset or financial liability from the statement of 
financial position� 7he *roup derecogni]es a financial asset or a financial liability Zhen, and only Zhen� 
 
Derecognition of financial assets 
Financial assets are derecogni]ed Zhen the contractual rights to the cash floZs from the financial assets e[pire or 
the financial assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and reZards of oZnership of the financial 
assets are also transferred, or all the risks and reZards of oZnership of the financial assets are neither substantially 
transferred nor retained and the *roup has not retained control� If the *roup neither transfers nor disposes of 
substantially all the risks and reZards of oZnership of the financial assets, the *roup continues to recogni]e the 
financial asset to the e[tent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset� 
 
If the *roup transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash floZs of the financial asset, but retains substantially 
all the risks and reZards of oZnership of the financial asset, the *roup continues to recogni]e the transferred asset 
in its entirety and recogni]e a financial liability for the consideration received� 
 
Derecognition of financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are derecogni]ed from the statement of financial position Zhen the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged, cancelled or e[pires� 
 
(iv) Offsetting 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statements of financial 
position Zhere there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recogni]ed amounts and there is an intention to settle 
on a net basis or reali]e the assets and settle the liability simultaneously� 
 
��� &ash and cash equiYalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances Zith original maturities of three months or less than three months¶ 
maturity from the date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, including 
cash on hand, deposits held at call Zith banks and other highly liquid short�term investments Zith original maturities 
of three months or less�  
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3�      6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
��� Non-deriYatiYe financial assets 
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
Any non�derivative financial asset classified as held for trading or not classified as financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive income or financial assets measured at amorti]ed cost is categori]ed under financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss� 
 
7he *roup may designate certain financial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss Zhen 
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred 
to as 
an accounting mismatch
) that Zould otherZise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recogni]ing the 
gains and losses on them on different bases� 
 
 
After initial recognition, a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value and gains or 
losses arising from a change in the fair value are recogni]ed in profit or loss� Interest income and dividend income 
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recogni]ed in profit or loss� 
 
(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
7he *roup classifies financial assets as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income if they 
meet the folloZing conditions� 1) debt instruments that are a business model Zhose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash floZs and selling financial assets, and consistent Zith representing solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding or 2) equity instruments, not held for trading Zith the 
objective of generating a profit from short�term fluctuations in price or dealer¶s margin, designated as financial 
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income� 
 
After initial recognition, a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income is measured at fair 
value� *ain and loss from changes in fair value, other than dividend income and interest income amorti]ed using 
effective interest method and e[change differences arising on monetary items Zhich are recogni]ed directly in 
income as interest income or e[pense, are recogni]ed as other comprehensive income in equity� 
 
At disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, cumulative gain or loss is 
recogni]ed as profit or loss for the reporting period� +oZever, cumulative gain or loss of equity instrument 
designated as fair value through other comprehensive income are not recycled to profit or loss at disposal� 
 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
at the closing rate� ([change differences resulting from changes in amorti]ed cost are recogni]ed in profit or loss, 
and other changes are recogni]ed as equity� 
 
(iii) Financial assets measured at amortized cost 
A financial asset, Zhich are held Zithin the business model Zhose objective is to hold assets in order to collect 
contractual cash floZs and consistent Zith representing solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding, are classified as a financial asset at amorti]ed cost� Financial assets at amorti]ed cost are 
subsequently measured at amorti]ed cost using the effective interest method after initial recognition and interest 
income is recogni]ed using the effective interest method� 
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3�      6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
��� E[pected &redit /oss of )inancial $ssets 
7he *roup measures e[pected credit loss and recogni]es loss alloZance at the end of the reporting period for 
financial assets measured at amorti]ed cost and fair value through other comprehensive income Zith the e[ception 
of financial asset measured at fair value through profit or loss� 
 
7he e[pected credit loss (³(C/´) is the Zeighted average amount of possible outcomes Zithin a certain range, 
reflecting the time value of money, estimates on the past, current and future situations, and information accessible 
Zithout e[cessive cost of effort� 
 
7he *roup uses the folloZing three measurement techniques in accordance Zith K�IFRS� 
- *eneral approach� for financial assets and off�balance�sheet unused credit line that are not applied beloZ tZo 

approaches 
- Simplified approach� for receivables, contract assets and lease receivables 
- Credit�impaired approach� for purchased or originated credit�impaired financial assets 
 
7he general approach is applied differently depending on the significance of the increase of the credit risk� If, at the 
reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, an 
entity shall measure the loss alloZance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12�month e[pected credit 
losses� If the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, an entity 
shall measure the loss alloZance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime e[pected credit losses 
at each reporting date� 
 
7he *roup applies the simplified approach to 1) trade receivables and contract assets that do not have a significant 
financing component or 2) trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables upon determining the *roup¶s 
accounting policies as the application of the simplified approach� 7he approach requires e[pected lifetime losses to 
be recogni]ed from initial recognition of the financial assets� 8nder credit�impaired approach, the *roup shall only 
recogni]e the cumulative changes in lifetime e[pected credit losses since initial recognition as a loss alloZance for 
purchased or originated credit�impaired financial assets� 
 
7he folloZing non�e[haustive list of information may be relevant in assessing changes in credit risk� 
-  Significant changes in internal price indicators of credit risk as a result of a change in credit risk since inception 
- 2ther changes in the rates or terms of an e[isting financial instrument that Zould be significantly different if the 

instrument Zas neZly originated or issued at the reporting date 
-  An actual or e[pected significant change in the financial instrument¶s e[ternal credit rating� 
-  An actual or e[pected internal credit rating doZngrade for the borroZer or decrease in behavioural scoring used 

to assess credit risk internally 
-  An actual or e[pected significant change in the operating results of the borroZer 
-  Past due information 
 
(i) Forward-looking information 
7he *roup uses forZard�looking information, Zhen it determines Zhether the credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition and measures e[pected credit losses� 
 
7he *roup assumes the risk component has a certain correlation Zith the business cycle, and calculates the e[pected 
credit loss by reflecting the forZard�looking information Zith macroeconomic variables on the measurement inputs� 
 
ForZard looking information used in calculation of e[pected credit loss is derived after comprehensive 
consideration of a variety of factors including scenario in management planning, Zorst�case scenario used for stress 
testing, third party forecast, and others� 
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3�      6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
(ii) Measuring expected credit losses on financial assets at amortized cost 
7he amount of the loss on financial assets at amorti]ed cost is measured as the difference betZeen the asset
s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash floZs discounted at the financial asset
s original 
effective interest rate� 7he *roup estimates e[pected future cash floZs for financial assets that are individually 
significant (individual assessment of impairment)� 
 
For financial assets that are not individually significant, the *roup collectively estimates e[pected credit loss by 
grouping loans Zith homogeneous credit risk profile (collective assessment of impairment)� 
 
Individual assessment of impairment 
Individual assessment of impairment losses is calculated using management
s best estimate on present value of 
e[pected future cashfloZs� 7he *roup uses all the available information including operating cash floZ of the 
borroZer and net reali]able value of any collateral held� 
 
Collective assessment of impairment 
Collective assessment of loss alloZance involves historical loss e[perience along Zith incorporation of forZard�
looking information� Such process incorporates factors such as type of collateral, product and borroZers, credit 
rating, si]e of portfolio and recovery period and applies probability of default on a group of assets and loss given 
default by type of recovery method� Also, the e[pected credit loss model involves certain assumption to determine 
input based on loss e[perience and forZard�looking information� 7hese models and assumptions are periodically 
revieZed to reduce gap betZeen loss estimate and actual loss e[perience� 
 
7he e[pected credit loss for financial assets measured at amorti]ed cost is recogni]ed as the loss alloZance, and 
Zhen the financial asset is determined to be irrecoverable, the carrying amount and loss alloZance are decreased� 
If financial assets previously Zritten off are recovered, the loss alloZance is increased and the difference is 
recogni]ed in the current profit or loss� 
 
(iii) Measuring expected credit losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
0easuring method of e[pected credit losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
is equal to the method of financial assets at amorti]ed cost, e[cept for changes in loss alloZances that are recogni]ed 
as other comprehensive income� Amounts recogni]ed in other comprehensive income for sale or repayment of 
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss� 
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
��� DeriYatiYe financial instruments including hedge accounting 
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value upon agreement of the contract and re�
estimated at fair value subsequently� 7he recognition of profit or loss due to changes in fair value of derivative 
instruments is as stated beloZ� 

(i) Hedge accounting 
Derivative financial instruments are accounted differently depending on Zhether hedge accounting is applied, and 
therefore, are classified into trading purpose derivatives and hedging purpose derivatives�  
8pon the transaction of hedging purpose derivatives, tZo different types of hedge accounting are applied� a fair 
value hedge, and a cash floZ hedge� A fair value hedge is a hedge of the e[posure to changes in fair value of a 
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability 
or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss� A cash floZ hedge is a 
hedge of the e[posure to variability in cash floZs that (i) is attributable to a particular risk associated Zith a 
recognised asset or liability (such as all or some future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable 
forecast transaction and (ii) could affect profit or loss� 
 
At inception of the hedge relationship, the *roup formally documents the relationship betZeen the hedged item and 
the hedging instrument, including the nature of the risk, the objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, and 
the method that Zill be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship� 

Fair value hedge 
For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised 
in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income� 0eanZhile, the change in the fair value of the hedged 
item, attributable to the risk hedged, is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also 
recognised in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income� When the hedge no longer meets the criteria 
for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is terminated� For hedged item recorded at amorti]ed cost, the 
difference betZeen the carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is amorti]ed over the 
remaining term of the original hedge using the (IR�

Cash flow hedge 
For designated and qualifying cash floZ hedges, the effective portion of gain or loss on the hedging instruments is 
initially recognised directly in equity� 7he ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is 
recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income� When the hedged cash floZ affects the profit 
or loss in statement of comprehensive income, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recorded in the 
corresponding income or e[pense line in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income� When a hedge 
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss e[isting in equity at that time remains 
in equity and is recognised Zhen the hedged forecasted transaction is ultimately recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income� When a forecasted transaction is no longer e[pected to occur, the cumulative gain and loss 
that Zas reported in equity is immediately transferred to profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income� 

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
7he *roup designates non�derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments for foreign currency risk arising 
from net investments in foreign operations and recognises the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument 
that is determined to be an effective hedge in other comprehensive income� 7he cumulative amounts recognised in 
other comprehensive income relating to both the foreign e[change differences arising on translation of the results 
and financial position of the foreign operation and the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined to 
be an effective hedge of the net investment are reclassed from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment 
Zhen the *roup disposes of the foreign operation�

(ii) Trading purpose derivatives 
For trading purpose derivatives transaction, changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognised in net income�

�9� Day one profit or loss recognition 
For financial instruments classified as level 3 on the fair value level hierarchy measured using assess variables not 
observable in the market, the difference betZeen the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price, Zhich 
is equivalent to Day one profit or loss, is amorti]ed by using the straight�line method over time� 
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 

�10� 3roperty and equipment 
7he *roup¶s property and equipment is recogni]ed at the carrying amount as historical costs less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value� +istorical costs include the e[penditures directly related to the 
acquisition of assets�  
 
Subsequent costs are recogni]ed in the carrying amount of assets or, if appropriate, as separate assets if the 
probabilities future economic benefits associated Zith the assets Zill floZ into the *roup and the costs can be 
measured reliably� the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecogni]ed� Furthermore, any other repairs or 
maintenances are charged to profit or loss as incurred�  
 
/and is not depreciated� Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to the amount of 
residual value less acquisition cost over the folloZing estimated useful lives� 
 

7ype 8seful lives (years) 
Buildings 12 a 60 
Structure 10 a 51 
/easehold improvements 4 
9ehicles 4 
(quipment 4 a 8 
2ther properties 2 a 40 

 
Property and equipment are impaired Zhen its carrying amount e[ceeds the recoverable amount� 7he *roup 
assesses residual value and economic life of its assets at each reporting date and adjusts its useful life Zhen 
necessary� Any gain or loss arising from the disposal of the asset (calculated as the difference betZeen the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recogni]ed in non�operating income (e[pense) in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
�11� ,nYestment property 
7he *roup classifies property held for the purpose of rental income or benefits from capital appreciation as 
investment property� Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs� Subsequent to 
initial recognition, the cost model is applied� Subsequent to initial recognition, an item of investment property is 
carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss�  
 
Investment properties are derecogni]ed either Zhen they have been disposed of or Zhen the investment property is 
permanently ZithdraZn from use and no future economic benefit is e[pected from its disposal� 7he difference 
betZeen the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recogni]ed in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period of de�recognition� Reclassification to or from other account is made if there is 
a change in use of corresponding investment property�  
 
Depreciation of investment property is calculated using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as 
folloZs� 
 

7ype 8seful lives (years) 
Buildings 20 a 50 
Structure 10 a 40 

 
�12� ,ntangible assets 
An intangible asset is recogni]ed only Zhen its cost can be measured reliably, and the probabilities future economic 
benefits from the asset Zill floZ into the *roup are high� Separately acquired intangible assets are recogni]ed at the 
acquisition cost, and subsequently, the cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment is 
recogni]ed as the carrying amount�  
 
Intangible assets Zith finite lives are amorti]ed over the 4�year to 30�year period of useful economic lives using the 
straight line method� At the end of each reporting period, the *roup revieZs intangible assets for any evidence that 
indicate impairment, and upon the presence of such evidence, the *roup estimates the amount recoverable and 
recogni]es the loss accordingly� Intangible assets are derecogni]ed either Zhen they have been disposed of or Zhen 
the intangible assets are permanently ZithdraZn from use and no future economic benefit is e[pected from its 
disposal�  
  
Intangible assets Zith indefinite useful lives are not amorti]ed, but are tested for impairment annually� Furthermore, 
the *roup revieZs such intangible assets to determine Zhether it is appropriate to consider these assets to have 
indefinite useful lives� If in the case the *roup concludes an asset is not qualified to be classified as non�finite, 
prospective measures are taken to consider such an asset as finite�  
 
([penditures on research activities, undertaken Zith the prospect of gaining neZ scientific or technical knoZledge 
and understanding, are recogni]ed in profit or loss as incurred� Development e[penditures are capitali]ed only if 
development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future 
economic benefits are probable, and the *roup intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and 
to use or sell the asset� 2ther development e[penditures are recogni]ed in profit or loss as incurred�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
�13� /eases 
(i) Lessee accounting 
7he *roup recogni]es a right�of�use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability 
representing its obligation to make lease payments at the commencement date of the lease� 7he *roup elected not 
to apply the requirements to the short�term leases and loZ value assets� 
 
Right-of-use asset 
7he right�of�use asset is measured at its cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
loss Zith adjustments reflected arising from remeasurements of the lease liability� 7he cost of the right�of�use asset 
comprise the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee 
and any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentive received� 7he right�of�
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset¶s useful life and the lease term on a straight�line basis from the 
commencement date of the lease� 
 
Lease liabilities 
At the commencement date, the lease liability is measured at present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at that date� /ease payments include fi[ed payments (including in�substance fi[ed payments), less any lease 
incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an inde[ or a rate, amounts e[pected to be payable 
by the lessee under residual value guarantees, the e[ercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably 
certain to e[ercise that option, and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the 
lessee e[ercising an option to terminate the lease� 7he variable lease payments that do not depend on an inde[ or a 
rate are recogni]ed as an e[pense in the period in Zhich the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs� 
 
When measuring the present value, the lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease� If 
such implicit rate cannot be readily determined, the *roup uses the *roup¶s incremental borroZing rate� 7he lease 
liability is subsequently increased by the amount of interest e[penses recogni]ed on the lease liability and reduced 
by the lease payments made� 
 
/ease liabilities are remeasured Zhen the future lease payments are changed due to the folloZing� 
- Changes in an inde[ or a rate� 
- Changes in amounts e[pected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees� 
- Changes in the assessment of Zhether a purchase option or an option to reneZ is reasonably certain to be 

e[ercised� or 
- Changes in the assessment of Zhether it is reasonably certain that an option to terminate the lease Zill not be 

e[ercised� 
 
Leases of low-value assets and short-term leases 
7he *roup applies the recognition e[emption for leases of loZ�value assets (e�g�, office supplies and I7 equipment) 
and short�term leases (i�e�, leases Zith a lease term of 12 months or less)� In these cases, lease payments are charged 
to profit or loss on a straight�line basis over the period of lease� 
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
(ii) Lessor accounting 
7he classification of leases is based on the e[tent to Zhich risks and reZards incidental to oZnership of a leased 
asset lie Zith the lessor� 
 
Finance lease 
/eases of assets Zhere the *roup has substantially all the risks and reZards of oZnership are classified as finance 
leases, and the *roup presents them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease� Also, 
initial direct cost that includes directly and additionally incurred commission fee, legal e[penses, and internal 
accrued costs are included in finance lease receivables� 7he *roup accounts for lease payment by apportioning into 
finance lease receivables and interest revenue, and interest revenue is recogni]ed using the (IR method on 
uncollected finance lease net investment� 

Operating lease 
A lease is classified as operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and reZards incidental to 
oZnership, and the related asset is presented as acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation� 0oreover, the 
minimum lease payment e[cluding guaranteed residual value is recogni]ed as revenue on a straight line basis over 
the lease term� Initial direct costs incurred by lessors in negotiating and arranging an operating lease shall be added 
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recogni]ed as an e[pense over the lease term, and the depreciation 
policy for depreciable leased assets shall be consistent Zith the lessors¶ normal depreciation policy for similar 
assets� 
 
�1�� ,mpairment of non-financial assets 
7he *roup tests for any evidence of impairment in assets and revieZs Zhether the impairment has taken place by 
estimating the recoverable amount, at the end of each reporting period� 7he *roup estimates the recoverable amount 
of each asset or a Zhole cash�generating unit unless it is possible to estimate the amount of the asset in that unit� 
7he recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less cost and value in use, of an asset� 7he *roup recogni]es 
the difference betZeen the carrying amount and the recoverable amount of the asset as an impairment loss if the 
carrying amount e[ceeds the recoverable amount�  
 
Any goodZill arising on the acquisition of a business is allocated to each cash�generating unit that is e[pected to 
gain the benefits of the synergy effect� Impairment on cash�generating unit deducts other assets in proportion to 
their carrying amounts after deducting the carrying amount of goodZill allocated in that unit� Impairment loss on 
goodZill cannot be reversed once it is recogni]ed�  
 
([cept for impairment losses in respect of goodZill that are never reversed, an impairment loss is reversed if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount� 7he reversal is limited so that the 
carrying amount of the asset does not e[ceed its recoverable amount, nor e[ceeds the carrying amount that Zould 
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogni]ed for the asset in prior years�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 

�1�� $ssets held for sale 
1on�current assets (or disposal groups) that are e[pected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through 
continuing use, are classified as held for sale� In order to be classified as held for sale, the asset (or disposal groups) 
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale must be highly probable� 7he assets (or 
disposal groups) that are classified as assets held for sale are measured at the loZer of their carrying amount and 
fair value less cost to sell�  
 

7he *roup recogni]es an impairment loss for any initial or subsequent Zrite�doZn of an asset (or disposal groups) 
to fair value less costs to sell, and a gain for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell, up to the 
cumulative impairment loss previously recogni]ed�  
 
1on�current assets that are classified as held for sale or part of a disposal group classified as held for sale are not 
depreciated (or amorti]ed)�  
 
�1�� Non-deriYatiYe financial liabilities 
7he *roup classifies non�derivative financial liabilities into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
or other financial liabilities in accordance Zith the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of 
financial liability� 7he *roup recogni]es these financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position 
Zhen the *roup becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial liability�  

(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the current year include financial liabilities held for trading 
and financial liabilities designated at F97P/ upon initial recognition� Financial liabilities and derivatives are 
classified as financial instruments held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 
future� Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at F97P/ upon initial recognition, if the profit or 
loss from the liabilities indicates to be more purpose�appropriate to be recogni]ed as profit or loss� Financial 
liabilities at F97P/ are designated at fair value in subsequent measurements, and any related un�reali]ed profit or 
loss is recogni]ed as profit or loss� 
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 

(ii) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 
Financial liabilities measured at amorti]ed cost are recogni]ed at fair value less cost less transaction cost upon initial 
recognition, and subsequently at amorti]ed costs� 7he difference betZeen the proceeds (net of transaction cost) and 
the redemption value is recogni]ed in the statement of comprehensive income over the periods of the liabilities 
using the (IR�  
 
Fees paid on the establishment of a loan facility are recogni]ed as transaction costs of the loan, if the probability 
that some or all of the facility Zill be draZn doZn is high� 7he amount is deferred until the financial liability Zould 
be ZithdraZn� If, hoZever, there is not enough evidence to conclude a draZ�doZn of some or all of the facility Zill 
occur, the fee is capitali]ed as a prepayment for liquidity services and amorti]ed over the period of the facility to 
Zhich it relates�  

 
(iii) De-recognition of financial liabilities 
A financial liability is de�recogni]ed Zhen the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or e[pires� 
When an e[isting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an e[isting liability are substantially modified, such an e[change or modification is treated as a de�
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a neZ liability� 7he difference betZeen the carrying value 
of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recogni]ed in profit or loss� 
 
�1�� Employee benefits 
(i) Short-term employee benefits 
Short�term employee benefits are employee benefits that are due to be settled Zholly before 12 months after the 
end of the reporting period in Zhich the employees render the related service� When an employee has rendered 
service to the *roup during an accounting period, the *roup recogni]es the undiscounted amount of short�term 
employee benefits e[pected to be paid in e[change for that service�  
 
(ii) Retirement benefits: defined contribution plans 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under Zhich the *roup pays fi[ed contributions into a separate fund� 
7he *roup is no longer responsible for any foreseeable future liability after a certain amount or percentage of money 
is set aside for defined contribution plans� If the pension plan alloZs for early retirement, payments are recogni]ed 
as employee benefits� If the contribution already paid e[ceeds the contribution due for service before the end of the 
reporting period, the *roup recogni]es that e[cess as an asset to the e[tent that the prepayment Zill lead to a 
reduction in future payments or a cash refund� 

(iii) Retirement benefits: defined benefit plans 
7he *roup classifies all the pensions as defined benefit plans e[cept defined contribution plans� 7he *roup¶s net 
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees 
have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets� 
7he calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit 
credit method� 7he present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outfloZs using interest rates of high�quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in Zhich the 
benefits Zill be paid, and have terms to maturity similar to the terms of the related pension liability� 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities (assets), Zhich comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return 
on plan assets (e[cluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, e[cluding interest), are recogni]ed 
immediately in other comprehensive income�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 

�1�� 3roYisions 
Provisions are recogni]ed Zhen the *roup has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, 
it is probable that an outfloZ of resources embodying economic benefits Zill be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation�  
 
�19� )inancial guarantees 
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer (the *roup) to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments Zhen due, in accordance 
Zith the original or changed terms of a debt instrument� Financial guarantees are initially recogni]ed in the financial 
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee Zas given�  
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, the *roup¶s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher of� 
 
- 7he amount determined in accordance Zith K�IFRS 1109 ‘Financial Instruments’ and  
- 7he initial amount recogni]ed, less, Zhen appropriate, cumulative amorti]ation recogni]ed in accordance Zith 

K�IFRS 1115 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’� 
 
�20� 6ecurities under resale or repurchase agreements 
Securities purchased under agreements to resell are recorded as other loans and receivables and the related interest 
from these securities is recorded as interest income� Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are recorded as 
borroZings, and the related interest from these securities is recorded as interest e[pense�  
 
�21� 3olicy reserYes for insurance contracts 
In accordance Zith the Insurance Business Act and related insurance standards, the *roup is required to maintain 
policy reserves, Zhich consist of premium reserve, unearned premium reserve, reserve for outstanding claims, 
reserve for participating policyholders¶ dividends, e[cess participating policyholders¶ dividend reserve and reserve 
for loss on participating insurance policies, as a liability Zhich is measured in accordance Zith the Manual for 
Calculation of Premium and Policy Reserves as approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission� Details are as 
folloZs� 

(i) Premium reserve 
Premium reserve represents an amount calculated based on a net premium valuation, Zhich is the greater of an 
amount calculated by using the standard interest rate and standard risk rate issued by the Financial Supervisory 
Service (FSS), and an amount calculated using an internally generated rate derived by the *roup� If the reserve is 
at ]ero or less, the amount is to be recorded at nil� 

(ii) Unearned premium reserve 
8nearned premium reserve represents an amount allocated for certain premiums Zhose initial payment date falls 
Zithin the current reporting period and future payments, if any, fall subsequent to the end of the reporting period�  

(iii) Guaranteed benefit reserve 
*uaranteed benefit reserve guarantees a certain level of the insurance claims considering e[pected loss in the future� 
7he *roup¶s guaranteed benefit reserve consists of the folloZing�

- *uaranteed minimum accumulation benefit� reserves that guarantee financial resources for the pension benefit 
amount that equals to the predetermined value in the contract�  

- *uaranteed minimum death benefit� reserves that guarantee death benefit amount that equals to the 
predetermined value in the contract�  

- *uaranteed minimum ZithdraZal benefit� reserves that guarantee the interim ZithdraZals amount that equals to 
the predetermined value in the contract during the period for interim ZithdraZals�  

- *uaranteed lifetime ZithdraZal benefit� reserves that guarantee the interim ZithdraZals amount that equals to 
the predetermined value in the contract during lifetime�  

- 2ther guaranteed benefits� guaranteed benefit reserves other than those listed above for a guarantee of insurance 
proceeds in e[cess of a certain level�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 

(iv) Reserve for outstanding claims 
Reserve for outstanding claims represents a reserve based on estimate of loss for insured events that have occurred 
prior to the reporting date but have not yet been settled or determined, including�

- 2utstanding losses� losses that have been reported to the insurer but are still in the process of settlement (in cases 
Zhere a claim is partially paid, the remnant is reported)�  

- Incurred but not reported (IB1R)� an estimate of the amount based on historical information of an insurer¶s 
liability for claim�generating events that have taken place but have not yet been reported to the insurer�  

- Reserve for lapsed insurance contracts� reserve for insurance cancellation refund for lapsed insurance contracts 
due to non�payment of insurance premium that still can be revived or deferred Zithin a certain period�  

- 2utstanding claims� legitimate claims, such as compensation, refund, dividend that an insurer has not yet paid 
to policy holder�  

(v) Reserve for participating policyholders’ dividends 
7he reserve for participating policyholders¶ dividends is classified into interest dividend reserve, mortality dividend 
reserve, interest rate difference guarantee reserve and long�term duration dividend reserve� 

(vi) Excess participating policyholders’ dividend reserve 
Pursuant to relevant laZs and contracts, the *roup may provide an e[cess participating policyholder dividend 
reserve based on the operating results of related insurance products� 7he reserve may be used to pay participating 
policyholder dividends or additional dividends� 

�22� Equity 
2rdinary shares are classified as equity� Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of ordinary shares 
and share options are recogni]ed as a deduction from equity, net of any ta[ effects�  
 
When the *roup repurchases its share capital, the amount of the consideration paid is recogni]ed as a deduction 
from equity and classified as treasury shares� 7he profits or loss from the purchase, disposal, reissue, or retirement 
of treasury shares are not recogni]ed as current profit or loss� If the *roup acquires and retains treasury shares, the 
consideration paid or received is directly recogni]ed in equity�  

�  
1on±controlling interests refer to equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent� 1on� 
controlling interests consist of the minority interest net income calculated under K�IFRS 1103 µBusiness 
Combinations’ at the date of the initial combination, and minority interest of changes in equity after the business 
combination�  
 
�23� *oYernment subsidy 
*overnment subsidy Zithout repayment obligation, Zhich is used for the acquisition of certain assets, is accounted 
for as a deduction from the acquisition cost of the acquired assets� Such subsidy amount is offset against the 
depreciation or amorti]ation of the acquired assets during such assets¶ useful life�  
 
�2�� ,nterest income and e[pense 
Interest income and e[pense are recogni]ed in profit or loss using the effective interest method� 7he effective 
interest method measures the amorti]ed costs of financial instruments and allocates the interest income or e[pense 
during the related period�  
 
8pon the calculation of the effective interest rate, the *roup estimates future cash floZs by taking into consideration 
all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit loss� 7he calculation also reflects any fees or 
points paid or received, transaction costs and any related premiums or discounts� In the case that the cash floZ and 
e[pected duration of a financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, the effective interest rate is calculated by 
the contractual cash floZ during the contract period�  
 
2nce an impairment loss has been recogni]ed on a financial asset or a group of similar assets, subsequent interest 
income is recogni]ed on the interest rate that Zas used to discount future cash floZ for measuring the impairment 
loss�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
�2�� )ees and commission income 
Fees and commission income and e[pense are classified as folloZs according to related regulations� 

(i) Fees and commission from financial instruments 
Fees and commission income and e[pense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or 
liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate� It includes those related to evaluation of the 
borroZers¶ financial status, guarantee, collateral, other agreements and related evaluation as Zell as business 
transaction, reZards for activities, such as document preparation and recording and setup fees incurred during 
issuance of financial liabilities� +oZever, Zhen financial instruments are classified as financial instruments at fair 
value through profit or loss, fees and commission are recogni]ed as revenue upon initial recognition�  
 
(ii) Fees and commission from services 
Fees and commission income charged in e[change for services to be performed during a certain period of time such 
as asset management fees, consignment fees and assurance service fees are recogni]ed as the related services are 
performed� When a loan commitment is not e[pected to result in the draZ�doZn of a loan and K�IFRS 1109 
‘Financial Instrument’ is not applied for the commitment, the related loan commitment fees are recogni]ed as 
revenue proportionally to time over the commitment period� 

(iii) Fees and commission from significant transaction 
Fees and commission from significant transactions, such as trading stocks and other securities, negotiation and 
mediation activities for third parties, for instance business transfer and takeover, are recogni]ed Zhen transactions 
are completed� 
 
�2�� DiYidend income 
Dividend income is recogni]ed upon the establishment of the *roup¶s right to receive the payment�  
 
�2�� ,ncome ta[ e[pense 
Income ta[ e[pense comprises current and deferred income ta[� Current income ta[ and deferred income ta[ are 
recogni]ed in profit or loss e[cept to the e[tent that the ta[ arises from a transaction or event, Zhich is recogni]ed 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, or a business combination�  
 
Deferred income ta[ assets and liabilities are measured at the ta[ rates that are e[pected to apply to the reporting 
period Zhen the assets are reali]ed or the liabilities settled, based on ta[ rates (and ta[ laZs) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period� 7he measurement of deferred income ta[ assets and 
liabilities reflects the income ta[ effects that Zould folloZ from the manner in Zhich the *roup e[pects, at the end 
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities�  
 
Subsidiaries calculate income ta[ based on their ta[ laZs and report the amount as current income ta[ liability�  
 
7he *roup recogni]es deferred income ta[ liabilities for all ta[able temporary differences associated Zith 
investments in subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, e[cept to the e[tent that the *roup is able to 
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference Zill 
not reverse in the foreseeable future� 7he *roup recogni]es deferred income ta[ assets for all deductible temporary 
differences arising from investments in associates, to the e[tent that it is probable that the temporary difference Zill 
reverse in the foreseeable future and ta[able profit Zill be available against Zhich the temporary difference can be 
utili]ed�  
 
7he carrying amount of a deferred income ta[ asset is revieZed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the e[tent that it is no longer probable that sufficient ta[able profit Zill be available to alloZ the benefit of part or 
all of that deferred income ta[ asset to be utili]ed�  

 
Deferred income ta[ assets and liabilities are offset only if the *roup has a legally enforceable right to offset the 
related current income ta[ assets and liabilities, and the assets and liabilities relate to income ta[ levied by the same 
ta[ authority and are intended to be settled on a net basis�  
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3�     6ignificant $ccounting 3olicies, &ontinued 
 
�2�� $ccounting for trust accounts 
7he *roup, for the purpose of financial reporting, differentiates trust assets from identifiable assets according to 
the Financial Investment Services and Capital Markets Act� Furthermore, the *roup receives trust fees from the 
application, management and disposal of trust assets, and appropriates such amounts for fees from trust accounts�  
 
0eanZhile, in the case the fee from an unspecified principal or interests guaranteed money in trust does not meet 
the principal or interest amount, even after appropriating deficit Zith trust fees and special reserve, the *roup fills 
in the remaining deficit in the trust account and appropriates such amounts for losses on trust accounts�  
  
�29� 5egulatory reserYe for credit losses 
When the total sum of alloZance for possible credit losses under K�IFRS is loZer than the amount prescribed in 
Article 29(1) of the Regulations on Supervision of Banking Business, the *roup records the difference as a 
regulatory reserve for credit losses at the end of each reporting period�  
 
In the case that the e[isting regulatory reserve for credit losses e[ceeds the amount needed to be set aside at the 
reporting date, the surplus may be reversed� Furthermore, in the case that undisposed deficit e[ists, a regulatory 
reserve for credit losses is saved from the time the undisposed deficit is disposed�  
 
�30� Earnings per share 
7he *roup represents its diluted and basic earnings per common share in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income� Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit attributable to shareholders of 
the *roup by the Zeighted average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting period� Diluted 
earnings per share is calculated by adjusting net profit attributable to common shareholders of the *roup, 
considering dilution effects from all potential common shares, and the Zeighted average number of common shares 
outstanding�  

 
�31� &orrection of errors 
Prior period errors shall be corrected by retrospective restatement in the first set of financial statements authorised 
for issue after their discovery e[cept to the e[tent that it is impracticable to determine either the period�specific 
effects or the cumulative effect of the error�  
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��     &ash and Due from %anNs 
 

(1) Cash and due from banks as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Cash W 481,957 306,152
Due from banks in Korean Zon� 

Due from Bank of Korea 4,140,277 1,824,441
2ther due from banks in Korean Zon 1,459,803 1,338,157
 5,600,080 3,162,598

Due from banks in foreign currencies � off�
shores 5,712,200 4,292,494

 W 11,794,237 7,761,244
 

(2) Restricted due from banks as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Reserve deposit  W 3,052,883 1,885,915
Deposit of monetary stabili]ation account 1,300,000 150,000
2thers 24,882 636,084
 W 4,377,765 2,671,999
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��      6ecurities 0easured at )9T3/ 
 

(1) Details of securities in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as folloZs� 

 
December 31, 2020 

 Face value Acquisition cost  

Fair value 
(Carrying 
amounts)

Securities denominated in Korean Zon�   
Stocks W � 1,805,913  1,608,553
(quity investments � 1,143,494  1,256,376
Beneficiary certificates � 4,609,771  4,660,556
*overnment and public bonds 1,109,950 1,116,707  1,103,304
Financial bonds 58,900 59,052  59,325
Corporate bonds 459,649 457,167  525,734
Commercial paper 35,000 34,794  34,790
2thers 431,875 346,999  378,354
 2,095,374 9,573,897  9,626,992

Securities denominated in foreign currencies�off�
shores�   

Stocks � 7,491  6,875
(quity investments � 33,975  21,371
Beneficiary certificates � 541,129  547,905
Debt securities 56,399 57,330  59,686
 56,399 639,925  635,837

 W 2,151,773 10,213,822  10,262,829
 

December 31, 2019 

 Face value Acquisition cost  

Fair value 
(Carrying 
amounts)

Securities denominated in Korean Zon�   
Stocks W � 1,616,251  1,494,228
(quity investments � 1,048,104  1,078,996
Beneficiary certificates � 5,105,646  5,008,421
*overnment and public bonds 1,450,000 1,450,337  1,445,558
Financial bonds 1,744,741 1,739,381  1,746,258
Corporate bonds 825,295 805,329  836,307
Commercial paper 45,000 44,422  44,399
2thers 473,398 412,689  443,805
 4,538,434 12,222,159  12,097,972

Securities denominated in foreign currencies�off�
shores�   

Stocks � 3,885  3,958
(quity investments � 28,431  24,408
Beneficiary certificates � 523,598  520,283
Debt securities 631,659 632,714  645,224
 631,659 1,188,628  1,193,873

 W 5,170,093 13,410,787  13,291,845
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��      6ecurities 0easured at )9T3/, &ontinued 
 
(2) (quity securities Zith disposal restrictions in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December 

31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs�  
 

Company 

December 31, 2020 
1umber of 

shares
Carrying 
amount  Restricted period

1ational +appiness Fund Co�, /td� 34,066 W 66,934 8ndecided
Shinhan 0etal Co�, /td� 7,692 � 8ntil December 31, 2021
 41,758 W 66,934  
 

Company 

December 31, 2019 
1umber of 

shares
Carrying 
amount  Restricted period

1ational +appiness Fund Co�, /td� 34,066 W 73,320 8ndecided
Shinhan 0etal Co�, /td� 7,692 � 8ndecided
 41,758 W 73,320  
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��      6ecurities 0easured at )92&, 
 

(1) Details of securities measured at F92CI as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

December 31, 2020 

 Face value Acquisition cost  

Fair value 
(Carrying 
amounts)

Securities denominated in Korean Zon�   
Stocks and equity investments W � 9,981,260  10,072,534
*overnment and public bonds 1,900,000 1,929,183  1,923,942
Financial bonds 4,230,000 4,236,741  4,237,990
Corporate bonds 7,529,684 7,531,543  7,517,545
2thers 1,940,385 1,937,036  4,602,818

 15,600,069 25,615,763  28,354,829
Securities denominated in foreign currencies�off�
shores�   

Stocks � 6,068  1,187
Debt securities 6,075,435 6,180,134  6,274,837
 6,075,435 6,186,202  6,276,024

/oaned securities 290,000 289,641  289,806
 W 21,965,504 32,091,606  34,920,659
 

December 31, 2019 

 Face value Acquisition cost  

Fair value 
(Carrying 
amounts)

Securities denominated in Korean Zon�   
Stocks and equity investments W � 10,010,625  10,113,791
*overnment and public bonds 4,952,075 4,257,816  4,338,314
Financial bonds 2,890,000 2,897,780  2,898,724
Corporate bonds 6,379,576 6,402,229  6,435,275
2thers 1,443,052 1,448,953  1,143,149

 15,664,703 25,017,403  24,929,253
Securities denominated in foreign currencies�off�
shores�   

Stocks � 4,665  1,643
Debt securities 6,542,442 6,623,922  6,978,134
2thers 43,574 43,564  43,576
 6,586,016 6,672,151  7,023,353

/oaned securities 40,000 40,005  40,059
 W 22,290,719 31,729,559  31,992,665
 
(quity instruments that are held by acquisition due to conversion from debt instruments, investment in kind and 
investment in ventures and S0(s are designated as measured at F92CI� 7he reali]ed pre�ta[ income and loss on 
disposal of equity securities for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are the amount of W48,186 million 
of loss and W28,023 million of gain, respectively, Zhich is directly recogni]ed in retained earnings� 
 

 
 
 

 
  



��� ,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


/oUFT�Uo�UIF�$oOToMJdBUFd�'JOBOcJBM�4UBUFNFOUT
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019  
(In millions of Zon) 
 

44 

��      6ecurities 0easured at )92&,, &ontinued 
 
(2) Changes in securities measured at F92CI for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 2020 2019 
Beginning balance W 31,992,665 30,277,386
Acquisition 58,105,098 26,126,057
Disposal  (50,940,708) (24,641,676)
Change due to amorti]ation (47,692) (6,416)
Change in fair value 3,039,746 40,785
Reclassification (
1) (6,794,338) (38,779)
Foreign e[change differences (447,826) 192,910
2thers (
2) 13,714 42,398
(nding balance W 34,920,659 31,992,665

 
(
1) 7he amount arising from the effect that securities measured at F92CI held by KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td� 

are transferred to assets�held for sale is included�  
(
2) For the year ended December 31, 2020, others represent the increase in securities measured at F92CI including 

shares of S2/80 C2�, /7D� acquired through e[ercise of conversion rights of the convertible bonds, shares of 
P2SC2 P/A17(C C2�, /7D� and +igh *ain Antenna Co�, /td� acquired pursuant to decision of the Council 
of Financial Creditors under the Corporate Restructuring Promotion Act, and shares of Barun (lectronics Co�, 
/td�, S7((//IF( Co�, C�PR2 (/(C7R21ICS C2�, /7D�, Dong�A 7anker Co� S(2K-I1 (	7 C2�, /7D�, 
Sung Chang Inter Fashion Co� /td� and others acquired in accordance Zith the rehabilitation plan under the 
Debtor Rehabilitation and Bankruptcy Act� For the year ended December 31, 2019, others represent the increase 
in securities measured at F92CI including shares of (copro B0 Co�, /td�, Kuk�Il Paper 0F* Co�, /td�, 
7R8WI1 Co�, /td�, Solid, Inc� and others acquired through e[ercise of conversion rights of the convertible 
bonds� 

 
 
 

 
  



���Introduction Sustainability ReviewBusiness Review Financial Review

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019  
(In millions of Zon) 
 

45 

��      6ecurities 0easured at )92&,, &ontinued 
 

(3) (quity securities Zith disposal restrictions in securities measured at F92CI as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs�  

 

Company 

December 31, 2020 
1umber of 

shares
Carrying 
amount  Restricted period

8A0C2�, /td� 113,050 W 150,244 8ndecided
+igh *ain Antenna Co�,/td� 18,138 � 8ndecided
(1*I1( 7(C+ C2�,/7D� 500,000 1 8ndecided
7aihan (lectric Wire Co�, /td� (
1) 15,892,055 21,772 8ndecided
P2SC2 P/A17(C C2�,/7D 1,838,744 2,468 8ntil -une 9, 2021
CR(A I1 Co�, /td� 14,383 140 8ntil December 21, 2021
Kumho 7ire Co�, Inc� 21,339,320 80,769 8ntil -uly 6, 2023 (
)
 39,715,690 W 255,394  
 

Company 

December 31, 2019 
1umber of 

shares
Carrying 
amount  Restricted period

8A0C2�, /td� 85,050 W 122,850 8ndecided
(1*I1( 7(C+ C2�,/7D� 500,000 77 8ndecided
7aihan (lectric Wire Co�, /td� (
1) 15,892,055 9,790 8ndecided
CR(A I1 Co�, /td� 14,383 56 8ntil December 21, 2021
Kumho 7ire Co�, Inc� 21,339,320 89,518 8ntil -uly 6, 2023 (
)
 37,830,808 W 222,291  
 
 (
) From -uly 6, 2021, 50� of the shares may be sold every year� 
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��      6ecurities 0easured at )92&,, &ontinued 
 
(4) Changes in the loss alloZance in relation to securities measured at F92CI for the years ended December 31, 

2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 4,062 265 70,976 75,303
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  3 (3) �  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
debt securities  (361) 361 �  �

Provision for loss alloZance  6,779 300 60  7,139
Disposal  (864) � �  (864)
Foreign currency translation  (62) � (667)  (729)
2thers  (339) 435 985  1,081
(nding balance W 9,218 1,358 71,354  81,930
 
  2019
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 5,675 2,318 70,135 78,128
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  25 (25) �  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
debt securities  (116) 116 �  �

Provision (reversal) for loss 
alloZance  361 (42) (1,805)  (1,486)

Disposal  (1,699) (2,125) �  (3,824)
Foreign currency translation  117 � 2,588  2,705
2thers  (301) 23 58  (220)
(nding balance W 4,062 265 70,976  75,303
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��      6ecurities 0easured at $morti]ed &ost 
 

(1) Securities measured at amorti]ed cost as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020 
 Amorti]ed cost Fair value
Securities denominated in Korean Zon�  

*overnment and public bonds W 665,183 665,183
Financial bonds 120,089 120,089
Corporate bonds 1,336,739 1,332,528
 2,122,011 2,117,800

Securities denominated in foreign currencies�
Corporate bonds 2,705 2,678
 2,124,716 2,120,478

/ess� 
/oss alloZance  (4,247)

 W 2,120,469
 

 December 31, 2019 
 Amorti]ed cost Fair value
Securities denominated in Korean Zon�  

*overnment and public bonds W 1,525,169 1,578,384
Financial bonds 1,290,408 1,291,538
Corporate bonds 1,301,954 1,359,535
2thers 2 2
 4,117,533 4,229,459

Securities denominated in foreign currencies�
Corporate bonds 1,436,633 1,468,650
 5,554,166 5,698,109

/ess� 
/oss alloZance  (2,566)

 W 5,551,600
 
 

(2) Changes in securities measured at amorti]ed cost for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 2020 2019 
Beginning balance W 5,551,600 5,691,616
Acquisition 1,957,404 747,812
Redemption (1,373,805) (936,626)
Change due to amorti]ation (4,388) 5,504
Impairment loss (4,218) (368)
Foreign e[change differences (1,036) 43,486
Reclassification, etc� (
) (4,005,088) 176
(nding balance W 2,120,469 5,551,600

 
(
) 7he amount arising from the effect that securities measured at amorti]ed cost held by KDB /ife Insurance Co�, 

 /td� are transferred to assets�held for sale is included� 
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��      /oans 0easured at )9T3/ 
 

(1) /oans measured at F97P/ as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 December 31, 2020 

 Amorti]ed cost
Fair value 

(Carrying amounts)
/oans in Korean Zon�  

Privately placed corporate bonds W 795,871 1,429,258
 

/oans in foreign currencies� 
Privately placed corporate bonds 5,440 5,256

 W 801,311 1,434,514
 
 December 31, 2019 

 Amorti]ed cost
Fair value 

(Carrying amounts)
/oans in Korean Zon�  

Privately placed corporate bonds W 600,845 604,380
2thers 866 697

 W 601,711 605,077
 
(2) *ains (losses) related to loans measured at F97P/ for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 

folloZs� 
 
 2020  2019 
7ransaction gains (losses) on loans measured at F97P/   

7ransaction gains W 4,568  23,456
7ransaction losses (29,155)  (27,231)
 (24,587)  (3,775)

9aluation gains (losses) on loans measured at F97P/   
9aluation gains 676,776  59,719
9aluation losses (27,509)  (16,798)
 649,267  42,921

 W 624,680  39,146
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9�      /oans 0easured at $morti]ed &ost 
 

(1) /oans measured at amorti]ed cost and alloZance for loan losses as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 
folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020 
 Amorti]ed cost Fair value
/oans in Korean Zon�  

/oans for Zorking capital W 62,257,692 60,678,018
/oans for facility development 54,897,048 54,311,725
/oans for households 354,439 353,405
Inter�bank loans 2,670,389 2,548,865
2thers 1,744 �

 120,181,312 117,892,013
/oans in foreign currencies� 

/oans 19,178,966 18,799,178
Inter�bank loans 1,405,661 1,405,233
2ff�shore loans  14,417,420 14,107,277

 35,002,047 34,311,688
2ther loans� 

Bills bought in foreign currency 2,200,873 2,199,989
Advances for customers on acceptances and 
guarantees 

39,649 4,966

Privately placed corporate bonds 2,107,036 2,154,257
Credit card loans 138,903 138,001
2thers 6,666,641 6,529,642

 11,153,102 11,026,855
 166,336,461 163,230,556

/ess� 
AlloZance for loan losses (3,167,078)
Present value discount (15,906)
Deferred loan origination costs and fees (2,188)

 W 163,151,289
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9�      /oans 0easured at $morti]ed &ost, &ontinued 
 
 December 31, 2019 
 Amorti]ed cost Fair value
/oans in Korean Zon�  

/oans for Zorking capital W 53,819,927 53,955,925
/oans for facility development 49,267,067 49,756,842
/oans for households 1,530,825 1,523,860
Inter�bank loans 2,300,258 2,273,821
2thers 29,514 29,358

 106,947,591 107,539,806
/oans in foreign currencies� 

/oans 17,578,569 18,845,338
Inter�bank loans 2,528,386 2,998,415
2ff�shore loans  14,227,196 14,427,038

 34,334,151 36,270,791
2ther loans� 

Bills bought in foreign currency 1,967,950 1,962,596
Advances for customers on acceptances and 
guarantees 170,424 16,050

Privately placed corporate bonds 1,559,308 1,330,455
Credit card loans 140,185 139,671
2thers 6,688,399 6,776,216

 10,526,266 10,224,988
 151,808,008 154,035,585

/ess� 
AlloZance for loan losses (2,465,546)
Present value discount (15,832)
Deferred loan origination costs and fees (4,779)

 W 149,321,851
 

(2) Changes in alloZance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 193,262 294,075 1,978,209 2,465,546
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  60,610 (60,610) �  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
loans  (257,700) 282,759 (25,059)  �

7ransfer to credit�impaired loans  (91,309) (129,240) 220,549  �
Provision for (reversal of) loss 
alloZance   780,611 138,539 311,912  1,231,062

Write�offs  � � (158,617)  (158,617)
Recovery  � � 54,239  54,239
Sale  � � (273,818)  (273,818)
Debt�to�equity sZap  � � (415,141)  (415,141)
Foreign currency translation  (2,607) (11,825) (8,663)  (23,095)
2ther  (20,677) 151,320 156,259  286,902
(nding balance W 662,190 665,018 1,839,870  3,167,078
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9�      /oans 0easured at $morti]ed &ost, &ontinued 
 

  2019
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 191,557 1,127,118 1,503,103 2,821,778
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  15,553 (15,338) (215)  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
loans  (54,486) 58,810 (4,324)  �

7ransfer to credit�impaired loans  (136,075) (294,658) 430,733  �
Provision for (reversal of) loss 
alloZance   175,196 (637,343) 655,433  193,286

Write�offs  � � (185,496)  (185,496)
Recovery  � � 23,960  23,960
Sale  � � (241,150)  (241,150)
Debt�to�equity sZap  � � (231,880)  (231,880)
Foreign currency translation  1,057 13,685 11,221  25,963
2ther  460 41,801 16,824  59,085
(nding balance W 193,262 294,075 1,978,209  2,465,546

 
(3) /osses related to loans measured at amorti]ed cost for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 

folloZs� 
 
 2020 2019
Provision for loan losses W (1,231,062)  (180,761)
/osses on disposal of loan (105,615)  (96,251)

W (1,336,677)  (277,012)
 

(4) Changes in net deferred loan origination costs and fees for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 
folloZs� 

 
 2020 2019 
Beginning balance W (4,779)  4,821
1eZ deferrals 8,164 848
Amorti]ation (5,573)  (10,448)
(nding balance W (2,188) (4,779)
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments 
 

7he *roup¶s derivative financial instruments consist of trading derivatives and hedging derivatives, depending on 
the nature of each transaction� 7he *roup enters into hedging derivative transactions mainly for the purpose of 
hedging risk related to changes in fair values of the underlying assets and liabilities and future cash floZs�  
 
7he *roup enters into trading derivative transactions such as futures, forZards, sZaps and options for arbitrage 
transactions by speculating on the future value of the underlying asset� 7rading derivative transactions include 
contracts Zith the *roup¶s clients and its liquidation position�  
 
For the purpose of hedging the e[posure to the variability of fair values and future cash floZs of funds in Korean 
Zon by changes in interest rate, the *roup mainly uses interest sZaps or currency sZaps� 7he main counterparties 
are foreign financial institutions and local banks� In addition, to hedge the e[posure to the variability of fair values 
of bonds in foreign currencies by changes in interest rate or foreign e[change rate, the *roup mainly uses interest 
sZaps or currency sZaps�  
 
7he *roup applies net investment hedge accounting by designating non�derivative financial instruments as hedging 
instruments and any gain or loss on the hedging instruments relating to the effective portion of the hedge is 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve� 
 
*ains and losses on the hedging instrument accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified 
to profit or loss on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation� 
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments, &ontinued 
 
(1) 7he notional amounts outstanding for derivative contracts and the carrying amounts of the derivative financial 

instruments as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 
  1otional amounts (
1) Carrying amounts (
1)
  Buy Sell Assets  /iabilities
7rading purpose derivative financial 
instruments�  

Interest rate   
Futures W 55,000 151,200 �  �
SZaps  186,881,107 186,700,721 1,483,641  811,318
2ptions  9,055,649 12,890,976 291,068  329,946
  195,991,756 199,742,897 1,774,709  1,141,264

Currency    
Futures  16,320 � �  �
ForZards  54,363,673 50,035,649 1,843,094  2,302,127
SZaps  50,665,402 57,238,202 3,272,004  2,630,899
2ptions  422,146 403,029 2,909  5,299

  105,467,541 107,676,880 5,118,007  4,938,325
Stock    
2ptions  53,571 7,315 12,511  661

    
2thers  866 � �  �
AlloZance and other adjustments  � � (6,288)  (870)

 301,513,734 307,427,092 6,898,939  6,079,380
+edging purpose derivative financial 
instruments�    

Interest rate (
2)    
SZaps  19,235,289 19,235,289 885,364  20,508

Currency    
SZaps  8,308,800 7,985,902 538,464  70,506

AlloZance and other adjustments  � � (517)  (4,383)
  27,544,089 27,221,191 1,423,311  86,631
 W 329,057,823 334,648,283 8,322,250  6,166,011
 
(
1) Derivative financial assets and liabilities of DeaZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering Co�, /td� and KDB 

/ife Insurance Co�, /td� classified as assets and liabilities held for sale as of December 31, 2020, are e[cluded� 
(
2) 7he e[pected ma[imum period for Zhich derivative contracts, applied the cash floZ hedge accounting, are 

e[posed to risk of cash floZ fluctuation is until April 29, 2025� 
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments, &ontinued 
 
  December 31, 2019 
  1otional amounts (
1) Carrying amounts (
1)
  Buy Sell Assets  /iabilities
7rading purpose derivative financial 
instruments�  

Interest rate   
Futures W � 1,885,190 �  �
SZaps  220,854,055 220,541,918 1,206,945  703,839
2ptions  7,480,126 12,736,326 246,636  312,188
  228,334,181 235,163,434 1,453,581  1,016,027

Currency    
Futures  17,367 � �  �
ForZards  87,879,331 85,584,411 1,760,955  1,535,811
SZaps  51,179,697 56,571,297 1,238,629  1,427,303
2ptions  214,646 171,284 1,134  2,813

  139,291,041 142,326,992 3,000,718  2,965,927
Stock    
Futures  � 3,563 �  �
2ptions  59,964 89,672 20,955  641

  59,964 93,235 20,955  641
2thers  866 � �  �
AlloZance and other adjustments  � � (5,080)  (622)

 367,686,052 377,583,661 4,470,174  3,981,973
+edging purpose derivative financial 
instruments�    

Interest rate (
2)    
SZaps  22,409,724 22,409,724 827,858  16,913

Currency    
ForZards  � 481,716 10,595  4,785
SZaps  7,681,686 10,322,324 98,168  185,721
  7,681,686 10,804,040 108,763  190,506

AlloZance and other adjustments  � � (791)  (4,788)
  30,091,410 33,213,764 935,830  202,631
 W 397,777,462 410,797,425 5,406,004  4,184,604
 
(
1) Derivative financial assets and liabilities of DeaZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering Co�, /td� classified 

as assets and liabilities held for sale as of December 31, 2019, are e[cluded� 
(
2) 7he e[pected ma[imum period for Zhich derivative contracts, applied the cash floZ hedge accounting, are 

e[posed to risk of cash floZ fluctuation is until August 28, 2029� 
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments, &ontinued 
 
(2) 7he notional amounts outstanding for the hedging instruments by period as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 

are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020

 
Within 1 
month 

1a3  
months

3a12  
months

1a5 
years  

2ver 5  
years  7otal

Interest rate�     
SZaps W 100,512 304,187 3,213,287 10,973,695  4,643,608  19,235,289

Currency�      
SZaps 77,504 290,040 1,851,289 5,711,249  378,718  8,308,800

 
 December 31, 2019

 
Within 1 
month 

1a3  
months

3a12  
months

1a5 
years  

2ver 5  
years  7otal

Interest rate�     
SZaps W 86,603 1,204,456 3,751,455 10,354,523  7,012,687  22,409,724

Currency�      
SZaps 60,099 58,009 1,734,965 8,051,067  418,184  10,322,324
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments, &ontinued 
 

(3) Details of the balances of the hedging instruments by risk type as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 
folloZs� 

 
  December 31, 2020
  1otional amounts Balances  Changes 

in fair value 
for 2020  Buy Sell Assets /iabilities  

Cash floZ hedge 
accounting�    
Interest rate risk    

SZaps W 76,160 76,160 � �  23
    
Fair value hedge 
accounting�     
Interest rate risk    

SZaps  19,159,129 19,159,129 885,364 20,508  352,413
Currency risk    

SZaps  8,308,800 7,985,902 538,464 70,506  490,063
  27,467,929 27,145,031 1,423,828 91,014  842,476
 W 27,544,089 27,221,191 1,423,828 91,014  842,499

 
  December 31, 2019
  1otional amounts Balances  Changes 

in fair value 
for 2019  Buy Sell Assets /iabilities  

Cash floZ hedge 
accounting�    
Interest rate risk    

SZaps W 340,000 340,000 � 508  302
Currency risk    

SZaps  � 186,467 1,796 �  1,289
  340,000 526,467 1,796 508  1,591
Fair value hedge 
accounting�     
Interest rate risk    

SZaps  22,069,724 22,069,724 827,858 16,405  490,938
Currency risk    

ForZards  � 481,716 10,595 4,785  30,983
SZaps  7,681,686 10,135,857 96,372 185,721  (19,778)

  7,681,686 10,617,573 106,967 190,506  11,205
  29,751,410 32,687,297 934,825 206,911  502,143
 W 30,091,410 33,213,764 936,621 207,419  503,734
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments, &ontinued 
 

(4) Details of the balances of the hedged items by risk type as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020

 Carrying amounts
Adjustments from fair value 

hedge accounting  

Changes 
in fair value 

for 2020 

 
2ther 

comprehen�
sive 

income for 
cash floZ 

hedge Assets /iabilities Assets /iabilities   
Cash floZ hedge 

accounting�     
Interest rate risk     

Debt debentures W � 76,160 � �  �  47
Fair value hedge 

accounting�     
Interest rate risk     

Securities measured at 
F92CI 2,460,255 � 28,845 �  57,816  �

Debt debentures � 18,549,949 � 628,869  (396,922)  �
2ther liabilities 

(Deposits, etc�) � 120,394 � 11,594  (8,770)  �
 2,460,255 18,670,343 28,845 640,463  (347,876)  �

Currency risk      
Debt debentures � 8,413,087 � 24,675  (503,895)  �

 2,460,255 27,083,430 28,845 665,138  (851,771)  �
 W 2,460,255 27,159,590 28,845 665,138  (851,771)  47
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments, &ontinued 
 

 December 31, 2019 

 Carrying amounts
Adjustments from fair value 

hedge accounting  

Changes 
in fair value 

for 2019 

 
2ther 

comprehen�
sive 

income for 
cash floZ 

hedge Assets /iabilities Assets /iabilities   
Cash floZ hedge 

accounting�     
Interest rate risk     

Debt debentures W � 340,000 � �  �  644
Currency risk      

Securities measured at 
F92CI  186,467 � � �  (1,289)  (403)

  186,467 340,000 � �  (1,289)  241
Fair value hedge 

accounting�     
Interest rate risk     

Securities measured at 
F92CI 2,460,824 � 12,483 �  48,291  �

Debt debentures � 29,448,480 � 288,377  (513,063)  �
2ther liabilities 

(Deposits, etc�) � 118,785 � 3,005  (9,424)  �
 2,460,824 29,567,265 12,483 291,382  (474,196)  �

Currency risk (
)     
Securities measured at 

F92CI 960,928 � (4,972) �  (4,972)  �
Debt debentures � 9,384,387 � 43,847  15,932  �

 960,928 9,384,387 (4,972) 43,847  10,960  �
 3,421,752 38,951,652 7,511 335,229  (463,236)  �
 W 3,608,219 39,291,652 7,511 335,229  (464,525)  241

 
(
) 7he case that firm commitments, etc� are designated as hedged items is e[cluded� 
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10�    DeriYatiYe )inancial ,nstruments, &ontinued 
 

(5) Details of hedge ineffectiveness recogni]ed in profit or loss from derivatives for the years ended December 31, 
2020 and 2019 is as folloZs� 

 
 2020 2019 
Interest rate risk W 4,537 16,742
Currency risk (
) (13,832) 22,165
 W (9,295) 38,907
(
) 7he case that firm commitments, etc� are designated as hedged items is e[cluded� 

 
(6) 7he summary of the amounts that have affected the statement of comprehensive income as a result of applying 

cash floZ hedge accounting for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as folloZs� 
 
  2020 

  

Change in the value of the 
hedging instrument 
recogni]ed in other 

comprehensive income

+edge ineffectiveness 
recogni]ed in profit or 

loss (
)  

Amount reclassified from 
other comprehensive 

income to profit or loss (
)
Interest rate risk and 
currency risk W 47 (24) 403

 
  2019 

  

Change in the value of the 
hedging instrument 
recogni]ed in other 

comprehensive income

+edge ineffectiveness 
recogni]ed in profit or 

loss (
)  

Amount reclassified from 
other comprehensive 

income to profit or loss (
)
Interest rate risk and 
currency risk W 1,589 2 1,876

(
) Recogni]ed in gains or losses related to hedging purpose derivatives� 
 

(7) Details of net investments in foreign operations for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs�  
 
  2020 

  Changes in fair value

2ther comprehensive income (loss) for 
hedges of a net investment 

in a foreign operation 
Currency (foreign e[change risk) W (43,437) 48,975
 
  2019 

  Changes in fair value

2ther comprehensive income (loss) for 
hedges of a net investment 

in a foreign operation 
Currency (foreign e[change risk) W (5,538) 5,538
 

(8) Detail of hedging instruments in hedge of net investment in a foreign operation as of December 31, 2020 and 
2019 is as folloZs� 

 
  December 31, 2020 

  Book value
Changes in fair 
value for 2020

Change in the value of 
the hedging instrument 

recogni]ed in other 
comprehensive income 

for 2020  

+edge 
ineffectiveness 
recogni]ed in 

profit or loss for 
2020

Debentures in foreign 
currencies W 732,566 43,437 43,437  �
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  December 31, 2019 

  Book value
Changes in fair 
value for 2019

Change in the value of 
the hedging instrument 

recogni]ed in other 
comprehensive income 

for 2019  

+edge 
ineffectiveness 
recogni]ed in 

profit or loss for 
2019

Debentures in foreign 
currencies W 734,718 5,538 5,538  �

 
(9) In relation to interest rate benchmark reform, the amendments provide a practical e[pedient alloZing entities to 

change the effective interest rate instead of changing the carrying amount and apply hedge accounting Zithout 
discontinuance although the interest rate benchmark is replaced in hedging relationship� 7he notional amounts 
outstanding for hedging derivative instruments affected by Interest Rate Benchmark Reform as of December 31, 
2020 are as folloZs� 

 
 Notional amounts 
8SD 30 /IB2R W 17,393,414
KRW 30 CD 2,635,000
(8R 30 (8RIB2R  537,149
(8R 60 (8RIB2R 669,120
*BP 60 /IB2R 205,904
-P< 30 /IB2R 23,194
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11�    ,nYestments in $ssociates 
 

(1) 7he market value of marketable investments in associates as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  0arNet Yalue &arrying amounts 

  
December 31,

2020 
December 31, 

2019 
December 31, 

2020  
December 31, 

2019 
Korea (lectric PoZer Co�, /td�  W 5,787,846 5,872,340 22,801,747  22,209,346
+yundai 0erchant 0arine Co�, /td�  574,730 146,258 �  �
Dongbu Steel Co�, /td�   127,359 103,622 106,880  118,065
+anjin +eavy Industries 	 
Construction Co�, /td�  � 67,001 �  66,665

+A1-I1 KA/  445,621 � 500,000  �
 

(2) Changes in investments in associates for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020 

 

 

-anuary 1, 
2020  

Acquisition
� transfer 

Disposal � 
transfer

Share of 
profit 
(loss)

Impairment 
loss (
2)

Share of 
other 

comprehen�
sive income 

(loss)  Dividends  2thers
December 31,

2020
Korea (lectric 

PoZer Co�, /td�  W 22,209,346  �  � 655,243 � (62,842)  �  � 22,801,747
Korea 7ourism 

2rgani]ation 
 

342,320  �  � (24,797) � (1,711)  �  � 315,812
+yundai 0erchant 
 0arine Co�, /td� 

 
�  �  � 4,326 � (20,027)  �  15,701 �

Korea Infrastructure 
Fund II 

 
244,683  �  (492) 22,946 � �  (26,748)  � 240,389

Korea 2cean 
Business 
Corporation 

 

595,502  �  � 600,704 � 187  �  � 1,196,393
+anjin +eavy 

Industries 	 
Construction      
Co�, /td� (
1) 

 

66,665  �  (78,278) 12,622 (487) (522)  �  � �
+A1-I1 KA/  �  500,000  � � � �  �  � 500,000
2thers   3,885,222  732,808  (749,842) 662,485 (33,795) 61,320  (268,280)  (115,772) 4,174,146
 W 27,343,738  1,232,808  (828,612) 1,933,529 (34,282) (23,595)  (295,028)  (100,071) 29,228,487
 

(
1) 7he *roup picked Dongbu�led consortium as the preferred bidder for +anjin +eavy Industries 	 Construction 
Co�, /7D� on December 22, 2020, Zhich Zas reclassified as assets held for sale for the year ended December 
31, 2020� 

(
2) 7he *roup recogni]ed W34,282 million as impairment losses considering the decrease in fair values of cash�
generating units due to the decline in e[pected cash floZs as indications of impairment for IBKS Small /eap 8p 
Fund and 20 others for the year ended December 31, 2020� Recoverable amount is W209,465 million as of 
December 31, 2020� 
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11�    ,nYestments in $ssociates, &ontinued 
 
  2019 

 

 

-anuary 1, 
2019  

Acquisition
� transfer 

Disposal � 
transfer

Share of 
profit 
(loss)

Impairment 
loss (
)

Share of 
other 

comprehen�
sive income 

(loss)  Dividends  2thers
December 31,

2019
Korea (lectric 
PoZer Co�, /td�  W 22,948,911   �  � (771,781) � 32,216  �  � 22,209,346

Korea 7ourism 
2rgani]ation 

 
341,233   �  � 1,350 � (263)  �  � 342,320

+yundai 0erchant 
 0arine Co�, /td� 

 
�   �  � (114,223) � (3,410)  �  117,633 �

*0 Korea 
Company 

 
22,681   �  (81) 26,306 (48,143) �  �  (763) �

Korea Infrastructure 
Fund II 

 
233,806   �  (456) 16,242 � �  (4,909)  � 244,683

Korea 2cean 
Business 
Corporation 

 

134,307   497,470  � (39,731) � 54  �  3,402 595,502
+anjin +eavy 
Industries 	 
Construction      
Co�, /td� 

 

�  139,110  � 14,689 (74,251) (12,883)  �  � 66,665
2thers   4,271,392   874,108  (1,187,938) 155,391 17,387 2,226  (273,347)  26,003 3,885,222
 W 27,952,330  1,510,688  (1,188,475) (711,757) (105,007) 17,940  (278,256)  146,275 27,343,738
 

(
) 7he *roup recogni]ed W105,007 million as impairment losses considering the decrease in fair values of cash�
generating units due to the decline in e[pected cash floZs as indications of impairment for *0 Korea Company 
and 20 others for the year ended December 31, 2019� Recoverable amount is W159,462 million as of December 
31, 2019� 
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11�    ,nYestments in $ssociates, &ontinued 
 
(3) 7he key financial information of associates invested and oZnership ratios as of and for the years ended December 

31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 

  Country
Fiscal 

year end Industry Assets /iabilities (quity  
2perating 
revenue  

Profit (loss)
for the year

7otal 
compre�
hensive 
income 
(loss)

2Zner�
ship 
(�)

Korea (lectric 
PoZer Co�, /td�  

 
Korea December 

 (lectricity 
generation W 203,142,111 132,475,265 70,666,846  58,569,314  1,991,347 1,802,824 32�90

Korea 7ourism 
2rgani]ation 

 

Korea December  

Culture and 
tourism 

administration 1,351,779 388,854 962,925  488,285  (56,712) (60,819) 43�58
+00 Co�, /td�   

(e[� +yundai 
0erchant 0arine 
Co�, /td�) (
1) 

 

Korea December 

 

Shipping 9,373,360 7,684,812 1,688,548  6,413,270  123,889 (33,766) 12�61
*0 Korea 

Company (
2)  
 

Korea December 
 

0anufacturing 5,415,322 3,739,509 1,675,813  8,504,588  (302,847) (302,847) 17�02
Korea Infrastructure 

Fund II 
 

Korea December 
 Financial 

investment 874,470 31,518 842,952  68,022  47,318 47,318 26�67
Korea 2cean 

Business 
Corporation 

 

Korea December 

 
Financial 

investment 8,826,068 3,842,127 4,983,941  3,597,982  2,689,659 2,690,496 22�33

+A1-I1 KA/ (
2)  
Korea December 

 +olding 
company 3,488,569 1,824,304 1,664,265  408,827  (269,846) (222,157) 10�66

 
  December 31, 2019 

  Country
Fiscal 

year end Industry Assets /iabilities (quity  
2perating 
revenue  

Profit (loss)
for the year

7otal 
compre�
hensive 
income 
(loss)

2Zner�
ship 
(�)

Korea (lectric 
PoZer Co�, /td�  

 
Korea December 

 (lectricity 
generation W 197,597,792 128,708,143 68,889,649  59,172,890  (2,345,517) (2,239,147) 32�90

Korea 7ourism 
2rgani]ation 

 

Korea December  

Culture and 
tourism 

administration 1,569,185 497,038 1,072,147  787,216  6,803 5,430 43�58
+00 Co�, /td�   

(e[� +yundai 
0erchant 0arine 
Co�, /td�) (
1) 

 

Korea December 

 

Shipping 7,160,187 6,069,878 1,090,309  5,513,089  (589,927) (612,482) 12�94
*0 Korea 

Company (
2)  
 

Korea December 
 

0anufacturing 5,492,399 3,550,438 1,941,961  8,438,789  (356,831) (356,831) 17�02
Korea Infrastructure 

Fund II 
 

Korea December 
 Financial 

investment 929,296 70,245 859,051  106,095  99,085 99,085 26�67
Korea 2cean 

Business 
Corporation 

 

Korea December 

 
Financial 

investment 4,358,100 2,069,521 2,288,579  205,269  (167,419) (167,181) 22�37
+anjin +eavy 

Industries 	 
Construction      
Co�, /td� (
1) 

 

Korea December 

 

Construction 2,470,222 2,225,228 244,994  1,628,751  305,753 267,121 16�14
 

(
1) Although the *roup¶s shareholding in +00 Co�, /td� and +anjin +eavy Industries 	 Construction Co�, /td� 
is less than 20�, the equity method is applied as the *roup is considered to have significant influence over 
+yundai 0erchant 0arine Co�, /td� as a principal creditor bank of Council of Financial Creditors�  

(
2) (quity method is applied to *0 Korea Company and +A1-I1 KA/, even though the *roup¶s shareholding is less 
than 20�, because the *roup is considered to have significant influence over *0 Korea Company and +A1-I1  
KA/ by e[ercising rights to elect board of directors� 
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12�    3roperty and Equipment 
 

Changes in property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020 

  
-anuary 1, 

2020  
Acquisition�
depreciation Disposal

Reclassifi�
cation (
2)

Foreign 
e[change 

differences

 

2thers 

 
December 31,

2020
Acquisition cost�        

/and W 957,925 989 (306,536) (21,687) (3) � 630,688
Buildings and 

structures  1,299,776 9,699 (71,337) (15,515) (985) (18,441) 1,203,197
/easehold 

improvements  46,089 2,339 (4,152) (1,400) 798 � 43,674
9ehicles  121,291 3,577 (3,263) (18) (36) (30,763) 90,788
(quipment  234,525 12,393 (32,089) (52,785) (1,199) (9,024) 151,821
Construction in 

progress  195,341 21,844 (558) (106,230) � (6) 110,391
Right�of�use assets  447,887 36,209 (43,719) (34,346) (1,735) 6,464 410,760
2thers  835,139 21,893 (62,667) 45 343 (102,310) 692,443

  4,137,973 108,943 (524,321) (231,936) (2,817) (154,080) 3,333,762
Accumulated 

depreciation� (
1)  
Buildings and 

structures  389,165 29,047 (29,245) (9,834) (241) 4,560 383,452
/easehold 

improvements  39,017 3,019 (3,125) (1,400) 14 � 37,525
9ehicles  107,745 8,042 (2,197) (18) (92) (30,321) 83,159
(quipment  196,782 12,622 (26,822) (50,358) (817) (7,385) 124,022
Construction in 

progress  2,810 � � � � 77 2,887
Right�of�use assets  59,534 91,376 (35,465) (9,546) (334) 33 105,598
2thers  637,897 53,320 (51,521) 14 (550) (91,980) 547,180

  1,432,950 197,426 (148,375) (71,142) (2,020) (125,016) 1,283,823
Accumulated 

impairment losses�  
/and  77,920 � (68,267) 2,068 � � 11,721
Buildings and 

structures  54,023 961 (17,439) 2,645 � � 40,190
9ehicles  297 11 (282) � � � 26
(quipment  3,649 80 (2,877) � � � 852
Construction in 

progress  20,163 � � � � � 20,163
2thers  13,700 344 (4,377) � � � 9,667

  169,752 1,396 (93,242) 4,713 � � 82,619
 W 2,535,271 (89,879) (282,704) (165,507) (797) (29,064) 1,967,320

 
(
1) 7he amounts include government grants� 
(
2) 7he property and equipment of KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td� are reclassified as assets held for sale as of 

December 31, 2020� 
 

 
  



���Introduction Sustainability ReviewBusiness Review Financial Review

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019  
(In millions of Zon) 
 

65 

12�    3roperty and Equipment, &ontinued 
 
  2019 

  
-anuary 1, 

2019  

Changes in 
accounting 

policy 

-anuary 1, 
2019 

(Restated)
Acquisition�
depreciation Disposal

Reclassifi�
cation (
2) 

 Foreign 
e[change 

differences 

 

2thers

December 
31, 

2019
Acquisition cost�         

/and W 2,617,675 � 2,617,675 5,566 (6,753) (1,658,701) (1) 139 957,925
Buildings and 

structures  3,460,350 � 3,460,350 10,617 (1,639) (2,171,041) 2,647 (1,158) 1,299,776
/easehold 

improvements  45,247 (40,892) 4,355 2,309 (1) 40,930 (80) (1,424) 46,089
9ehicles  305,317 � 305,317 3,435 (1,639) (183,789) 2,635 (4,668) 121,291
(quipment  864,269 � 864,269 29,291 (21,251) (635,114) 2,127 (4,797) 234,525
Construction in 

progress  643,391 � 643,391 140,798 (338) (591,835) � 3,325 195,341
Right�of�use assets  � 249,427 249,427 263,814 (90,958) 7,871 (55) 17,788 447,887
2thers  2,250,409 � 2,250,409 16,871 (19,029) (1,401,954) 2,055 (13,213) 835,139

  10,186,658 208,535 10,395,193 472,701 (141,608) (6,593,633) 9,328 (4,008) 4,137,973
Accumulated 

depreciation� (
1)  
Buildings and 

structures  1,248,992 � 1,248,992 33,348 (916) (882,239) (62) (9,958) 389,165
/easehold 

improvements  35,991 (32,501) 3,490 3,854 � 32,501 (160) (668) 39,017
9ehicles  240,065 � 240,065 15,419 (772) (142,322) 23 (4,668) 107,745
(quipment  638,176 � 638,176 15,812 (20,459) (432,106) 148 (4,789) 196,782
Construction in 

progress  2,810 � 2,810 � � � � � 2,810
Right�of�use assets  � 32,760 32,760 60,793 (39,759) 543 3 5,194 59,534
2thers  1,419,785 � 1,419,785 65,344 (15,746) (820,067) (358) (11,061) 637,897

  3,585,819 259 3,586,078 194,570 (77,652) (2,243,690) (406) (25,950) 1,432,950
Accumulated 

impairment losses�  
/and  95,924 � 95,924 74,896 � (92,900) � � 77,920
Buildings and 

structures  198,443 � 198,443 6,064 (2) (150,302) � (180) 54,023
9ehicles  31,265 � 31,265 2 � (30,970) � � 297
(quipment  153,444 � 153,444 165 (173) (149,787) � � 3,649
Construction in 

progress  26,360 � 26,360 9,443 � (15,640) � � 20,163
Right�of�use assets  � � � � (924) � � 924 �
2thers  143,563 � 143,563 2,469 (285) (131,303) � (744) 13,700

  648,999 � 648,999 93,039 (1,384) (570,902) � � 169,752
 W 5,951,840 208,276 6,160,116 185,092 (62,572) (3,779,041) 9,734 21,942 2,535,271

 
(
1) 7he amounts include government grants� 
(
2) 7he property and equipment of DeaZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering Co�, /td� are reclassified as assets 

held for sale as of December 31, 2019� 
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13�    ,nYestment 3roperty 
 
Changes in investment property for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020

 

 
-anuary 1, 

2020

Acquisition�
depreciation�
impairment Disposal

Reclassifi�
cation 

 
December 31, 

2020
Acquisition cost�    

/and W 204,556 57 (74) 6,653  211,192
Buildings and structures  437,659 2,270 (163) (82,753)  357,013

  642,215 2,327 (237) (76,100)  568,205
Accumulated depreciation�    

Buildings and structures  111,996 10,495 � (34,378)  88,113
Accumulated impairment 
losses� 

 
  

/and  1,663 6,808 � (150)  8,321
Buildings and structures  3,547 8,083 � (596)  11,034

  5,210 14,891 � (746)  19,355
 W 525,009 (23,059) (237) (40,976)  460,737
 
  2019 

 

 
-anuary 1, 

2019 

Changes in 
accounting 

policy

-anuary 1, 
2019 

(Restated)

Acquisition�
depreciation�
impairment

Reclassifi�
cation  2thers

December 
31, 2019

Acquisition cost�    
/and W 261,031 � 261,031 35,900 (95,917)  3,542 204,556
Buildings and structures  233,805 156,798 390,603 51,633 (5,019)  442 437,659

  494,836 156,798 651,634 87,533 (100,936)  3,984 642,215
Accumulated depreciation�    

Buildings and structures  101,644 � 101,644 10,222 �  130 111,996
Accumulated impairment 
losses� 

 
  

/and  19,488 � 19,488 (3,337) (15,232)  744 1,663
Buildings and structures  6,433 � 6,433 (6,932) 3,341  705 3,547

  25,921 � 25,921 (10,269) (11,891)  1,449 5,210
 W 367,271 156,798 524,069 87,580 (89,175)  2,535 525,009
 
7he fair value of the *roup¶s investment property, as determined on the basis of valuation by an independent 
appraiser, amounts to W464,235 million and W533,975 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively� 
Additionally, fair value of investment in property is classified as level 3 according to the fair value hierarchy in 
1ote 49� 
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1��    ,ntangible $ssets 
 

Changes in intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020 

 

 
-anuary 1, 

2020 Acquisition Disposal
Reclassifi�

cation
Amorti]a�

tion
Impairment 

loss

Foreign 
e[change 

differences  2thers 
December 
31, 2020

*oodZill W 803 11,835  � � � � (236)  � 12,402
Customers 

related 
 

205,197 �  � � (61,501) (17,731) �  � 125,965
0embership  29,620 6,705  (3,571) (782) (1,435) � (10)  (2) 30,525
2thers  647,830 19,182  (102) (6,249) (96,460) (40,049) (222)  15,118 539,048
 W 883,450 37,722  (3,673) (7,031) (159,396) (57,780) (468)  15,116 707,940
 
  2019 

 

 
-anuary 1, 

2019 Acquisition Disposal
Reclassifi�

cation
Amorti]a�

tion
Impairment 

loss

Foreign 
e[change 

differences  2thers 
December 
31, 2019

*oodZill W 5,537 �  (4,742) � � � 8  � 803
Customers 

related 
 

222,916 �  � � (59,932) 42,213 �  � 205,197
0embership  34,102 1,426  (3,247) (776) (1,441) (453) 9  � 29,620
2thers  677,229 99,348  (10,965) (38,720) (135,325) 54,678 (110)  1,695 647,830
 W 939,784 100,774  (18,954) (39,496) (196,698) 96,438 (93)  1,695 883,450

 
 
1��    2ther $ssets 
 

2ther assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Accounts receivable W 3,575,002 3,836,827
Domestic e[change receivables  1,312,604 1,622,128
Accrued income  527,823 703,475
*uarantee deposits  481,658 445,272
7rade accounts receivables  2,519,408 3,001,720
Inventories  1,498,789 901,858
Prepaid e[penses  188,418 317,531
Advance payments  722,424 773,436
Deferred acquisition cost  � 452,118
Separate account assets  � 638,027
Financial guarantee asset  22,982 30,078
2thers  220,797 77,379
  11,069,905 12,799,849
AlloZance for credit losses  (125,837) (733,828)
Present value discount  (5,063) (3,386)
 W 10,939,005 12,062,635
 
(
) 7he carrying amounts of financial assets included in other assets above amounted to W8,439,476 million and 

W9,639,501 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and their fair value amounted to 
W8,366,766 million and W9,556,451 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively� 
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1��    $ssets and /iabilities +eld for 6ale 
 

(1) Contract betZeen the *roup and +yundai +eavy Industries Co�, /td� 
 
For attracting investment in DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering Co�, /td� (³DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 
0arine (ngineering´), the *roup¶s subsidiary, the *roup and +yundai +eavy Industries Co�, /td� (³+yundai 
+eavy Industries´) made the basic agreement on -anuary 31, 2019 and the contract on investment on 0arch 8, 
2019� According to the contract, +yundai +eavy Industries Zill make shipbuilding segment, special ship 
segment, industrial plant segment and engine 	 machinery segment into each neZ company and surviving 
company, Korea Shipbuilding 	 2ffshore (ngineering Co�, /td� (³Korea Shipbuilding 	 2ffshore 
(ngineering´), into holding company defined in the 0onopoly Regulation and Fair 7rade Act� 7he *roup Zill 
invest the common shares of DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering into the common shares and 
redeemable convertible preference shares of Korea Shipbuilding 	 2ffshore (ngineering� Also, Korea 
Shipbuilding 	 2ffshore (ngineering Zill finance neZ common shares of DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine 
(ngineering and the *roup Zill be obliged to fund DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering� 
 
7he *roup made the adjusted contract on investment Zith Korea Shipbuilding 	 2ffshore (ngineering Co�, 
/td� on -anuary 22, 2021 reflecting some adjustments to the previous contract on investment made betZeen the 
Bank and +yundai +eavy Industries on 0arch 8, 2019� 
 
7he contract Zill be completed after the satisfaction of the contract¶s precondition including governmental 
permission of different countries� 

 
7he *roup classified a disposal group of DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering as assets and liabilities 
held for sale and profit or loss on DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine (ngineering as profit or loss from 
discontinued operations� 7he classification of profit or loss from discontinued operations is also applied to the 
comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive income� 
 

(2) Classification of KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td�, the *roup¶s subsidiary, as assets and liabilities held for sale 
 

7he *roup picked -C Partners, local private equity firm, as the preferred bidder for the shares of KDB /ife 
Insurance Co�, /td� held by KDB Consus 9alue Private (quity Fund, the *roup¶s subsidiary on -une 30, 2020, 
and signed a stock purchase agreement Zith -C Partners on December 31, 2020 to sell the *roup¶s shares of 
KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td� 
 
7he *roup classified a disposal group of KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td� as assets and liabilities held for sale and 
profit or loss on KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td� as profit or loss from discontinued operations� 7he classification 
of profit or loss from discontinued operations is also applied to the comparative consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income� 
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1��    $ssets and /iabilities +eld for 6ale, &ontinued 
 

(3) Assets and liabilities held for sale as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Assets held for sale

Cash and cash equivalents W 1,433,023 1,082,314
Securities measured at F97P/ 4,433,181 28,681
Securities measured at F92CI 6,858,963 19,087
Securities measured at amorti]ed cost 6,950,951 24,976
Investments in associates (
1), (
2) 85,367 10,433
Derivative financial instruments 132,917 86,851
Property and equipment (
3) 3,690,986 3,768,435
Investment property 77,148 7,676
Intangible assets 9,714 24,722
2ther assets 5,195,857 5,463,709

 28,868,107 10,516,884
/iabilities held for sale
  Policy reserves 17,248,607 �
  BorroZings 811,194 1,092,220
Debentures 1,091,812 628,085
Demand repayment share 36,783 �
Derivative financial instruments 126,348 128,393
2ther liabilities 4,836,426 4,133,977

 24,151,170 5,982,675
1et assets W 4,716,937 4,534,209
 
(
1) 7hese amounts consist of securities planned to be sold by DaeZoo (ngineering 	 Construction Co�, /td� 
(
2) 7hese amounts consist of investments in associates of +anjin +eavy Industries 	 Construction Co�, /7D 
(
3) 7hese amounts consist of property and equipment, investments in associates and others planned to be sold by 

DaeZoo (ngineering 	 Construction Co�, /td� 
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1��    $ssets and /iabilities +eld for 6ale, &ontinued 
 
(4) 2ther comprehensive income in relation to assets and liabilities held for sale as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 

are as folloZs�  
 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
1et income (loss) on securities measured at F92CI W 76,922  (3,527)

 
 

(5) Details of profit and loss from discontinued operations and cash floZs from discontinued operating activities for 
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
  2020 2019 
Profit (loss) from discontinued 
operations  
Profit (loss) before income ta[es  W (209,002) 55,133
Income ta[ e[pense (benefit)  (39,220) (117,849)
Profit (loss) for the year W (169,782) 172,982

Cash floZs from discontinued 
operations  
1et cash floZs from operating 
activities W 632,396 2,865,100

1et cash floZs from investing 
activities  39,969 (904,401)

1et cash floZs from financing 
activities  (281,673) (229,852)

(ffects from changes in foreign 
currency e[change rate for cash 
and cash equivalents held  (39,983) (1,428)

1et cash floZs from discontinued 
operations W 350,709 1,729,419
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1��    )inancial /iabilities Designated at )air 9alue Through 3rofit or /oss 
 
(1) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 

folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Debentures W 1,510,793 2,465,541
Deposits 184,164 �
 1,694,957 2,465,541

 
Changes in fair value of structured debentures and deposits Zhich hedge accounting are applied, are recogni]ed in 
profit or loss, but structured debentures Zith no hedge accounting applied to, are measured at amorti]ed costs� 
7herefore, such structured debentures, not applied to hedge accounting, have been designated at F97P/ in order to 
eliminate mismatch in measurements of accounting profit and loss� 

 
(2) 7he difference betZeen the carrying amount and contractual cash floZ amount of financial liabilities designated 

at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Carrying amount W 1,694,957  2,465,541
Contractual cash floZ amount 1,580,800  2,323,560
Difference amount W 114,157  141,981
 

 
1��    Deposits 
 

Deposits as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
  Amorti]ed cost Fair value Amorti]ed cost  Fair value
Deposits in Korean Zon�   

Demand deposits W 108,480 108,480 110,411  110,411
7ime and savings deposits  36,305,068 36,318,065 26,799,306  26,804,900
Certificates of deposit  467,329 467,342 188,375  188,310

  36,880,877 36,893,887 27,098,092  27,103,621
Deposits in foreign currencies�    

Demand deposits  2,460,089 2,460,089 2,161,939  2,161,939
7ime and savings deposits  3,209,368 3,208,643 2,508,641  2,508,639
Certificates of deposit  3,805,888 3,805,888 3,786,180  3,786,180
  9,475,345 9,474,620 8,456,760  8,456,758

2ff�shore deposits in foreign 
currencies�    
Demand deposits  605,133 605,133 760,491  760,491

 W 46,961,355 46,973,640 36,315,343  36,320,870
 
 



��� ,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


/oUFT�Uo�UIF�$oOToMJdBUFd�'JOBOcJBM�4UBUFNFOUT
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019  
(In millions of Zon) 
 

72 

19�    %orrowings 
 

(1) BorroZings as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  December 31, 2020 

  
0inimum  

interest rate (�)
0a[imum  

interest rate (�) Amorti]ed cost  Fair value
BorroZings in Korean Zon  � 4�63 W 7,569,570  7,563,248
BorroZings in foreign currencies  (�) 2�40 4�40 10,827,751  10,819,880
2ff�shore borroZings in foreign 
currencies  � 3�60 1,780,912  1,781,541

Share capital repayable on demand  � � 1,319,852  1,319,852
2thers  � 2�55 3,052,510  3,062,188
  24,550,595  24,546,709
Present value discount   (7,747)  
Deferred borroZing costs  (60)  
  W 24,542,788  
 
  December 31, 2019 

  
0inimum  

interest rate (�)
0a[imum  

interest rate (�) Amorti]ed cost  Fair value
BorroZings in Korean Zon  � 7�55 W 5,693,745  5,664,240
BorroZings in foreign currencies  � 5�49 13,150,406  12,804,149
2ff�shore borroZings in foreign 
currencies  1�79 5�85 1,720,019  1,713,640

Share capital repayable on demand  � � 1,631,838  1,631,838
2thers  0�01 3�66 2,782,753  2,781,963
  24,978,761  24,595,830
Present value discount   (10,249)  
Deferred borroZing costs  (105)  
  W 24,968,407  
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19�    %orrowings, &ontinued 
 

(2) BorroZings in Korean Zon before adjusting for deferred borroZing costs as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as folloZs� 

 

/ender  &lassification 
$nnual 

interest rate ���
December 31, 

2020  
December 31, 

2019 
7he Bank of Korea 

 
BorroZings from Bank of 
Korea 0�25 a 0�75 W 373,881  224,356

0inistry of Strategy and 
Finance 

 
BorroZings from 
government fund (
) 0�37 a 0�87 125,101  154,667

Industrial Bank of Korea 
 

BorroZings from I7 
industry promotion fund 1�00 �  190

Small 	 0edium 
Business Corp�  

BorroZings from small 
and medium enterprise 
promotion fund 0�55 a 2�76 64,892  73,709

0inistry of Culture and 
7ourism 

BorroZings from tourism 
promotion fund 0�50 a 2�00 2,934,681  2,578,317

Korea (nergy 
0anagement 
Corporation 

BorroZings from fund for 
rational use of energy 0�25 a 2�80 295,088  387,943

/ocal governments  BorroZings from local 
small and medium 
enterprise promotion 
fund 0�00 a 2�95 37,198  47,834

2thers BorroZings from 
petroleum enterprise 
fund 0�00 a 4�63 3,738,729  2,226,729

   W 7,569,570  5,693,745
 

(
) BorroZings from government fund are subordinated borroZings�   
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19�    %orrowings, &ontinued 
 

(3) BorroZings and off�shore borroZings in foreign currencies before adjusting for deferred borroZing costs as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 

/ender  &lassification 
$nnual 

interest rate ���
December 31, 

2020  
December 31, 

2019 
0i]uho and others Bank loans from 

foreign funds
30 /ibor � 0�20 a 
30 /ibor � 0�78 435,200  694,680

0inistry of Strategy 
and Finance 

([change equali]ation 
fund borroZings in 
foreign currencies

30 /ibor � 0�22 a 
30 /ibor � 0�74 183,360  653,613

Central Bank of the 
Republic 8]bekistan 
and others 

2ff�shore short term 
borroZings 0�25 a 2�50 1,478,220  1,493,957

+SBC and others 2ff�shore long term 
borroZings 

30 /ibor � 0�36 a 
30 /ibor � 0�50 302,692  226,062

2thers Short�term borroZings 
in foreign currencies (�) 2�40 a 4�40 9,399,395  10,521,672

 /ong�term borroZings 
in foreign currencies 0�06 a 2�49 809,796  1,280,441

  W 12,608,663  14,870,425
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20�    Debentures 
 

Debentures as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  December 31, 2020 

  
0inimum  

interest rate (�)
0a[imum  

interest rate (�) Amorti]ed cost  Fair value
Debentures in Korean Zon�     

Debentures  0�03 6�60 W 112,399,803  113,493,085
Discount on debentures   (60,639)  
Premium on debentures   �  
9aluation adjustment for 
fair value hedges   49,070  

   112,388,234  
Debentures in foreign 
currencies�     

Debentures  � 6�97 15,893,667  16,915,390
Discount on debentures   (31,489)  
Premium on debentures   1,676  
9aluation adjustment for 
fair value hedges   452,348  

   16,316,202  
2ff�shore debentures�     

Debentures  � 7�20 14,496,508  14,662,046
Discount on debentures   (23,869)  
Premium on debentures   79  
9aluation adjustment for 
fair value hedges   152,144  

   14,624,862  
   W 143,329,298  145,070,521
 
  December 31, 2019 

  
0inimum  

interest rate (�)
0a[imum  

interest rate (�) Amorti]ed cost  Fair value
Debentures in Korean Zon�     

Debentures  1�22 6�60 W 97,344,032  98,431,421
Discount on debentures   (67,623)  
Premium on debentures   24  
9aluation adjustment for 
fair value hedges   100,969  

   97,377,402  
Debentures in foreign 
currencies�     

Debentures  � 6�97 14,904,100  15,797,241
Discount on debentures   (34,600)  
Premium on debentures   221  
9aluation adjustment for 
fair value hedges   203,484  

   15,073,205  
2ff�shore debentures�     

Debentures  � 7�20 12,751,332  12,820,674
Discount on debentures   (23,075)  
Premium on debentures   155  
9aluation adjustment for 
fair value hedges   27,790  

   12,756,202  
   W 125,206,809  127,049,336

 
  



��� ,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


/oUFT�Uo�UIF�$oOToMJdBUFd�'JOBOcJBM�4UBUFNFOUT
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019  
(In millions of Zon) 
 

76 

21�    3olicy 5eserYes 
 

Details of policy reserves categori]ed by insurance type as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  &lassification 
December 31, 2020 

�
�  December 31, 2019
Premium reserve  Pure endoZment W 5,345,547  5,268,627
  Death 6,431,155  6,013,425
  (ndoZment 4,365,994  4,357,150
  *roup 19,489  29,427 

  16,162,185  15,668,629
8nearned premium reserve  Pure endoZment 1  1
  Death 3,982  162
  *roup 1,464  1,847
   5,447  2,010
Reserve for outstanding claims  Pure endoZment 101,450  98,210

 Death 273,838  295,527
 (ndoZment 599,532  573,805
 *roup 4,314  4,518
  979,134  972,060

Reserve for participating 
policyholders¶ dividends  Pure endoZment 39,700  37,413

 Death 3,128  3,460
 (ndoZment 1,841  1,902
 *roup 6  6
  44,675  42,781

([cess participating 
policyholders¶ dividend reserve   4,775  6,938

Reserve for losses on 
participating insurance   7,587  6,507

*uaranteed benefit reserve   44,804  64,900
   W 17,248,607  16,763,825

 
(
) 7hese are the policy reserves of KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td� and are included in the liabilities held for sale� 
 
 

22�    Defined %enefit /iabilities 
 

(1) Details of defined benefit liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Present value of defined benefit obligation W 909,847 942,542
Fair value of plan assets (
) (663,192)  (642,544)
1et defined benefit liabilities 246,655 299,998
/iabilities for other long�term employment  
benefits 4,839 3,416

W 251,494 303,414
 

(
) 7he plan assets are in trusts Zith Kookmin Bank, Samsung /ife Insurance Co�, /td�, etc� 
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22�    Defined %enefit /iabilities, &ontinued 
 
(2) Changes in defined benefit liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
  2020 

  

Present value of 
defined benefit 

obligation
Fair value of 
plan assets

1et defined 
benefit liabilities  

/iabilities for 
other long�term 

employment 
benefits 

Beginning balance W 942,542 (642,544) 299,998  3,416
Current service costs  86,750 � 86,750  �
Interest e[pense (income)  19,150 (10,597) 8,553  �
Remeasurements of defined benefit 
liabilities�    

Demographic assumption  13,073 � 13,073  �
Financial assumption  (54,716) � (54,716)  �
Return on plan assets  � (46) (46)  �
([perience adjustment  (1,075) � (1,075)  �
  (42,718) (46) (42,764)  �

Payments from the plan  (45,702) 31,791 (13,911)  �
Reclassification  (50,992) 30,596 (20,396)  �
Contribution to the plan  � (73,274) (73,274)  �
2thers  817 882 1,699  1,423
(nding balance W 909,847 (663,192) 246,655  4,839

 
  2019 

  

Present value of 
defined benefit 

obligation
Fair value of 
plan assets

1et defined 
benefit liabilities  

/iabilities for 
other long�term 

employment 
benefits 

Beginning balance W 1,322,447 (900,151) 422,296  24,820
Current service costs  92,952 � 92,952  �
Past service costs  136 � 136  �
Interest e[pense (income)  22,708 (11,803) 10,905  �
Remeasurements of defined benefit 
liabilities�    

Demographic assumption  256 � 256  �
Financial assumption  48,731 � 48,731  �
Return on plan assets  � 2,838 2,838  �
([perience adjustment  (5,493) � (5,493)  �
  43,494 2,838 46,332  �

Payments from the plan  (71,570) 52,664 (18,906)  �
Reclassification  (463,797) 277,751 (186,046)  (21,404)
Contribution to the plan  � (65,384) (65,384)  �
2thers  (3,828) 1,541 (2,287)  �
(nding balance W 942,542 (642,544) 299,998  3,416
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22�    Defined %enefit /iabilities, &ontinued 
 

(3) Fair value of plan assets for each type as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

  
4uoted market

prices
8nquoted 

market prices
4uoted market 

prices  
8nquoted 

market Prices
(quity securities W � � 168  �
Debt securities  � � 17,947  �
Due from banks  271,263 391,929 284,403  339,391
2thers  � � 635  �
 W 271,263 391,929 303,153  339,391

 
(4) Defined benefit costs recogni]ed in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
  2020 2019 

Current service costs W 86,750 92,952
Past service costs  � 136
Interest e[pense, net  8,553 10,905

W 95,303 103,993
 
(5) 7he principal actuarial assumptions used as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Discount rate (�) 0�20 a 2�54 1�50 a 2�44
Future salary increasing rate (�) 2�00 a 10�00 2�00 a 6�23
 

(6) 7he present value sensitivity of defined benefit liabilities as changes in principal actuarial assumptions as of 
December 31, 2020 is as folloZs� 

 
6ensitiYity 

1� increase in assumption 1� decrease in assumption
Discount rate 10�16� decrease 12�06� increase
Future salary increasing rate 11�51� increase 9�94� decrease
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23�    3roYisions 
 

(1) Provisions as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Provision for payment guarantees W 272,818 293,541
Provision for unused commitments 162,233 120,101
Financial guarantee provision 62,207 35,880
/aZsuit provision 26,949 35,569
Provision for restoration 15,717 16,869
2ther provision 426,782 495,684

W 966,706 997,644
 
(2) Changes in provision for payment guarantees for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 123,401 10,569 159,571  293,541
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  44,036 (44,036) �  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
e[posures  (9,487) 9,487 �  �

7ransfer to credit�impaired 
e[posures  (5,988) � 5,988  �

Provision for (reversal of) unused 
commitments  (73,431) 121,085 (73,019)  (25,365)

Foreign currency translation  698 1,614 2,338  4,650
2thers  (8) � �  (8)
(nding balance W 79,221 98,719 94,878  272,818
 
  2019
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 224,018 53,321 243,387   520,726 
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  41,125 (41,119) (6)  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
e[posures  (59,838) 59,838 �  �

7ransfer to credit�impaired 
e[posures  (181,313) (10,120) 191,433  �

Provision for (reversal of) unused 
commitments  96,662 (60,153) (291,623)  (255,114)

Foreign currency translation  2,813 8,802 16,380  27,995
2thers  (66) � �  (66)
(nding balance W 123,401 10,569 159,571  293,541
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23�    3roYisions, &ontinued 
 
(3) Changes in provision for unused commitments for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 18,898 101,203 �  120,101
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  287,107 (287,107) �  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
e[posures  (15,151) 15,151 �  �

Provision for (reversal of) unused 
commitments  (190,171) 257,021 �  66,850

Foreign currency translation  (23,599) (1,123) �  (24,722)
2thers  4 � �  4
(nding balance W 77,088 85,145 �  162,233
 
  2019

/ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 

impaired
Credit� 

impaired 7otal
Beginning balance W 36,785 35,252 �  72,037
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  349,455 (349,455) �  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
e[posures  3,265 (3,265) �  �

Provision for (reversal of) unused 
commitments  (378,344) 417,439 �  39,095

Foreign currency translation  7,748 1,232 �  8,980
2thers  (11) � �  (11)
(nding balance W 18,898 101,203 �  120,101
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23�    3roYisions, &ontinued 
 
(4) Changes of financial guarantee provision for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 
Impaired

Credit� 
impaired 7otal

Beginning balance W 1,189 23,121 11,570  35,880
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  23,874 (1,051) (22,823)  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
e[posures  (2,240) 2,348 (108)  �

7ransfer to credit�impaired 
e[posures  (179) (49) 228  �

Provision for unused commitments  22,988 1,638 1,701  26,327
(nding balance W 45,632 26,007 (9,432)  62,207
 
  2019
  /ifetime e[pected credit losses 

  

12�month 
e[pected credit 

loss
1on credit� 
Impaired

Credit� 
impaired 7otal

Beginning balance W 1,881 71,546 38,234  111,661
7ransfer to 12�month e[pected credit 
loss  27 (27) �  �

7ransfer to lifetime e[pected 
credit losses�    
7ransfer to non credit�impaired 
e[posures  (7) 7 �  �

7ransfer to credit�impaired 
e[posures  (909) (633) 1,542  �

Provision for (reversal of) unused 
commitments  602 (48,822) (28,206)  (76,426)

Foreign currency translation  10 1,050 �  1,060
2thers  (415) � �  (415)
(nding balance W 1,189 23,121 11,570  35,880
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23�    3roYisions, &ontinued 
 
(5) Changes of laZsuit provision, restoration provision and other provision for the years ended December 31, 2020 

and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 
  /aZsuit provision Restoration provision  2ther provision 

Beginning balance W 35,569 16,869  495,684
Increase (reversal) of provision  384 (839)  73,729
Provision used  (12,302) �  51
Foreign currency translation  (45) �  (22)
Reclassification  � �  (11,529)
2thers  3,343 (313)  (131,131)
(nding balance W 26,949 15,717  426,782
 

  2019 
  /aZsuit provision Restoration provision  2ther provision 

Beginning balance W 589,499 1,389  861,808
Increase (reversal) of provision  (14) 258  127,207
Provision used  � (529)  (127,419)
Foreign currency translation  (7) �  1
Reclassification  (553,374) �  (354,138)
2thers  (535) 15,751  (11,775)
(nding balance W 35,569 16,869  495,684
 
(6) Provision for payment guarantees and financial guarantee 
Confirmed acceptances and guarantees, unconfirmed acceptances and guarantees and bills endorsed are not 
recogni]ed on the statement of financial position, but are disclosed as off�statement of financial position items in 
the notes to the financial statements� 7he *roup provides a provision for such off�statement of financial position 
items, applying a Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) and provision rates under the *roup¶s e[pected credit loss model, 
and records the provision as a reserve for e[pected credit losses on acceptances and guarantees� 

 
In the case of financial guarantee contracts, Zhen the amount calculated using the same method as above is greater 
than the initial amount less amorti]ation of fees recogni]ed, the difference is recorded as provision for financial 
guarantee� 
 
(7) Provision for unused commitments 
7he *roup records a provision for a certain portion of unused credit lines Zhich is calculated using a CCF as 
provision for unused commitments applying provision rates under the *roup¶s e[pected credit loss model� 
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23�    3roYisions, &ontinued 
 
(8) Provision for possible losses from laZsuits 
As of December 31, 2020, the *roup is involved in 188 laZsuits as a plaintiff and 421 laZsuits as a defendant� 7he 
aggregate amounts of claims as a plaintiff and a defendant amounted to W1,563,617 million and W1,982,467 
million, respectively� 7he *roup provided a provision against contingent loss from pending laZsuits as of December 
31, 2020 and additional losses may be incurred depending on the final result of pending laZsuits� 
 
Some investors Zho bought the DS0(¶s shares, corporate bonds and commercial papers sued the DS0(, certain 
accounting firm and others for damage claims asserting that they had misled by false audit report, business report, 
registration of securities, prospectus, etc� and these laZsuits are included in the *roup¶s laZsuits as a defendant� 
 
0ajor laZsuits in progress as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  December 31, 2019 
  Contents Amounts Status of laZsuit
Plaintiff�    

Korea 7rade Insurance  
Corporation and one other  

Claim for guarantee 
insurance

W  136,538 1st trial ruled against the 
*roup� 2nd trial in progress

KA0C2 1st -9 
Securiti]ation Specialty 
Co�, /td� 

7ransfer of claim  8,792   1st trial in progress 

Dadae Contsruction Co�, 
/td� 

Absence of liens  2,900   1st trial ruled in favor of the 
*roup� 2nd trial in progress

Korea 7echnology Finance 
Corporation 

Claim for guarantee  872  1st trial ruled partially in 
favor of the *roup� 2nd trial 
in progress 

Pla]a Rakyat Claim for construction cost 
due to termination of 
contractor contract

 250,851  1st trial in progress 

A2A Claim for construction cost  58,561  1st trial in progress 
Defendant�    

Shinhan Bank and one 
other 

 Claim for damages  58,474 1st trial in progress 

Defense Acquisition 
Program Administration 

 Claim for guaranteed debt  56,977 1st, 2nd trial ruled partially 
against the *roup� 3rd trial 
in progress 

Dongbu Corporation  Claim for nullity of table of 
rehabilitation creditor 

 33,997 1st trial ruled in favor of the 
*roup� 2nd trial ruled against 
the *roup� 3rd trial in 
progress 

Dongbu Corporation  Claim for objection of 
request (participation to 
support)

 19,658 1st trial in progress 

Woori Bank  Claim for disposal of debt  12,470 1st, 2nd  trial ruled in favor of 
the *roup� 3rd trial in 
progress 

Korea *as Corporation  Claim for damages 200,000 1st trial in progress
Korea *as Corporation  Claim for damages 108,000 1st trial in progress 

K2R(A 1A7I21A/ 
RAI/WA< 

 Claim for damages 104,511 1st trial in progress 

K�Zater  Claim for damages 70,252 1st trial in progress 

K�Zater  Claim for damages 59,748 1st  trial ruled in favor of the 
*roup� 2nd trial in progress
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23�    3roYisions, &ontinued 
 

  December 31, 2019 
  Contents Amounts Status of laZsuit
Plaintiff�    

Korea 7rade Insurance  
Corporation and one other  

Claim for guarantee 
insurance

W  136,538 1st trial ruled against the 
*roup� 2nd trial in progress

*yeonggi 8rban 
Innovation Corp� 

Claim for refund of 
investments 

 160,293 1st, 2nd trial ruled partially in 
favor of the *roup� 3rd trial 
in progress 

KA0C2 1st -9 
Securiti]ation Specialty 
Co�, /td� 

7ransfer of claim  8,792   1st trial in progress 

S7; 2ffshore and 
shipbuilding Co�, /td� 

2bjection for trial for 
determination of 
investigation

 4,800  1st trial in progress 

*lobal Display Co�, /td� Claim for guaranteed debt  3,474  1st, trial ruled in favor of the 
*roup� 2nd trial in progress

Korea /and and +ousing 
Corporation 

Claim for guaranteed debt  3,533  1st trial ruled against the 
*roup� 2nd trial ruled 
partially in favor of the 
*roup� 3rd trial in progress

Pla]a Rakyat  Claim for construction cost 
due to termination of 
contractor contract

 266,981  1st trial in progress 

Defendant�    
Shinhan Bank and one 
other 

 Claim for damages  58,474 1st trial in progress 

Defense Acquisition 
Program Administration 

 Claim for guaranteed debt  56,977 1st, 2nd trial ruled partially 
against the *roup� 3rd trial 
in progress 

Dongbu Corporation  Claim for nullity of table of 
rehabilitation creditor 

 33,997 1st trial ruled in favor of the 
*roup� 2nd trial ruled against 
the *roup� 3rd trial in 
progress 

Dongbu Corporation  Claim for objection of 
request (participation to 
support)

 19,658 1st trial in progress 

Woori Bank  Claim for disposal of debt  12,470 1st, trial ruled in favor of the 
*roup� 2nd trial in progress

KA0C2 8th -9 
Securiti]ation Specialty 
Co�, /td� 

 Claim for refund of 
impairment sale payment

13,898 1st trial ruled partially against 
the *roup� 2nd trial ruled in 
favor of the *roup� 3rd trial 
in progress 

Korea *as Corporation  Claim for damages 308,000 1st trial in progress 
 

(9) 2ther provision 
7he *roup recogni]ed other provision as a reserve for other miscellaneous purpose�  
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2��    2ther /iabilities 
 

2ther liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Accounts payable W 3,605,427 3,682,965
/ease liabilities 530,829 613,987
Accrued e[pense 2,492,997 2,844,817
Domestic e[change payable 587,194 363,546
BorroZing from trust accounts 933,406 1,494,569
Advance receipts 1,490,948 1,397,741
*uarantee money received 1,269,216 1,092,020
7rade payable 183,591 422,265
8nearned income 74,982 305,917
Deposits Zithholding ta[ 65,357 69,005
Foreign e[changes payable 77,587 18,799
Separate account liabilities � 643,380
Financial guarantee liability 60,111 67,224
Contractor equity adjustments � 45,597
2thers 125,031 162,084
 11,496,676 13,223,916
Present value discount (19,526) (17,041)
 W 11,477,150 13,206,875

 
7he carrying amount of financial liabilities included in other liabilities above amounted to W9,747,271 million and 
W10,612,043 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and their fair value amounted to W9,835,751 
million and W10,708,027 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively� 
 

(2)  Details of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 
  Face value Discount  Carrying amounts
Real estate W 593,173 (106,161) 487,012
9ehicles 46,271 (3,281) 42,990
2thers 1,025 (198) 827

 W 640,469 (109,640) 530,829
 
Cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities are W167,232 million and cash payments for the 
interest portion of the lease liabilities are W14,187 million for the year ended December 31, 2020� 

 
 

  December 31, 2019 
  Face value Discount  Carrying amounts
Real estate W 657,636 (89,544) 568,092
9ehicles 47,189 (1,434) 45,755
2thers 142 (2) 140

 W 704,967 (90,980) 613,987
 

Cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liabilities are W156,569 million and cash payments for the 
interest portion of the lease liabilities are W12,588 million for the year ended December 31, 2019� 
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2��    Equity 
 

(1) Issued capital 
7he *roup is authori]ed to issue up to 6,000 million shares of common stock and has 4,153,145,768 shares and 
3,732,619,768 shares issued as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and outstanding Zith a total par value 
(W 5,000 of par value per share) of W20,765,729 million W18,663,099 million as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 
respectively� Due to the *roup¶s paid�capital increase, total number and par value of the shares increased in 2020� 
 

(2) Capital surplus 
Capital surplus as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Paid�in capital in e[cess of par value W 49,530  59,636
Surplus from capital reduction 47,973  47,973
Share of capital surplus of associates 122,810  122,810
2ther capital surplus 835,575  770,180
 W 1,055,888  1,000,599
 

(3) Capital adjustments 
Capital adjustments as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Share of capital adjustment of associates W 220,605  220,605
2ther capital adjustment 57,446  57,434
 W 278,051  278,039
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2��    Equity, &ontinued 
 

(4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 
(i) Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

1et gain (loss) on securities measured at 
F92CI�   

9aluation gain (loss) on securities measured 
at F92CI (before ta[) W 2,733,356 (244,570)

/oss alloZance for securities measured at 
F92CI (before ta[) 81,930 75,303

Income ta[ effect (769,084) 52,190
 2,046,202 (117,077)
Share of other comprehensive income of 
associates�  

Share of other comprehensive income of 
associates (before ta[) 433,885  447,784

Income ta[ effect 8,925 9,431
 442,810 457,215

([change differences on translation of foreign 
operations�  

([change differences on translation of 
foreign operations (before ta[) (578,627)  (392,504)

Income ta[ effect 131,026 112,759
 (447,601) (279,745)

9aluation gain (loss) on cash floZ hedge�
9aluation gain (loss) on cash floZ hedge 
(before ta[) (1,526) 194

Income ta[ effect 520 47
 (1,006) 241

1et gain on hedges of net investments in 
foreign operations �  

1et gain on hedges of net investments in 
foreign operations (before ta[) 48,975  5,538

Income ta[ effect (13,468) (1,523)
 35,507 4,015
 

Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities�
Remeasurements of defined benefit 
liabilities (before ta[) (25,232) (44,977)

Income ta[ effect 6,264 11,758
 (18,968) (33,219)

Fair value changes on financial liabilities 
designated at fair value due to credit risk�  

9aluation loss on financial liabilities 
designated at fair value due to credit risk 
(before ta[) (7,958)  (6,319)

Income ta[ effect 2,189  1,738
 (5,769)  (4,581)
2thers�  

2thers (before ta[) 881  17,089
Income ta[ effect 1,455 (3,002)
 2,336 14,087
 W 2,053,511 40,936
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2��    Equity, &ontinued 
 

(ii) Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 
folloZs� 

 
  2020 

  
-anuary 1, 
2020 (
)

Increase 
(Decrease) 7a[ (ffect  

December 31, 
2020

1et gain (loss) on securities 
measured at F92CI W (117,077) 2,984,553 (821,274)  2,046,202

Share of other comprehensive 
income of associates 457,215 (13,899) (506)  442,810

([change differences on 
translation of foreign operations (279,745) (186,123) 18,267   (447,601)

9aluation gain (loss) on cash floZ 
hedge 241 (1,720) 473   (1,006)

1et gain (loss) on hedges of net 
investments in foreign 
operations 4,015 43,437 (11,945)  35,507

Remeasurements of defined 
benefit liabilities (33,219) 19,745 (5,494)  (18,968)

Fair value changes on financial 
liabilities designated at fair value 
due to credit risk (4,581) (1,639) 451   (5,769)

2thers  23,934 (29,790) 8,192   2,336
 W 50,783 2,814,564 (811,836)  2,053,511
 
(
) 7he changes in accounting policy are included� 
 

  2019 

  
-anuary 1, 

2019
Increase 

(Decrease) 7a[ (ffect  
December 31, 

2019
1et gain (loss) on securities 
measured at F92CI W (114,315) (10,330) 7,568  (117,077)

Share of other comprehensive 
income of associates 440,688 19,749 (3,222)  457,215

([change differences on 
translation of foreign operations (288,251) 3,281 5,225  (279,745)

9aluation gain (loss) on cash floZ 
hedge (439) 938 (258)  241

1et gain (loss) on hedges of net 
investments in foreign 
operations � 5,538 (1,523)  4,015

Remeasurements of defined 
benefit liabilities (18,560) (21,184) 6,525  (33,219)

Fair value changes on financial 
liabilities designated at fair value 
due to credit risk 3,178 (10,702) 2,943  (4,581)

2thers  2,409 16,207 (4,529)  14,087
 W 24,710 3,497 12,729  40,936
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2��    Equity, &ontinued 
 

(5) Retained earnings 
In accordance Zith the Korea Development Bank Act, the *roup is required to appropriate at least 40� of net 
income as a legal reserve� 7his reserve can be transferred to paid�in capital or offset an accumulated deficit�  
 
In accordance Zith the Korea Development Bank Act, the *roup offsets an accumulated deficit Zith reserves� If the 
reserve is insufficient to offset the accumulated deficit, the Korean government is responsible for the deficit�  
 

(i) Retained earnings as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
/egal reserve W 1,356,142 1,177,851
9oluntary reserve 

Regulatory reserve for credit losses (
) 1,146,038 1,227,700
8nappropriated retained earnings 9,844,908 8,253,241
 W 12,347,088 10,658,792
 

(
) 7his amount is regulatory reserve for credit losses recogni]ed by the Bank, controlling company, in the separate 
financial statements according to the Article 29(1) and (2) of the Regulation on Supervision of Banking Business. 

 
(ii) Changes in legal reserve for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 2020 2019 
Beginning balance W 1,177,851 173,913
7ransfer from retained earnings 178,291 1,003,938
(nding balance W 1,356,142 1,177,851
 

(iii) Changes in unappropriated retained earnings for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 2020 2019 
Beginning balance W 8,253,241 8,972,946
Changes in accounting policy (9,847) (65)
Profit attributable to oZners of the parent for 
the year 1,845,056 275,466

Contribution to legal reserve (178,291) (1,003,938)
Dividends (111,978) (144,865)
Reclassification of valuation gain or loss on 
equity securities measured at F92CI (34,935) 20,317

7ransfer from regulatory reserve for credit 
losses 82,217 148,180

2thers (555) (14,800)
(nding balance W 9,844,908 8,253,241
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2��    Equity, &ontinued 
 

(6) Regulatory reserve for credit losses 
7he *roup is required to provide regulatory reserve for credit losses in accordance Zith Regulation on Supervision 
of Banking Business 29(1) and (2)� 7he details of regulatory reserve for credit losses are as folloZs� 
 

(i) Regulatory reserve for credit losses as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Beginning balance W 1,175,456 1,257,673
Planned reversal of regulatory reserve for 
credit losses (672,712) (82,217)

(nding balance W 502,744 1,175,456
 

(ii) 2bligated amount of provision for regulatory reserve for loan losses and profit after adjusting regulatory reserve 
for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
  2020 2019 

Profit for the year W 1,961,347 279,147
2bligated amount of reversal of 
regulatory reserve for loan losses   672,712 82,217

Profit after adjusting regulatory 
reserve for loan losses W 2,634,059 361,364

(arnings per share after adjusting 
regulatory reserve for loan losses 
(in Zon) W 669 98
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2��    Net ,nterest ,ncome 
 

1et interest income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
Interest income�  

Due from banks W 52,768 103,423
Securities measured at F97P/  50,202 101,385
Securities measured at F92CI  422,101 409,847
Securities measured at amorti]ed 
cost  26,892 44,636

/oans measured at F97P/  21,939 17,706
/oans measured at amorti]ed cost  4,302,276 4,890,139

  4,876,178 5,567,136
Interest e[pense�  

Financial liabilities measured at 
F97P/  (79,318) (90,883)

Deposits  (511,848) (635,312)
BorroZings  (306,461) (473,458)
Debentures  (2,411,986) (2,988,702)
  (3,309,613) (4,188,355)

 W 1,566,565 1,378,781
 

 
2��    Net )ees and &ommission ,ncome 
 

1et fees and commission income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
Fees and commission income�  

/oan commissions W 118,224 132,181
8nderZriting and investment 
consulting commissions  106,256 122,028

Brokerage and agency 
commissions  8,100 6,800

7rust and retirement pension plan 
commissions  32,961 31,660

Fees on asset management   10,742 4,878
2ther fees   142,301 167,929
  418,584 465,476

Fees and commission e[penses�  
Brokerage and agency fees  (10,674) (11,625)
2ther fees  (47,396) (34,700)

  (58,070) (46,325)
 W 360,514 419,151
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2��    DiYidend ,ncome 
 

Dividend income for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
Securities measured at F97P/ W 157,121 174,500
Securities measured at F92CI  128,462 112,711
 W 285,583 287,211
 

 
29�    Net *ain on 6ecurities 0easured at )9T3/  

 
1et gain related to securities measured at F97P/ for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

2020 2019 
*ains on securities measured at F97P/� 

*ains on redemption W 1,760 1,097
*ains on sale 127,646 307,380
*ains on valuation 262,419 278,361

 391,825 586,838
/osses on securities measured at F97P/� 

/osses on redemption (1,548) (9,580)
/osses on sale (78,323) (48,665)
/osses on valuation (218,519) (152,944)
Purchase related e[pense (48) (94)

 (298,438) (211,283)
 W 93,387 375,555

 
 
30�    Net *ain �/oss� on )inancial /iabilities 0easured at )9T3/ 

 
1et gain (loss) related to financial liabilities measured at F97P/ for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
*ains on financial liabilities 
measured at F97P/�  

*ains on redemption W 999 827
*ains on valuation  49,886 19,664
  50,885 20,491

/osses on financial liabilities 
measured at F97P/�  

/osses on redemption  (14,545) (2,991)
/osses on sale  � (1)
/osses on valuation  (3,314) (24,259)
  (17,859) (27,251)

 W 33,026 (6,760)
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31�    Net *ain on 6ecurities 0easured at )92&, 
 

1et gain related to securities measured at F92CI for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

2020 2019 
*ains on securities measured at F92CI� 

*ains on redemption W 414 711
*ains on sale 108,484 119,480
Reversal of impairment losses 2,631 2,520

 111,529 122,711
/osses on securities measured at F92CI� 

/osses on redemption (40)  (19)
/osses on sale (15,038)  (23,335)
Impairment losses (9,770)  (306)

 (24,848)  (23,660)
 W 86,681 99,051

 
 
32�    Net *ain �/oss� on 6ecurities 0easured at $morti]ed &ost 
 

1et gain (loss) related to securities measured at amorti]ed cost for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs� 
 

2020 2019 
*ains on securities measured at amorti]ed cost�

*ains on redemption W � 107
*ains on sale � 214

 � 321
/osses on securities measured at amorti]ed cost�

/osses on sale (164) �
Impairment losses (4,217) (2)
 (4,381) (2)

 W (4,381) 319
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33�    Net *ain �/oss� on DeriYatiYes 
   
1et gain (loss) on derivatives for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020 2019 
1et gain (loss) on trading purpose 
derivatives� 
*ains on trading purpose derivatives� 
Interest rate W 2,195,002 2,339,033
Currency 13,412,008 9,397,719
Stock 16,026 28,063
Commodities � �
(mbedded derivatives � 32
*ains on adjustment of derivatives � 19,676

15,623,036 11,784,523
/osses on trading purpose derivatives� 
Interest rate (2,282,121) (2,224,469)
Currency (13,388,140) (9,415,364)
Stock (29,778) (176,372)
Commodities � �
/osses on adjustment of derivatives (18,805) (28,819)

 (15,718,844) (11,845,024)
 (95,808) (60,501)
1et gain on hedging purpose 

derivatives� 
*ains on hedging purpose derivatives� 
Interest rate 458,699 564,219
Currency 675,709 260,568
*ains on adjustment of derivatives 23 22

 1,134,431 824,809
/osses on hedging purpose derivatives� 
Interest rate (119,802) (80,564)
Currency (412,840) (338,512)
/osses on adjustment of derivatives (746) (589)
 (533,388) (419,665)

 601,043 405,144
1et loss on fair value hedged items� 

*ains on fair value hedged items� 
*ains on valuation 308,842 119,243
*ains on redemption 356,885 155,607

 665,727 274,850
/osses on fair value hedged items� 
/osses on valuation (598,515) (741,494)
/osses on redemption (92,558) (179,124)

 (691,073) (920,618)
 (25,346) (645,768)
 W 479,889 (301,125)
 
Related Zith cash floZ hedge, the *roup recogni]ed W24 million of loss and W2 million of gain in the 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as the ineffective portion for the years ended December 31, 2020 
and 2019, respectively�  
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3��    Net )oreign &urrency Transaction /oss 
 

1et foreign currency transaction loss for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
1et gain (loss) on foreign e[change 
transactions�  

*ains on foreign e[change 
transactions W 681,384 572,578

/osses on foreign e[change 
transactions  (713,521) (534,785)

 (32,137) 37,793
1et loss on foreign e[change 
translations�  

*ains on foreign e[change 
translations  8,497,113 4,025,970

/osses on foreign e[change 
translations  (8,661,153) (4,109,099)

  (164,040) (83,129)
 W (196,177) (45,336)
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3��    2ther 2perating ,ncome, net 
 

2ther operating income and e[pense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
2ther operating income�  

Insurance gains W � �
*ains on sale of investments in 
associates  103,046 65,245

*ains on sale of loans  20,168 82,007
*ains on disposal of loans 
measured at F97P/  4,568 23,456

*ains on valuation of loans 
measured at F97P/  676,776 59,719

*ains on demand equity 
redemption  105,627 58,186

Reversal of provisions  3,115 3,909
Income from construction 
business  8,645,438 9,064,705

*ains on redemption of 
debentures  � 16

2thers  494,003 670,617
 10,052,741 10,027,860
 

2ther operating e[pense�  
Insurance losses  (67,135) (49,703)
/osses on sale of investments in 
associates  (134,606) (56,114)

/osses on sale of loans  (125,783) (178,258)
/osses on disposal of loans 
measured at F97P/  (29,155) (27,231)

/osses on valuation of loans 
measured at F97P/  (27,509) (16,798)

/osses on demand equity 
redemption  (92,088) (148,032)

Increase of provisions  (69,226) (131,360)
Cost of construction business  (7,607,525) (8,216,976)
/osses on redemption of 
debentures   (136) (4)

2thers  (734,570) (864,145)
 (8,887,733) (9,688,621)

 W 1,165,008 339,239
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3��    3roYision for �5eYersal of� &redit /osses 
 

Provision for (reversal of) credit losses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
Provision for loss alloZance W 1,231,062 180,761
Reversal of other manufacturing�
related assets  (24,253) (46,243)

Provision for (reversal of) other 
assets  38,676 (4,688)

Provision for due from banks  166 42
Provision for unused commitments  66,850 39,105
Provision for (reversal of) financial 
guarantees  26,327 (76,426)

Reversal of payment guarantees  (25,365) (255,114)
W 1,313,463 (162,563)

 
 
3��    *eneral and $dministratiYe E[penses 

 
*eneral and administrative e[penses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  2020 2019 
Payroll costs� 

Short�term employee benefits W 623,658 627,019
/ong�term employee benefits  28 �
Defined benefit costs 61,896 62,495
Defined contribution costs 7,941 7,706

693,523 697,220
Depreciation and amorti]ation� 

Depreciation of property and 
equipment 130,271 119,088

Amorti]ation of intangible assets 156,263 191,818
 286,534 310,906

2ther� 
(mployee Zelfare benefits 82,858 83,295
Rent e[penses 12,950 18,787
7a[es and dues 48,304 50,461
Advertising e[penses 28,284 25,936
2thers 301,635 339,947
 474,031 518,426

W 1,454,088 1,526,552
 
 
 
 



��6 ,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


/oUFT�Uo�UIF�$oOToMJdBUFd�'JOBOcJBM�4UBUFNFOUT
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019  
(In millions of Zon) 
 

98 

3��    2ther Non-2perating ,ncome and E[pense 
 

2ther non�operating income and e[pense for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
2ther non�operating income�  

*ain on e[emption of debt W 7,829 357
Interest income of non�financial 
business  44,850 59,695

*ain on assets held for sale  2,233 4,678
*ain on disposal of property and 
equipment  5,986 7,568

Rental income on investment 
property  2,192 1,804

*ain on disposal of intangible 
assets  1,833 403

Reversal of impairment loss of 
intangible assets  � 96,891

2thers  32,679 138,473
 97,602 309,869

2ther non�operating e[pense�  
Interest e[pense of non�financial 
business  (117,631) (145,631)

/oss on assets held for sale  (7,541) (11,887)
/oss on disposal of property and 
equipment  (5,523) (1,071)

Impairment loss of property and 
equipment  (1,397) (97,470)

Impairment loss of investment 
property  (14,878) (3,527)

/oss on disposal of investment 
property  (27) �

Depreciation of investment 
property  (1,394) (1,446)

/oss on disposal of intangible 
assets  (202) (6)

Impairment loss of intangible 
assets  (57,780) �

Donations  (15,865) (18,930)
2thers  (28,806) (75,405)

 (251,044) (355,373)
W (153,442) (45,504)
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39�    ,ncome Ta[ E[penses  
 

(1) Income ta[ e[penses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
Current income ta[ W 185,847 272,582
Changes in deferred income ta[es 
on temporary differences  1,288,104 (186,586)

Income ta[ recogni]ed directly to 
equity�  
2ther comprehensive income 
(oZners of the parent)  (811,836) 12,729

2ther comprehensive income 
(non�controlling interests)  2,634 4,796

Retained earnings (including non�
controlling interests)  13,251 (7,706)

Income ta[ e[penses� W 678,000 95,815
Continuing operations  717,220 213,664
Discontinued operations   (39,220) (117,849)

(2) Profit before income ta[es and income ta[ e[penses for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 
folloZs� 

 
2020 2019 

Profit before income ta[es W 2,848,349 319,829
Income ta[es calculated using 

enacted ta[ rates 783,296 87,953
Adjustments� 

1on�deductible losses and ta[�free gains (14,922) (12,787)
1on�recognition effect of deferred income 
ta[es (29,507) (120,178)

1et adjustments for prior years (10,182) (6,832)
Consolidation adjustments 470,205 (102,757)
2thers (481,670) 368,265
 (66,076) 125,711

Income ta[ e[penses W 717,220 213,664
(ffective ta[ rate 25�18� 66�81�
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39�    ,ncome Ta[ E[penses, &ontinued 
 

(3) Changes in deferred income ta[es recogni]ed directly to equity for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs�  

 
  2020
  December 31, 2020 -anuary 1, 2020 (
)  

Changes in
ta[ effect  

Amounts 
before ta[ 7a[ effect

Amounts 
before ta[ 7a[ effect  

1et gain (loss) on securities 
measured at F92CI W 2,815,286 (769,084) (169,267) 52,190  (821,274)

Share of other comprehensive 
income (loss) of associates  433,885 8,925 447,784 9,431  (506)

([change differences on 
translation of foreign operations  (578,627) 131,026 (392,504) 112,759  18,267

*ain (loss) on valuation of cash 
floZ hedge  (1,526) 520 194 47  473

1et gain (loss) on hedges of net 
investments in foreign operations  48,975 (13,468) 5,538 (1,523)  (11,945)

Remeasurements of defined 
benefit liabilities  (25,232) 6,264 (44,977) 11,758  (5,494)

Fair value changes on financial 
liabilities designated at fair value 
due to credit risk  (7,958) 2,189 (6,319) 1,738  451

2thers  881 1,455 30,671 (6,737)  8,192
 W 2,685,684 (632,173) (128,880) 179,663  (811,836)
(
) 7he changes in accounting policy are included� 
 
W13,251 million of income ta[ e[penses Zhich is directly recogni]ed in retained earnings consist of ta[ effects 
from W48,186 million of reali]ed loss on disposal of equity securities measured at F92CI� 

 
  2019
  December 31, 2019 -anuary 1, 2019  

Changes in
ta[ effect  

Amounts 
before ta[ 7a[ effect

Amounts 
before ta[ 7a[ effect  

1et gain (loss) on securities 
measured at F92CI W (169,267) 52,190 (158,937) 44,622  7,568

Share of other comprehensive 
income (loss) of associates  447,784 9,431 428,035 12,653  (3,222)

([change differences on 
translation of foreign operations  (392,504) 112,759 (395,785) 107,534  5,225

*ain (loss) on valuation of cash 
floZ hedge  194 47 (744) 305  (258)

1et gain (loss) on hedges of net 
investments in foreign operations  5,538 (1,523) � �  (1,523)

Remeasurements of defined 
benefit liabilities  (44,977) 11,758 (23,793) 5,233  6,525

Fair value changes on financial 
liabilities designated at fair value 
due to credit risk  (6,319) 1,738 4,383 (1,205)  2,943

2thers  17,089 (3,002) 882 1,527  (4,529)
 W (142,462) 183,398 (145,959) 170,669  12,729

 
W7,706 million of income ta[ e[penses Zhich is directly recogni]ed in retained earnings consist of ta[ effects from 
W28,023 million of reali]ed gain on disposal of equity securities measured at F92CI� 
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39�    ,ncome Ta[ E[penses, &ontinued 
 
(4) Changes in temporary differences and deferred ta[ assets (liabilities) for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 

2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020

  
-anuary 1, 

2020
Increase� 
decrease

December 31, 
2020  

Deferred ta[ assets 
(liabilities) (
)

7emporary differences from 
recogni]ed deferred ta[ assets 
and liabilities�    
Derivatives W (777,591) (703,959) (1,481,550)  (407,311)
Investments in associates  (7,144,828) 200,111 (6,944,717)  (2,215,211)
Securities measured at F92CI  (145,316) (1,201) (146,517)  148
Impairment losses on debt 

securities  65,933 � 65,933  18,132
Impairment losses on equity 

securities  148,554 (10,617) 137,937  35,372
2thers  1,494,705 (4,630,682) (3,135,977)  (1,181,856)

  (6,358,543) (5,146,348) (11,504,891)  (3,750,726)
    
7emporary differences from 
unrecogni]ed deferred ta[ assets 
and liabilities�    
Investments in associates  1,912,607 (25,887) 1,886,720  �

8ndisposed accumulated deficit 
by deferred corporate ta[es�    
8ndisposed accumulated deficit  610,454 (47,781) 562,673  136,167

 W (3,835,482) (5,220,016) (9,055,498)  (3,614,559)
(
) 7he deferred ta[ assets (liabilities) classified as assets (liabilities) held for sale are not included� 

 
  2019

  
-anuary 1, 

2019
Increase� 
decrease

December 31, 
2019  

Deferred ta[ assets 
(liabilities) (
)

7emporary differences from 
recogni]ed deferred ta[ assets 
and liabilities�    
Derivatives W (329,811) (447,780) (777,591)  (213,703)
Investments in associates  (8,743,879) 1,599,051 (7,144,828)  (2,282,670)
Securities measured at F92CI  (203,908) 58,592 (145,316)  469
Impairment losses on debt 

securities  65,933 � 65,933  18,132
Impairment losses on equity 

securities  191,157 (42,603) 148,554  38,122
2thers  (678,086) 2,172,791 1,494,705  69,789

  (9,698,594) 3,340,051 (6,358,543)  (2,369,861)
    
7emporary differences from 
unrecogni]ed deferred ta[ assets 
and liabilities�    
Investments in associates  1,957,997 (45,390) 1,912,607  �

8ndisposed accumulated deficit 
by deferred corporate ta[es�    
8ndisposed accumulated deficit  774,293 (163,839) 610,454  147,730

 W (6,966,304) 3,130,822 (3,835,482)  (2,222,131)
(
) 7he deferred ta[ assets (liabilities) classified as assets (liabilities) held for sale are not included� 
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39�    ,ncome Ta[ E[penses, &ontinued 
 
(5) Deferred income ta[ assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset the related 

current income ta[ liabilities and assets, and they relate to income ta[ levied by the same ta[ authority and they 
intend to settle current income ta[ liabilities and assets on a net basis�  

 
 
�0�    Earnings per 6hare 

 
(1) Basic earnings per share 

7he *roup¶s basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are computed as folloZs� 
 
(i) Basic earnings per share 

 
  2020 2019 

Profit for the year (in Zon) W 1,961,346,700,227 279,147,208,760
Profit attributable to non�controlling 

interests (in Zon)  116,290,852,491 3,680,719,884
Profit attributable to ordinary 

shareholders of the *roup (A) 
(in Zon)  1,845,055,847,736 275,466,488,876

Profit from continuing operations  2,008,407,469,852 31,706,443,497
Profit (loss) from discontinued 

operations  (163,351,622,116) 243,760,045,379
Weighted�average number of ordinary 

shares outstanding (B)  3,938,857,211 3,703,721,138
Basic earnings per share (A�B)  

(in Zon) W 468 74
Basic earnings per share � continuing 

operations (in Zon)  510 9
Basic earnings per share �

discontinued operations (in Zon)  (41) 66
 

(ii) Weighted�average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
 

 2020
 1umber of ordinary shares Days  Cumulative shares
1umber of ordinary shares outstanding at the 

beginning of the year (A) 3,732,619,768 366  1,366,138,835,088
Increased paid�in capital (B) 90,100,000 273  24,597,300,000
Increased paid�in capital (C) 330,426,000 154  50,885,604,000
Cumulative shares (D   A�B�C)   1,441,621,739,088
Weighted�average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding (D�366)   3,938,857,211
 

 2019
 1umber of ordinary shares Days  Cumulative shares
1umber of ordinary shares outstanding at the 

beginning of the year (A) 3,621,619,768 365  1,321,891,215,320
Increased paid�in capital (B) 100,000,000 289  28,900,000,000
Increased paid�in capital (C) 11,000,000 97  1,067,000,000
Cumulative shares (D   A�B�C)   1,351,858,215,320
Weighted�average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding (D�365)   3,703,721,138
 
(2) Diluted earnings per share 

Diluted and basic earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are equal because there is 
no potential dilutive instrument� 
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�1�    3ledged $ssets 
 
Assets pledged by the *roup as collateral as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

  Pledged assets
Related 

liabilities Pledged assets  
Related 

liabilities
Cash and due from banks (
1) W 81,883 79,091 351,525  349,036
Securities (
2)  6,228,271 7,621,493 6,465,185  7,871,611
2thers (
3)  5,977,580 3,103,578 5,922,311  3,051,271
 W 12,287,734 10,804,162 12,739,021  11,271,918

(
1) Pledged as collateral for bidding deposits and others�  
(
2) Pledged as collateral for bonds sold under repurchase agreements, B2K loans and back overdrafts�  
(
3) Property and equipment, etc� are pledged as collateral for borroZings and neZ business� 

 
 
�2�    *uarantees and &ommitments 

 
*uarantees and commitments as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Confirmed acceptances and guarantees� 

Acceptances in foreign currency W 414,928 335,261
*uarantees for bond issuance 2,281,329 2,427,525
*uarantees for loans 443,169 355,619
/etter of guarantee 38,540 51,277
*uarantees for on�lending debt 11,127 11,908
2thers 3,367,313 3,631,490

 6,556,406 6,813,080
8nconfirmed acceptances and guarantees�

/etter of credit 1,220,169 1,585,217
2thers 1,226,209 963,290

 2,446,378 2,548,507
Commitments� 

Commitments on loans 37,468,997 30,089,200
Commitments on purchase of securities 2,097,659 2,954,171
2thers 55,026 127,384

 39,621,682 33,170,755
Bills endorsed� 
     With recourse 971 2,207
 W 48,625,437 42,534,549
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�3�    /eases 
 

(1) Finance lease 
Details of finance lease receivables of the *roup as lessor as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
  December 31, 2020 

  

Finance lease 
receivables in Korean 

Zon

Finance lease 
receivables in foreign 

currency  7otal 
Within 1 year W 394,305 76,153  470,458
2ver 1 year through 5 years  1,005,488 97,001  1,102,489
2ver 5 years  2,209 �  2,209
*ross investment in the lease  1,402,002 173,154  1,575,156
8nearned finance income  (144,897) (19,480)  (164,377)
1et investment in the lease (
) W 1,257,105 153,674  1,410,779
Contingent rent recogni]ed in 
the current profit or loss W (370) �  (370)

 
  December 31, 2019 

  

Finance lease 
receivables in Korean 

Zon

Finance lease 
receivables in foreign 

currency  7otal 
Within 1 year W 304,882 50,547  355,429
2ver 1 year through 5 years  786,792 75,695  862,487
2ver 5 years  1,851 �  1,851
*ross investment in the lease  1,093,525 126,242  1,219,767
8nearned finance income  (3,294) (12,977)  (16,271)
1et investment in the lease (
) W 1,090,231 113,265  1,203,496
Contingent rent recogni]ed in 
the current profit or loss W (329) �  (329)

 
(
) Finance lease receivables are included in loans measured at amorti]ed cost on the consolidated statements of 

financial position� 
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�3�    /eases, &ontinued 
 

(2) 2perating lease 
Future minimum lease receivables under non�cancellable operating leases as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as folloZs� 

 
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

Within 1 year W 5,731 1,783
2ver 1 year through 5 years 6,975 239
 W 12,706 2,022
Contingent rent recogni]ed in the current 
loss W � (17)

 
(3) Cancellable lease 
Cancellable lease as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

Acquisition cost W 4,854 5,040
 

(4) Advanced payment for leased assets 
7he amount of capital paid for a neZ lease that the *roup enters into before the commencement of lease term as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

Advanced payment for leased assets W 6,783 6,409
AlloZance for credit losses (24) (30)

 W 6,759 6,379
 

(5) /easehold deposits 
7he *roup Zithholds collateral money received from the lessees as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

/easehold deposits W 340,987 303,701
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���    Trust $ccounts 
 
(1) 7rust accounts as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Accrued trust fees W 7,530  6,555
Deposits � 665
BorroZings from trust accounts  874,316 1,434,110
Accrued interest on deposits 878 1,555
 
(2) 7ransactions Zith trust accounts for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 2019 
Fees on trust accounts W 27,744 25,991
Interest e[penses on deposits  3 198
Interest e[penses of borroZings from 
trust accounts  7,688 21,630

 
 
 

 



���Introduction Sustainability ReviewBusiness Review Financial Review

December 31, 2020 and 2019

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 
 
 

107 

���    5elated 3arty Transactions 
 

(1) 7he *roup¶s related parties as of December 31, 2020 are as folloZs� 
 

&lassification  &orporate name 
Associates  Korea (lectric PoZer Co�, /td�, Korea 7ourism 2rgani]ation, Korea Appraisal 

Board, *0 Korea Company, +00 Co�, /td�, +anjin +eavy Industries 	 
Construction Co�, /td�, +A1-I1 KA/, Korea 2cean Business Corporation and 
76 others, 7roika Resources Investment P(F and 96 others, KIP 2verseas 
([pansion Platform Fund and 117 others

2thers  Key management personnel
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���    5elated 3arty Transactions, &ontinued 
 
(2) Significant outstanding balances Zith related parties as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs�  

 

  $ccount  
December 31, 

2020  
December 31, 

2019 
Associates�     

Korea (lectric PoZer Co�, /td�   Securities W 5,779  26,263
  /oans 197,539  138,845
  AlloZances for loan losses (1,778)  (844)
  Derivative financial assets 80,203  10,719
  2ther assets 20,631  11,777
  Deposits 135,837  82,202
  BorroZings 53,107  63,680
  Derivative financial liabilities 41,212  96,504
  2ther liabilities 10,599  1,773
  2ther provisions 10  3
K* Dongbu Steel Co�, /td�  /oans 614,062  625,249
  AlloZances for loan losses (55,321)  (117,356)
  2ther assets 622  369
  Deposits 3,871  �
  2ther liabilities 129  415
  2ther provisions 15,320  34,592
+00 Co�, /td�  Securities 3,866,467  694,832
  /oans 1,040,638  513,801
  AlloZances for loan losses (93,017)  (97,777)
  2ther assets 7,302  5,308
  Deposits 440,127  371,965
  2ther liabilities 2,536  1,965
  2ther provisions 8,200  �
+anjin +eavy Industries 	 

Construction Co�, /td�  /oans 213,052  217,764
  2ther assets �  522
  Deposits 110,914  88,240
  2ther liabilities 1,464  1,802
  2ther provisions 128,819  119,882
+A1-I1 KA/  Securities 20,098  �
  /oans 390,902  �
  2ther assets 616  �
Korea 2cean Business 

Corporation  /oans 15,464  18,031
  AlloZances for loan losses (1)  �
  2ther assets 17  45
  2ther liabilities 4  �
2thers  Securities �  5,665
  /oans 803,266  1,006,600
  AlloZances for loan losses (355,141)  (734,729)
  2ther assets 6,390  161,575
  Deposits 439,113  632,700
  2ther liabilities 2,169  2,183
  2ther provisions 60,070  105,880
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���    5elated 3arty Transactions, &ontinued 
 

(3) Significant profit or loss from transactions Zith related parties for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs� 

 
  $ccount 2020  2019 
Associates�     

Korea (lectric PoZer Co�, /td�   Interest income W 4,125  4,830

  
Reversal of alloZance for loan 
losses �  1,925

  
Fees and commission income, 
other income 178,140  15,479

  Interest e[penses (2,180)  (2,152)
  Provision for loan losses (934)  �
  2ther operating e[penses (46,166)  (146,873)
K* Dongbu Steel Co�, /td�  Interest income 12,687  39,387

  
Reversal of alloZance for loan 
losses 62,035  337,370

  
Fees and commission income, 
other income 33,704  50,879

  Interest e[penses (41)  (345)
  2ther operating e[penses (14,044)  (32,610)
+00 Co�, /td�  Interest income 41,080  28,822

  
Reversal of alloZance for loan 
losses 4,761  �

  
Fees and commission income, 
other income 558,057  188,357

  Interest e[penses (2,107)  (4,529)
  Provision for loan losses �  (62,354)
  2ther operating e[penses (11,334)  (1,118)
+anjin +eavy Industries 	 

Construction Co�, /td�  Interest income 5,704  6,181

  
Reversal of alloZance for loan 
losses �  62,892

  
Fees and commission income, 
other income 12,226  121,534

  Interest e[penses (346)  (588)
  2ther operating e[penses (22,460)  (993)
Korea 2cean Business 

Corporation  Interest income 380  419

  
Fees and commission income, 
other income 3  45

  Interest e[penses (19)  �
  Provision for loan losses (1)  �
  2ther operating e[penses (969)  (297)
2thers  Interest income 13,853  12,228
  Dividend income 243,044  217,290

  
Reversal of alloZance for loan 
losses 380,524  38,194

  
Fees and commission income, 
other income 73,290  31,434

  Interest e[penses (3,481)  (6,442)
  Provision for loan losses (3,320)  (3,719)
  2ther operating e[penses (17,095)  (4,934)
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���    5elated 3arty Transactions, &ontinued 
 

(4) Details of guarantees and commitments to the related parties as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
   

$ccount 
December 31, 

2020 

 
December 31, 

2019    
Associates� 

  
  

K* Dongbu Steel Co�, /td�  Confirmed acceptances and 
guarantees W �  37,111

  8nconfirmed acceptances and 
guarantees 20,265  11,285

  /oan commitments 339,823  117,765
+00 Co�, /td�  Confirmed acceptances and 

guarantees 13,056  �
+anjin +eavy Industries 	 

Construction Co�, /td�
 Confirmed acceptances and 

guarantees 414,630  358,785
  8nconfirmed acceptances and 

guarantees 3,337  3,062
  /oan commitments 22,614  �
2thers  Confirmed acceptances and 

guarantees 76,628  113,256
8nconfirmed acceptances and 
guarantees 28,431  106,422

  /oan commitments 244,384  347,391
   W 1,163,168  1,095,077

 
(5) Details of compensation to key management personnel for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 

folloZs� 
 

 2020 2019 
Short�term employee benefits W 4,798 6,088
Post�employment benefits 360 294

W 5,158 6,382
 

(6) 7he *roup is not pledged any assets as collaterals to the related parties and from the related parties as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019� 
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���    Disclosure of ,nterests in 2ther Entities 
 

(1) Commitments of financial support for consolidated structured entities 
7he contractual commitments offered by the *roup to the consolidated structured entities as of December 31, 2020 
and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 December 31, 2020  December 31, 2019 
$ssociates�  

K�Five 7th Securiti]ation Specialty Co�, /td� (
) W �  50,000
K�Five 8th Securiti]ation Specialty Co�, /td� (
) 40,000  40,000
8�B(S7 5th Securiti]ation Specialty Co�, /td� (
) 95,000  95,000
Sinoker SF 1st Co�, /td� (
) 43,200  43,200
KDB 0irae Seongjang ABCP 1st Inc� (
) �  16,248
Corporate /iquidity Assistance Agency Co�,/td� (
) 780,000  �

W 958,200  244,448
 

(
) 7he *roup made a commitment on loans for consolidated structured entities� According to the commitment, the 
*roup guarantees loan to a subsidiary Zhen the subsidiary has insufficient Zorking capital�  

 
(2) 1ature and scope of interests in unconsolidated structured entities 
Details of unconsolidated structured entities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs�  
 

Type  &haracteristics and obMectiYe )inancing method 
Investment funds and investment 
trusts (
1) 

 Investment and distribution (quity investment and fund 
operations, etc�  

Real estate finance (
2)  Real estate development and 
infrastructure investment, etc� 

(quity investment and credit 
reinforcement, etc�  

Asset�backed securiti]ation  Securiti]ation of underlying assets Issuance of AB/ and ABCP, etc� 
Shipping and acquisition finance  Providing funds for acquisition of 

corporate or ships
(quity investment and fund 
operations, etc�  

 
(
1) P(F, investment association, beneficiary certificate, etc�  
(
2) SPC, PF, S2C, etc� 
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���    Disclosure of ,nterests in 2ther Entities, &ontinued 
 

(3) 1ature of related risks 
7he carrying amount of and ma[imum e[posure to loss from interests in unconsolidated structured entities as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

 December 31, 2020 

 

Investment 
funds and 
investment 

trusts 
Real estate 

finance
Asset�backed 
securiti]ation

Shipping and 
acquisition 

finance  2thers 7otal
Assets�   

Securities W 8,311,372 580,486 205,698 16,671  375 9,114,602
/oans 1,506,037 8,212,635 1,383,020 1,597,080  4,448,874 17,147,646
Derivatives 114,898 5,209 319 �  6,098 126,524
2thers 25,709 16,481 2,909 3,035  20,170 68,304
 9,958,016 8,814,811 1,591,946 1,616,786  4,475,517 26,457,076

/iabilities�   
Provisions 237 2,929 661 48  6,545 10,420
Financial guarantees � � 1,094 �  550 1,644
Derivatives 44,912 � 47,753 �  � 92,665
2thers 25,633 5,606 401 147  2,859 34,646
 70,782 8,535 49,909 195  9,954 139,375

*ranting of credit and 
other commitments 1,064,546 3,442,417 975,491 80,432  1,487,437 7,050,323

0a[imum e[posure to 
loss (
) W 11,022,562 12,257,228 2,567,437 1,697,218  5,962,954 33,507,399

 
 December 31, 2019 

 

Investment 
funds and 
investment 

trusts 
Real estate 

finance
Asset�backed 
securiti]ation

Shipping and 
acquisition 

finance  2thers 7otal
Assets�   

Securities W 6,784,053 262,647 91,474 37,367  375 7,175,916
/oans 996,090 6,852,510 1,036,029 1,847,606  3,461,317 14,193,552
Derivatives 47,411 2,468 409 �  2,653 52,941
2thers 7,562 12,284 1,488 6,838  17,456 45,628
 7,835,116 7,129,909 1,129,400 1,891,811  3,481,801 21,468,037

/iabilities�   
Provisions 11 756 154 164  569 1,654
Financial guarantees � � 448 �  168 616
Derivatives 47,591 � � 36  � 47,627
2thers 7,314 5,609 504 68  7,234 20,729
 54,916 6,365 1,106 268  7,971 70,626

*ranting of credit and 
other commitments 959,359 2,619,945 953,149 82,650  1,071,336 5,686,439

0a[imum e[posure to 
loss (
) W 8,794,475 9,749,854 2,082,549 1,974,461  4,553,137 27,154,476

 
(
) 0a[imum e[posure to loss is calculated by summari]ing related assets (after adjusting impairment loss on 

securities, alloZance for loan losses, etc�), granting of credit and other commitments� 
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���    Disclosure of ,nterests in 2ther Entities, &ontinued 
 

(4) Significant non�controlling interests 
Details of significant non�controlling interests and summary of financial information as of December 31, 2020 and 
2019 are as folloZs� 

 
� 1on�controlling interests� 

 
  December 31, 2020 

  

1on�
controlling 

interests 
oZnership 

(�)

Profit on non�
controlling 

interests

1on�
controlling 

interests  

Dividend to 
non�

controlling 
interests

DaeZoo (ngineering 	 
Construction Co�, /td�  48�66 W 79,891 1,450,298  �

DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine 
(ngineering Co�, /td�   44�32 38,370 3,003,427  �

 
  December 31, 2019 

  

1on�
controlling 

interests 
oZnership 

(�)

Profit (loss) 
on non�

controlling 
interests

1on�
controlling 

interests  

Dividend to 
non�

controlling 
interests

DaeZoo (ngineering 	 
Construction Co�, /td�  48�66 W 47,432 1,429,326  �

DaeZoo Shipbuilding 	 0arine 
(ngineering Co�, /td�   44�28 (20,582) 2,963,450  �

 
  



��� ,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


/oUFT�Uo�UIF�$oOToMJdBUFd�'JOBOcJBM�4UBUFNFOUT
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 
(In millions of Zon) 
 

114 

���    Disclosure of ,nterests in 2ther Entities, &ontinued 
 

� Summary of financial information� 
 

  December 31, 2020

 

 

Assets  /iabilities
2perating 
revenue

Profit 
for the year

7otal 
comprehen�

sive  
income

Cash floZs 
from 

operating 
activities  

Cash floZs 
from 

investing 
activities

Cash floZs 
from 

financing 
activities

DaeZoo 
(ngineering 	 
Construction Co�
/td�  W 9,305,916  6,628,920 8,136,706 283,811 215,754 408,383  47,139 (419,033)

DaeZoo 
Shipbuilding 
	 0arine 
(ngineering 
Co�, /td�   10,320,775  6,451,804 7,030,175 86,573 114,107 (458,467)  137,834 (308,063)
 

  December 31, 2019 

 

 

Assets  /iabilities
2perating 
revenue

Profit (loss)
for the year

7otal 
comprehen�

sive  
income

Cash floZs 
from 

operating 
activities  

Cash floZs 
from 

investing 
activities

Cash floZs 
from 

financing 
activities

DaeZoo 
(ngineering 	 
Construction Co�
/td�  W 9,697,697  7,209,448 8,651,852 208,615 176,773 (309,746)  254,195 107,630

DaeZoo 
Shipbuilding 
	 0arine 
(ngineering 
Co�, /td�   11,276,079  7,521,182 8,358,745 (46,485) (85,325) 2,542,127  (484,549) (395,101)
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���    6tatements of &ash )lows 
 

(1) Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash floZs as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Continuing operations� 

Cash and due from banks� 
Cash and foreign currencies W 481,957 306,152
Due from banks in Korean Zon 5,600,080 3,162,598
Due from banks in foreign currencies � off�
shores 5,712,200 4,292,494

 11,794,237 7,761,244
 

/ess� Restricted due from banks, others (4,449,593) (3,004,978)
Add� Financial instruments reaching maturity 

Zithin three months from date of 
acquisition 
Call loans 465,485 1,423,090
Inter�bank loans 359,125 604,110

 824,610 2,027,200
Cash and cash equivalents W 8,169,254 6,783,466

 
 

(2) Significant transactions not involving cash floZs for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

2020 2019 
Decrease in loans due to Zrite�offs W 158,617 185,496
Increase in securities measured at F92CI due 

to debt�to�equity sZap and others 13,714 42,398
Increase in investments in subsidiaries and 

associates due to debt�to�equity sZap, etc� � 134,264
Increase (decrease) in accumulated other 

comprehensive income due to securities 
valuation 2,978,623 (1,034)

Reclassification of investments in associates to 
securities measured at F97P/ � 4,100

7ransfer from investment property to property 
and equipment  16,037 83,889

Reclassification to assets held for sale 182,728 4,392,071
Initial adoption of K�IFRS 1116 � 366,327
Reclassification of leasehold improvements and 

advance rent fee to right�of�use assets � 10,631
Recognition of right�of�use assets and lease 

liabilities 36,209 263,814
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���    Transfers of )inancial ,nstruments 
 

Details of financial assets and liabilities related to repurchase agreements and loaned securities sold and loaned 
debt securities that do not qualify for derecognition as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 

Characteristics of transactions  

Carrying 
amounts for 
transferred 

assets

Carrying 
amounts for 

related 
liabilities

Carrying 
amounts for 
transferred 

assets  

Carrying 
amounts for 

related 
liabilities

Repurchase agreements W 2,762,065 1,865,504 3,273,273  2,070,284
/oaned securities  289,806 � 40,059  �
 W 3,051,871 1,865,504 3,313,332  2,070,284
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities 
 

7he *roup classifies and discloses fair value of the financial instruments into the folloZing three�level hierarchy� 
 
- /evel 1� Financial instruments measured at quoted prices from active markets are classified as level 1�  
- /evel 2� Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques Zhere all significant inputs are observable 

market data are classified as level 2�  
- /evel 3� Financial instruments measured using valuation techniques Zhere one or more significant inputs are 

not based on observable market data are classified as level 3�  
 

(1) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value  
 

(i) 7he fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as folloZs�

 
  December 31, 2020 
  /evel 1 /evel 2 /evel 3  7otal

Financial assets�    
Securities measured at F97P/  W 1,089,969 504,027 8,668,833  10,262,829
Securities measured at F92CI   3,074,629 17,099,653 14,746,377  34,920,659
/oans measured at F97P/   � � 1,434,514  1,434,514
Derivative financial assets  � 8,309,739 12,511  8,322,250

 W 4,164,598 25,913,419 24,862,235  54,940,252
    
Financial liabilities�    

Financial liabilities designated at 
F97P/  W � 1,694,957 �  1,694,957

Derivative financial liabilities   � 6,152,607 13,404  6,166,011
 W � 7,847,564 13,404  7,860,968

 
  December 31, 2019 
  /evel 1 /evel 2 /evel 3  7otal

Financial assets�    
Securities measured at F97P/  W 1,550,532 3,905,713 7,835,600  13,291,845
Securities measured at F92CI   4,507,079 16,492,769 10,992,817  31,992,665
/oans measured at F97P/   � � 605,077  605,077
Derivative financial assets  47 5,386,667 19,290  5,406,004

 W 6,057,658 25,785,149 19,452,784  51,295,591
    
Financial liabilities�    

Financial liabilities designated at 
F97P/  W � 2,465,541 �  2,465,541

Derivative financial liabilities   342 4,179,682 4,580  4,184,604
 W 342 6,645,223 4,580  6,650,145
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 
(ii) Changes in the fair value of level 3 financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 

as folloZs� 
 

  2020

  
-anuary 1, 

2020  
Profit or 

loss 

2ther 
comprehen�

sive loss
Acquisition 

� Issue
Sale� 

Settlement
Reclassifi�

cation  2thers 
December 
31, 2020

Financial assets�      
Securities measured 

at F97P/ W 7,835,600  (5,070) � 2,357,583 (811,964) (683,789)  (23,527) 8,668,833
Securities measured 

at F92CI  10,992,817  � 2,945,212 990,312 (168,777) (5,792)  (7,395) 14,746,377
/oans measured at 

F97P/  605,077  649,450 � 349,940 (169,256) (697)  � 1,434,514
Derivatives 

financial assets  19,290  (3,849) � � 1,377 (3,087)  (1,220) 12,511
 W19,452,784  640,531 2,945,212 3,697,835 (1,148,620) (693,365)  (32,142) 24,862,235

Financial liabilities�      
Derivatives 

financial liabilities W 4,580  9,563 � � � �  (739) 13,404
 

 2019

 
-anuary 1, 

2019  
Profit or 

loss

2ther 
comprehen�

sive loss
Acquisition 

� Issue
Sale� 

Settlement 

 

2thers  
December 
31, 2019

Financial assets�       
Securities measured at 

F97P/ W 7,795,104  54,641 � 1,332,635 (1,312,054)  (34,726)  7,835,600
Securities measured at 

F92CI 10,331,304  � (296,245) 1,030,685 (283,798)  210,871  10,992,817
/oans measured at 

F97P/ 779,520  42,921 � 33,500 (250,864)  �  605,077
Derivatives financial 

assets 142,490  3,716 � � (128,062)  1,146  19,290
 W 19,048,418  101,278 (296,245) 2,396,820 (1,974,778)  177,291  19,452,784

Financial liabilities�       
Derivatives financial 

liabilities W 3,242  1,319 � � �  19  4,580
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 

(iii) Changes in deferred day one profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

2020 2019 
Beginning balance W 4,763 5,149
Amorti]ation (388) (386)
(nding balance W 4,375 4,763
 
 (iv) Details of valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurement categori]ed Zithin level 2 of the 

fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as 
folloZs� 

 
  9aluation technique ,nput 
Securities measured at F97P/�   

(quity securities  1et asset value approach 8nderlying asset price
Debt securities  Discounted cash floZ method Discount rate 

   
Securities measured at F92CI�   

(quity securities  1et asset value approach 8nderlying asset price
Debt securities  Discounted cash floZ method Discount rate 
   

Derivatives financial assets�   
Interest rate sZaps  Discounted cash floZ method, 

Black�Scholes model, 0odified 
Black model, Formula model 

Discount rate, ([change rate, 
9olatility, Commodity inde[, 
etc� 

Currency forZards and sZaps  
Currency options  
Commodities options  
   

Financial liabilities measured at 
F97P/�   

 

Debentures  Discounted cash floZ method Discount rate 
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 
(v) Details of valuation technique and quantitative information about unobservable inputs used in the fair value 

measurement categori]ed Zithin level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair 
value as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
  December 31, 2020 

  9aluation technique 8nobservable input  Range (�)
Securities measured at F97P/�   

(quity securities  Discounted cash floZ 
method, Relative value 
approach, 1et asset 
value approach 

Discount rate  0�72 a 19�05
   Rate of increase in 

liquidation value  �
   Rate of increase in 

property disposal price  �
  9olatility  17�53 a 33�00

Securities measured at F97P/�  Discounted cash floZ 
method, Relative value 
approach, 1et asset 
value approach 

Discount rate  0�20 a 19�05
(quity securities  *roZth rate  �
  

 
Rate of increase in 
liquidation value  �

  
 

Rate of increase in 
property disposal price  �

   9olatility  18�49 a 26�45
/oans measured at F97P/    

Convertible bonds, etc�  Binomial model 9olatility  17�53 a 32�59
Derivatives financial assets�    

Interest rate sZaps  Discounted cash floZ 
method  9olatility 

Correlation coefficient  
36�02 a 44�87 
0�83 a 0�91

Interest rate options  0odified Black model 9olatility  36�02 a 44�87
Stock inde[ options  Black�Scholes model 9olatility  17�20 a 27�30
(quity options  Discounted cash floZ 

method and others  9olatility  18�49 a 33�00 
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 

  December 31, 2019 
  9aluation technique 8nobservable input  Range (�)
Securities measured at F97P/�   

(quity securities  Discounted cash floZ 
method, Relative value 
approach, 1et asset 
value approach 

Discount rate  3�91 a 9�69
   Rate of increase in 

liquidation value  �
   Rate of increase in 

property disposal price  �
  9olatility  16�02 a 34�72

Securities measured at F97P/�  Discounted cash floZ 
method, Relative value 
approach, 1et asset 
value approach 

Discount rate  3�04 a 16�59
(quity securities  *roZth rate  �
  

 
Rate of increase in 
liquidation value  �

  
 

Rate of increase in 
property disposal price  �

   9olatility  14�51 a 26�98
/oans measured at F97P/    

Convertible bonds, etc�  Binomial model 9olatility  12�70 a 36�32
Derivatives financial assets�    

Interest rate sZaps  Discounted cash floZ 
method  9olatility 

Correlation coefficient  
20�41 a 34�21 
0�89 a 0�97

Interest rate options  0odified Black model 9olatility  20�41 a 34�21
Stock inde[ options  Black�Scholes model 9olatility  12�77 a 21�80
(quity options  Discounted cash floZ 

method and others  9olatility  14�51 a 21�85 
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 

(2) Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments disclosed by fair value 
 
(i) 7he *roup¶s policies for measuring fair value of financial instruments at amorti]ed costs are as folloZs� 
 

- Cash and due from banks� Fair value of cash is considered equivalent to the carrying amount� In the case of 
due from banks on demand, Zhich do not have a set maturity and can be reali]ed instantly, the carrying 
amount is a close estimate of the fair value and is assumed so� In the case of other ordinary due from banks, 
the cash floZ discount method is used to estimate the fair value� 

- Securities measured at amorti]ed cost� 7he fair value of securities measured at amorti]ed cost is computed 
by Zidely�accepted appraisal agencies upon request� 

- /oans measured at amorti]ed cost� 7he fair value of loans measured at amorti]ed cost is the e[pected future 
cash floZs, reflecting premature redemption ratio, discounted by the market interest rate, adjusted by a spread 
sheet considering the probability of default� ([ceptions to this method include loans Zith credit line facilities, 
loans Zith a maturity of three months or less left and impaired loans, Zhich the *roup assumes the carrying 
amount as the fair value�  

- Deposits� 7he fair value of deposits is computed using the discounted cash floZ method� +oZever, for 
deposits, Zhose cash floZs cannot be estimated reasonably, the Bank assumes the carrying amount as the fair 
value� 

- BorroZings� 7he fair value of industrial financial debentures is computed using the discounted cash floZ 
method by the *roup¶s Fair 9alue (valuation System� +oZever, for borroZings including call money Zhose 
contractual maturity is three months or less, the *roup assumes the carrying amount as the fair value� 

- Debentures� 7he fair value of industrial financial debentures is computed using the discounted cash floZ 
method by the *roup¶s Fair 9alue (valuation System� 

- 2ther financial assets and liabilities� 7he fair value of other financial assets and liabilities is computed using 
the discounted cash floZ method� +oZever, in cases cash floZ cannot be estimated reasonably, the *roup 
assumes the carrying amount as the fair value� 

 
(ii) 7he fair value hierarchy of financial instruments disclosed by fair value as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 

as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 
  /evel 1 /evel 2 /evel 3  7otal

Financial assets�    
Cash and due from banks (
) W � 11,794,237 �  11,794,237
Securities measured at 
amorti]ed cost  665,183 1,455,295 �  2,120,478

/oans measured at amorti]ed 
cost (
)  � 465,485 162,765,071  163,230,556

2ther financial assets (
)  � 3,829,734 4,537,032  8,366,766
 W 665,183 17,544,751 167,302,103  185,512,037
    
Financial liabilities�    

Deposits (
) W � 3,173,702 43,799,938  46,973,640
BorroZings (
)  � 2,328,487 22,218,222  24,546,709
Debentures  � 145,070,521 �  145,070,521
2ther financial liabilities (
)  � 3,104,889 6,730,862  9,835,751

 W � 153,677,599 72,749,022  226,426,621
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 

  December 31, 2019 
  /evel 1 /evel 2 /evel 3  7otal

Financial assets�    
Cash and due from banks (
) W 4,756,267 3,004,977 �  7,761,244
Securities measured at 
amorti]ed cost  1,578,384 4,119,725 �  5,698,109

/oans measured at amorti]ed 
cost (
)  � 1,423,090 152,612,495  154,035,585

2ther financial assets (
)  � 4,043,080 5,513,371  9,556,451
 W 6,334,651 12,590,872 158,125,866  177,051,389
    
Financial liabilities�    

Deposits (
) W � 3,032,841 33,288,029  36,320,870
BorroZings (
)  � 2,099,688 22,496,142  24,595,830
Debentures  � 127,049,336 �  127,049,336
2ther financial liabilities (
)  � 2,783,979 7,924,048  10,708,027

 W � 134,965,844 63,708,219  198,674,063
 
 (
) For financial instruments categori]ed as level 2, the carrying amount is considered as a reasonable appro[imation 

of the fair value and is thus, disclosed by fair value� 
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�9�    )air 9alue of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 

(iii) Details of valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurement categori]ed Zithin level 2 and 
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at amorti]ed cost as of December 31, 
2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
  9aluation technique ,nput 
/evel 2     

Financial assets�   
Securities measured at 
amorti]ed cost  

 Discounted cash floZ method  Discount rate 

Financial liabilities�   
Debentures  Discounted cash floZ method Discount rate 

/evel 3   
Financial assets�   

/oans measured at amorti]ed 
cost 

 Discounted cash floZ method  Credit spread, 2ther spread, 
Prepayment rate 

2ther financial assets  Discounted cash floZ method 2ther spread 
Financial liabilities�   

Deposits  Discounted cash floZ method  2ther spread, Prepayment rate
BorroZings  Discounted cash floZ method 2ther spread 
2ther financial liabilities  Discounted cash floZ method 2ther spread 
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�0�    &ategories of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities 
 
Categories of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  December 31, 2020 

  

Cash and 
cash 

equivalents  

Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

F97P/ 

Financial 
instruments 

designated at 
F97P/

Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

F92CI

Financial 
instruments 

designated at 
F92CI

Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

amorti]ed cost  

+edging 
purpose 

derivative 
instruments 

 

7otal
Financial assets�  
Cash and due from 
banks W 7,344,644  � � � � 4,449,593  � 

 
11,794,237

Securities measured 
at F97P/   �  10,262,829 � � � �  � 

 
10,262,829

Securities measured 
at F92CI  �  � � 20,244,120 14,676,539 �  � 

 
34,920,659

Securities measured 
at amorti]ed cost  �  � � � � 2,120,469  � 

 
2,120,469

/oans measured at 
F97P/  �  1,434,514 � � � �  � 

 
1,434,514

/oans measured at 
amorti]ed cost  824,610  � � � � 162,326,679  � 

 
163,151,289

Derivative financial 
assets   �  6,898,939 � � � �  1,423,311 

 
8,322,250

2ther financial 
assets  �  � � � � 8,439,476  � 

 
8,439,476

 W 8,169,254  18,596,282 � 20,244,120 14,676,539 177,336,217  1,423,311  240,445,723
Financial liabilities�         
Financial liabilities 
measured at 
F97P/ W �  � 1,694,957 � � �  � 

 

1,694,957
Deposits  �  � � � � 46,961,355  �  46,961,355
BorroZings  �  � � � � 24,542,788  �  24,542,788
Debentures  �  � � � � 143,329,298  �  143,329,298
Derivative financial 
liabilities   �  6,079,380 � � �  �  86,631 

 
6,166,011

2ther financial 
liabilities  �  � � � � 9,747,271  � 

 
9,747,271

 W �  6,079,380 1,694,957 � � 224,580,712  86,631  232,441,680
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�0�    &ategories of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 

  December 31, 2019 

  

Cash and 
cash 

equivalents  

Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

F97P/ 

Financial 
instruments 

designated at 
F97P/

Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

F92CI

Financial 
instruments 

designated at 
F92CI

Financial 
instruments 
measured at 

amorti]ed cost  

+edging 
purpose 

derivative 
instruments 

 

7otal
Financial assets�  
Cash and due from 
banks W 4,756,267  � � � � 3,004,977  � 

 
7,761,244

Securities measured 
at F97P/   �  13,291,845 � � � �  � 

 
13,291,845

Securities measured 
at F92CI  �  � � 20,734,082 11,258,583 �  � 

 
31,992,665

Securities measured 
at amorti]ed cost  �  � � � � 5,551,600  � 

 
5,551,600

/oans measured at 
F97P/  �  605,077 � � � �  � 

 
605,077

/oans measured at 
amorti]ed cost  2,027,200  � � � � 147,294,651  � 

 
149,321,851

Derivative financial 
assets   �  4,470,174 � � � �  935,830 

 
5,406,004

2ther financial 
assets  �  � � � � 9,639,501  � 

 
9,639,501

 W 6,783,467  18,367,096 � 20,734,082 11,258,583 165,490,729  935,830  223,569,787
Financial liabilities�         
Financial liabilities 
measured at 
F97P/ W �  � 2,465,541 � � �  � 

 

2,465,541
Deposits  �  � � � � 36,315,343  �  36,315,343
BorroZings  �  � � � � 24,968,407  �  24,968,407
Debentures  �  � � � � 125,206,809  �  125,206,809
Derivative financial 
liabilities   �  3,981,973 � � � �  202,631 

 
4,184,604

2ther financial 
liabilities  �  � � � � 10,612,043  � 

 
10,612,043

 W �  3,981,973 2,465,541 � � 197,102,602  202,631  203,752,747
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�1�    2ffsetting of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities 
 
Details of financial instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements or similar agreements 
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
  December 31, 2020 
  

*ross amounts 
of recogni]ed 
financial asset 

 

*ross amounts of 
recogni]ed 
financial 

liabilities set off 
in the statement 

of financial 
position

1et amounts of 
financial assets 
presented in the 

statement of 
financial position

 
 
 

Related amounts not set off in the 
statement of financial position  

  
 

Financial 
instruments  

Cash collateral 
received  1et amounts

Derivative financial 
assets (
) W 8,322,250  � 8,322,250 5,404,572  526,333  2,391,345

8nsettled spot 
e[change 
receivables (
) 

 

2,517,131  � 2,517,131 2,516,540  �  591
8nsettled domestic 

e[change 
receivables 

 

2,729,982  1,417,378 1,312,604 �  �  1,312,604
Security pledged as 

collateral for 
repurchase 
agreements 

 

2,762,065  � 2,762,065 1,865,504  �  896,561
Reverse repurchase 

agreements 
 

1,463,755  � 1,463,755 1,463,755  �  �
/oaned securities  289,806  � 289,806 289,806  �  �
Receivables from 

securities 
transaction 

 

18,519  � 18,519 18,519  �  �
 W 18,103,508  1,417,378 16,686,130 11,558,696  526,333  4,601,101
 
  December 31, 2020 
  

*ross amounts 
of recogni]ed 

financial 
liabilities  

 

*ross amounts of 
recogni]ed 

financial assets 
set off in the 
statement of 

financial position

1et amounts of 
financial 
liabilities 

presented in the 
statement of 

financial position

 
 

Related amounts not set off in the 
statement of financial position  

  
 

Financial 
instruments  

Cash collateral 
pledged  1et amounts

Derivative financial 
liabilities (
) W 6,166,011  � 6,166,011 4,252,041  40,158  1,873,812

8nsettled spot 
e[change payables 
(
) 

 
2,517,695  � 2,517,695 2,516,540  �  1,155

8nsettled domestic 
e[change payables 

 
2,004,572  1,417,378 587,194 �  �  587,194

Repurchase 
agreements 

 
1,865,504  � 1,865,504 1,865,504  �  �

Payables from 
securities 
transaction 

 
14,766  � 14,766 14,766  �  �

 W 12,568,548  1,417,378 11,151,170 8,648,851  40,158  2,462,161
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�1�    2ffsetting of )inancial $ssets and /iabilities, &ontinued 
 
  December 31, 2019 
  

*ross amounts 
of recogni]ed 
financial asset 

 

*ross amounts of 
recogni]ed 
financial 

liabilities set off 
in the statement 

of financial 
position

1et amounts of 
financial assets 
presented in the 

statement of 
financial position

 
 
 

Related amounts not set off in the 
statement of financial position  

  
 

Financial 
instruments  

Cash collateral 
received  1et amounts

Derivative financial 
assets (
) W 5,406,004  � 5,406,004 3,590,373  232,372  1,583,259

8nsettled spot 
e[change 
receivables (
) 

 

2,420,953  � 2,420,953 2,417,633  �  3,320
8nsettled domestic 

e[change 
receivables 

 

2,970,326  1,348,198 1,622,128 �  �  1,622,128
Security pledged as 

collateral for 
repurchase 
agreements 

 

3,273,273  � 3,273,273 2,070,284  �  1,202,989
Reverse repurchase 

agreements 
 

969,769  � 969,769 969,769  �  �
/oaned securities  40,059  � 40,059 40,059  �  �
Receivables from 

securities 
transaction 

 

19,520  � 19,520 19,520  �  �
Reinsurance 

receivables 
 

30,861  � 30,861 30,406  �  455
 W 15,130,765  1,348,198 13,782,567 9,138,044  232,372  4,412,151

 
  December 31, 2019 
  

*ross amounts 
of recogni]ed 

financial 
liabilities  

 

*ross amounts of 
recogni]ed 

financial assets 
set off in the 
statement of 

financial position

1et amounts of 
financial 
liabilities 

presented in the 
statement of 

financial position

 
 

Related amounts not set off in the 
statement of financial position  

  
 

Financial 
instruments  

Cash collateral 
pledged  1et amounts

Derivative financial 
liabilities (
) W 4,184,604  � 4,184,604 3,168,904  48,392  967,308

8nsettled spot 
e[change payables 
(
) 

 
2,420,433  � 2,420,433 2,417,633  �  2,800

8nsettled domestic 
e[change payables 

 
1,711,744  1,348,198 363,546 �  �  363,546

Repurchase 
agreements 

 
2,070,284  � 2,070,284 2,070,284  �  �

Payables from 
securities 
transaction 

 
31,023  � 31,023 31,023  �  �

Reinsurance 
payables 

 
31,408  � 31,408 30,406  �  1,002

 W 10,449,496  1,348,198 9,101,298 7,718,250  48,392  1,334,656
 
(
) For the derivatives covered by the ISDA derivative contracts, all contracts are settled and the net amount of 

derivative contracts is measured and paid based on the liquidation value if the counterparty files for bankruptcy 
or has any credit issues�   
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�2�    2perating 6egments 
 

(1) 7he *roup has seven reportable segments, as described beloZ, Zhich are the *roup¶s strategic business units� 
7hey are managed separately because each business requires different technology and marketing strategies� 7he 
folloZing summary describes general information about each of the *roup¶s reportable segments�  

 
6egments  *eneral information 

Bank 
industry 

Corporate finance  Provides trading services and loans to corporate customers 
Investment finance  Provides consulting services to corporate such as capital finance, restructuring, etc� 
Asset management  Provides asset management services to individual and corporate customers
2thers  Any other segment not mentioned above

Insurance  Subsidiaries that conduct insurance business (KDB /ife Insurance Co�, /td�)
2verseas  Subsidiaries located in foreign countries
2ther subsidiaries 

 
Subsidiaries e[cept for overseas subsidiaries and subsidiaries conducting insurance 
business

 
(2) 2perating income (loss) from e[ternal customers and among operating segments for the years ended December 

31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  2020 
  Bank industry      

  
Corporate 

finance  
Investment 

finance 
Asset 

management 2thers 2verseas
2ther 

subsidiaries 
 

Adjustment 7otal(
)
2perating income 

(loss) from 
e[ternal customers W (324,639)  1,005,901 20,683 (298,796) (9,707) 709,102  � 1,102,544

2perating income 
(loss) from 
intersegment 
transactions  129,750  (80,335) � 441,948 27,264 52,767  (571,394) �

 W (194,889)  925,566 20,683 143,152 17,557 761,869  (571,394) 1,102,544
(
) Profit from discontinued operations is not included� 

 
  2019 
  Bank industry      

  
Corporate 

finance  
Investment 

finance 
Asset 

management 2thers 2verseas
2ther 

subsidiaries 
 

Adjustment 7otal(
)
2perating income 

(loss) from 
e[ternal customers W 866,698  373,982 28,028 (552,917) 53,710 412,596  � 1,182,097

2perating income 
(loss) from 
intersegment 
transactions  166,211  (283,956) � 570,590 7,637 67,713  (528,195) �

 W 1,032,909  90,026 28,028 17,673 61,347 480,309  (528,195) 1,182,097
(
) Profit from discontinued operations is not included� 
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�2�    2perating 6egments, &ontinued 
 

(3) Details of segment results for the *roup¶s reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs�   

 
  2020 
  Bank industry      

  
Corporate 

finance  
Investment 

finance 
Asset 

management 2thers 2verseas
2ther 

subsidiaries 
 

Adjustment 7otal(
3)
1et interest income 

(e[pense) W 1,215,271  45,289 (825) 19,838 71,124 243,992  (28,124) 1,566,565
1on�interest 

income (e[pense)       
Income 

(e[pense) 
related to 
securities (
1)  (9,932)  116,096 � 28,699 8,401 66,117  (33,694) 175,687

2ther non�
interest income 
(e[pense)  352,061  439,910 34,534 112,290 4,679 1,063,339  (402,711) 1,604,102

  342,129  556,006 34,534 140,989 13,080 1,129,456  (436,405) 1,779,789
Provision for loan 

losses and others 
(
2)  (1,095,754) 431,878 � (5,506) (20,902) 5,850  (105,288) (789,722)

*eneral and 
administrative 
e[penses  (656,535) (107,607) (13,026) (12,169) (45,745) (617,429)  (1,577) (1,454,088)

2perating income 
(loss) W (194,889)  925,566 20,683 143,152 17,557 761,869  (571,394) 1,102,544

 
  2019 
  Bank industry      

  
Corporate 

finance  
Investment 

finance 
Asset 

management 2thers 2verseas
2ther 

subsidiaries 
 

Adjustment 7otal(
3)
1et interest income 

(e[pense) W 1,496,342  (518,643) 6,407 78,217 81,065 270,002  (34,609) 1,378,781
1on�interest 

income (e[pense)       
Income 

(e[pense) 
related to 
securities (
1)  10,629  244,021 � 7,195 8,318 173,859  30,903 474,925

2ther non�
interest income 
(e[pense)  329,547  451,904 33,832 (55,758) 3,978 817,396  (915,712) 665,187

  340,176  695,925 33,832 (48,563) 12,296 991,255  (884,809) 1,140,112
Provision for loan 

losses and others 
(
2)  (188,465) 20,239 � 101 11,431 58,824  287,626 189,756

*eneral and 
administrative 
e[penses  (615,144) (107,495) (12,211) (12,082) (43,445) (734,955)  (1,220) (1,526,552)

2perating income 
(loss) W 1,032,909  90,026 28,028 17,673 61,347 585,126  (633,012) 1,182,097

 
(
1) Income related to securities is composed of net gain (loss) on securities measured at F97P/, securities measured 

at F92CI and securities measured at amorti]ed cost� 
(
2) Provision for loan losses and others comprises provision for loan losses, provision for derivative credit risks, 

gains (losses) on sales of loans, and increase (reversal) of provision�  
(
3) Profit from discontinued operations is not included� 
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(4) *eographical revenue information for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the geographical non�
current asset information as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs�  

 
  Revenues (
1) 1on�current assets (
2)

 
 2020 2019 

December 31,  
2020  

December 31, 
2019 

Domestic  W 40,671,132 37,205,827 32,310,211  31,229,110
2verseas  1,041,060 1,236,015 54,273  58,358
 W 41,712,192 38,441,842 32,364,484  31,287,468

 
(
1) Revenues consist of interest income, fees and commission income, dividend income, income related to 

securities, foreign currency transaction gain, gain on derivative, other operating income and provision for loan 
losses�  

(
2) 1on�current assets consist of investments in associates, property and equipment, investment properties and 
intangible assets�  
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�3�    5isN 0anagement 
 

�1� ,ntroduction 
 

(i) Objectives and principles 
7he *roup¶s risk management aims to maintain financial soundness and effectively manage various risks pertinent 
to the nature of the *roup¶s business� 7he *roup has set up and fulfilled policies to manage risks timely and 
effectively� Pursuant to the policies, the *roup¶s risks shall be 
� managed comprehensively and independently, 
� recogni]ed timely, evaluated e[actly and managed effectively, 
� maintained to the e[tent that the risks balance Zith profit, 
� diversified appropriately to avoid concentration on specific segments, 
� managed to prevent e[cessive e[posure by the setting up and managing of tolerance limits and guidelines�  
 

(ii) Risk management strategy and process 
7he *roup¶s risk management business is separated into tZo different stages� the µmetrification stage,¶ in Zhich 
risks are estimated and monitored, and the µintegration stage,¶ in Zhich information gained during the risk 
management process is integrated and used in management strategies� Risk management is recogni]ed as a key 
component of the *roup¶s management, and seeks to change from its previously adaptive and limited role to more 
leading and comprehensive role�  
 
Furthermore, the *roup focuses on consistent communication among different departments in order to establish a 
progressive consensus on risk management�  
 

�iii) Risk management governance 
 
Risk Management Committee 
7he *roup¶s Risk 0anagement Committee (the ³Committee´) is composed of the President of the committee (an 
outside director), and three other commissioners including the C(2 of the Bank� 7he Committee functions to 
establish policies of risk management, evaluate the capital adequacy of the *roup, discuss material issues relating 
to risk management, and present preliminary decisions on such matters� 
 
The CEO of the Bank and the head of Risk Management Segment 
7he C(2 of the Bank, according to the policies of risk management, performs his or her role to manage and direct 
risk management in order to sustain efficiency and internal control� 7he head of the Risk 0anagement Segment is 
responsible for supervising the overall administration of the *roup¶s risk management business and providing risk�
related information to members of the board of directors and the *roup¶s management�  
 
Risk Management Policy Committee and Risk Management Practice Committee 
7he *roup¶s Risk 0anagement Policy Committee is composed of the leaders of all business segments, and 
e[ercises its role to decide important matters relating to the *roup¶s portfolio including allocating internal capital 
limits by segment and setting e[posure limits by industry Zithin the scope that Risk 0anagement Committee 
regulated�  
 
7he *roup¶s Risk 0anagement Practice Committee is composed of the planning department¶s leaders of main 
business segments� 7he Risk 0anagement Practice Committee decides the guidelines of revieZ and approval on 
retail loan and e[ercises its role to preliminarily revieZ matters for main decision of the Risk 0anagement 
Committee�  
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�3�    5isN 0anagement, &ontinued 

(iv) Performance of risk management committee 
7he Risk 0anagement Committee performs comprehensive revieZs of all the affairs related to risk management 
and deliberates the decisions of the board of directors� For the year ended December 31, 2019, the key activities of 
the Risk 0anagement Committee are as folloZs� 
 
- 0ajor decision 
 Risk management plan for 2020 
 Setting and managing e[posure limits by country for 2020 
 Contingency funding plan for 2020 

 
- 0ajor reporting 
 Improvement of credit portfolio management in 2020 
 Result of operation of corporate credit rating system in 2020 
 9erification of risk�Zeighted assets for BIS ratio as of December 31, 2019 
 Result of integrated crisis analysis for the second half of 2019 
 Result of assessment of suitability for internal capital for 2019 
 Result of integrated crisis analysis against C29ID�19 
 Setting major limit of credit portfolios 
 Allocation of internal capital limits 
 Result of BCP training against C29ID�19 
 Resolution of Credit Committee 

 
 (v) Improvement of risk management system 
For the continuous improvement of risk management, financial soundness and capital adequacy, the *roup performs 
the folloZing� 
 
� Continuous improvement of Basel  

ā Improvements in the internal capital adequacy assessment system, in line Zith the guidelines set by the Financial 
Supervisory Service (FSS) in 2008, to manage capital adequacy more effectively 

ā Improvements in the credit assessment system on /oZ Default Portfolio (/DP) 
ā (laboration of risk measuring criteria including credit risk parameters and measurement logics 
ā (stablishment of system for timely calculation of /CR and 1SFR 
ā Redevelopment and application of Corporate Credit Rating System (approved by Financial Supervisory Service 

on 2ctober 26, 2017) 
ā (stablishment of the application system for Interest Rate Risk in 7he Banking Book by the Basel Committee in 

September 2018 
 
� ([pansion of risk management infrastructure to the global IB level 

ā (stablishment of the RAP0 system in order to reflect risks to the Bank¶s business and support decision�making 
upon management, and application of performance assessment at the branch level since 2010 

ā (nforcement of risk management related to irregular compound derivatives and validation of the derivative 
pricing model developed by the Bank¶s Front 2ffice 

ā (stablishment of IFRS 9 accounting system to calculate a loan loss alloZances under IFRS 9 in 0arch 2017 and, 
since then, parallel run of IFRS 9 accounting system Zith the current IAS 39 accounting system for mandatory 
implementation of IFRS 9 in -anuary 2018 
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(vi) Risk management reporting and measuring system 
7he *roup endeavours consistently to objectively and rationally measure and manage all significant risks 
considering the characteristics of operational areas, assets and risks� In relation to reporting and measurement, the 
*roup has developed application systems as folloZs� 
   

Application system  Approach Completion date 0ajor function 
Corporate Credit Rating 

System 

 
/ogit 0odel 2ct� 2017  Rebuilding the Corporate Credit Rating 

System
0arket Risk 0anagement 

System 
 Risk Watch 

 
RS 0odel 

 
0ure[ 0�2 

-un� 2002 
Feb� 2019 
Sep� 2012 

 
Apr� 2013 

Summari]e position, manage e[posure 
limits and calculate 0arket 9aR 

Calculate regulatory capital by 
Standardi]ed Approach 

Supplement of RiskWatch to calculate 
9aR

Interest�/iquidity Risk 
0anagement System 

 In�house 0ay� 2019 Calculation of interest risk, liquidity 
risk, etc�

2perational Risk 
0anagement System 

 Standardi]ed 
Approach 
A0A 

0ay� 2006 
 

0ay� 2009 

0anage process and calculate CSA, KRI 
and 2P 9aR, etc� 

0easure by Advanced 0easurement 
Approach

BIS Capital Ratio 
Calculation System 

 Fermat 
Ra< 

Sep� 2006 
Dec� 2013

Calculate equity and credit risk�
Zeighted assets 

/oan /oss AlloZance 
Calculation System 

 IFRS 
IFRS 9

-an� 2011 
0ar� 2017

Incurred loss model 
([pected loss model 

 
(vii) Response to Basel 
7he Korean financial authorities have implemented Basel II since -anuary 2008, and adopted the Standardi]ed 
Approach and the Foundation Internal Ratings�Based Approach�  
 
In conformity Zith the implementation roadmap of Basel II, the *roup obtained the approval to use the Foundation 
Internal Ratings�Based Approach on credit risk from the FSS in -uly 2008 and has applied the approach since late 
-une 2008� 7he *roup applies the Standardi]ed Approach on market risks and operational risks�  
 
7he *roup completed the Basel III standard risk management system in preparation of the adoption of the Basel III 
regulations announced on December 1, 2013� Starting from 2013 year�end, the BIS capital adequacy ratio has been 
measured in accordance to the Basel III regulations�  
 
Responding to the requirement of the financial authorities, the *roup recogni]es interest rate risk, liquidity risk, 
credit bias risk and reputational risk as Zell as Pillar I risks (credit risk, market risk and operational risk)� Since 
2015, the *roup has responded to Pillar II regulations including additional capital requirements based on 
comprehensive assessment on bank risk management level� In addition, from the end of 2015, the *roup has applied 
the uniform standards for the public announcement of financial business for Basel compliance�  
 
7he *roup completed revised standards such as capital requirements for banks¶ investments in funds in 2017, 
capital requirements for securiti]ation in 2018, and the Standardised Approach for measuring counterparty credit 
risk (SA�CCR) in 2019� 
 
7o comply Zith the amended regulation relating to risk�Zeighted assets under Basel III, the *roup is receiving the 
consultation and establishing the relevant systems�
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(viii) Internal capital adequacy assessment process 
Internal capital adequacy assessment process is defined as the process that the *roup aggregates significant risks, 
calculates its internal capital, compares the internal capital Zith the available capital and assesses its internal capital 
adequacy� 7he internal capital adequacy report including the assessment results at the end of the year is prepared 
and reported to the Risk 0anagement Policy Committee� 
 
� Internal capital adequacy assessment 
For the internal capital adequacy assessment, the *roup calculates its aggregated internal capital by evaluating 
all significant risks and available capital considering the quality and components of capital, and then assesses the 
internal capital adequacy by comparing the aggregated internal capital Zith the available capital� 
 
In addition, the *roup conducts periodic stress tests more than once every si[ months to assess potential Zeakness 
in crisis situations and uses its results to assess the internal capital adequacy� 7he *roup assumes the 
macroeconomic situation as three stages of µnormal�pessimistic�serious¶ and is preparing countermeasures such 
as checking the adequacy of capital by each stage� 
 

� *oal setting of internal capital management 
7he *roup sets up and manages an internal capital limit on an annual basis, through the approval of the Risk 
0anagement Committee, to maintain internal capital adequacy by managing internal capital (integrated risks) 
Zithin the e[tent of available capital� 
 
7he prior year¶s internal capital, analysis of domestic and foreign environment changes in the current year, and 
the direction and si]e of operations are all reflected in the goal setting of internal capital management to calculate 
the integrated internal capital scale� 0oreover, Bank for International Settlements(BIS) capital adequacy ratio 
and risk appetite are taken into consideration in the goal setting of internal capital management� 
 

� Allocation of internal capital 
7he *roup¶s Risk 0anagement Committee approves entire internal capital and the Risk 0anagement Policy 
Committee allocates the capital to each segment and department, considering the e[tent of possible risk faced 
and si]e of operations� 7he allocated internal capital is monitored regularly and managed using various 
management methods� 7he results of monitoring and managing the allocated internal capital are reported to the 
Risk 0anagement Committee� In case of any material changes in the *roup¶s business plan or risk operation 
strategy, the *roup adjusts the allocations elastically�  

 
� Composition of internal capital 
Internal capital comprises all the significant risks of the *roup and is composed of quantifiable and non�
quantifiable risks� 4uantifiable risks are composed of credit risk, market risk, interest rate risk, operational risk 
and credit concentration risk, foreign currency settlement risk, and are risks measured quantitatively by applying 
reasonable methodology using objective data� 1on�quantifiable risks are composed of strategy risk, reputation 
risk, residual risk on asset securiti]ation and furthermore� 1on�quantifiable risks are those risks that cannot be 
measured quantitatively because of lack of data or the absence of appropriate measuring methodologies�  
 

�2� &redit 5isN 

(i) Concept 
Credit risk can be defined as potential loss resulting from the refusal to perform obligations or default of 
counterparties� 0ore generally, it is used to refer to the possibility of loss from engaged bonds that cannot be 
redeemed properly or from substitute payments� 
 

 



��� ,DBB"/,2020"//6"-R&10R5

December 31, 2020 and 2019 	In millions oG won


/oUFT�Uo�UIF�$oOToMJdBUFd�'JOBOcJBM�4UBUFNFOUT
,orea DeveloQment BanL and Subsidiaries

Korea Development Bank and Subsidiaries 
1otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 
(In millions of Zon) 
 

136 

�3�    5isN 0anagement, &ontinued 
 
(ii) Approach to credit risk management 
 
Summary of credit risk management 
7he *roup regards credit risk as the most significant risk area in its business operations, and accordingly, closely 
monitors its credit risk e[posure� 7he *roup manages both credit risks at portfolio level and at individual credit 
level� At portfolio level, the *roup reduces credit concentration and restructures the portfolio in such a Zay to 
ma[imi]e profitability considering the risk level� 7o avoid credit concentration on a particular sector, the *roup 
manages credit limits by client, group, and industry� 7he *roup also resets e[posure management directives for 
each industry by conducting an industry credit evaluation tZice a year�  

 
At the individual credit level, the relationship manager (R0), the credit officer (C2) and the Credit RevieZ 
Committee manage each borroZer¶s credit risk� 

Post management and insolvent borrower management 
7he *roup monitors the borroZer¶s credit rating from the date of the loan to the date of the final collection of debt 
consistently, and inspects the borroZer¶s status regularly and frequently in order to prevent the generation of neZ 
bad debts and to stabili]e the number of debt recoveries�  
 
In addition, an early Zarning system is operated to spot borroZers that are highly likely to be insolvent� 7he early 
Zarning system provides financial information, financial transaction information, public information and market 
information of the borroZer, and such information is used by the R0 and the C2 to monitor and manage changes 
in the borroZer¶s credit rating�  
 
8nder the early Zarning system, a borroZer that is highly likely to be insolvent is classified as an early Zarning 
borroZer or a precautionary borroZer 7he *roup sets up a specific and applicable stabili]ation plan for such a 
borroZer considering the borroZer¶s characteristics� Furthermore, sub�standard borroZers are classified as 
insolvent borroZers, and are managed intensively by the *roup, Zhich takes legal proceedings, disposals or 
corporate turnaround measures if necessary�  
 
Classification of asset soundness and provision of allowance for loss 
Classification of asset soundness is fulfilled by the analysis and assessment of credit risk� 7he classification is used 
in order to provision an appropriate alloZance, prevent further occurrences of insolvent assets and promote the 
normali]ation of e[isting insolvent assets to enhance the stabili]ation of asset operations�  
 
Based on the Financial Supervisory Regulations of the Republic of Korea, the *roup has established standards and 
guidelines on the classification of asset soundness, according to the ForZard�/ooking Criteria (F/C), Zhich reflects 
not only the borroZer¶s past records of repayment but also their future debt repayment capability�  
 
In conformity Zith these standards, the *roup classifies the soundness of its assets as ³normal´, ³precautionary´, 
³substandard´, ³doubtful´, or ³estimated loss´ and differentiates the coverage ratio by the level of classification�  
 
Details of loans by credit rating as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
� Corporate ! 
 December 31, 2020 
 

Carrying amounts

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 
1on credit� 

impaired loans  
Credit� 

impaired loans
AAA a BBB1 W 125,821,517 122,999,390 2,794,429  27,698
BBB2 a CCC  37,466,918 24,451,474 12,993,663  21,781
BeloZ CC  2,449,407 141,696 101,078  2,206,633
 W 165,737,842 147,592,560 15,889,170  2,256,112
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 December 31, 2019 
 

Carrying amounts

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 
1on credit� 

impaired loans  
Credit� 

impaired loans
AAA a BBB1 W 116,273,386 114,241,910 2,020,614  10,862
BBB2 a CCC  30,610,456 20,580,529 9,873,112  156,815
BeloZ CC  2,382,816 130,032 85,797  2,166,987
 W 149,266,658 134,952,471 11,979,523  2,334,664
 
� 1on�corporate ! 
 December 31, 2020 
 

Carrying amounts
12�month e[pected

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 
1on credit� 

impaired loans  
Credit� 

impaired loans
*rade 1a *rade 6 W 570,652 502,530 67,467  655
*rade 7a *rade 8  7,547 2,014 5,292  241
*rade 9a *rade 10  20,420 276 2,667  17,477
 W 598,619 504,820 75,426  18,373
 
 December 31, 2019 
 

Carrying amounts
12�month e[pected

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 
1on credit� 

impaired loans  
Credit� 

impaired loans
*rade 1a *rade 6 W 1,485,098 1,463,450 20,965  683
*rade 7a *rade 8  1,022,349 1,013,168 8,237  944
*rade 9a *rade 10  33,903 676 3,958  29,269
 W 2,541,350 2,477,294 33,160  30,896
 
Details of payment guarantees (including financial guarantees) and unused commitments by credit rating as of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
� Corporate ! 
 December 31, 2020 
 

([posures

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 

1on credit� 
impaired 
e[posures  

Credit� 
impaired 
e[posures

8nused commitments�    
AAA a BBB1 W 32,836,087 32,416,559 419,528  �
BBB2 a CCC  4,604,314 3,255,445 1,348,869  �
BeloZ CC  119 22 97  �
 W 37,440,520 35,672,026 1,768,494  �
Payment guarantees 
(including financial 
guarantees)�    
AAA a BBB1 W 5,943,405 5,612,067 331,338  �
BBB2 a CCC  2,883,812 2,315,839 563,602  4,371
BeloZ CC  176,538 � 1,351  175,187
 W 9,003,755 7,927,906 896,291  179,558
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 December 31, 2019 
 

([posures

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 

1on credit� 
impaired 
e[posures  

Credit� 
impaired 
e[posures

8nused commitments�    
AAA a BBB1 W 27,158,564 26,946,768 211,796  �
BBB2 a CCC  2,972,691 1,964,241 1,008,450  �
BeloZ CC  1,805 820 �  985
 W 30,133,060 28,911,829 1,220,246  985
Payment guarantees 
(including financial 
guarantees)�    
AAA a BBB1 W 6,987,237 6,951,232 36,005  �
BBB2 a CCC  2,085,654 1,481,657 597,857  6,140
BeloZ CC  290,903 � �  290,903
 W 9,363,794 8,432,889 633,862  297,043

 
� 1on�corporate ! 
 December 31, 2020 
 

([posures

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 

1on credit� 
impaired 
e[posures  

Credit� 
impaired 
e[posures

8nused commitments�    
*rade 1a *rade 6 W 83,432 82,052 1,380  �
*rade 7a *rade 8  59 � 59  �
*rade 9a *rade 10  12 12 �  �

 W 83,503 82,064 1,439  �
 
 December 31, 2019 
 

([posures

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 

1on credit� 
impaired 
e[posures  

Credit� 
impaired 
e[posures

8nused commitments�    
*rade 1a *rade 6 W 83,487 83,154 333  �
*rade 7a *rade 8  11 � 11  �
*rade 9a *rade 10  26 26 �  �

 W 83,524 83,180 344  �
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 (iii) Measurement methodology of credit risk 
Pursuant to Basel II, the *roup selects the measurement methodology of credit risk considering the comple[ity of 
measurement, measurement factors, estimating methods and others� 0easurement approaches are divided into 
Standardi]ed Approach and Internal Ratings�Based Approach�  
 
Standardized Approach (SA) 
In the case of the Standardi]ed Approach, the risk Zeights are applied according to the credit rating assessed by 
([ternal Credit Assessment Institution ((CAI)� Risk Zeights in each credit rating are as folloZs� 
 

Credit rating  Corporate Country  Bank
AAA a AA�  20�00� 0�00�  20�00�

A� a A�  50�00� 20�00�  50�00�
BBB� a BBB�  100�00� 50�00�  100�00�

BB� a BB�  100�00� 100�00�  100�00�
B� a B�  150�00� 100�00�  100�00�

BeloZ B�  150�00� 150�00�  150�00�
8nrated  100�00� 100�00�  100�00�

 
7he 2(CD is designated as foreign (CAI and Korea Investors Service Co�, /td�, 1IC( Investors Services Co�, /td� 
and the Korea Ratings Co�, /td� are designated as domestic (CAI�  
 
7he *roup applies the credit rating based on the corresponding loan and same borroZer¶s unsecured senior loans� 
In the case the borroZer¶s risk Zeight is higher than the unrated e[posure¶s risk Zeight (100�), the higher Zeight 
is applied� In the case the borroZer has more than one rating, the higher Zeight of the tZo loZest Zeights (Second 
Best Criteria) is applied�  
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Internal Ratings-Based Approach (IRB) 
7o use the Internal Ratings�Based Approach, a bank must be approved by the FSS and should also meet the 
requirement pre�set by the FSS�  
 
In relation to Basel II that has been adopted domestically as of -anuary 2008, the *roup gained approval from the 
FSS to use the Foundation Internal Ratings�Based Approach in -uly 2008� 7he *roup has calculated credit risk�
Zeighted assets using the approach since late -une 2008�  
 
Measurement method of credit risk-weighted asset 
7he *roup calculates credit risk�Zeighted assets of corporate e[posures and asset securiti]ation e[posures using 
the Foundation Internal Ratings�Based Approach as of December 31, 2019� 
 
7he Standard Approach is applied to special finance, non�residents, non�banking financial institutions currently, 
and Zill be replaced by the Internal Ratings�Based Approach in the future�  
 
7he Standardi]ed Approach is applied to country e[posures, public institution e[posures and bank e[posures 
permanently and applied to overseas subsidiary and the Bank¶s branch pursuant to prior consultation Zith the FSS� 
 
�Approved measurement method! 
 

0easurement method ([posure 
Standardi]ed Approach Permanent SA � Countries, public institutions and banks 

 SA  � 2verseas subsidiaries and branches, other assets, retail, 
residential property, commercial real estate, overdue 
loans (limited in loans for households) 

Foundation Internal Ratings�Based Approach � Corporate, small and medium enterprises, asset 
securiti]ation and equity

Application of IRB by phase � Special lending, non�residence, non�bank financial 
institutions

 
7he mitigated effect of credit risks reflects the related policies Zhich consider eligible collateral and guarantees� 
7he *roup calculates the credit risk�Zeighted assets using the capital adequacy ratio�  
 
8pon the calculation of credit risk�Zeighted assets for derivatives, the *roup takes into consideration the set�off 
effects of transactions under legally enforceable rights to set�off to calculate e[posures�  
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Credit rating model 
7he results of credit rating are presented as grades through an assessment of the debt repayment capacity that the 
principal and interest of debt securities or loans are redeemed Zhile complying Zith contractual redemption 
schedule�  
 
8sing the *roup¶s internal credit rating model, the *roup classifies debtors¶ credit rating into 14 grades (AAAaD)� 
7o distinguish the difference betZeen credits in the same grade, the *roup uses 20 stages as au[iliaries to 14 grades� 
 
7he *roup¶s regular credit rating process is carried out once a year and in the case of the change of debtor¶s credit 
condition, the credit rating is frequently adjusted as necessary to retain the adequacy of credit rating�  
 
7he results of credit rating are applied to various areas such as discrimination of loan processes, loan limit, loan 
interest rate, post loan management standard process, credit risk measurement, and alloZance for loan losses 
assessment�  

Credit rating process control structure 
According to the Principle of Checks and Balances, the *roup has established the credit rating process control 
structure by Zhich the credit rating system operates appropriately�  
 
- Independent assessment of credit rating� 7he Bank¶s business segment (R0) and credit rating assessment 

segment (Credit Rating 2fficer) are independently operated� 
- Independent control of credit rating system� 7he control of credit rating system including the development of 

credit rating model is independently implemented by the Bank¶s Risk 0anagement Department� 
- Independent verification of credit rating system� Credit rating system is independently verified by Risk 

9alidation 7eam of the Financial Planning Department� 
- Internal audit of credit rating process� Credit rating process is audited by the Bank¶s internal audit department� 
- Role of the Board of Directors and the Bank¶s management� 0ajor issues relating to credit rating process are 

approved by the Board of Directors and are regularly monitored by the Bank¶s top management� 
 
7he *roup revieZs debt serviceability based on a credit analysis Zhen handling loans� Depending on the results, 
credit loan preservation is adjusted as necessary using such methods as interest rate preservation due to credit risk�  
 
7he *roup evaluates the value of the collateral, performing ability and legal validity of the guarantee at the initial 
acquisition� 7he *roup re�evaluates the provided collateral and guarantees regularly for them to be reasonably 
preserved�  
 
For guarantees, the *roup demands a corresponding Zritten guarantee according to loan handling standards and the 
guarantor¶s credit rating is independently calculated Zhen in conformance Zith the credit rating endoZment 
method� 
 
7he quantification of the e[tent to Zhich collateral and other credit enhancements mitigate credit risk of impaired 
financial assets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Securities measured at F97P/ W 735 1,342
Securities measured at F92CI 70,397 71,336
/oans measured at amorti]ed cost 2,312,776 2,345,021
2ther assets 10,845 157,256
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�iY� Credit exposure 
 
*eographical information of credit e[posure as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020
  Korea  +ong Kong  Ireland 8]bekistan Bra]il +ungary 8K  8S  2thers 7otal
Due from banks 

(e[cluding due 
from B2K) W 5,526,134  14,672  46 14,194 4,201 246,344 29,229  270,568  806,894 6,912,282

Securities 
measured at 
F92CI�          
Bonds 

(e[cluding 
government 
bonds)  9,977,191  47,946  17,222 � 608 99,389 1,150,705  639,256  1,663,142 13,595,459

Securities 
measured at 
amorti]ed cost�          
Bonds 

(e[cluding 
government 
bonds)  1,332,527  �  � � 2,678 � �  �  � 1,335,205

/oans  149,022,797  1,046,840  � 99,882 39,198 292,171 1,277,056  1,161,937  11,679,037 164,618,918
Derivative 

financial assets   1,432,559  �  � � � 296 �  �  16,391 1,449,246
2ther financial 

assets  7,444,341  23,693  309 990 214 7,430 80,257  8,314  6,504,724 14,070,272
  174,735,549  1,133,151  17,577 115,066 46,899 645,630 2,537,247  2,080,075  20,670,188 201,981,382
          
*uarantees  8,820,102  �  � 51,240 � 10,420 �  82,408  39,585 9,003,755
Commitments   36,417,852  32,640  � 15,209 � 17,312 287,840  128,131  625,039 37,524,023
  45,237,954  32,640  � 66,449 � 27,732 287,840  210,539  664,624 46,527,778
 W 219,973,503  1,165,791  17,577 181,515 46,899 673,362 2,825,087  2,290,614  21,334,812 248,509,160
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  December 31, 2019
  Korea  +ong Kong  Ireland 8]bekistan Bra]il +ungary 8K  8S  2thers 7otal
Due from banks 

(e[cluding due 
from B2K) W 4,150,279  18,308  201 35,262 2 136,115 10,873  550,546  628,395 5,529,981

Securities 
measured at 
F97P/�          
Bonds 

(e[cluding 
government 
bonds)  2,541  �  � � � � �  �  � 2,541

Securities 
measured at 
F92CI�          
Bonds 

(e[cluding 
government 
bonds)  9,982,804  50,472  18,062 � � 109,444 901,412  675,968  2,042,441 13,780,603

Securities 
measured at 
amorti]ed cost�          
Bonds 

(e[cluding 
government 
bonds)  2,648,355  �  � � 3,843 � �  �  � 2,652,198

/oans  136,966,208  710,579  � 89,388 9,069 281,932 1,227,215  1,030,789  10,363,234 150,678,414
Derivative 

financial assets   932,084  �  � � � 1,101 169  23  8,088 941,465
2ther financial 

assets  9,174,261  3,295  323 1,581 2,651 � 82,537  19,492  130,212 9,414,352
  163,856,532  782,654  18,586 126,231 15,565 528,592 2,222,206  2,276,818  13,172,370 182,999,554
          
*uarantees  9,198,984  �  � 30,487 � 9,900 �  88,031  36,392 9,363,794
Commitments   27,769,873  49,874  � 8,086 � 44,696 282,705  244,913  1,816,437 30,216,584
  36,968,857  49,874  � 38,573 � 54,596 282,705  332,944  1,852,829 39,580,378
 W 200,825,389  832,528  18,586 164,804 15,565 583,188 2,504,911  2,609,762  15,025,199 222,579,932
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Industry information of credit e[posure as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 

  December 31, 2020 
  0anufacturing Service 2thers  7otal
Due from banks (e[cluding due 

from B2K) W 56,982 5,265,658 1,589,642 

 

6,912,282
Securities measured at F92CI�   

Bonds (e[cluding government 
bonds)  2,643,736 8,042,109 2,909,614 13,595,459

Securities measured at amorti]ed 
cost�   
Bonds (e[cluding government 

bonds)  1,293,889 1,236 40,080 1,335,205
/oans  71,588,236 77,215,411 15,815,271 164,618,918
Derivative financial assets   � 1,449,246 � 1,449,246
2ther financial assets  2,550,085 2,071,423 9,448,764 14,070,272

 78,132,928 94,045,083 29,803,371 201,981,382
  

*uarantees  5,841,317 2,223,153 939,285 9,003,755
Commitments  16,300,667 15,933,837 5,289,519 37,524,023

 22,141,984 18,156,990 6,228,804 46,527,778
 W 100,274,912 112,202,073 36,032,175  248,509,160
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  December 31, 2019 
  0anufacturing Service 2thers  7otal
Due from banks (e[cluding due 

from B2K) W 20,848 3,843,743 1,665,390 

 

5,529,981
Securities measured at F97P/�   

Bonds (e[cluding government 
bonds)  2,541 � � 2,541

Securities measured at F92CI�   
Bonds (e[cluding government 

bonds)  2,591,484 8,291,847 2,897,272 13,780,603
Securities measured at amorti]ed 

cost�   
Bonds (e[cluding government 

bonds)  � 2,526,535 125,663 2,652,198
/oans  64,713,135 70,728,195 15,237,084 150,678,414
Derivative financial assets   � 941,284 181 941,465
2ther financial assets  187,804 1,273,805 7,952,743 9,414,352

 67,515,812 87,605,409 27,878,333 182,999,554
  

*uarantees  6,634,919 2,179,821 549,054 9,363,794
Commitments  23,666,920 5,637,153 912,511 30,216,584

 30,301,839 7,816,974 1,461,565 39,580,378
 W 97,817,651 95,422,383 29,339,898  222,579,932
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7he detail of credit e[posures by industry affected by the pandemic of C29ID�19 as of December 31, 2020 is as 
folloZs and the e[posures by industries could be changed according to economic fluctuations� 
 
  December 31, 2020

  

Due from 
banks 

(e[cluding due 
from B2K)  

Securities 
measured at 

F92CI 

 /oans

Derivative 
financial 

assets 2ther assets Subtotal *uarantees  
Commit�

ments  Subtotal 7otal

Bonds 
(e[cluding 
government 

bonds) 
0anufacturing�  
Display W �  �  739,944 � 3,016 742,960 168,168  236,421  404,589 1,147,549 
Semiconductor 
�0obile phone  �  146,790  4,403,204 � 8,850 4,558,844 104,489  399,119  503,608 5,062,452 

Automotive  �  176,401  10,602,271 � 13,778 10,792,450 314,583  1,363,455  1,678,038 12,470,488 
Refinery�Chemical
�(nergy  �  623,842  11,147,364 � 20,666 11,791,872 158,665  4,010,584  4,169,249 15,961,121 

Steel�0etal  �  182,011  10,269,067 � 14,946 10,466,024 684,582  1,905,452  2,590,034 13,056,058 
2thers  �  1,441,539  32,928,066 � 54,092 34,423,697 6,192,007  8,296,783  14,488,790 48,912,487 

  �  2,570,583  70,089,916 � 115,348 72,775,847 7,622,494  16,211,814  23,834,308 96,610,155 
          
Service�          
Air transportation  �  3,156  3,437,648 � 7,991 3,448,795 287,309  28,000  315,309 3,764,104 
Sea transportation  �  �  2,331,411 � 16,875 2,348,286 28,297  327,689  355,986 2,704,272 
2ther 
transportation  �  90,643  5,543,443 � 9,307 5,643,393 32,136  2,269,016  2,301,152 7,944,545 

/eisure�7ravel 
industry  �  �  177,498 � 403 177,901 �  3,315  3,315 181,216 

Food�Accommoda
�tion  �  104,057  2,093,370 � 3,917 2,201,344 48,226  281,437  329,663 2,531,007 

Automotive�
related  �  �  475,921 � 669 476,590 18,174  35,615  53,789 530,379 

Finance�Insurance  2,013  139,662  8,948 � 944 151,567 �  300  300 151,867 
2thers  5,907,537  7,424,572  61,714,679 1,448,906 136,647 76,632,341 1,782,918  12,840,286  14,623,204 91,255,545 
  5,909,550  7,762,090  75,782,918 1,448,906 176,753 91,080,217 2,197,060  15,785,658  17,982,718 109,062,935 
          

2ther�          
Construction  �  210,744  2,505,959 � 3,806 2,720,509 160,829  1,110,573  1,271,402 3,991,911 
2thers  391,906  2,310,569  9,244,517 � 4,281,451 16,228,443 118,722  9,734,095  9,852,817 26,081,260 
  391,906  2,521,313  11,750,476 � 4,285,257 18,948,952 279,551  10,844,668  11,124,219 30,073,171 
 W 6,301,456  12,853,986  157,623,310 1,448,906 4,577,358 182,805,016 10,099,105  42,842,140  52,941,245 235,746,261 

 
Responding to the C29ID�19 pandemic, the *roup recalculates the forZard�looking information and recognises 
additional alloZance for loan losses and provisions amounting to ౲948,225 million� 
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Credit e[posures of debt securities by credit rating as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020 
 

Carrying amounts

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 

1on credit� 
impaired 

debt securities  

Credit� 
impaired debt 

securities
AAA a BBB1 W 21,749,289 21,570,928 178,361   �
BBB2 a CCC  619,289 609,226 10,063  �
BeloZ CC  258 258  �   �

W 22,368,836 22,180,412 188,424   �
 
 December 31, 2019 
 

Carrying amounts

12�month 
e[pected 

credit loss

/ifetime e[pected credit losses

 

1on credit� 
impaired 

debt securities  

Credit� 
impaired debt 

securities
AAA a BBB1 W 25,838,418 25,806,408 32,010   �
BBB2 a CCC  332,973 332,973 �   �
BeloZ CC  116,856 116,856 �   �

W 26,288,247 26,256,237 32,010   �
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�3� &apital management actiYities  
 

(i) Capital adequacy 
7he FSS approved the *roup¶s use of the Foundation Internal Ratings�Based Approach in -uly 2008� 7he *roup 
has been using the same approach Zhen calculating credit risk�Zeighted assets since the end of -une 2008� 7he 
equity capital ratio and equity capital according to the standards of the Bank for International Settlements are 
calculated for such disclosure� 7he equity capital ratio and equity capital are calculated on a consolidated basis� In 
conformity Zith the Banking Act, Zhich is based on the implementation of Basel III on December 2013, the 
regulatory capital is divided into the folloZing tZo categories�  
 
Tier 1 capital (Common Equity Tier 1 + Additional Tier 1 capital) 
- Common (quity 7ier 1 
Regulatory capital that represents the most subordinated claim in liquidation of the *roup, takes the first and 
proportionately greatest share of any losses as they occur, and Zhich principal is never repaid outside of liquidation 
meets the criteria for classification as common equity, including capital stock, capital surplus, retained earnings, 
and accumulated other comprehensive income as common equity 7ier 1�  
 
- Additional 7ier 1 capital 
Capital stock and capital surplus related to issuance of capital securities that are subordinated, have non�cumulative 
and conditional dividends or interests, and have no maturity or step�up conditions�  

 
Tier 2 capital (Supplementary Tier 2 capital) 
Regulatory capital that fulfils supplementary capital adequacy requirements, and includes subordinated debt Zith 
maturities over 5 years and alloZance for loan losses in conformity Zith e[ternal regulatory standards and internal 
standards�  
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7he BIS capital adequacy ratio and capital in accordance to Basel III standards as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs�  
 
BIS capital adequacy ratio 

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
(quity capital based on BIS (A)� 

7ier 1 capital� 
Common (quity 7ier 1 W 36,021,786 30,215,602
Additional 7ier 1 capital �  �
 36,021,786 30,215,602

7ier 2 capital 4,312,476 4,785,803
 W 40,334,262 35,001,405
Risk�Zeighted assets (B)�

Credit risk�Zeighted assets W 246,279,611 242,573,920
0arket risk�Zeighted assets 1,490,013 1,933,641
2perational risk�Zeighted assets 4,880,008 4,574,554

 W 252,649,632 249,082,115
 
BIS capital adequacy ratio (A�B)� 15�96� 14�05�

7ier 1 capital ratio� 14�26� 12�13�
Common (quity 7ier 1 ratio 14�26� 12�13�
Additional 7ier 1 capital ratio � �

7ier 2 capital ratio 1�71� 1�92�

Equity capital based on BIS 

 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
7ier 1 capital (A C�D)�
  Common (quity 7ier 1 (C) 

Capital stock W 20,765,729 18,663,099
Capital surplus 1,036,196 979,359
Retained earnings 12,326,526 10,642,865
1on�controlling interests � �
Accumulated other comprehensive income 2,324,417 310,138
Common stock deductibles (431,082) (379,859)

 36,021,786 30,215,602
Additional 7ier 1 capital (D) 

     1on�controlling interests � �
 36,021,786 30,215,602
7ier 2 capital (B)� 

AlloZance for doubtful accounts, etc� 1,057,559 951,624
4ualified capital securities  2,780,000 3,060,000
1on�qualified capital securities 516,119 774,179
1on�controlling interests � �
Additional stock deductibles (41,202) �

 4,312,476 4,785,803
(quity capital (A�B) W 40,334,262 35,001,405
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��� 0arNet risN 
 
(i) Concept 
0arket risk is defined as the possibility of potential loss on a trading position resulting from fluctuations in interest 
rates, foreign e[change rates and the price of stocks and derivatives� 7rading position is e[posed to risks, such as 
interest rate, stock price, and foreign e[change rate, etc� 1on�trading position is mostly e[posed to interest rates� 
Accordingly, the *roup classifies market risks into those e[posed from trading position or those e[posed from non�
trading position�  
 
(ii) Market risks of trading positions
 
Management method on market risks arising from trading positions 
In estimating market risk, the Standardi]ed Approach and the internal model are used� 7he Standardi]ed Approach 
is used to calculate the required capital from market risk and the internal model is used to manage risks internally� 
Since -uly 2007, the *roup has measured one�day 9aR through the historical simulation method using the time 
series data of past 250 days under a 99� confidence level� 7he calculated 9aR is monitored daily� 
 
7he *roup sets total limit of market risk based on annual business plan, risk appetite and others and monitors 9aR 
limit of each department on a daily basis� 
 
Capital Requirements for Market risk 
7he *roup¶s Capital Requirements for 0arket risk as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 
 
 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
Interest rate W 58,154 76,814
Stock price 33 848
Foreign e[change rate 30,959 15,287
2ption 30,055 61,742
 W 119,201 154,691

 
(iii) Market risks of non-trading positions
 
Management method on market risks arising from non-trading positions 
7he most critical market risk that arises in non�trading position is the interest rate risk� Interest rate risk is defined 
as the likely loss resulting from the unfavorable fluctuation of interest rate in the *roup¶s financial condition and is 
measured by interest rate 9aR and interest rate (aR�  
 
Interest rate 9aR is the ma[imum amount of decrease in net asset value resulting from the unfavorable fluctuation 
of interest rate� Interest rate (aR is the ma[imum amount of decrease in net interest income resulting from the 
unfavorable fluctuation of interest rate for a year�  
 
7he *roup¶s interest rate 9aR and interest rate (aR are measured through the simulation of conclusive interest rate 
scenario and are monthly reported to the Risk 0anagement Committee� 7he 0anagement¶s target of interest rate 
9aR and interest rate (aR are approved at the beginning of the year� 7o disclose the *roup¶s interest risk, interest 
rate 9aR and interest rate (aR are disclosed calculating change in economic value of equity (³△(9(´) and in net 
interest income (³△1II´) based on the application of IRRBB (³Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book´) method� 

 
△(9( and △1II of the *roup’s non�trading positions as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019 
ଠ(9( W 432,832 998,877
ଠ1II 97,677 89,253
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�iY� Foreign currency risk 
 
2utstanding balances by currency Zith significant e[posure as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as folloZs� 

  
 December 31, 2020 
 8SD  (8R -P< *BP  2thers  7otal
Financial assets�        
Cash and due from banks W 5,504,821  80,738 72,037 20,293  478,906  6,156,795
Securities measured at 
F97P/  583,265  � 316 �  52,256  635,837

Securities measured at 
F92CI  5,949,060  25 206,249 �  410,497  6,565,831

Securities measured at 
amorti]ed cost  �  � � �  2,705  2,705

/oans  34,533,735  2,653,117 1,281,467 453,210  2,229,466  41,150,995
Derivative financial 
assets   1,738,926  86,654 353 72,523  37,616  1,936,072

2ther financial assets  887,857  249,161 12,274 32,865  304,023  1,486,180
  49,197,664  3,069,695 1,572,696 578,891  3,515,469  57,934,415
       
Financial liabilities�       
 Financial liabilities 
designated at F97P/  116,412  � � �  �  116,412
Deposits  8,528,349  534,133 305,890 1,360  710,747  10,080,479
BorroZings  13,081,763  409,349 679,538 13,707  285,553  14,469,910
Debentures  21,571,854  1,925,105 706,318 818,290  5,919,496  30,941,063
Derivative financial 
liabilities   1,136,578  10,475 6,639 32,573  36,849  1,223,114

2ther financial liabilities  2,566,952  74,001 13,338 26,680  360,224  3,041,195
  47,001,908  2,953,063 1,711,723 892,610  7,312,869  59,872,173
1et financial position W 2,195,756  116,632 (139,027) (313,719)  (3,797,400)  (1,937,758)
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 December 31, 2019 
 8SD  (8R -P< *BP  2thers  7otal
Financial assets�        
Cash and due from banks W 4,070,531  50,587 28,043 15,280  397,055  4,561,496
Securities measured at 
F97P/  1,098,028  32,508 391 �  62,946  1,193,873

Securities measured at 
F92CI  5,740,121  557,245 200,191 �  565,855  7,063,412

Securities measured at 
amorti]ed cost  1,203,104  229,645 � �  1,318  1,434,067

/oans  36,629,441  2,057,006 1,128,441 500,821  1,430,342  41,746,051
Derivative financial 
assets   856,929  73,773 558 26,090  23,519  980,869

2ther financial assets  1,910,483  66,998 28,173 21  25,258  2,030,933
  51,508,637  3,067,762 1,385,797 542,212  2,506,293  59,010,701
       
Financial liabilities�       
 Financial liabilities 
designated at F97P/  237,384  � � �  �  237,384
Deposits  8,250,125  268,334 288,531 734  409,528  9,217,252
BorroZings  14,664,968  527,671 745,691 155,984  112,638  16,206,952
Debentures  19,664,075  1,955,443 499,505 737,037  4,973,347  27,829,407
Derivative financial 
liabilities   589,970  14,870 3,296 1,436  16,077  625,649

2ther financial liabilities  1,906,780  16,446 34,320 2,767  92,588  2,052,901
  45,313,302  2,782,764 1,571,343 897,958  5,604,178  56,169,545
1et financial position W 6,195,335  284,998 (185,546) (355,746)  (3,097,885)  2,841,156
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��� /iquidity risN management 
 
(i) Concept 
/iquidity risk is defined as the possibility of potential loss due to a temporary shortage in funds caused by a maturity 
mismatch or an une[pected capital outlay� /iquidity risk soars Zhen funding rates rise, assets are sold beloZ a 
normal price, or a good investment opportunity is missed�  
 
(ii) Approach to liquidity risk management 
7he *roup manages its liquidity risks as folloZs� 

 
Allowable limit for liquidity risk 
 7he alloZable limit for liquidity risk sets /CR, 1SFR and  0id� to long�term foreign currency fund management 

ratio  
 7he management standards Zith regards to the alloZable limit for liquidity risk should be set using separate and 

stringent set ratios in accordance Zith the FSS guidelines�  
 
�0easurement 0ethodology! 
 /CR� (+igh quality liquid assets � 7otal net cash outfloZs over the ne[t 30 calendar days) ; 100 
 1SFR� Available Stable Funding � Required Stable Funding ; 100 
 0id� to long�term foreign currency fund management ratio� Foreign currency funding being repaid after 1 year � 

Foreign currency lending being collected after 1 year ; 100 
 
Early warning indicator 
In order to identify prematurely and cope Zith Zorsening liquidity risk trends, the *roup has set up 16 inde[es such 
as the ³Foreign ([change Stabili]ation Bond CDS Premium,´ and measures the trend monthly, Zeekly and daily 
as a means for establishing the alloZable liquidity risk limit complementary measures�  
 
Stress-Test analysis and contingency plan 
 7he *roup evaluates the effects on the liquidity risk and identifies the inherent flaZs� In the case Zhere an 

unpredictable and significant liquidity crisis occurs, the *roup e[ecutes risk situation analysis quarterly based on 
crisis specific to the *roup, market risk and comple[ emergency, and reports to the Risk 0anagement Committee 
for the purpose of the *roup¶s solvency securiti]ation�  
 7he *roup established detailed contingency plan to manage the liquidity risks at every risk situations�  
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(iii) Analysis on remaining contractual maturity of financial instruments  
Remaining contractual maturity analysis for non�derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 
are as folloZs� 
 
 December 31, 2020 

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3  
months

3a12  
months

1a5 
<ears  

2ver 5  
years  7otal

Financial assets�       
Cash and due from 
banks W 10,035,967  873,540 917,523 773,441  21,268  12,621,739

Securities measured at 
F97P/  825,526  136,115 987,616 3,718,949  8,263,238  13,931,444

Securities measured at 
F92CI 825,842  1,145,333 4,913,538 11,588,463  13,768,942  32,242,118

Securities measured at 
amorti]ed cost 739  � 210,000 1,866,567  37,900  2,115,206

/oans 9,501,214  14,208,213 60,312,033 65,950,722  15,495,735  165,467,917
2ther financial assets 4,921,864  159,585 4,737,514 1,162,162  708,626  11,689,751
 W 26,111,152  16,522,786 72,078,224 85,060,304  38,295,709  238,068,175

Financial liabilities�      
Financial liabilities 
designated at F97P/ W 49,541  � 500,167 605,760  238,914  1,394,382

Deposits 22,756,408  7,472,723 12,976,422 4,648,349  532,255  48,386,157
BorroZings 3,947,935  3,926,958 10,885,593 3,230,507  1,173,165  23,164,158
Debentures 4,944,821  10,286,440 47,467,533 73,253,236  7,428,100  143,380,130
2ther financial liabilities 4,493,683  1,790,874 3,491,587 1,252,429  1,220,848  12,249,421
 W 36,192,388  23,476,995 75,321,302 82,990,281  10,593,282  228,574,248

 
 December 31, 2019 

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3  
months

3a12  
months

1a5 
years  

2ver 5  
years  7otal

Financial assets�       
Cash and due from 
banks W 6,023,177  1,008,691 807,090 812,151  41,158  8,692,267

Securities measured at 
F97P/  2,194,420  673,057 658,664 3,618,924  9,656,076  16,801,141

Securities measured at 
F92CI 593,590  838,062 4,350,887 8,287,797  18,318,386  32,388,722

Securities measured at 
amorti]ed cost 40,624  461,583 1,064,150 784,056  3,199,028  5,549,441

/oans 9,474,614  13,444,328 49,681,259 58,684,415  19,207,699  150,492,315
2ther financial assets 5,258,432  100,173 4,730,263 2,268,417  700,722  13,058,007
 W 23,584,857  16,525,894 61,292,313 74,455,760  51,123,069  226,981,893

Financial liabilities�      
Financial liabilities 
designated at F97P/ W 70,513  318,570 617,318 935,081  287,145  2,228,627

Deposits 16,725,504  5,390,010 10,884,301 3,547,856  569,834  37,117,505
BorroZings 2,886,072  5,719,382 9,898,736 3,660,040  1,299,006  23,463,236
Debentures 4,098,854  9,769,472 35,714,030 66,793,225  8,830,710  125,206,291
2ther financial liabilities 4,964,457  2,151,781 3,535,609 2,481,269  762,357  13,895,473
 W 28,745,400  23,349,215 60,649,994 77,417,471  11,749,052  201,911,132
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Remaining contractual maturity analysis for derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as folloZs� 
 
Net settlement of derivative financial instruments 
 

 December 31, 2020

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3 
months

3a12 
months

1a5 
<ears 2ver 5 years  7otal

7rading purpose 
derivatives�        

Currency W (1,172)  622 � 29 �  (521)
Interest rate  (12,099)  (8,786) (21,631) (138,720) 311,267  130,031

       
+edging purpose 
derivatives�  

     

Interest rate  60,484  118,050 397,587 679,232  596,098  1,851,451
 W 47,213  109,886 375,956 540,541 907,365  1,980,961

 
 December 31, 2019

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3 
months

3a12 
months

1a5 
<ears 2ver 5 years  7otal

7rading purpose 
derivatives�        

Currency W 538  927 577 � �  2,042
Interest rate  (5,667)  9,571 (67,109) 52,896 145,892  135,583
Stock  49  � � � �  49

       
+edging purpose 
derivatives�  

     

Interest rate  16,579  26,520 256,124 1,147,552  1,530,040  2,976,815
 W 11,499  37,018 189,592 1,200,448 1,675,932  3,114,489
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Gross settlement of derivative instruments 
 
 December 31, 2020

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3 
months

3a12 
months

1a5 
<ears  2ver 5 years  7otal

7rading purpose 
derivatives�      

Currency      
InfloZ W 41,677,717  28,162,109 71,043,542 68,865,763  7,423,977  217,173,108
2utfloZ 41,796,438  28,206,755 71,368,268 68,742,388  7,415,793  217,529,642

Interest      
InfloZ �  � 11,010 68,262  79,272  158,544
2utfloZ �  � 11,010 68,262  79,272  158,544

+edging purpose 
derivatives� 

     

Currency      
InfloZ 129,763  751,517 5,373,010 15,908,989  1,175,959  23,339,238
2utfloZ 235,842  868,513 5,395,605 16,109,126  1,157,880  23,766,966

7otal infloZ W 41,807,480  28,913,626 76,427,562 84,843,014  8,679,208  240,670,890
7otal outfloZ W 42,032,280  29,075,268 76,774,883 84,919,776  8,652,945  241,455,152
 
 December 31, 2019

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3 
months

3a12 
months

1a5 
<ears  2ver 5 years  7otal

7rading purpose 
derivatives�      

Currency      
InfloZ W 48,000,052  54,730,571 91,057,300 66,587,194  6,892,476  267,267,593
2utfloZ 48,124,220  54,735,040 91,106,646 66,367,317  6,944,884  267,278,107

Interest      
InfloZ �  � 3,920 11,760  �  15,680
2utfloZ �  � 3,920 11,760  �  15,680

+edging purpose 
derivatives� 

     

Currency      
InfloZ 206,556  240,544 3,914,654 16,101,557  1,359,497  21,822,808
2utfloZ 216,715  242,605 4,718,333 16,375,497  1,376,509  22,929,659

7otal infloZ W 48,206,608  54,971,115 94,975,874 82,700,511  8,251,973  289,106,081
7otal outfloZ W 48,340,935  54,977,645 95,828,899 82,754,574  8,321,393  290,223,446
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Remaining contractual maturity analysis for guarantees and commitments as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 are 
as folloZs� 

 
 December 31, 2020

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3  
months

3a12  
months

1a5 
years  

2ver 5  
years  7otal

*uarantees W 943,987  814,943 1,945,117 3,640,339  1,659,369  9,003,755
Commitments 486,992  84,076 729,845 2,242,224  36,078,545  39,621,682
 W 1,430,979  899,019 2,674,962 5,882,563  37,737,914  48,625,437

 
 December 31, 2019

 
Within 1 
month  

1a3  
months

3a12  
months

1a5 
years  

2ver 5  
years  7otal

*uarantees W 1,022,604  972,189 2,093,146 3,506,244  1,769,611  9,363,794
Commitments 99,762  98,347 1,078,500 2,680,167  26,259,808  30,216,584
 W 1,122,366  1,070,536 3,171,646 6,186,411  28,029,419  39,580,378
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